
Meeting of:  Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: Tuesday, 27th March, 2018
Time: 2.00 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth (Room 108ABC), First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Ite
m 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  MINUTES 3 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board held 18th July 2017 

4.  ROCHDALE PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2018-2021 7 - 213

To consider the Rochdale Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018-
2021. 

5.  HEALTH PROTECTION UPDATE 214 - 225

To consider an update on health protection. 

6.  DECLARATION OF HEALTHY WEIGHT 

Director of Public Health and Wellbeing to verbally update the Board  

7.  CHILDHOOD OBESITY ACTION PLAN - UPDATE 

Public Document Pack



Item has been withdrawn.  

8.  CAMHS LOCAL TRANSFORMATION PLAN 226 - 287

To consider the CAMHS local transformation plan. 

9.  JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT 288 - 344

To consider proposals for the development of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA). 

10.  INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE 

To consider the governance structure for the Integrated 
Commissioning Board – a presentation by the Director of Public 
Health. 

11.  HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS 

To consider the future arrangements for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board – a presentation by the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing. 

Health and Wellbeing Board membership:
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam
Jon Aspinall Rob Bellingham
Councillor Ashley Dearnley Dr Chris Duffy
Andrea Fallon Councillor Kieran Heakin
Gail Hopper Jane Jackson
Councillor Sara Rowbotham (chair) Steve Rumbelow
Steve Taylor Keith Walker
Michelle Warburton Simon Wootton

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services, Floor 2,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale

Tel: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
  

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 18th July 2017

PRESENT: Councillor Beswick (in the Chair); Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, 
S. Downey, A. Fallon, G. Hopper (Rochdale Borough Council); S. McIvor 
(Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale NHS Clinical Commissioning 
Group/Rochdale Borough Council), J. Jackson (HealthWatch Rochdale).

OFFICERS: W. Meston, D. Gardner, M. Hall (Public Health Directorate) 
S. Rush (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate). 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Dearnley, Councillor Martin, S. 
Rumbelow (Rochdale Borough Council), C. Duffy, S. Wootton (Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale NHS Clinical Commissioning Group), R. Bellingham 
(NHS England) and M. Warburton (CVS Rochdale).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
53 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
54 Decision:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held 28th 
March 2017, be approved as a correct record.

SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD
55 Decision:

That the minutes of the meetings of the Shadow Integrated Commissioning 
Board held 11th April 2017, 9th May 2017 and 13th June 2017, be noted.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
2017/18
56 The Director of Public Health submitted a draft work programme 
designed to set the agenda for future meetings of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board starting in 2017/18. The Director was looking to have ‘themed’ 
meetings that would be guided and accompanied by presentations designed 
to encourage discussion and debate. It was suggested that the Health and 
Wellbeing Board have a separate development session, early in the 2017/18 
Municipal Year which would inform the Board’s Work Programme.

Alternatives Considered: to not have a Work Programme could lead to 
unstructured meetings.

Decision:

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



(1) the report be noted;
(2) the Health and Wellbeing Board resolves to hold an informal Development 
Session on 20th September 2017 for the purpose of developing its Work 
Programme.

HEALTHWATCH ROCHDALE - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
57 The Committee received the HealthWatch Rochdale Annual Report 
2016/17. The report highlighted who HealthWatch were, what their role was 
and their staffing resources (both in paid and voluntary capacities). 

The report advised that in 2016/17 all HealthWatch organisations in Greater 
Manchester had played, and would continue to do so in 2017/18, an active 
role in readiness for the devolution of executive health and social care powers 
to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority from April 2017. HealthWatch 
would, it was reported, continue to monitor any proposed changes, insofar as 
they affect the residents of the Rochdale Borough. 

HealthWatch had throughout the year developed strong relationships with key 
partners including the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Council but still 
managed to maintain their independence and ability to scrutinise and 
challenge these bodies. HealthWatch was fully engaged with the Borough and 
held regular meetings across the four Township areas. 

Decision:

The report be noted.

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT
58 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a report of the 
Director of Public Health which outlined how the Board should fulfil its 
statutory duty to produce a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The 
report also outlined a proposed development and consultation plan for 
completing a refreshed JSNA by October 2017 in time to inform a refreshed 
Locality Plan/Health and Wellbeing Strategy and inform integrated 
commissioning intentions for 2018/19.

The Board were advised that one of the core statutory duties of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board included the preparation of the local JSNA and a Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy which locally is the Locality Plan. The JSNA 
was a locally developed process to identify the health and wellbeing needs 
(and assets) of a local area, including the current and future health and social 
care needs of the population across the whole life course, from pre-birth to old 
age. The JSNA informed the priorities for the Locality Plan, Commissioning 
and delivery of health and wellbeing outcomes and services.

The local JSNA process was undertaken initially in 2011 and was refreshed in 
2014/15. In line with a three cycle a refresh will be completed for 2018/19. In 
order to inform integrated commissioning intentions and refresh of the Locality 
Plan a refresh of the JSNA has been agreed for October 2017. The leadership 
of the JSNA rests with the Director of Health and Wellbeing. A working group 

Page 4



had been established of public health, intelligence, performance and policy 
leads from the Council and the CCG (Clincial Commissioning Group) that 
would be led by the Consultant in Public Health.

Due to the time available to meet the first deadline two phases for the JSNA 
refresh are proposed. Phase 1 will focus on a refresh of the intelligence, 
contained in the previous JSNA with an enhanced section on health and 
social care. Consultation on priorities will be primarily done at a joint Health 
and Wellbeing Board Assembly in September and existing groups and forums 
within the timeframe. Questions will be based around identifying any 
perceived gaps in the data, interpreting the data and identifying what this 
means for the stakeholders in question and identifying top priorities for action. 
Resident and patient views on needs and priorities would be taken from 
patient, service user and public engagement findings from the last two years. 
The viability of a resident survey was being explored.

Phase 2 would continue to develop a public facing intelligence website linked 
to the Health and Wellbeing Board and to develop further intelligence product 
on additional priority areas identified during Phase 1 including identification of 
a small number of priorities for deep dives.

Decision:

That the Director of Public Health be requested to co-ordinate consultation on 
priorities for the development of a refreshed JSNA will be undertaken at a joint 
Health and Wellbeing Board Assembly on 20th September and also with 
interested groups and forums within the timeframe specified in the report and 
a draft JSNA document will be submitted to a future meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.

HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT
59 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a report that had been 
prepared by the Directors of Economy and Public Health that provided 
members with an overview of the Greater Manchester Health and 
Employment Programme; updated the Board on local work to develop action 
on health and employment and request support for this programme; and 
confirmed the commitment of Board partners to lead by example as 
employers.

The purpose of the report was to ensure that Rochdale contributed and 
benefitted from the Greater Manchester Health and Employment Programme 
and to clearly identify local action required to be taken to improve health and 
employment outcomes for local people and employers.

The Board were advised that Greater Manchester’s leaders had set ambitious 
vision statements in relation to both work and skills and population 
health. They have set out a joint proposal across the Greater Manchester 
Health and Social Care Partnership and the Combined Authority to develop a 
whole population approaches to work and health.

Page 5



The Greater Manchester Population Health Plan 2017 – 2021, sought to 
achieve the greatest and fastest improvement to the health, wealth and 
wellbeing of the 2.8 million people that lived in Greater Manchester

Work & Skills Strategy 2016 – 2019:  the ambition was to create an integrated 
eco-system, which had the individual and employer at its heart, and that better 
responded to the needs of residents, business and contributes to the growth 
and productivity of the Greater Manchester economy.

Greater Manchester faced a challenge in terms of the number of people with 
long-term health conditions being in employment. The national average is 
65.3% but in Greater Manchester it is only 59.2%. In Greater Manchester 
there were currently 225,000 people out of work and claiming benefits which it 
was noted was more than the total population of Bury, Rochdale or 
Tameside.  Of these, 61%, or 140,000 people, were claiming as a result of a 
health condition.  In the Rochdale Borough 16,190 residents were out of work 
and claiming benefits with the largest group being those with health 
conditions. This represented 12% of the working age population compared to 
10% across the North West and 8.4% nationally.

Decision:

(1) The Board notes the report and endorses the proposed work as the 
way     forward to integrate and develop health and employment work 
locally and contribute to the Greater Manchester Health and 
Employment Programme;

(2) The Board endorses that all partners lead by example as exemplar 
employers in promoting health and wellbeing for their own 
organisations and workforce.

Page 6



Report to Health and Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting 27th March 2018
Portfolio Health and Wellbeing
Report Author Shakeela Bano on behalf 

of Andrea Fallon (Director 
of Public Health and 
Wellbeing)

Presented by Stephen 
Woods (NHS Greater 
Manchester Shared 
Services)

Public/Private Document Public

Final Draft Rochdale Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018-2021

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

The purpose of this report is to share the final PNA report with the Health and 
Wellbeing Board members for approval and sign off.

The PNA 2018-2021 has been developed by NHS GM Shared Services using 
a standard methodology in accordance with the requirements set out in 
regulations 3-9 Schedule 1 of the NHS (Pharmaceutical Services and Local 
Pharmaceutical Service) Regulations 2013.

The key aims of the PNA include:

 To inform NHS England when making decisions on applications to open 
new pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises; or 
applications from current pharmaceutical providers to change their 
existing regulatory requirements.

 To help the HWB Board to work with providers to target services to the 
areas where they are needed and limit duplication of services in areas 
where provision is adequate.

 To inform interested parties of the pharmaceutical needs in the 
Rochdale borough and enable work to plan, develop and deliver 
pharmaceutical services for the population.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



1.4

 To inform commissioning decisions by local commissioning bodies 
including local authorities’ (public health services), NHS England, and 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). 

In the process of undertaking the PNA, the views of a wide range of key 
stakeholders were obtained to identify issues that affect the commissioning of 
pharmaceutical services and to meet local health needs and priorities.  The 
PNA includes information on:

 Pharmacies in Rochdale borough and the services they currently 
provide.

 Other pharmaceutical services, such as Dispensing Appliance 
Contractors (DAC’s).

 Relevant maps relating to the Rochdale borough and providers of 
pharmaceutical services in the area.

 Pharmaceutical services in neighbouring HWB areas that might affect 
the need for services in Rochdale borough.

 Potential gaps in provision that could be met by providing more 
pharmacy services, or through opening more pharmacies, and likely 
future needs.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

2.2

Final approval and sign off from the Health and Wellbeing Board members.

Agree the publication of this document: Rochdale PNA to be published on the 
council website alongside JSNA and other needs assessments; a link to the 
web page to be sent to all stakeholders whom took part in the formal 
consultation; LA Comms team to advertise the final PNA report via staff 
newsletter and intranet/internet homepage. 

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1 From 1st April 2013 it became a statutory responsibility for every Health and 
Wellbeing Board in England to publish and keep an up to date statement of 
the needs for pharmaceutical services for the population in its area, referred to 
as a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA).

Key Points for Consideration

4. Alternatives Considered

None

Page 8



Costs and Budget Summary

5.

5.1

5.2

There are no costs associated with the final approval of the PNA.

There are no financial implications for the authority, from a wide viewpoint as 
no gaps have been identified in the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment then 
there will be no financial implications to the wider health economy.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred responsibility for the 
developing and updating of PNA’s to the Health and Wellbeing Boards, 
making it their statutory duty.

All the issues and recommendations in this report involve risk considerations 
as set out below:

 Failure to comply with the statutory duty of publishing and updating 
the PNA will result in increased scrutiny, negative impact on 
reputation, impact on commissioning services and identification of 
current gaps in pharmaceutical services.

 The PNA is of particular importance to NHS England who since 1st 
April 2013, and as identified in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, is 
responsible for maintaining pharmaceutical lists.  The PNA is a key 
document in making decisions with regard to applications made under 
the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 
Regulations 2013.

6.

6.1

6.2

Consultation

7.  Appendix 3 (attached) – Public survey results (Pharmaceutical 
survey).

 Appendix 4 (attached) – Pharmacy survey results.
 Appendix 9 (attached) – 60 day consultation plan and stakeholder list.
 Appendix 13 (attached) – Analysis of PNA consultation.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.  Rochdale PNA FINAL DRAFT REPORT for 
HWB Approval

 Appendix 1 – Glossary
 Appendix 2 – Steering group ToR
 Appendix 3 – Public survey results

Page 9



 Appendix 4 – Pharmacy survey results
 Appendix 5 – Commissioned services
 Appendix 6 – Rochdale Pharmacies
 Appendix 7 – MURs, NMS, AURs and Stoma
 Appendix 8 – Community Pharmacy opening 

hours
 Appendix 9 – 60 day consultation plan
 Appendix 10 – Maps
 Appendix 11 – GP Practices
 Appendix 12 – One mile boundary 

pharmacies
 Appendix 13 – Analysis of PNA Consultation

For Further Information Contact: Shakeela Bano
Public Health Development Manager

Shakeela.bano@rochdale.gov.uk

Tel: 01706 927086

Page 10

mailto:Shakeela.bano@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment

2018 to 2021

FINAL DRAFT FOR HWB APPROVAL

VERSION 1.13

Page 11



Page 2 of 93

Contents
1. Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................4

1.1 Introduction............................................................................................................................4
1.2 How the assessment was undertaken ....................................................................................4
1.3 Results ....................................................................................................................................5
1.4 Consultation ...........................................................................................................................6
1.5 Conclusions.............................................................................................................................6

2. Introduction....................................................................................................................................7
2.1 Background and legislation.....................................................................................................7
2.2 HWB duties in respect of the PNA ..........................................................................................8
2.3 Purpose of a PNA ....................................................................................................................8
2.4 Circumstances under which the PNA is to be revised or updated..........................................9
2.5 Scope of the PNA ....................................................................................................................9
2.6 Minimum requirements for the PNA....................................................................................10

3. How the assessment was undertaken ..........................................................................................11
3.1 Development of the PNA......................................................................................................11
3.2 PNA steering group...............................................................................................................12
3.3 PNA Townships .....................................................................................................................13
3.4 Patient and public engagement............................................................................................15
3.5 Contractor engagement........................................................................................................17
3.6 Pharmaceutical services .......................................................................................................20
3.7 Consultation (to be completed post consultation)...............................................................26

4. Context in Rochdale......................................................................................................................27
4.1 Overview...............................................................................................................................27
4.2 Population change ................................................................................................................28
4.3 Deprivation ...........................................................................................................................31
4.4 Life expectancy .....................................................................................................................32
4.5 Key findings from current data .............................................................................................33
4.6 Population characteristics health needs...............................................................................33

5. Other key health outcomes for Rochdale.....................................................................................45
5.1 Health and Wellbeing Strategy Vision ..................................................................................45
5.2 Public Health Outcomes .......................................................................................................46

6. Provision of pharmaceutical services ...........................................................................................56
6.1 Necessary services - current provision with-in the HWB’s area ...........................................56
6.2 Necessary services: current provision out-side the HWB’s area ..........................................67
6.3 Other relevant services - current provision ..........................................................................68
6.4 Future provision – necessary and other relevant services ...................................................69
6.5 Other NHS services ...............................................................................................................70

7. Localities for the purpose of the PNA...........................................................................................72
7.1 Overview...............................................................................................................................72
7.2 Heywood Township ..............................................................................................................72
7.3 Middleton Township.............................................................................................................74
7.4 Pennines Township...............................................................................................................76
7.5 Rochdale Township...............................................................................................................78

8. How pharmaceutical services can help support a healthier population ......................................80
8.1 Essential Services (ES)...........................................................................................................80

Page 12



Page 3 of 93

8.2 Advanced Services ................................................................................................................82
8.3 Enhanced services ................................................................................................................83
8.4 Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG locally commissioned services.............................83
8.5 Rochdale Borough Council locally commissioned services (LCS) ..........................................84

9. Necessary services - gaps in provision of pharmaceutical services ..............................................87
10. Improvements and better access: gaps in provision of pharmaceutical services ........................88
11. Conclusions (for the purpose of Schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations).........................................89

11.1 Current provision – necessary and other relevant services..................................................89
11.2 Necessary services – gaps in provision .................................................................................90
11.3 Future provision of necessary services .................................................................................91
11.4 Improvements and better access – gaps in provision ..........................................................91
11.5 Other NHS Services ...............................................................................................................92
11.6 How the assessment was carried out ...................................................................................92
11.7 Map of provision...................................................................................................................93

Page 13



Page 4 of 93

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Introduction
From 1st April 2013, Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) has a statutory responsibility to 
publish and keep up-to-date a statement of the needs for pharmaceutical services for the population 
in its area, referred to as a ‘pharmaceutical needs assessment’ (PNA).

The PNA aims to identify whether current pharmaceutical service provision meets the needs of the 
population. The PNA considers whether there are any gaps to service delivery.

The PNA may be used to inform commissioners such as clinical commissioning groups (CCG) and 
local authorities (LA), of the current provision of pharmaceutical services and where there are any 
gaps in relation to the local health priorities. Where such gaps are not met by NHS England, these 
gaps may then be considered by those organisations.

The PNA will be used by NHS England in its determination as to whether to approve applications to 
join the pharmaceutical list under The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013. The relevant NHS England area team (AT) will then 
review the application and decide if the application meets the regulatory criteria for approval. When 
making the decision NHS England is required to refer to the local PNA.

Rochdale has a population of 216,165 (2016 mid-year population estimate). Future population 
growth is expected to be modest (just over 2% over the next 10 years), with the largest increases 
(20%) seen in the over 65s age group. 

1.2 How the assessment was undertaken
This PNA describes the needs for the population of Rochdale. It considers current provision of 
pharmaceutical services across four townships in the Rochdale HWB area:

 Heywood 
 Middleton 
 Pennines 
 Rochdale 

The PNA uses the current system of Rochdale’s ward boundaries to create these four Townships. 
This approach was taken because:

 This grouping of wards into localities reflects the localities which are already in use by 
Rochdale Borough Council and the HWB.

 The majority of available healthcare data is collected at ward level and wards are a well-
understood definition within the general population as they are used during local 
parliamentary elections.

Page 14

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


Page 5 of 93

The PNA includes information on:

 Pharmacies in Rochdale and the services they currently provide, including dispensing, 
providing advice on health, medicines reviews and local public health services, such as 
smoking cessation, sexual health and support for drug users.

 Other local pharmaceutical type services, including dispensing appliance contractors (DAC).
 Relevant maps relating to Rochdale and providers of pharmaceutical services in the HWB 

area.
 Services in neighbouring HWB areas that may affect the need for services in Rochdale.
 Potential gaps in provision that could be met by providing more pharmacy services, or 

through opening more pharmacies, and likely future needs.

The HWB established a steering group to lead a comprehensive engagement process to inform the 
development of the PNA. The group undertook a public survey and sought information from 
pharmacies, Rochdale Borough Council, Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG and NHS England. 

1.3 Results
Rochdale has 51 pharmacies providing a range of essential services, advanced services, enhanced 
services and locally commissioned services on behalf of Rochdale Borough Council, Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale CCG and NHS England.

There are six 100 hour pharmacies and no dispensing doctors in Rochdale. There is one dispensing 
appliance contractors (DAC) who provide access to dispensing and services associated with 
appliances for some patients, others will access these services through pharmacy contractors or 
through DACs elsewhere within England.

66.7% pharmacy contractors that responded to the survey said that they were able to dispense all 
types of appliances.

The draft PNA concluded no gaps in pharmaceutical services had been established. This is clearly 
demonstrated by the following points:

 Rochdale has 24 pharmacies per 100,000 population, which is higher than the England 
average and similar to the Greater Manchester average.

 The majority of residents live within 1.0 miles of a pharmacy.
 The majority of residents can access a pharmacy within 15 to 30 minutes either by walking, 

public transport or driving.
 The location of pharmacies within each of the 4 Townships and across the whole HWB area.
 The number and distribution of pharmacies within each of the 4 Townships and across the 

whole HWB area.
 The choice of pharmacies covering each of the four Townships and the whole HWB area.
 95.3% of the public surveyed said the location of pharmacies did not cause a problem
 Over 96.5% of the public surveyed stated they had no difficulties accessing the pharmacy of 

their choice
 Over 87% of the public surveyed had not had any problems accessing a pharmacy due to 

opening hours

Page 15



Page 6 of 93

 Rochdale has a choice of pharmacies open across range of times including early mornings, 
evenings and the weekend.

 Rochdale pharmacies offer a range of pharmaceutical services to meet the requirements of 
the population.

1.4 Consultation
As part of the PNA process there is a statutory provision that requires consultation of at least 60 
days to take place to establish if the pharmaceutical providers and services supporting the 
population in the HWB area are accurately reflected in the final PNA document. Rochdale Borough 
Council’s consultation ran 3rd October 2017 until 1st December 2017. The responses received were 
used to inform the final conclusions which were collated and are now published as part of this PNA.

1.5 Conclusions
Taking into account the totality of the information available, the HWB considered the location, 
number, distribution and choice of pharmacies covering each “AREA”, including the whole of 
Rochdale HWB area providing essential and advanced services during the standard core hours meet 
the needs of the population.

The HWB has not received any significant information to conclude otherwise or any future specified 
circumstance that would alter that conclusion.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA:

 No current gaps in the need for provision of essential services during normal working hours 
have been identified.

 No current gaps in the provision of essential services outside normal working hours have 
been identified.

 No current gaps in the provision of advanced and enhanced services have been identified.
 No gaps in the need for pharmaceutical services in specified future circumstances have been 

identified.
 No gaps have been identified in essential services that if provided either now or in the future 

would secure improvements, or better access, to essential services.
 No gaps have been identified in the need for advanced services that if provided either now 

or in the future would secure improvements, or better access, to advanced services.
 No gaps in respect of securing improvements, or better access, to other NHS services either 

now or in specified future circumstances have been identified.

Page 16



Page 7 of 93

2. Introduction
This document has been prepared by Rochdale’s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in accordance 
with the NHS Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services Regulations 2013, as amended. It 
replaces the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) previously published in 2015.

In the current NHS there is a need for the local health partners, NHS England, Rochdale Borough 
Council, Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG, Rochdale pharmacies and other providers of 
health and social care, to ensure that the health and pharmaceutical needs of the local population 
are met through the appropriate commissioning of services.

There is also a need to ensure that those additional services commissioned by Rochdale Borough 
Council or Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG from Rochdale pharmacies are promoted to 
Rochdale’s population to improve their uptake.

The current providers of pharmaceutical services in Rochdale are well placed to support the HWB in 
achieving the required outcomes identified as the health priori-ties outlined in its strategy.

Glossary and acronyms are provided in Appendix One.

2.1 Background and legislation
The Health Act 20091 made amendments to the National Health Service (NHS) Act 2006 stating that 
each PCT must in accordance with regulations:

 Assess needs for pharmaceutical services in its area.
 Publish a statement of its first assessment and of any revised assessment.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred responsibility for the developing and updating of 
PNAs to HWBs. It also made provision for a temporary extension of PCTs’ PNAs and access to them 
by NHS England and HWBs.

The preparation and consultation on the PNA should take account of the HWB’s Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) and other relevant local strategies in order to prevent duplication of work 
and multiple consultations with health groups, patients and the public.

Each PNA, published by the HWB will have a maximum lifetime of three years. HWBs will also be 
required to publish a revised assessment when significant changes to the need for pharmaceutical 
services are identified, unless this is considered a disproportionate response.

1 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/21/part/3/crossheading/pharmaceutical-services-in-england 

Page 17

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/21/part/3/crossheading/pharmaceutical-services-in-england


Page 8 of 93

As part of developing their PNA, HWBs must undertake a consultation for a minimum of 60 days. The 
2013 Regulations list those persons and organisations that the HWB must consult. This list includes:

 Any relevant local pharmaceutical committee (LPC) for the HWB area
 Any local medical committee (LMC) for the HWB area
 Any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing GP practices in the HWB area
 Any local Healthwatch organisation for the HWB area, and any other patient, consumer and 

community group which in the opinion of the HWB has an interest in the provision of 
pharmaceutical services in its area

 Any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in the HWB area
 NHS England
 Any neighbouring HWB

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also transferred responsibility for using PNAs as the basis for 
determining market entry to a pharmaceutical list from PCTs to NHS England. The PNA will be used 
by NHS England when making decisions on applications to open new pharmacies and dispensing 
appliance contractor premises; or applications from current pharmaceutical providers to change 
their existing regulatory requirements.

Such decisions are appealable to the NHS Resolution, and decisions made on appeal can be 
challenged through the courts.

PNAs will also inform the commissioning of enhanced services from pharmacies by NHS England, and 
the commissioning of services from pharmacies by the LA and other local commissioners, e.g. CCGs.

2.2 HWB duties in respect of the PNA
In summary Rochdale HWB must: 

 Produce an updated PNA which complies with the regulatory requirements; 
 Publish its second PNA by 1st April 2018; 
 Publish subsequent PNAs on a three yearly basis; 
 Publish a subsequent PNA sooner when it identifies changes to the need for pharmaceutical 

services which are of a significant extent, unless to do so would be a disproportionate 
response to those changes; and 

 Produce supplementary statements in certain circumstances. 

2.3 Purpose of a PNA
The purpose of the PNA is to assess and set out how the provision of pharmaceutical services can 
meet the health needs of the population of a HWB’s area for a period of up to three years, linking 
closely to the joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA). Whilst the JSNA focusses on the general 
health needs of the population of Rochdale, the PNA looks at how those health needs can be met by 
pharmaceutical services commissioned by NHS England. 

If a person (a pharmacy or a dispensing appliance contractor) wants to provide pharmaceutical 
services, they are required to apply to NHS England to be included in the pharmaceutical list for the 

Page 18



Page 9 of 93

HWB’s area in which they wish to have premises. In general, their application must offer to meet a 
need that is set out in the HWB’s PNA, or to secure improvements or better access similarly 
identified in the PNA. There are however some exceptions to this e.g. applications offering benefits 
that were not foreseen when the PNA was published (‘unforeseen benefits applications’). 

As well as identifying if there is a need for additional premises, the PNA will also identify whether 
there is a need for an additional service or services, or whether improvements or better access to 
existing services are required. Identified needs, improvements or better access could either be 
current or will arise within the lifetime of the PNA.

Whilst the PNA is primarily a document for NHS England to use to make commissioning decisions, it 
may also be used by LA’s and CCGs. A robust PNA will ensure those who commission services from 
pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors (DACs) are able to ensure services are targeted to 
areas of health need, and reduce the risk of overprovision in areas of less need.

2.4 Circumstances under which the PNA is to be 
revised or updated

It is important that the PNA reflects changes that affect the need for pharmaceutical services in 
Rochdale. Where the HWB becomes aware that a change may require the PNA to be updated then a 
decision to revise the PNA will be made. 

Not all changes to pharmaceutical services will result in a change to the need for services. Where 
required, the HWB will issue supplementary statements to update the PNA as changes take place to 
the provision of services locally.

2.5 Scope of the PNA
A PNA is defined in the regulations as follows: 

The statement of the needs for pharmaceutical services which each HWB is required to publish by 
virtue of section 128A of the 2006 Act(1) (pharmaceutical needs assessments), whether it is the 
statement of its first assessment or of any revised assessment, is referred to in these Regulations as a 
pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

The pharmaceutical services to which each pharmaceutical needs assessment must relate are all the 
pharmaceutical services that may be provided under arrangements made by the NHS Commissioning 
Board (NHSCB) (now known as NHS England) for –

 the provision of pharmaceutical services (including directed services) by a person on a 
pharmaceutical list 

 the provision of local pharmaceutical services under a Local Pharmaceutical services (LPS) 
scheme; or 

 the dispensing of drugs and appliances by a person on a dispensing doctors list (but not 
other NHS services that may be provided under arrangements made by the NHSCB with a 
dispensing doctor). 

Page 19



Page 10 of 93

Pharmaceutical services are defined by reference to the regulations and directions governing 
pharmaceutical services provided by community pharmacies (which may be LPS providers), 
dispensing doctors and appliance contractors. 

Whether a service falls within the scope of pharmaceutical services for the purposes of the PNA 
depends on who the provider is and what is provided:

For dispensing practices the scope of the service to be assessed in the PNA is the dispensing service. 
However, as there are no dispensing practices in Rochdale, these are not considered in the 
document. 

For appliance contractors the scope of the service to be assessed in the PNA is the dispensing of 
appliances and the provision of appliance use review (AUR) and stoma appliance customisation 
(SAC). This means that, for the purposes of the PNA, it is concerned with whether patients have 
adequate access to dispensing services, including dispensing of appliances, AURs and SACs where 
these are undertaken by an appliance contractor but not concerned with other services appliance 
contractors may provide. 

For community pharmacy contractors the scope of the services to be assessed in the PNA is broad 
and comprehensive. It includes the essential, advanced and enhanced services elements of the 
pharmacy contract whether provided under the terms of services for pharmaceutical contractors or 
under LPS contracts. 

Other providers may deliver services that meet a particular pharmaceutical service need although 
they are not considered pharmaceutical services under the relevant regulations. It is therefore 
important that these are considered as part of the assessment.

2.6 Minimum requirements for the PNA
Schedule 1 of the NHS 2013 Regulations state that the PNA must include, as a minimum, a statement 
of the following:

 Necessary services - pharmaceutical services which have been assessed as required to meet 
a pharmaceutical need. This should include their current provision (within the HWB area and 
outside of the area) and any current or likely future gaps in provision. 

 Relevant services - services which have secured improvements, or better access, to 
pharmaceutical services. This should include their current provision (within the HWB area 
and outside of the area) and any current or future gaps in provision. 

 Other NHS services, either provided or arranged by a LA, NHS England, a CCG, an NHS Trust 
or Foundation Trust which either impact upon the need for pharmaceutical services, or 
which would secure improvements, or better access to, pharmaceutical services within the 
area. 

 A map showing the premises where pharmaceutical services are provided. 
 An explanation of how the assessment was made.

Page 20



Page 11 of 93

3. How the assessment was undertaken

3.1 Development of the PNA
The process of developing the PNA has taken into account the requirement to involve and consult 
people about changes to health services. The specific legislative requirements in relation to 
development of PNAs were considered.

Stage 1

The PNA was developed using a project management approach. A steering group was established 
which met regularly during the development of the PNA. The steering group included representation 
from the following groups:

 Rochdale Borough Council’s Public Health and Wellbeing team 
 Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
 Greater Manchester Shared Service
 Healthwatch Rochdale 
 Greater Manchester Local Pharmaceutical Committee (GM LPC) 
 NHS England area team (AT) 

Stakeholder views were gathered through feedback in meetings, via telephone or email.

Stage 2

The contractor questionnaire and patient survey were approved by the steering group. The 
contractor questionnaire was undertaken during June to July 2017. A patient survey was also 
undertaken in June to July 2017 of the views of Rochdale residents on the current pharmaceutical 
services provision. 

Once completed the results of both were analysed. The contractor survey results were validated 
against data already held.

Healthwatch Rochdale, Rochdale Borough Council and Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG were 
involved in promoting the public survey to as wide an audience as possible through the existing 
channels available to them.

GM LPC was asked on behalf of contractors what their views on what current services were effective 
and those services that required improvement were captured.

Stage 3

The content of the PNA including demographics, localities and background information was 
approved by the steering group. In looking at the health needs of the local population, the local 
JSNA, the CCG’s Strategic Commissioning Plan 2014/15 – 2018/19 and other health data were 
considered. 

Page 21



Page 12 of 93

Assessing the need for pharmaceutical services is a complex process. In addition to taking account of 
all views submitted from the stakeholders outlined above, this PNA considered a number of factors, 
including:

 The size and demography of the population across Rochdale. 
 Whether there is adequate access to pharmaceutical services across Rochdale. 
 Different needs of different localities within Rochdale. 
 Pharmaceutical services provided in the area of neighbouring HWBs which affect the need 

for pharmaceutical services in Rochdale. 
 Other NHS services provided in or outside its area which affect the need for pharmaceutical 

services in Rochdale. 
 Whether further provision of pharmaceutical services would secure improvements, or better 

access, to pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in the 
area. 

 Likely changes to needs in the future occurring due to changes to the size of the population, 
the demography of the population, and risks to the health or wellbeing of people in its area 
which could influence an analysis to identify gaps in the provision of pharmaceutical 
services. 

Stage 4

As required by legislation, a consultation exercise with stakeholders was carried out for 60 days. The 
list of stakeholders consulted included the following groups:

 Greater Manchester Local Pharmaceutical Committee (LPC). 
 Rochdale and Bury Local Medical Committee (LMC) 
 Persons on the pharmaceutical list and ESPLPS. 
 Rochdale Healthwatch. 
 Other patient, consumer and community groups in the area with an interest in the provision 

of pharmaceutical services in the area.
 NHS trusts and NHS foundation trusts in the area (Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust & 

Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust).
 NHS England.
 Neighbouring HWBs. (Bury, Calderdale, Lancashire, Manchester, and Oldham).

3.2 PNA steering group
The steering group has been responsible for reviewing the PNA to ensure it meets the statutory 
requirements. The steering group approved all public facing documentation. The terms of reference 
for the steering group are provided at Appendix Two.

Page 22



Page 13 of 93

3.3 PNA Townships
Four Townships have been defined for the PNA by the steering group, these are: 

Heywood Township

 Hopwood Hall Ward (spans both Heywood and Middleton Township)
 North Heywood Ward
 West Heywood Ward

Middleton Township

 East Middleton Ward
 Hopwood Hall Ward (spans both Heywood and Middleton Township)
 North Middleton Ward
 South Middleton Ward
 West Middleton Ward

Pennines Township

 Littleborough Lakeside Ward
 Milnrow and Newhey
 Smallbridge and Firgrove Ward
 Wardle and West Littleborough Ward

Rochdale Township

 Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward
 Bamford Ward
 Castleton Ward
 Central Rochdale Ward
 Healey Ward
 Kingsway Ward
 Milkstone and Deeplish Ward
 Norden Ward
 Spotland and Falinge Ward

The PNA steering group considered how the areas in Rochdale could be defined for the PNA and 
agreed to use the current system of Rochdale Council’s Townships, which are made up varying 
numbers of Wards as illustrated in Map 1. 

Page 23



Page 14 of 93

Map 1 - Rochdale Townships

Townships are used following the JSNA and contain Wards, which is the level at which the majority 
of available healthcare data is collected and wards are a well-understood definition within the 
general population as they are used during local parliamentary elections and reflects the localities 
which are already in use by Rochdale Council and Rochdale HWB.

Rochdale Council’s JSNA discusses the characteristics and identified health needs of the whole 
population living within the HWB area. 

The Rochdale Council’s JSNA is broken down into six themes and priorities:

 Premature Mortality
 Lifestyle and behaviour change
 Early years, prevention and early intervention
 Asset building – enabling community resilience, engagement, independence and action
 Mental health and wellbeing
 Health and social care integration and integrated commissioning

The local health profile is discussed in more detail for the four Townships within the JSNA and is 
dealt with in section 7.0.

Where it has been possible to identify the different needs of people living within these localities, 
including those sharing a protected characteristic, this has been addressed in the PNA as well as the 
needs of other patient groups; although some health information can be represented at a practice 
population level which is useful when focusing on the four different Townships.

Page 24



Page 15 of 93

3.4 Patient and public engagement
In order to gain the views of patients and the public on pharmaceutical services, a questionnaire was 
developed and made available on the council’s website on 12th June 2017, closing 18th July 2017 
prior to the statutory consultation period. The results of the survey, which identifies the questions 
asked, can be found in Appendix Three.

There were 179 responses to the Rochdale public survey which was promoted through Rochdale’s 
website, direct email, twitter and leaflets sent out to pharmacies. This only represents 0.1% of 
Rochdale’s population (aged 15 years and over) and as a number of responses (15) came from 
residents outside Rochdale we can only take this as a general picture of public opinion. Map 2 below 
shows the spread of responses to the public survey.

The lack of response to the public survey may indicate that residents in Rochdale do not see access 
to pharmacies as an issue and therefore not worth taking the time to complete the survey, but this 
assumption is not proven. 

Of the 179, 75.8% of the responders were female and the majority of respondents were between 
the age of 25 and 75.  

14.3% of respondents consider themselves to have a disability.

86.8% of people considered themselves to be ‘White British’, with the next largest group being 
Pakistani at 6.9%.

Map 2 - Public survey responses by Post Code District

Page 25



Page 16 of 93

3.4.1 Choice of Pharmacy

96.5% of respondents stated they had no difficulties accessing the pharmacy of their choice and 
92.3% used one pharmacy regularly. 

Responses were received from 15 people from neighbouring HWB areas, although only 13 of those 
used a pharmacy and only seven used a regular pharmacy. Those seven respondents use pharmacies 
inside Rochdale HWB’s area for a number of reasons – three near to their doctor, three near to 
home, and one because they pass it on their way to work. (See Map 2).

From all the respondents the two most selected reasons for using one pharmacy regularly was that 
the pharmacy was near to home or near to their doctors which 58.9% of these respondents accessed 
by car either as a driver or passenger. 32.9% of respondents walk to the pharmacy.

3.4.2 Access to Pharmaceutical Services

The location of pharmacies does not cause a problem for 95.3% of the responders and the opening 
hours do not cause a problem for 87.1% of respondents. For the remaining respondents who had a 
problem with the opening times they were aware that some pharmacies had extended opening 
times but over third of these did not know where these pharmacies were located. Any campaign to 
increase use of pharmacies, e.g. for self-care, should include providing information on the location 
and opening times of pharmacies that provide extended hours.

There were specific comments with regard to two areas:

 Heywood – ‘I live in Heywood, as far as I know there are no pharmacies in the town open 
after 6pm, to cover later opening of GPs, extended hours GP or people working late’ There 
are six pharmacies in Heywood Township, none of which open beyond 7 p.m. during the 
week. This one comment does not constitute a gap in provision, but NHS England may wish 
to consider whether a Rota is required to cover GP extended hours.

 Middleton – ‘As a fulltime working parent I often struggle to access a pharmacy in Middleton 
after 7 p.m.’. There are 11 pharmacies in Middleton Township one of which opens until 8 
p.m. Monday to Saturday and provides 6 hours on Sunday.

Of the 13.0% of respondents that stated they have difficulty accessing a pharmacy due to opening 
hours, the majority commented about difficulty accessing a pharmacy outside the normal Monday to 
Friday trading hours (beyond 6.00 p.m.) and at weekends. However, there are a number of 
pharmacies that open beyond 7.00 p.m. Monday to Friday (nine across Rochdale). 17 pharmacies 
open all day Saturday (29 Saturday morning only) with eight open until 7.00 p.m. or later. Nine 
pharmacies open in Rochdale on Sunday.

21.2% of respondents were not aware that there are pharmacies in Rochdale that are open 
extended hours (e.g. early morning, late night, weekends and bank holidays). It is important that the 
public is provided with easy access to this information and that NHS England, Rochdale Council and 
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG ensure they keep the public informed of services provided, 
hours of provision and locations in Rochdale.

Page 26



Page 17 of 93

3.4.3 Development of Pharmacy Services

65.8% of respondents felt that they were provided with sufficient information about their 
medication in particular the side effects of the medication and interactions with other medication, 
however, patients do take the time to read the medicines information leaflet provided with their 
medication. The public need to understand that pharmacists are a good source of information about 
the medication they take and should be encouraged to ask questions about them. Pharmacies need 
to ensure that they provide patients with the opportunity to access information with regard to their 
medication. 95.0% of respondents considered it very important or important that pharmacists take 
time to listen to them.

96.2% of respondents were either satisfied or very satisfied with the services they receive from their 
pharmacy/pharmacies overall.  

In addition to the patient questionnaire (Appendix Three), respondents were provided with an 
opportunity to answer some questions in free text form, which the HWB have considered. Positive 
and negative comments were received on local pharmacies which relate to operational matters such 
as politeness, waiting times and other matters that while important are not concerns that are 
addressed within the context of the PNA. Each pharmacy will undertake its own patient survey on a 
regular basis to inform such considerations. The main themes informing this PNA were with regard 
to opening times and services provided.

3.5 Contractor engagement
At the same time as the initial patient and public engagement questionnaire, an online contractor 
questionnaire was undertaken (Appendix Four). 

The contractor questionnaire provided an opportunity to validate the information provided by NHS 
England in respect of the hours, services provided and asks questions with regard to access. The 
questionnaire asked a number of questions outside the scope of the PNA, which will provide 
commissioners with valuable information related to governance and IT.

The questionnaire was issued to all 51 pharmacies in Rochdale HWB area and ran from 12th June 
2017 until 14th July 2017. Responses were received from 25 pharmacies, a 49% response rate, which 
was poor and failed to provide a complete picture of service delivery in Rochdale.

Because of the poor response, data provided by commissioners has been used with regard to 
number pharmacies delivering services.

Page 27



Page 18 of 93

3.5.1 Advanced services

See information contained in section 6.0.

Table 1 - Number of pharmacies in Rochdale providing each advanced service
Advanceed Service Number of pharmacies
Medicines Use Review 47
New Medicines 42
Appliance Use Review 1
Stoma Customisation 9
Flu Vaccination 29
NHS Urgent Medicine Supply 2

Data from the NHS England Area Team show that the main providers of appliance use reviews and 
stoma customisation services are DACs. In 2015/16 (latest data at NHS Digital), 1,107 AURs were 
provided to Lancashire & Greater Manchester residents with 863 of these delivered in the 
individuals home. 

3.5.2 Enhanced and locally commissioned services

According to data provided by commissioners the following information is available:

Table 2 - Number of Rochdale pharmacies offering enhanced and locally commissioned services
Commissioner Service Number of pharmacies 

commissioned
Rochdale Council Emergency Hormonal Contraception 38

Chlamydia Screening & Treatment 33
Stop Smoking 40
Minor Ailment Scheme 46NHS Heywood, Middleton & 

Rochdale CCG Minor Eye Condition Service 37
NHS England Inhaler Technique Service 7

Full details of which pharmacies are commissioned can be found in Appendix Five. 

3.5.3 Non-NHS services

The majority of pharmacies that responded to the survey have staff that speak a number of 
languages other than English, including: Arabic, Bengali, Cantonese, French, Gujarati, Hindi, 
Japanese, Punjabi and Urdu.

IT facilities available to staff in the pharmacies that responded are variable; however, the majority 
have some access to the internet and have an email address that can be used for official 
communications. All pharmacies that responded can provide the electronic prescription service.

The new Quality Payment mentioned in 3.6.1 will require pharmacies to have a generic NHS mail 
account. This is currently being actioned and should be in place during 2017/18.

Page 28



Page 19 of 93

Of those pharmacies that responded to the survey only three had achieved Healthy Living Pharmacy 
status with 20 working towards achieving it. This will change as there is now a Quality Payment 
attached to achieving HLP Level 1 as mentioned in 3.6.1.

3.5.4 Additional information

The pharmacy survey showed the following for the 25 pharmacies that responded:

 The public can park legally within 50 meters of all pharmacies that responded to the survey 
(23).

 Members of the public with a disability and who have a ‘Blue Badge’ can park within 10 
meters 17 pharmacies.

 23 pharmacies have a bus stop within walking distance, 16 within a 2 minute walk and a 
further six within 5 minutes.

 21 pharmacies had wheelchair access.
 21 pharmacies offered some form of support to aid those with disability e.g. automatic door 

assistance, hearing loop, large print labels/leaflets.
 20 pharmacies had a separate area/room suitable for advanced services and for 

consultations with the public. Of those 19 were wheelchair accessible and had room for up 
to 3 people.

 16 pharmacies had a computer terminal within the consultation room, where they could 
access the patient’s record or complete audit data.

 Eight pharmacies stated they had two pharmacists on duty at some point during the week, 
however, when asked how many hours per week are two pharmacists working at the same 
time 11 pharmacies indicated some hours. Ranging from up to four hours (four) to one that 
had second pharmacist for 30 hrs + per week. The majority of additional pharmacists’ hours 
were to provide support for additional services, e.g. medication use reviews, and for 
handover between shifts.

Page 29



Page 20 of 93

3.6 Pharmaceutical services
The services that a PNA must include are defined within both the NHS Act 2006 and the NHS 
(Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended (the 2013 
regulations).

Pharmaceutical services may be provided by:

 A pharmacy contractor who is included in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the HWB; 
 A pharmacy contractor who is included in the local pharmaceutical services (LPS) list for the 

area of the HWB; 
 A DAC who is included in the pharmaceutical list held for the area of the HWB; and 
 A doctor who is included in a dispensing doctor list held for the area of the HWB. 

NHS England is responsible for preparing, maintaining and publishing the pharmaceutical list. It 
should be noted, however, for Rochdale HWB there is no dispensing doctor list as there are no 
dispensing doctors within the HWB’s area.

Contractors may operate as either a sole trader, partnership or a body corporate. The Medicines Act 
1968 governs who can be a pharmacy contractor, but there is no restriction on who can operate as a 
DAC.

3.6.1 Pharmaceutical services provided by pharmacy contractors

Unlike for GPs, dentists and optometrists, NHS England does not hold contracts with pharmacy 
contractors. Instead they provide services under a contractual framework, details of which (their 
terms of service) are set out in schedule 4 of the 2013 regulations and also in the Pharmaceutical 
Services (Advanced and Enhanced Services) (England) Directions 2013 (the 2013 directions). 

Pharmacy contractors may provide three types of services that fall within the definition of 
pharmaceutical services. These are as follows:

  Essential services – all pharmacies (see Appendix Six for complete list) must provide these 
services:

 Dispensing of prescriptions (both electronic and non-electronic), including urgent 
supply of a drug or appliance without a prescription 

 Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions 
 Disposal of unwanted drugs 
 Promotion of healthy lifestyles 
 Signposting 
 Support for self-care 

Page 30



Page 21 of 93

 Advanced services – pharmacies may choose whether to provide these services or not (refer 
Appendix Seven). If they choose to provide one or more of the advanced services they must 
meet certain requirements and must be fully compliant with the essential services and 
clinical governance requirements:

 Medicine use review and prescription intervention services (more commonly 
referred to as the medicine use review or MUR service). 

 New medicine service
 Appliance Use Review (AUR)
 Stoma Appliance Customisation (SAC)
 Flu vaccination
 NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS) (Due to run until 30th 

September 2018.)

 Enhanced services – service specifications for this type of service are developed by NHS 
England and then commissioned to meet specific health.

In April 2017, the only enhanced service commissioned by NHS England from pharmacies in 
the Rochdale HWB area is the inhaler technique service. This service has undergone a review 
and was re-launched in August 2017.

Underpinning the provision of all of these services is the requirement on each pharmacy to 
participate in a system of clinical governance. This system is set out within the 2013 regulations and 
includes: 

 A patient and public involvement programme 
 A clinical audit programme 
 A risk management programme 
 A clinical effectiveness programme 
 A staffing and staff programme 
  An information governance programme 
 A premises standards programme 

Further support to improving quality in pharmacies has been provided through a new Quality 
Payments (QP) scheme, introduced for the 2017/2018 Community Pharmacy Contractual 
Framework. In order to access the additional funding available through the QP, pharmacies need to 
achieve the following gateway criteria:

1) the contractor must be offering at the pharmacy Medicines Use Reviews (MUR) or the New 
Medicine Service (NMS) or must be registered to provide the NHS Urgent Medicine Supply 
Advanced Service (NUMSAS);

2) the NHS Choices entry for the pharmacy must be up to date;
3) pharmacy staff at the pharmacy must be able to send and receive NHS mail; and
4) the contractor must be able to demonstrate ongoing utilisation of the Electronic Prescription 

Service (EPS) at the pharmacy premises.

Page 31



Page 22 of 93

Pharmacy contractors will then receive additional payments for achieving a range of criteria under 
the domains:

 Patient safety
 Patient experience
 Public health
 Digital
 Clinical effectiveness
 Workforce

The majority of pharmacies are required to open for 40 hours per week, and these are referred to as 
core opening hours, but many choose to open for longer and these hours are referred to as 
supplementary opening hours.

Between April 2005 and August 2012, some contractors successfully applied to open new premises 
on the basis of being open for 100 core opening hours per week (referred to as 100 hour 
pharmacies), which means that they are required to be open for 100 hours per week, 52 weeks of 
the year (with the exception of weeks which contain a bank or public holiday, or Easter Sunday). 

These 100 hour pharmacies remain under an obligation to be open for 100 hours per week. In 
addition these pharmacies may open for longer hours. There are six pharmacies in Rochdale with 
100 hour contracts, and residents may also choose to use such pharmacies outside of the borough. 

The proposed opening hours for each pharmacy are set out in the initial application, if the 
application is granted and the pharmacy subsequently opens these form the pharmacy’s contracted 
opening hours. The contractor can subsequently apply to change their core opening hours or notify a 
change in their supplementary hours. 

NHS England will assess the application against the needs of the population of the HWB area as set 
out in the PNA to determine whether to agree to the change in core hours or not. If a contractor 
wishes to change their supplementary opening hours they simply notify NHS England of the change, 
giving at least three months’ notice.

Page 32



Page 23 of 93

Map 3 - Rochdale Pharmacies by type

Pharmacy opening hours in Rochdale HWB’s area can be found on NHS Choices 
(http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10). Appendix Eight provides details 
as to the spread of opening times across each Township and by Ward.

3.6.2 Local pharmaceutical services

Local pharmaceutical services (LPS) are a local alternative to the nationally negotiated terms of 
service. It can be used by NHS England when there is a need to commission a service from a 
pharmacy contractor to meet the particular needs of a patient group or groups, or a particular 
township. For the purposes of the PNA the definition of pharmaceutical services includes LPS.

There are no LPS contractors within the Rochdale area.

3.6.3 Distance selling pharmacies

Whilst the majority of pharmacies provide services on a face-to-face basis, e.g. people attend the 
pharmacy to ask for a prescription to be dispensed, or to receive health advice, there is one type of 
pharmacy that is restricted from providing services in this way. They are referred to in the 2013 
regulations as distance selling premises (previously called wholly mail order or internet pharmacies). 

Distance selling pharmacies are required to provide essential services and participate in the clinical 
governance system in the same way as other pharmacies; however they must provide these services 
remotely. Such pharmacies are required to provide services to people who request them wherever 
they may live in England. 

There are two distance selling pharmacies in Rochdale, although residents may choose to use such 
pharmacies that are outside of the borough.

Page 33

http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10


Page 24 of 93

3.6.4 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing appliance 
contracts (DAC)

As with pharmacy contractors, NHS England does not hold contracts with DACs. Their terms of 
service are also set out in schedule 5 of the 2013 regulations and in the 2013 directions. 

DACs must provide the following services that fall within the definition of pharmaceutical services:

 Dispensing of prescriptions (both electronic and non-electronic), including urgent supply 
without a prescription 

 Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions 
 Home delivery service 
 Supply of appropriate supplementary items (e.g. disposable wipes and disposal bags) 
 Provision of expert clinical advice regarding the appliances 
 Signposting 

Advanced services – DACs may choose whether to provide these services or not. If they do choose to 
provide them then they must meet certain requirements and must be fully compliant with their 
terms of service and the clinical governance requirements:

 Stoma appliance customisation 
 Appliance use review 

DACs are required to open at least 30 hours per week and these are referred to as core opening 
hours. They may choose to open for longer and these hours are referred to as supplementary 
opening hours.

There is one DAC in Rochdale and its population have appliances dispensed from this DAC and 
pharmacy contractors or from DACs outside the Rochdale area. The majority of pharmacy 
contractors that responded to the survey stated they were able to dispense all types of appliances.

3.6.5 Pharmaceutical services provided by doctors

The 2013 regulations allow doctors to dispense to eligible patients in certain circumstances. As there 
are no dispensing doctors within the HWB’s area this route of provision is not included in this 
document.

3.6.6 Locally commissioned services

Rochdale Borough Council and Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG may also commission 
services from pharmacies and DACs. However, these services fall outside the definition of 
pharmaceutical services. In particular, the commissioning of a number of services that have been 
designated as public health services have been transferred to local authorities. 

These services no longer fall within the definition of enhanced services or pharmaceutical services as 
set out in legislation and therefore should not be referred to as enhanced services. 

Page 34



Page 25 of 93

For the purposes of this document they are referred to as locally commissioned services. These 
services are included within this assessment where they affect the need for pharmaceutical services, 
or where the further provision of these services would secure improvements or better access to 
pharmaceutical services.

These services meet current identified needs for what would be pharmaceutical services if 
commissioned by NHS England and should be considered as relevant to the pharmaceutical needs of 
Rochdale.

Services commissioned by Rochdale Borough Council are:

 Sexual Health Services: 
 Emergency contraception
 Chlamydia screening and treatment

 Substance misuse services including: 
 Supervised methadone/buprenorphine 
 Supervised methadone/buprenorphine 
 Needle exchange
 Stop smoking service – intermediate advice
 Provision of nicotine replacement therapy
 Provision of varenicline under PGD for smoking cessation (due to launch during 

2018)

The following services are commissioned by Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG:

 Minor eye conditions service
 Minor ailment service

NHS England manages the minor eye condition and minor ailment services on behalf of NHS 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG.

3.6.7 Non-commissioned added value services

Community pharmacy contractors also provide private services that improve patient care but are not 
commissioned directly by NHS England, LA’s or CCGs. This includes home delivery service, blood 
glucose measurements and weight loss programmes. 

Pharmacists are free to choose whether or not to charge for these services, but are expected to 
follow standards of governance if they do. As they are private services they fall outside the scope of 
the PNA.

3.6.8 Hospital pharmacy

Hospital pharmacies affect the need for pharmaceutical services within its area. They may reduce 
the demand for the dispensing essential service as prescriptions written in the hospital are 
dispensed by the hospital pharmacy service. 

Page 35



Page 26 of 93

3.6.9 Other provision of pharmaceutical services

Pharmaceutical services are provided by other services. These can include arrangements for:

 Prison population 
 Services provided in neighbouring HWB areas 
 Private providers 

The PNA makes no assessment of these services.

3.6.10 Other sources of information

Information was gathered from NHS England, Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG and Rochdale 
Borough Council regarding:

 Services provided to residents of the HWB’s area, whether provided from within or outside 
of the HWB’s area 

 Changes to current service provision 
 Future commissioning intentions 
 Known housing developments within the lifetime of the PNA 
 Any other developments which may affect the need for pharmaceutical services 

The JSNA and the joint health and wellbeing strategy provided background information on the 
health needs of the population.

3.7 Consultation
A statutory consultation exercise was carried out over the autumn of 2017 in accordance with the 
2013 Regulations. The consultation took place from 3rd October 2017 until 1st December 2017 for a 
period of 60 days, in line with regulations. This is based on Section 242 of the NHS Act 2006, which 
requires HWBs to involve users of services in:

 The planning and provision of services; 
 The development and consideration of proposals for changes in the way services are 

provided 
 Decisions affecting the operation of services. 

The statutory consultees were written to and provided with a link to the council’s web site where 
the draft PNA was published and invited to respond online. The link to the draft PNA and 
consultation response form was issued to all compulsory stakeholders listed in Appendix Nine. The 
documents were posted on the internet and publicised, with paper copies made available to those 
unable to access on line.

The number of responses received in response to the consultation totalled eight. Seven responded 
through the online survey and one emailed the author direct. Of the seven that used the online 
survey:

 all seven thought that the explanation of the PNA was sufficient.

Page 36



Page 27 of 93

 all seven thought that the PNA provided an adequate assessment of pharmaceutical services 
in the Rochdale area.

 all seven thought that the PNA provided a satisfactory overview of the current and future 
pharmaceutical needs of the Rochdale population.

 all seven thought that current pharmacy provision and services in Rochdale is adequate.
 all seven agreed with the conclusion of the PNA.
 one made comments that needed addressing.

The one consultee that responded by email agreed with the conclusion of the PNA, but requested 
some amendments to be made to the pharmacies that delivered the advanced and locally 
commissioned services

All comments are detailed in Appendix 13. No changes were made that altered the conclusions of 
this PNA.

4. Context in Rochdale

4.1 Overview
Rochdale Borough Council is one of ten councils in Greater Manchester, lying to the north-northeast 
of the City of Manchester, the borough is composed of five towns: Rochdale, Middleton, Heywood, 
Littleborough and Milnrow, as well as the village of Wardle, and has a population of 216,165 (mid-
year estimate 2016). On the north side Rochdale bounds the Lancashire districts of Rossendale, 
Blackburn with Darwen and Calderdale.

Rochdale Borough is one of the most deprived areas of the country. This is reflected in low economic 
growth, poor life expectancy, higher crime levels, low skills, high levels of children and pensioners 
living in poverty and poor physical environment.  However these characteristics are not uniform 
across the whole of the borough. 

Page 37



Page 28 of 93

Map 4 - Population density

4.2 Population change
The population of Rochdale has been growing by around 0.3% per year from 2002 to 2015; this is 
less than half of the average rate of growth in England and slightly less than the North West average. 
However, latest figures from the 2016 mid-year population estimate show a growth from 2015 to 
2016 of 0.92%. 

Rochdale’s population continues to grow, all be it at a slower rate than the England and North West 
averages.  The latest estimate (for mid-2016) indicates that there are in the region of 216,165 people 
living in Rochdale. Official figures from ONS suggest that the population is projected to reach around 
221,000 by mid-2030 – an increase of 2.2% compared with mid-2016. 

Page 38



Page 29 of 93

Figure 1 - Population pyramid (Source: ONS)

The spread of ages across the population of Rochdale is similar to that seen in England for both 
females and males.

The present population is relatively young, with 20.1% of the population being under 15, compared 
with 19.0% across Greater Manchester and 16.8% in England. However, there is also a growing 
proportion of older people currently at 16.1% of the population. In future there is an expectation 
that there will be a greater proportion of elderly residents compared to those of working age as 
people are living longer. The population aged over 65 or over in Rochdale is expected to increase by 
18.8% by 2021.

Page 39



Page 30 of 93

Figure 2 - Population projection for Rochdale (ONS 2014 based on Subnational Population Projections)

Table 3 - Percentage of Ward population in various age bands
(Source: ONS: Mid-year 2015 estimate)

Total Pop
0-4 5-15 16-24 25-44 45-64 65-84 85+ Population

Balderstone and Kirkholt 7.77% 15.72% 12.35% 25.94% 24.20% 12.60% 1.42% 10,487
Bamford 6.05% 13.14% 9.58% 21.54% 26.62% 19.78% 3.30% 9,676
Castleton 6.93% 12.84% 10.11% 24.87% 25.78% 16.71% 2.76% 10,217
Central Rochdale 8.69% 17.16% 13.49% 31.19% 19.81% 8.45% 1.20% 11,043
East Middleton 6.30% 11.97% 10.53% 26.78% 27.22% 15.04% 2.16% 10,403
Healey 5.90% 12.42% 10.59% 24.84% 27.88% 16.42% 1.96% 10,342
Hopwood Hall 6.65% 12.59% 11.51% 25.96% 26.56% 14.76% 1.96% 11,712
Kingsway 8.63% 18.46% 13.58% 28.38% 20.54% 9.29% 1.12% 12,405
Littleborough Lakeside 6.25% 11.08% 9.02% 23.93% 28.21% 18.55% 2.95% 9,309
Milkstone and Deeplish 8.86% 18.10% 13.98% 30.64% 19.59% 7.48% 1.35% 11,738
Milnrow and Newhey 5.02% 12.17% 9.90% 23.54% 29.23% 18.14% 2.00% 10,090
Norden 4.89% 13.10% 10.08% 21.61% 31.77% 16.67% 1.88% 9,460
North Heywood 7.22% 12.47% 10.84% 27.27% 26.51% 13.76% 1.92% 10,411
North Middleton 6.15% 12.80% 11.06% 27.26% 28.28% 12.84% 1.61% 10,280
Smallbridge and Firgrove 8.61% 17.61% 12.42% 28.47% 20.28% 11.02% 1.58% 11,784
South Middleton 5.29% 11.41% 9.68% 23.01% 28.70% 18.41% 3.51% 9,854
Spotland and Falinge 7.63% 15.59% 12.17% 26.41% 23.12% 12.99% 2.09% 11,150
Wardle and West Littleborough 6.56% 13.04% 10.03% 24.59% 28.93% 15.32% 1.54% 10,661
West Heywood 7.30% 13.50% 10.95% 26.65% 26.08% 13.82% 1.70% 11,302
West Middleton 8.08% 14.14% 11.82% 26.08% 24.61% 13.32% 1.95% 11,871

Age Range

W
A
R
D

Central Rochdale, Kingsway, Milkstone & Deeplish and Smallbridge & Firgrove wards have the 
highest proportion of residents under 45 years. Bamford, Castleton, Littleborough Lakeside, Milnrow 
& Newhey and South Middleton have the highest proportion of residents 65 years and over. 
Bamford has the lowest proportion working age adults (16 – 64 years).

Page 40



Page 31 of 93

4.3 Deprivation
Rochdale is ranked 16th most deprived of 326 Local Authority districts (rank of average score), and 
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG is ranked 19 of 209. Overall, Rochdale is the 2nd most deprived 
of the 10 GM districts according to rank of average score. (See Table 4). Deprivation is becoming 
more widespread in Rochdale with an increasing proportion of the population living in the most 
deprived 10% of the country.

Figure 3 - Rochdale population per deprivation percentage band (Source: JSNA 2015/16 summary)

Although it is not possible to use the Indices to measure changes in the level of deprivation in places 
over time, it is possible to explore changes in relative deprivation, or changes in the pattern of 
deprivation, between this and previous updates of the Indices. According to the 2015 Indices of 
Deprivation, 30.5% of Rochdale residents live in LSOAs among the 10% most deprived in the country, 
an increase from the 27% observed in 2010. Despite this, the number of LSOAs in Rochdale that are 
amongst the 3% most deprived decreased from 16 to 11.

Map 5 - IMD 2015 by LSOA

The areas of higher deprivation are shown on Map 5 in dark green with the lighter shades showing 
areas that have less deprivation.

Page 41



Page 32 of 93

Rochdale’s most deprived communities have a younger age profile compared to the borough 
average and our more affluent areas

Table 4 - Rank for various measures of deprivation 
(Source: Department for Communities and Local Government, Indices of Deprivation 2015)
Local Authority 
District name 
(2013)

IMD - 
Average rank

IMD - Rank of 
average rank

IMD - 
Average 

score

IMD - Rank of 
average 

score

IMD - 
Proportion of 

LSOAs in 
most 

deprived 10% 
nationally

IMD - Rank of 
proportion of 

LSOAs in 
most 

deprived 10% 
nationally

IMD - Extent IMD - Rank of 
extent

IMD - Local 
concentration

IMD - Rank of 
local 

concentration

Bolton 20028.17 64 28.42 51 0.2034 40 0.3775 35 31900.23 44
Bury 16736.98 132 21.769 122 0.1 87 0.1976 108 30877.23 91
Manchester 26366.82 1 40.512 5 0.4078 5 0.5938 1 32571.18 11
Oldham 20884.26 51 30.291 34 0.227 27 0.4062 29 32200.79 28
Rochdale 22779.2 25 33.684 16 0.2836 17 0.4473 21 32370.91 19
Salford 22499.63 27 32.959 22 0.2867 16 0.4339 22 32419.02 16
Stockport 14365.24 178 19.108 150 0.0895 93 0.1486 136 31136.43 79
Tameside 21685.39 34 29.38 41 0.1702 50 0.3631 40 31652.21 53
Trafford 11990.94 222 15.388 201 0.029 155 0.1021 161 29199.11 145
Wigan 18293.78 107 24.857 85 0.135 66 0.2814 68 31571.14 57

4.4 Life expectancy
People in Rochdale live shorter lives than the national average, however the inequality within the 
borough is equally concerning. Figure NN, below shows the variation in life expectancy between 
Rochdale and England for males and females, as well as the difference between the least and most 
deprived areas of Rochdale. Life expectancy is increasing for both males and females but remains 
behind the England average

Figure 4 - Life expectancy (Source: JSNA 2015/16 Summary)

Circulatory disease (for males and cancer (for females) are the biggest contributors to the gap in life 
expectancy between Rochdale and England in 2010-12, accounting for 28.9% and 25.4% of the 
difference respectively. Circulatory disease for both males (26%) and females (32.8%) are the biggest 
contributors to the gap in life expectancy between the most and least deprived quintiles in Rochdale 
(2010/12).

Healthy Life Expectancy

Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) is the average number of years a person would expect to live in good 
health based on current mortality rates and how much people self-report good health in response to 
a health question on a survey.

Page 42



Page 33 of 93

Figure 5 - Healthy Life Expectancy (Source: Rochdale JSAN 2015/16)

Females and males in Rochdale can expect to live 5.1 years and 3.5 years less, in good health 
respectively, compared to the England average for 2011/13.

4.5 Key findings from current data

Health and wellbeing

People with higher wellbeing have lower rates of illness, recover more quickly and for longer and 
generally have better physical and mental health. ONS measure levels of individual/subjective 
wellbeing based on four questions included on the Annual Population Survey. These questions are 
asked of all adults aged 16 and over living in residential households.

A key measure of individual wellbeing is whether people are satisfied with their lives or not. In 
2015/16, 7.1% of people in Rochdale stated that they were not very satisfied with their life 
nowadays (based on a scale of 0-10 where 0 is “not at all satisfied” and 10 is “completely satisfied”; 
those scoring 0-4 have been used to calculate this indicator) compared with 4.6% of people across 
England as a whole.

The proportion of Rochdale residents with low life satisfaction has been consistently worse than 
England average since 2011/12 when it was 7.9%. This figure reached a peak in 2013/14 of 11.5% 
but has declined over the last two time periods. 

4.6 Population characteristics health needs
The following patient groups with one or more of the following protected characteristics have been 
identified as living within the HWB’s area:

 Age; 
 Sex / gender; 
 Pregnancy and maternity; 
 Disability which is defined as a physical or mental impairment that has a substantial and 

long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities; 
 Gender reassignment; 
 Marriage and civil partnership; 
 Race which includes colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins; 
 Religion (including no religion) or belief (any religious or philosophical belief) 

Page 43



Page 34 of 93

 Sexual orientation. 

This section also focusses on their particular health issues, setting out how pharmacies can support 
the specific needs of the population as defined by the protected characteristics in equality 
legislation.

4.6.1 Age

Age has an influence on which medicine and method of delivery is prescribed. Older people have a 
higher prevalence of illness and take many medicines. The medicines management of older people is 
complicated by multiple disease, complex medication regimes and the ageing process affecting the 
body’s capacity to metabolise and eliminate medicines from it. 

Pharmacy staff can support people to live independently by supporting optimisation of use of 
medicines, support with ordering, re-ordering medicines, home delivery to the housebound and 
appropriate provision of multi-compartment compliance aids and other interventions such as 
reminder charts to help people to take their medicines. 

Children

Giving every child the best start is crucial to reducing health inequalities across the life course. What 
happens before and during pregnancy, in the early years and during childhood has lifelong effects on 
many aspects of health and wellbeing in adulthood from obesity, heart disease, mental health, 
educational achievement and economic status.

Central Rochdale (25.9%), Kingsway (27.1%), Milkstone & Deeplish (27.0%) and Smallbridge & 
Firgrove (26.7%) wards have the largest proportion of young people aged 0-15 years. Those wards 
also have the largest proportion of people aged up to 24 years. (See Table 3).

Starting life well through early intervention and prevention is a key priority developing strong 
universal public health with an increased focus on disadvantaged families. By improving maternal 
health, we could give our children a better start in life, reduce infant mortality and reduce the 
numbers of low birth weight babies and by taking better care of children's health and development 
we can improve educational attainment, reduce the risks of mental illness, unhealthy lifestyles, road 
deaths and hospital admissions.

Key themes for the preschool and school aged children to improve their health and wellbeing are:

 Nutrition, active play/physical activity and obesity prevention
 Immunisation
 Personal, social and emotional development
 Keeping children safe

Young children are a group with a particular need for medicines and pharmacy services; with a focus 
on advising on health and wellbeing. Current pharmaceutical service provision will be able to cope 
with the anticipated small growth in this population group. Development of Healthy Living 
Pharmacies will help deliver the key themes detailed above.

Page 44



Page 35 of 93

Older people

The most recent (2015) mid-year population estimates from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
indicate that there are around 34,300 people aged 65 and over living in Rochdale (equivalent to 
16.0% of the population). This compares to 17.8% of the population in England indicating Rochdale 
has a lower proportion of older people compared to other local authorities. 

This varies between wards with Bamford (23.1%), Littleborough Lakeside (21.5%), Milnrow & 
Newhey (20.1%) and South Middleton (21.9%) wards having the largest proportion of people aged 
65+ years. (See Table 3).

Rochdale’s population 65+ years is set to increase substantially over the next decade and beyond. 
Using 2014 subnational population projections and the 2015 mid-year population estimates the 65+ 
years’ population is anticipated to grow by 19.7% in 2025 and 43.6% in 2035.

This age group will go from being the smallest proportion of the population to the second largest 
during the period 2015 to 2035. Despite this the 45-65 age group will remain the largest population 
group.

This increase in the older people will lead to growing demand for medicines and pharmacy services 
having an impact on pharmaceutical service provision. 

 Older people are substantially more likely to have a disability. 
 A higher proportion of older people are women. 
 Older people are less likely to have a living spouse or partner, and consequently are more 

likely to be living alone. 
 Older people are more likely to practice a religion. 

Older people living in isolation have a high incidence of suffering from loneliness. Social isolation and 
loneliness have a detrimental effect on health and wellbeing. Studies show that being lonely or 
isolated can impact on blood pressure, and is closely linked to depression. The impact of loneliness 
and social isolation on an individual’s health and wellbeing has cost implications for health and social 
care services. Investment is needed to ensure that voluntary organisations can continue to help 
alleviate loneliness and improve the quality of life of older people, reducing dependence on more 
costly services.

Table 5 shows the variation between wards in the percentage of pensioners living alone and older 
people living in deprivation. Not all these people will be living in social isolation or loneliness, but 
there is likely to be a number that are and this is likely to increase over the coming years.

Page 45



Page 36 of 93

Table 5 - Older people in Deprivation and Pensioners living alone (Source: www.localhealth.org.uk)

Ward Older people in 
Deprivation (%)

Pensioners 
living alone (%)

Balderstone and Kirkholt 33.0 40.6
Bamford 10.9 27.3
Castleton 20.9 34.2
Central Rochdale 48.7 41.0
East Middleton 21.9 38.5
Healey 13.5 30.3
Hopwood Hall 20.0 37.1
Kingsway 31.4 33.0
Littleborough Lakeside 15.0 31.7
Milkstone and Deeplish 48.8 32.5
Milnrow and Newhey 15.6 30.7
Norden 8.5 25.9
North Heywood 26.4 44.0
North Middleton 21.3 38.3
Smallbridge and Firgrove 37.0 44.9
South Middleton 13.0 33.8
Spotland and Falinge 25.3 35.5
Wardle and West Littleborough 12.7 27.3
West Heywood 27.0 36.5
West Middleton 38.2 41.2
*Rochdale 22.8 35.0
*England 16.2 31.5

Pharmacy teams are often one of the few or only teams that people living in isolation have regular 
contact with.

Community pharmacies can support people to live independently by supporting optimisation of use 
of medicines, support with ordering, re-ordering medicines, home delivery to the housebound and 
appropriate provision of multi-compartment compliance aids and other interventions such as 
reminder charts to help people to take their medicines. 

Independence is or could be supported by offering:

 Reablement services following discharge from hospital 
 Falls assessments 
 Supply of daily living aids 
 Identifying emerging problems with people’s health 
 Signposting to additional support and resources 

Page 46

http://www.localhealth.org.uk/


Page 37 of 93

4.6.2 Sex / Gender

In Rochdale, the life expectancy of men is 76.8 years and 80.8 years in women.  The gap in life 
expectancy between females and males has reduced from 5.0 years in 2001-2003 to 3.5 years in 
2013-15, with males showing a 3.4 year increase in life expectancy compared to a 1.9 year increase 
for females. However males:

 are around twice as likely as women to die of coronary heart disease and chronic respiratory 
diseases. 

 have around 50% higher risk of dying of lung or colorectal cancer than females. 

Gender inequality is reported to exist in many aspects of society and refers to lasting and embedded 
patterns of advantage and disadvantage. In relation to health and health and social care, men and 
women can be subject to differences in:

 Risks relating to the wider determinants of health and wellbeing. 
 Biological risks of particular diseases. 
 Behavioural and lifestyle health risks. 
 Rights and risks of exploitation. 

It is well documented that men are often more unlikely to access healthcare services. Community 
pharmacies are ideally placed for self-care by providing advice and support for people to derive 
maximum benefit from caring for themselves or their families.

The planning and delivery of health and social care services should consider the distinct 
characteristics of men and women in terms of needs, service use, preferences/satisfaction, and 
provision of targeted or segregated services (e.g. single sex hospital or care accommodation).

When necessary, access to advice, provision of over the counter medications and signposting to 
other services is available as a walk in service without the need for an appointment. Community 
pharmacy is a socially inclusive healthcare service providing a convenient and less formal 
environment for those who do not choose to access other kinds of health services.

4.6.3 Long term health problems and disability 

Most people suffer periods of ill health at some time, but these are usually temporary problems that 
do not have a sustained effect on day to day activities, such as going to work or socialising with 
friends and family. However, some health problems and disabilities are more serious because they 
are long-lasting and reduce a person’s ability to carry out day-to-day activities.

People in some parts of Rochdale are more likely to report that that their day to day activities are 
limited due to a long-term illness or disability than others. Table 6 shows the variation by ward in the 
percentage of people stating that they have a limiting long-term illness or disability. Hopwood Hall, 
West Middleton and Smallbridge & Firgrove wards have the highest proportion of people declaring 
that they have a limiting long-term illness or disability and Rochdale as a whole has a larger 
proportion than the England average. 

Page 47



Page 38 of 93

Table 6 - Limiting long-term illness or disability (Source: www.localhealth.org.uk)

Ward
Limiting long-term 
illness or disability (%)

Hopwood Hall 29.4
West Middleton 26.0
Smallbridge and Firgrove 24.0
Castleton 22.6
North Heywood 22.4
West Heywood 22.3
Balderstone and Kirkholt 22.2
Spotland and Falinge 22.2
Central Rochdale 22.0
Milkstone and Deeplish 21.5
East Middleton 21.4
Kingsway 20.7
South Middleton 20.7
Littleborough Lakeside 20.6
Bamford 19.8
North Middleton 19.8
Milnrow and Newhey 19.7
Healey 19.0
Wardle and West Littleborough 16.4
Norden 13.8
*Rochdale 21.0
*England 17.6

People with disabilities often have individual complex and specific needs. It is important that health 
and social care services are able to provide effective specialist services to meet such needs.

When patients are managing their own medication but need some support, pharmacists must 
comply with the Equality Act 2010. Where the patient is assessed as having a long term physical or 
mental impairment that affects their ability to carry out every day activities, such as managing their 
medication, the pharmacy contract includes funding for reasonable adjustments to the packaging or 
instructions that will support them in self-care. The first step should be a review to ensure that the 
number of medications and doses are reduced to a minimum. If further support is needed, then 
compliance aids might include multi- compartment compliance aids, large print labels, easy to open 
containers, medication reminder alarms/charts, eye dropper or inhaler aids. 

Each pharmacy should have a robust system for assessment and auxiliary aid sup-plies that adheres 
to clinical governance principles.

Page 48

http://www.localhealth.org.uk/


Page 39 of 93

4.6.4 Race, ethnicity and language

Figure 6 - Rochdale population by ethnic group (Source: www.localhealth.org.uk)

The ethnic minority population, as measured by non-white residents, increased between 2001 and 
2011 14% to 21 % of Rochdale population. Despite this growth, the White British ethnic group, only 
measured since 2001, remains the largest ethnic group in the borough, accounting for 79.0% of the 
population.

The socio-economic profile of Rochdale’s BME groups is often vastly different to that of the White 
British residents; with consequent effects on their quality of life and health outcomes. Hospital 
admission data for Rochdale shows that a higher proportion of admissions for BME groups are 
emergencies, compared to people of White British ethnicity. Mixed or multiple ethnic groups were 
found to have the highest proportion of emergency admissions (53.2%).

Page 49

http://www.localhealth.org.uk/


Page 40 of 93

Figure 7 - Percentage of BME by Ward (Source: Census 2011, ONS. Crown copyright)

91.7% of the borough identified English (or Welsh) as their main language in the 2011 Census. South 
Asian was the second most common language with 5.6%. 4% of households have no occupant with 
English as their main language.

The pharmacy survey indicates that pharmacists and pharmacy staff speak a range of other 
languages, see section 3.5.3.

While the health issues facing particular ethnic groups vary, overall, people from BME groups are 
more likely to have poorer health than the White British population although some BME groups fare 
much worse than others, and patterns vary from one health condition to the next. This represents 
an important health inequality. 

Research provides the examples of the health problems experienced by different ethnic groups:

 Recent eastern European migrants experience higher rates of communicable disease, 
occupationally linked health problems, and mental health problems. 

 South Asian groups are at higher risk of diabetes, cardiovascular disease, and some cancers. 
 People from black ethnic groups are at higher risk of stroke and some cancers. 
 People from a range of BME groups are at higher risk of the inherited blood conditions: 

sickle cell and thalassaemia 
 People from BME groups, particularly newer migrants, are more likely to experience mental 

health problems. 

Page 50



Page 41 of 93

Evidence suggests that the poorer socio-economic position of BME groups is the main factor driving 
ethnic health inequalities. Language can be a barrier to delivering effective advice on medicines, 
health promotion and public health interventions.

4.6.5 Religion and belief

Christians form the main religious group in the Rochdale with 128,186 (60.6% of the total 
population) people. The next largest religious group is Muslim with 29,426 (13.9%) people in 
Rochdale. The number of residents which stated that they had no religion is 40,014 which was 18.9% 
of residents (2011 Census).

It is important that health and social care services are aware of the need to respect and be sensitive 
to the preferences of people of particular religions and beliefs relevant to the services they deliver, 
including:

 Practices around births and deaths. 
 Diet & food preparation. 
 Family planning and abortion. 
 Modesty of dress. 
 Same sex clinical staff. 
 Festivals and holidays. 
 Medical ethics considerations in accepting some treatments and end of life care. 
 Pharmaceuticals, vaccines, and other medical supplies. 

Pharmacies can provide advice to specific religious groups on medicines derived from animal sources 
and during periods of fasting.

4.6.6 Marriage and civil partnership

According to the 2011 Census in Rochdale 42.9% of people are married, 12.0% cohabit with a 
member of the opposite sex, 0.8% live with a partner of the same sex, 26.4% are single and have 
never married or been in a registered same sex partnership, 9.9% are separated or divorced. There 
are 11,739 widowed people living in Rochdale.

Limited evidence is available on the particular health and social care needs of people in terms of 
marriage and civil partnership. 

It is important that health and social care services are aware of and respectful of the legal 
equivalence of marriage and civil partnership when dealing with individuals, their partners and 
families. Some research suggests that married people and their children are less likely to suffer 
problems with their mental wellbeing. 

It seems likely that these benefits will also potentially be enjoyed by people in similarly committed 
and secure relationships, including civil partnership, and other long term couple partnerships. 
However, some research suggests that such benefits are associated specifically with marriage as 
opposed to other forms of couple partnership. 

Page 51



Page 42 of 93

Consideration should be given to signs of domestic violence especially towards women, pharmacies 
can help to raise awareness of this issue and sign posting to services/organisations that can provide 
advice and support.

4.6.7 Pregnancy and maternity

The number of live births in Rochdale remained the same for a number of years until a significant 
decrease between 2013 and 2014, when the number of live births decreased from 3,044 to 2,844. 
However recent data shows that the number of live births increased between 2014 and 2015. It is 
not known whether this trend will continue.  

Figure 8 - Live births for Rochdale 2010 to 2015 (Source: ONS)

Rates

Total Male Female
2010 205.2 103.9 40.0 3,047 1,538 1,509 14.8
2011 211.9 108.1 43.3 3,032 1,594 1,438 14.3
2012 212.0 108.1 42.8 3,020 1,586 1,434 14.2
2013 212.1 108.0 42.2 3,044 1,566 1,478 14.4
2014 213.0 108.3 41.8 2,844 1,470 1,374 13.4
2015 214.2 108.8 41.6 2,894 1,481 1,413 13.5

Population Live Births

Total Female
Females aged 

15 to 44
All

Numbers (thousands) Numbers
Crude Live 
Birth Rate1

Year

1 The number of live births in a year per 1,000 mid-year population.

Pharmacies can provide advice to pregnant mothers on medicines and self-care. They have the 
expertise on advising which medicines are safe for use in pregnancy and during breast feeding.

4.6.8 Sexual orientation

It is estimated based on Rochdale’s current population that the LGBT population is somewhere 
between 3,818 (1.8%) and 14,848 (7%).

Research suggests that the LGBT population may be exposed to particular patterns of health risks, 
for instance:

 They are more likely to experience harassment or attacks, have negative experiences of 
health services related to their sexuality, lesbian and bisexual  women are less likely to have 
had a smear test, and more likely to smoke, to misuse drugs and alcohol and to have 
deliberately harmed themselves. 

 Gay and bisexual men are more likely to attempt suicide, suffer domestic abuse, smoke, 
misuse alcohol and drugs, and engage in risky sexual behaviours. 

 Gay and bisexual men are at substantially higher risk of sexually transmitted diseases (STDs) 
including HIV/AIDS.

 In 2016, the HIV testing uptake amongst men who have sex with men was 91.4% which is 
lower than the England and GM uptake, 94.2% and 95.3%. 

 In 2015, prevalence of diagnosed HIV for Rochdale per 1,000 aged 15-59 was 2.05 which is 
similar to the England average (Figure 9) and has increased from 2014.

Page 52



Page 43 of 93

Figure 9 - HIV diagnosed (Source: PHE)

 2013/15 data shows that the HIV late diagnosis rate was 70.8%; this is the highest late 
diagnosis rate in GM. This rate is increasing and has been consistently worse than the 
England average. (See Figures 10 & 11)

Figure 10 - HIV late diagnosis (Source: PHE)

Figure 11 - Rochdale HIV late diagnosis 2009/11 to 2013/15 (Source: PHE)

 HIV testing and testing coverage have seen a decline in Rochdale, being worse than the 
England average. However, testing in men who have sex with men has mirrored that of the 
England average and remains similar.

Page 53



Page 44 of 93

Figure 12 - HIV testing (Source: PHE)

Pharmacies can help to raise awareness of this emerging issues discussed above and can provide 
advice to members of the LGBT community in relation to healthy lifestyle choices e.g. safe drinking 
levels, interactions and side effects of recreational drugs

4.6.9 Gender reassignment

Transgender people often report feelings of gender discomfort from early childhood. The average 
age of presentation to health services for gender dysphoria is currently 42 years. Studies in the UK 
suggest that the majority (80%) of those presenting to gender services are those who are born as a 
male. 

It is reported the transgender community experience disproportionate levels of discrimination, 
harassment and abuse. 

Acceptance of transgender people in general health and social care settings and gender specific 
health services (e.g. sexual health), and access to appropriate specialist gender identity services are 
often reported as problematic. 

Research and analyses suggest that untreated gender dysphoria can severely affect the person’s 
health and quality of life and can result in:

 Higher levels of depression, self-harm, and consideration or attempt of suicide. 
 Higher rates of drug and alcohol abuse. 

Page 54



Page 45 of 93

Provision of necessary medicines and advice on adherence and side effects including the long term 
use of hormone therapy. Pharmacies can provide advice to members of this community in relation 
to health and well-being and on raising awareness about issues relating to members of these 
communities as discussed above.

5. Other key health outcomes for Rochdale
To identify how pharmaceutical service provision can help tackle the need of Rochdale’s local 
population we have used Rochdale's JSNA2. 

Rochdale’s JSNA considers all current and future health and social care needs which are capable of 
being met or influenced to a significant extent by the LA and the CCG. It aims to provide a 
comprehensive ‘picture of place’ including inequalities and gaps in provision. 

It will be used as evidence to inform decisions about commissioning services and action to be taken 
by the local authority and CCG. It forms the evidence base for Rochdale’s Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy (JHWS)3.

5.1 Health and Wellbeing Strategy Vision 
The findings of our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment process are the foundation upon which the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is based. The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets out 
Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board’s agreed priorities that require the greatest attention and will 
make the biggest difference, based on the needs identified through the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment process, and the collective action needed to address these priorities. Together the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy provide a tool for joint, 
evidence-based commissioning.

Rochdale HWB’s strategy outlines:

 Their vision, aims, intended outcomes and priorities
 Their partnership approach and guiding principles to improving health and wellbeing
 The local challenges around health and wellbeing
 How they will respond to these challenges

The strategy is a working tool which concentrates on highlighting Rochdale’s challenges and provides 
vision for a coherent approach for partners involved in improving health and wellbeing across the 
borough. It sets the strategic direction, but the actual operational details will be developed through 
the service planning of the many partners involved in its implementation.

The strategy emphasises the importance of partnership working and the joint commissioning of 
services to achieve a more focused use of resources and better value for money. It is based on the 
guiding principles of prevention and early intervention, ‘think family’ and ensuring choice, control 
and empowerment of our residents.

2 Link to JSNA
3 LINK TO JHWS

Page 55

http://www.statsandmaps.org.uk/jsna
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2013-08-13-joint-health-wellbeing-strategy-2012-15-v2.pdf


Page 46 of 93

The strategy sets out to improve the health and wellbeing of children and adults in Rochdale and 
reduce health inequalities across the borough. 

Five priorities were agreed in 2016:

 Reducing premature mortality
 Lifestyle and behaviour change
 Early years, prevention and early intervention
 Asset building – enabling community resilience, engagement, independence and action
 Mental health and wellbeing
 Health and social care integration and integrated commissioning
 Cross cutting themes:

 Reducing health inequalities and supporting vulnerable groups
 Communications strategy for the Health and Wellbeing Board

Action plans are being developed for each of these priorities.

Pharmacies are already involved in supporting people with long term conditions, lifestyle and 
behaviour changes (e.g. smoking cessation and lifestyle advice). As part of their public health role we 
would look to engaging pharmacies in awareness raising campaigns e.g. cancer screening, men’s 
health.

5.2 Public Health Outcomes
The information on this section is structured around the 4 domains of the Public Health Outcomes 
Framework (PHOF), namely:

 Improving the wider determinants of health
 Health improvement
 Health protection
 Healthcare public health and preventing premature mortality

Pharmacies can help address these issues and improve outcomes by the targeted delivery of a wide 
range of pharmaceutical services. This can involve signposting individuals to appropriate support, 
helping people manage their medicines and improve self-care, providing advice on life-style choices 
and facilitating change etc. This can be done through their Essential and Advanced services and any 
Enhanced or locally commissioned service that they provide.

5.2.1 Improving the wider determinants of health

The following indicators track progress in terms of some of the wider factors that affect health and 
wellbeing.

 27.0% of children in low income families (under 16) live in relative poverty, with a similar 
figure for all dependent children under 20.

 63.3% of children achieve a good level of development at the end of reception, this is 
significantly worse than the England average (69.3%) and males perform worse than 
females.

Page 56



Page 47 of 93

 49.2% of children achieve a good level of development at the end of reception as a 
percentage of eligible children by free school meal status. England average is 54.4%.

 Rochdale has 540.7 per 100,000 10-17 year olds receiving their first reprimand, warning or 
conviction. The England average is 368.6 per 100,000 and GM 380.5 per 100,000.

 1.6% of adults in contact with secondary mental health services in Rochdale (2015/16) lived 
in stable and appropriate accommodation. This is the worst in GM and significantly below 
the England average of 58.6%.

 63.0% of people aged 16-64 in Rochdale are in employment, males fare better at 68.3% 
compared to 58.0% for females. All figures are worse than the England and GM averages.

 The age-standardised rate of emergency hospital admissions for violence (including sexual 
violence) is 74.3 per 100,000 in Rochdale, compared to 44.8 and 66.3 per 100,000 for 
England and GM respectively.

 Rochdale has significantly worse numbers of eligible homeless people not in priority need 
(3.1 per 1,000) compared to the England average (0.9 per 1,000). However, the number of 
households in temporary accommodation (0.5 per 1,000) is significantly better than the 
England average (3.1 per 1,000).

 11.4% of households experience fuel poverty in Rochdale.
 There are 519 Children aged 0-15 years and 1,583 young people aged 16-24 years providing 

unpaid care (2011). 104 and 524 respectively providing unpaid care for 20+ hours per week. 
 Rochdale has a significantly higher density of fast food outlets (103.3 per 100,000) than the 

England average (88.2 per 100,000) (2014), but is ninth lowest in GM behind Oldham.

5.2.2 Health improvement

These indicators track progress in helping people to live healthy lifestyles and make healthy choices.

 In 2014/15 only 62.7% of mothers initiate breastfeeding, which is significantly worse than 
the England average of 74.3%; this percentage has changed little in last four years.

Figure 13 - Breastfeeding initiation levels (Source PHE)

 However at 41.7%, 2015/16, breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 weeks after birth is similar to 
the England average of 43.2%.

 Smoking status at time of delivery reduced from 20.3% in 2010/11 to 15.8% in 2014/15, but 
in 2015/16 it increased to 17.0%. It has been consistently worse than the England average 
over that time period.

Page 57



Page 48 of 93

Figure 14 - Smoking status at time of delivery (Source PHE)

 Rochdale adults consume on average 2.02 portions of vegetables a day and at age 15, 48.1% 
of that group meet the recommended ‘5-a-day’. Both these are significantly worse than the 
England averages of 2.27 and 52.4% respectively.

 Smoking prevalence in adults who are current smokers is significantly worse at 19.4% 
compared to the England average at 15.5%.

 The number of non-opiate drug users that left treatment successfully and did not re-present 
to treatment within 6 months is 28.4% in Rochdale, which is significantly worse than the 
England average at 37.3% and the GM average at 38.0%.

 Rochdale has a rate 0f 7.0 per 100,000 (directly standardise ratio) of deaths from drug 
misuse; this is significantly worse than the England average of 3.9 and has been consistently 
so for the last few years.

Figure 15 - Deaths from drug misuse (Source: PHE)

Page 58



Page 49 of 93

 Screening coverage in 2016 of eligible women for breast cancer was 71.8% and this has 
remained fairly static since 2010. Screening coverage for cervical cancer is similar to the 
England average at 72.7%, but has remained fairly static from 2010.

Figure 16 - Cancer screening coverage - breast and cervical (Source PHE)

 Screening coverage of eligible adults for bowel cancer at 54.9% is worse than the England 
average at 57.9%, however, this has improved on the previous year.

 The percentage of Rochdale’s population that carry excess weight is 69.7%, which is the 
worst in GM with only Wigan being close at 69.4%.

5.2.3 Health Protection

These indicators track progress in protecting the population’s health from major incidents and other 
threats.

 In 2015 chlamydia detection rates (15-24 year olds) for the first time at 1,586 per 100,000 
were below the minimum benchmarking goal of 1,900 per 100,000. Detection rates had 
dropped from a high of 2,320 per 100,000 in 2012. There has been a similar reduction in 
detection rates for both male and female.

Figure 17 - Chlamydia screening rates 2012-2016 (Source PHE)

Page 59



Page 50 of 93

 Immunisations against common childhood diseases can have positive long-term effects on 
children’s health and development. Annual COVER (Cover of Vaccination Evaluated Rapidly) 
statistics for 2015/16 reveal the percentage uptake for a range of vaccinations for children in 
Rochdale are either in the mid-range of the benchmarking goal or exceed it and apart from 
flu vaccination in the 0-4 year olds have a higher or similar percentage to the England 
average. See Figure 18.

Figure 18 - Vaccination coverage for Rochdale (Source PHE)
Could not be
calculated

Increasing /
Getting worse

Increasing /
Getting better

Decreasing /
Getting worse

Decreasing /
Getting better

No significant
change Increasing Decreasing

Page 60



Page 51 of 93

 Vaccination coverage for flu in at risk individuals has for the first time in five years dropped 
below the 55% benchmarking goal; having reached a high of 61.3% in 2013/14 it has 
dropped to 54.1% for 2015/16. Similarly vaccination coverage for flu in those aged 65+ has 
dropped from a high of 78.2% in 2011/12 to 74.6 in 2015/16, which is just below the 75% 
benchmarking goal.

 The incidence of TB in Rochdale (13.6 per 100,000) has decreased from a high of 22.4 per 
100,000 in 2007/09. Completion of treatment for TB has remained fairly constant at about 
90% since 2009 to 2014.

Figure 19 - Incidence of TB - Rochdale (Source: PHE)

5.2.4 Healthcare public health and preventing premature mortality 

These indicators track progress in reducing numbers of people living with preventable ill health and 
people dying prematurely.

 The percentage of people who die in winter months (excess winter deaths) in Rochdale has 
been consistent with that for England over the last few years. Older people are most 
susceptible to higher death rates in winter. In those aged 85 years and over, there were 85 
(Ratio of 43.8) additional deaths in winter in Rochdale, compared to 199 (Ratio of 32.7) in all 
age groups. This is similar to England see Figures 20.

Figure 20 - Excess winter deaths in Rochdale (Source PHE)

Page 61



Page 52 of 93

 In 2013-15 the mortality rate from causes considered to be preventable for all persons was 
261.0 per 100,000 (directly standardised ratio) compared to 184.5 per 100,000 as the 
England average. This has been consistently worse than England since 2001-03. It is a similar 
picture for the mortality rate for under 75s from cardiovascular disease, cancer and 
respiratory disease that is considered preventable. See Figure 21 & 22.

Figure 21 - Mortality rates for Rochdale (Source PHE)

Figure 22 - Mortality rates for Rochdale - continued (Source PHE)

 Mortality rate for under 75s from liver disease has gone from similar to the England average 
between 2001/03 to 2003/05 to significantly worse in the following time periods. For 
2013/15 there were 146 deaths thought to have been preventable from liver disease, this is 
a rate of 27.3 per 100,000. The England average rate was 15.9 per 100,000. (See Figure 23)

Page 62



Page 53 of 93

Figure 23 - Under 75 mortality rate from liver disease considered preventable (Persons)
(Source: PHE)

 56.5% of five year old children (2014/15) are free from dental decay compared to the 
England average of 75.2% and 65.1% for GM.

 A & E attendance (0-4 years) in Rochdale is the second highest in GM at a rate of 852.4 per 
1,000 compared to the lowest at 488.5 per 1,000 and the highest at 894.4 per 1,000.

 Rochdale is the third highest in GM for hospital admissions for dental caries in 0-4 year olds 
with a rate of 461.9 per 100,000 compared to the England average of 241.4 per 100,000 and 
373.0 per 100,000 for GM.

 Rochdale remains significantly worse compared to the England average for smoking 
attributable hospital admissions. The figure has increased from 2,096 per 100,000 in 
2009/10 to 2,180 per 100,000 in 2015/16. This compares to the England average of 1,726 in 
2015/16.

5.2.5 People with long term conditions

 Rochdale has a higher than average prevalence of some long term conditions (LTC) such as 
diabetes, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and heart disease, leading to an 
increased burden of disease and people dying younger. A number of patients registered with 
a GP in Rochdale will have one or more LTCs; however, the number of people with three or 
more LTCs increases with age and these are the most intensive users of health and social 
care services because their needs are usually more complex than those of people with a 
single disease. There is a clear need for integrated care initiative to take place across 
Rochdale in order to improve the care of those individuals with multiple conditions.

Page 63



Page 54 of 93

Figure 24 - Disease prevalence from QOF data (Source: NHS Digital)

 In Rochdale, just over 49,000 (2015/16) of the GP registered population have a heart 
condition (including congestive heart failure, hypertension, ischemic heart disease and atrial 
fibrillation). Patients with a heart condition will have varying levels of risk for admission to 
hospital. Those patients at moderate risk will have multiple long term conditions 
predominantly made up of hypertension, coronary vascular disease (CVD) & coronary heart 
disease (CHD).

 Prevalence of diabetes is increasing in Rochdale, which could be partly due to improved 
detection, although failure of the population as a whole to adopt a healthy lifestyle is also 
responsible. 90% of people with diabetes have co-morbidities. Diabetes is a major cause of 
premature mortality. Current indicators for diabetic control within Rochdale (NHS Heywood, 
Middleton & Rochdale CCG data, see Figure NN) indicate that identified patients have their 
risk factors satisfactorily managed.

Page 64



Page 55 of 93

Figure 25 - Diabetes treatment targets (Source: PHE)

 Rochdale has a higher level of severe mental illness (1.10%% of the practice registered 
population), according to QOF recorded prevalence, than England (0.90%) and is the second 
highest behind Manchester. Co-morbidity among psychiatric conditions is high.

 Rochdale had a SAR4 of 133.8 for emergency admissions (all causes) in the period from 
2010/11 to 2014/15. The ratio for Rochdale indicates a higher level of emergency admissions 
than would be expected. 

 Rochdale had a SAR of 163.78 for emergency admissions due to COPD in the period from 
2010/11 to 2014/15. The ratio for Rochdale indicates a higher level of emergency admissions 
than would be expected. 

 Emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge from hospital have gone from being 
similar to the England average in 2006/07 to being significantly worse in 2011/12. Expressed 
as an indirectly standardised proportion Rochdale has gone from 11.0% to 13.0% compared 
to England (10.8% to 11.6%), which is rising at a slower rate.

 The number of A&E attendances fluctuates over the course of the year (high in winter), over 
the course of the week (high on Monday, lower attendance on weekends by older people), 
and over the course of the day (peak mid-morning, for children a second peak is seen 
around 7pm).

 Rochdale has significantly higher numbers of hospital admissions that could have been 
avoided at 315.5 per 100,000 than the England average of 178.9 per 100,000. This figure is 
the highest in GM.

 In 2013/14 the proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still a home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital rose to 75.8% from 70.3% in 2012/13. Although this proportion 
remains significantly worse than the England average there has been an increasing trend 
from 2010/11 and the gap is closing.

 For March 2015 the adjusted dementia prevalence estimated there were 2,345 registered 
residents in Rochdale that have dementia, but only just over 1,500 had a diagnosis of 
dementia (64.3%). This indicates that approximately 800 residents living with dementia are 

4 The Standardised Admission Ratio (SAR) is defined as the ratio of the observed number of admissions in an area to the 
number expected if the area had the same age specific rates as England (ratio set at 100).

Page 65



Page 56 of 93

not known to their GP. Of those with dementia, 70% have one or more other LTC, and it is 
estimated that two-thirds of those with dementia live in the community.

 Cancer prevalence and incidence are increasing nationally. Compared to England the overall 
incidence of cancer is higher in Rochdale, this is mainly driven by the incidence of lung 
cancer, which is significantly worse than England. Whereas breast, colorectal and prostate 
cancers are not significantly different. Although under 75s mortality and those considered to 
be preventable from cancer remain significantly worse than the England average, they have 
been declining slowly since 2001-03.

6. Provision of pharmaceutical services
The regulations governing the development of the PNA require the HWB to consider the needs for 
pharmaceutical services in terms of necessary and relevant services:

 Necessary services i.e. pharmaceutical services which have been assessed as required to 
meet a pharmaceutical need. This should include their current provision (within the HWB 
area and outside of the area) and any current or likely future gaps in provision. 

 Relevant services i.e. services which have secured improvements, or better access, to 
pharmaceutical services. This should include their current provision (within the HWB area 
and outside of the area) and any current or future gaps in provision. 

Necessary services, for the purposes of this PNA, are defined as:

 those services provided by pharmacies and DACs in line with their terms of service as set out 
in the 2013 regulations, and 

 advanced services 

6.1 Necessary services - current provision with-in the 
HWB’s area

There are 51 pharmacies included in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the HWB. This is made up 
of 43 with a standard 40-hour contract, six with a 100-hour contract and two listed as distance 
selling. There is one DAC and no LPS pharmacies in Rochdale.

Map 6 (see Appendix Ten for a larger version), which is the statutory map as provided below, shows 
the location of premises providing pharmaceutical services within the HWB’s area. It should be 
noted that due to the proximity of some pharmacies some icons may reflect the location of two con-
tractors. The map index to premises can be found in Appendix Six, with Township indexing showing 
opening hours coverage in Appendix Eight. 

While not a statutory requirement, where maps within this PNA include the location of GP premises, 
they do so solely as a point of reference and proximity to pharmacies. Appendix Eleven provides an 
index of those GP surgeries.

Page 66



Page 57 of 93

Map 6 - Location of Pharmacies & GP practices in Rochdale

Rochdale’s average prescription items per month per pharmacy was 7,549. This is higher than the 
Greater Manchester average and the average for England. 

In 2015/16, Rochdale pharmacies also dispensed 1.8 items per head of population, the same as the 
GM average but above the average in England (1.5 items).

Table 7 - Rochdale pharmacies 2013/14 to 2015/16
Year Number of 

community 
pharmacies 

Prescription items 
dispensed per 
month (000)s 

Population (000)s 
Mid-Year 

Pharmacies per 
100,000 
population 

2013/14 51 381 212 24
2014/15 51 389 213 24
2015/16 51 385 214 24
2016/17 51 379 214* 24

* Projected population from 2014-based Subnational Population Projections for Local Authorities and Higher 
Administrative Areas in England (Source: Office for National Statistics   © Crown copyright 2016)

In 2016/17 approximately 3.5% of items dispensed by Rochdale pharmacies were prescribed by GPs 
elsewhere in Greater Manchester (see Table 8).

Page 67



Page 58 of 93

Table 8 - Items dispensed by Rochdale pharmacies for prescribers by CCG in Greater Manchester
Registered CCG Total items dispensed by 

Rochdale pharmacies 2016/17
Percentage split of items dispensed 
by Rochdale pharmacies 

Bolton CCG                              1,673 0.04%
Bury CCG                           38,518 0.85%
Central Manchester CCG                              3,006 0.07%
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG                     4,390,403 96.52%
North Manchester CCG                           73,465 1.62%
Oldham CCG                           17,453 0.38%
Salford CCG                              1,929 0.04%
South Manchester CCG                              7,819 0.17%
Stockport CCG                              2,824 0.06%
Tameside And Glossop CCG                                 863 0.02%
Trafford CCG                           10,379 0.23%
Wigan Borough CCG                                 318 0.01%
Grand Total                     4,548,650 100%

The average items per month are similar to the regional averages, but higher than the England 
average. Conclusions cannot be drawn from this as the ability to cope with increasing demand is 
dependent upon a range of factors e.g. staffing levels, available space, use of robotics. As the aging 
population grows demand is likely to increase and pharmacy will need to consider how it prepares 
for this, especially with the reduction in funding that is currently taking place.

Table 9 - Number of pharmacies and items dispensed per month nationally for 2015/16
Organisational 
Area 

Number of 
community 
pharmacies 

Prescription 
items 
dispensed per 
month (000)s 

Population 
(000)s Mid-Year 
(2014)

Pharmacies 
per 100,000 
population 

Average 
items per 
pharmacy 
per month 

ENGLAND 11,688 82,942 54,317 22 7,096 

Lancashire & 
Greater 
Manchester

1,089 7,810 4,238 26 7,172

GREATER 
MANCHESTER

695 4,981 2,733 25 7,167 

Heywood 
Middleton and 
Rochdale CCG

51 385 213 24 7,549

Page 68



Page 59 of 93

6.1.1 Access to premises

Access can be defined by the location of the pharmacy in relation to where residents of the HWB 
area live and length of time to access the pharmacy by driving (private car, using public transport or 
walking.

The latest information shows that 99% of the English population - even those living in the most 
deprived areas - can reach a pharmacy within 20 minutes by car and 96% by walking or using public 
transport5.

95% of those that responded to the public survey had no problems accessing a pharmacy due to 
their location and 87% had no problems accessing a pharmacy due to opening hours.

Map 7 - Rochdale Pharmacies showing 1 mile travel distance

Map 7 indicates there are parts of Rochdale further than a mile away from their nearest pharmacy, 
however, there are pharmacies outside Rochdale that offer access for some places and other areas 
are comprised of rural or industrial land or are not densely populated. The majority of Rochdale’s 
population have access to a pharmacy within 20 minutes either by car, walking or using public 
transport. See Appendix Twelve for those a list of pharmacies within 1 mile of Rochdale’s boundary.

5 Pharmacy in England: Building on Strengths – Delivering the Future, Department of Health White Paper 
(2008)

Page 69



Page 60 of 93

6.1.2 Correlation with GP practices

As expected, there are significantly more community pharmacies (51) than there are GP practices 
(36). In addition, all wards apart from Hopwood Hall have a least one pharmacy and there is a 
pharmacy in close proximity to the majority of GP practices. Practice list sizes, number of GPs and 
opening times may differ significantly between practices. See Map 6.

6.1.3 Access to services

Whilst the majority of people will visit a pharmacy during the 8.30am to 6pm period, Monday to 
Friday, following a visit to their GP, there will be times when people will need to access a pharmacy 
outside of those times. This may be to have a prescription dispensed after being seen by the out of 
hours GP service, or it may be to access one of the other services provided by a pharmacy outside of 
a person’s normal working day. 

The public survey provided the following insights into how Rochdale residents access pharmaceutical 
services:

 95.3% of respondents surveyed had not had any problems accessing a pharmacy service due 
to location and 87.1% due to opening hours.

 When rating the overall experience of using a pharmacy most respondents (96.2%) indicated 
they were satisfied or very satisfied, with 42.0% rating that they were very satisfied (the 
highest option).

 Approximately 93.0% of respondents were satisfied or very satisfied with the opening hours 
of the pharmacy they used.

 Although the majority of respondents stated they were satisfied or very satisfied with the 
opening times of pharmacies; a small number stated that those local to them were not open 
outside their working day and this created some difficulty and meant they used pharmacies 
on their way to or near work.

Map 8 and 9 show the span of opening times for Rochdale pharmacies based on their core and 
supplementary opening hours6. This identifies those that open 7 days a week, all day Saturday (open 
Monday to Friday), only half day Saturday (open Monday to Friday) and closed Saturday (open 
Monday to Friday). The map also identifies those open after 6pm Monday to Friday.

Full details of the opening hours for community pharmacies in Rochdale can be found on NHS 
Choices http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10.

6 Data valid as at 19th April 2017

Page 70

http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10


Page 61 of 93

Map 8 - Rochdale weekday opening hours
(Showing core and extended hours)

Map 9 - Rochdale weekend opening hours
(Showing Sat a.m. only, all day Saturday and both Saturday and Sunday)

Page 71



Page 62 of 93

Monday to Saturday opening

Six pharmacies open at 8:00 a.m. or earlier Monday to Friday and five pharmacies open at 8:00am or 
earlier on Saturday. The earliest opening is 7:00 a.m. (See Table 11).

23 pharmacies don’t open at all on Saturday, including two distance selling pharmacies, and a 
further 13 pharmacies close by 1:00pm. This leaves 15 pharmacies open for most of Saturday, with 
seven of those pharmacies being open until 7:00pm or later. 

Table 10 - Rochdale pharmacies open Monday to Saturday from 8.00 a.m. or earlier
Pharmacy Postcode Map 

Index
Mon to Sat 

opening time
Comments

4Court Pharmacy OL16 2NT 1 7:00am Opens at 9:00am on Saturday
Asda Pharmacy OL12 6XT 3 7:00am Opens at 8:00am on Monday
Drugmart Pharmacy OL12 6PQ 20 7:00am
Wellfield Pharmacy OL11 1AD 36 7:30am Opens at 8:00am on Saturday
Tesco Instore Pharmacy M24 1HB 46 8:00am
Yorkshire St Pharmacy OL16 2DW 49 8:00am

Nine pharmacies provide access to pharmaceutical services until 7:00pm or later Monday to 
Saturday, with one exception which closes at 1:00pm on Saturday. 

Table 11 - Rochdale pharmacies open Monday to Saturday until 7:00pm or later
Pharmacy Postcode Map 

Index
Mon to Sat 
closing time

Comments

4Court Pharmacy OL16 2NT 1 11:00pm Closes at 9:00pm on Saturday
Asda Pharmacy OL12 6XT 3 11:00pm Closes at 10:00pm on Saturday
Boarshaw Pharmacy M24 2WQ 5 7:00pm Closes at 1:00pm on Saturday
Drugmart Pharmacy OL12 6PQ 20 10:15pm

Morrisons Pharmacy OL16 4AT 24 8:00pm
Closes at 9:00pm on Thursday and 
Friday

Wellfield Pharmacy OL11 1AD 36 10:00pm

Pearl Pharmacy OL11 1HH 38 10:30pm
Closes at 12:00am (midnight) on 
Saturday 

Tesco Instore Pharmacy M24 1HB 46 8:00pm
Yorkshire St Pharmacy OL16 2DW 49 11:30pm Closes at 10:00pm on Saturday

Page 72



Page 63 of 93

Sunday opening

Nine pharmacies open on Sunday and three of the four townships have at least one pharmacy open 
for some hours. Heywood Township is the only township where residents have to access 
pharmaceutical services elsewhere on Sunday. There were no specific comments from the public 
survey with regard to accessing pharmaceutical services on a Sunday and there have been no 
complaints made to NHS England.

Table 12 - Rochdale pharmacies open on Sunday
Pharmacy Postcode Map 

Index
Sun opening time Sun closing time

4Court Pharmacy OL16 2NT 1 12:00pm 8:00pm
Asda Pharmacy OL12 6XT 3 10:30am 4:30pm
Boots the Chemist OL16 1EA 6 11:00am 4:00pm
Drugmart Pharmacy OL12 6PQ 20 8:30am 5:00pm
Morrisons Pharmacy OL16 4AT 24 10:00am 4:00pm
Wellfield Pharmacy OL11 1AD 36 8:30am 10:00pm
Pearl Pharmacy OL11 1HH 38 12:00am (midnight) 5:30pm
Tesco Instore Pharmacy M24 1HB 46 10:00am 4:00pm
Yorkshire St Pharmacy OL16 2DW 49 11:30am 8:00pm

Changes to pharmacy contractors

There are no known changes anticipated at the time of writing the PNA.

6.1.4 Access to Medicines Use Reviews (MUR)

Appendix Seven provides a list of pharmacies providing MUR advanced services.

This service is medicines adherence service designed to improve patient outcomes from taking 
regular medication. A report is shared with the patient and prescriber. 70% of MURs undertaken 
have to be from a specified group of patients:

 Patients taking certain high risk medications 
 Patients recently discharged from hospital 
 Patients prescribed certain respiratory medicines 
 Patients diagnosed with cardiovascular disease or another condition which puts them at 

increased risk of developing cardiovascular disease. 

Each pharmacy can provide a maximum of 400 MURs a year.

In 2016/17 a total of 15,096 MURs were provided by 47 of the pharmacies with 24 pharmacies 
claiming over or at or near the maximum number of MURs (>369). Figure 26 shows the pattern of 
MURs throughout the year for all Rochdale pharmacies (2015/16 and 2016/17). There is a drop in 
MUR provision in December due to the increased level of dispensing that takes place in the run up to 
Christmas and a decline in March as some pharmacies have already achieved their maximum 
permissible number of MURs by February. 

Page 73



Page 64 of 93

Figure 26 - MUR numbers for 2015/16 and 2016/17

Up to 400 MURs can be provided at each pharmacy, giving a potential maximum number of 20,400 
per annum. Four pharmacies have not delivered any MURs and six pharmacies have provided less 
than 200 in 2016/17. NHS England should work with these pharmacies to encourage delivery or 
increased delivery to ensure that all eligible Rochdale residents have the opportunity to receive this 
advanced service, this is especially true as the total number provided for 2016/17 is less than 
2015/16 (a decrease of 4.3%)

MURs are accessible to residents in all four Townships.

6.1.5 Access to New Medicine Service (NMS)

The service provides support for people, often with long-term conditions, newly prescribed a 
medicine to help improve medicines adherence and patient outcomes. The primary aim of the 
consultation (which can be face-to-face or telephone-based) is the patient-centred identification of 
any problems either with the treatment (including any adverse drug reactions) or otherwise in 
relation to the patient’s self-management of their long-term condition, and identification of any 
need of the patient for further information and support in relation to the treatment or the long-term 
condition.

See Appendix Seven for those pharmacies that are providing NMS.

Page 74



Page 65 of 93

Figure 27 - NMS interventions for 2015/16 and 2016/17

In 2015/16 a total of 4,539 NMS interventions were provided by 41 pharmacies. For 2016/17 this 
increased marginally to 42 pharmacies, with an increase in the number delivered to 5,086 NMS 
interventions. 

In 2016/17, 20 pharmacies delivered over 100 NMS interventions with five of those providing in 
excess of 200. Nine pharmacies delivered no NMS interventions, this includes the two distance 
selling pharmacies, and another five have delivered less than 30.

Unlike for MURs there is no nationally set maximum number of NMS interventions that may be 
provided in a year. Currently the service is limited to a specific range of drugs and can only be 
provided in certain circumstances and this therefore limits the total numbers of eligible patients.

NHS England should work with these pharmacies to encourage delivery or increased delivery to 
ensure that all eligible Rochdale residents have the opportunity to receive this advanced service.

NMS are accessible to residents in all four Townships

6.1.6 .Access to stoma appliance customisation

In 2016/17, nine pharmacies provided a total 114 stoma customisations, however, an additional 
number will have been provided by dispensing appliance contractors outside the Rochdale area and 
this data is not available at a local authority or CCG level.

6.1.7 Access to Appliance Use Review (AUR)

According to data from NHS England no pharmacies in Rochdale provided appliance use reviews. The 
only data available is at a regional and national level and it is assumed that some Rochdale patients 
will be accessing his service.

Page 75



Page 66 of 93

Table 13 - AUR provision 2015/16 (Source: NHS Digital)
Area Number of 

community 
pharmacy and 
appliance 
contractors

Community 
pharmacy and 
appliance 
contractors 
providing AUR 
services

Total AURs Average AURs 
per community 
pharmacy and 
appliance 
contractor

Lancashire & Greater 
Manchester 1,101 13 1,107 85

England 11,798 140 37,807 270

This low level of provision reflects the specialist nature of the provision of appliances and it would be 
expected that this service is provided by DACs.

6.1.8 Access to Community Pharmacy Seasonal Influenza Vaccination 
programme

According to data available at NHS Business Services Authority 29 pharmacies in Rochdale delivered 
this service for 2016/17, providing 2,551 vaccinations during the flu season. This is compared to 
1,626 vaccinations for 2015/16; this is a 57% increase in delivery compared to the national figure of 
60%. 3.6% more pharmacies provided the service, which is lower than the increase seen nationally.

Table 14 - Delivery of flu vaccination by council for 2016/17 (Source: NHS BSA)

Council Area

Number of 
Pharmacies 
Vaccinating

Number of 
Pharmacies in 
Council Area

Number of Flu 
Vaccinations 2016/17

Bolton 46 76 4,229
Bury 28 43 3,175
Manchester 80 139 6,186
Oldham 44 59 5,246
Rochdale 29 51 2,551
Salford 47 59 4,529
Stockport 39 72 2,895
Tameside 40 59 3,689
Trafford 51 66 5,420
Wigan 54 72 4,179
Total 458 696 42,631

6.1.9 NHS Urgent Medicines Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS)

Two pharmacies in Rochdale currently provide the NUMSAS which has been extended until 30th 
September 2018. It is anticipated that this number will grow and NHS England will be able to provide 
updated numbers if required.

Page 76



Page 67 of 93

6.1.10 Access to enhanced services

In April 2017, the only enhanced service commissioned by NHS England from pharmacies in the 
Rochdale HWB area is the inhaler technique service. This service has been reviewed and was 
relaunched in August 2017. There are 7 pharmacies in Rochdale providing this service.

6.1.11 Access to pharmaceutical services on public and bank 
holidays and Easter Sunday

NHS England has a duty to ensure that residents of the HWB’s area are able to access 
pharmaceutical services every day. Pharmacies and DACs are not required to open on public and 
bank holidays, or Easter Sunday, although some choose to do so. NHS England asks each contractor 
to confirm their intentions regarding these days and where necessary will direct a contractor or 
contractors to open on one or more of these days to ensure adequate access.

6.2 Necessary services: current provision out-side the 
HWB’s area

In making its assessment the HWB needs to take account of any services provided to its population, 
which may affect the need for pharmaceutical services in its area. This could include services 
provided across a border to the population of Rochdale by pharmacy contractors outside their area, 
or by GP practices, or other health services providers including those that may be provided by NHS 
trust staff.

Patients have a choice of where they access pharmaceutical services; this may be close to their GP 
practice, their home, their place of work or where they go shopping, recreational or other reasons. 
Consequently not all the prescriptions written for residents of Rochdale were dispensed by the 
pharmacies within Rochdale. The Rochdale Council has borders with three Greater Manchester 
boroughs (Bury, Manchester and Oldham) and with Calderdale and Lancashire.

31 pharmacies are located within 1 mile of the Rochdale HWB border (see Appendix Twelve), a 
number of which offer extended hours. Refer to NHS Choices 
(http://www.nhs.uk/pages/home.aspx) for full opening times.

Data from NHS Digital shows that although the majority of items prescribed by Heywood, Middleton 
and Rochdale CCG prescribers are dispensed in Rochdale pharmacies a number are dispensed across 
England. 

Information on the type and number of advanced services provided by pharmacies and DACs outside 
the HWB’s area to Rochdale residents is not available. When claiming for advanced services 
contractors merely claim for the total number provided for each service. The exception to this is the 
stoma appliance customisation service where payment is made based on the information contained 
on the prescription.

Page 77

http://www.nhs.uk/pages/home.aspx


Page 68 of 93

However, even with this service just the total number of relevant appliance items is noted for 
payment purposes. It can be assumed however that Rochdale residents will be able to access 
advanced services from contractors outside of Rochdale.

It is not possible to identify the number of Rochdale residents who access enhanced services from 
pharmacies outside the HWB’s area. This is due to the way that pharmacies are paid. However 
residents of the HWB’s area may access enhanced services from outside Rochdale.

The same applies to locally-commissioned services.

6.3 Other relevant services - current provision
Other relevant services are pharmaceutical services that are not necessary (see section 3.6.1 and 
section 8.2 to 8.5) but have secured improvement or better access to pharmaceutical services.

Other relevant services, for the purposes of this PNA, are defined as:

 Essential services provided at times by pharmacies beyond the standard 40 core hours 
(known as supplementary hours) in line with their terms of service as set out in the 2013 
regulations,

 Enhanced services

6.3.1 Other relevant services within the HWB’s area

41 pharmacies provide essential and advanced services through supplementary hours. The totality of 
these hours covers evenings, Saturday and Sunday. Opening hours are available on NHS Choices. The 
range of opening times is discussed in section 6.1.3 and is shown in Appendix Eight and Maps 8 and 
9.

6.3.2 Other relevant services provided outside the HWB’s area

Whilst there are pharmacies outside of the HWB’s area providing pharmaceutical services during 
hours that may be regarded as providing improvement or better access, it is a choice of individuals 
whether to access these as part of their normal lives. None are specifically commissioned to provide 
services to the population of Rochdale HWB area.

6.3.3 Other relevant services

Whilst the HWB consider enhanced services as providing an improvement or better access to 
pharmaceutical services, only one7 is commissioned by NHS England. The HWB is mindful of local 
commissioned services as described in section 3.6.6 and 6.5.4, which meet the needs of 
pharmaceutical services

7 Inhaler technique service

Page 78



Page 69 of 93

6.3.4 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services

As can be seen from sections 6.1 and 6.2, the residents of the HWB’s area currently exercise their 
choice of where to access pharmaceutical services.

Within the HWB’s area they have a choice of 51 pharmacies which have been utilised to dispense 
the majority of items prescribed by Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG prescribers. Residents 
also choose to access a large number of pharmacies spread across Greater Manchester and the rest 
of England. As expected a proportion of these were dispensed in neighbouring HWB areas but not in 
significant numbers.

There is one DAC in the HWB area however some residents choose to use DACs further afield or 
those pharmacies that provide appliances.

6.4 Future provision – necessary and other relevant 
services

6.4.1 Housing and development

Rochdale continues to drive forward the development of new housing to meet the needs of its 
population, however, none of those are expected to deliver homes up to 2021 are in locations that 
will be unable to meet with the increased demand for pharmaceutical services that these residents 
may require. The draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) identified a number of 
allocations for new housing and employment development within the borough.  However, given the 
current timescales for the adoption of GMSF, these will not require consideration until after the life-
time of this PNA.

6.4.2 Primary Care developments

The face of primary care is undergoing major change with the formation of the Greater Manchester 
Health and Social Care Partnership, which aims to lead to improvements in delivery of health and 
social care services for the people of Greater Manchester as part of the devolution process.

‘Pharmacy’s Contribution to Greater Manchester 2017-2021’8 recommends services that pharmacy 
contractors could deliver to support the health change agenda and has been presented to the 
Strategic Partnership Board. If these recommendations are implemented then this would increase 
the range of services delivered by pharmacy contractors that meet the need of pharmaceutical 
services. The majority of any new services would be locally commissioned under the existing 
commissioning arrangements and not enhanced services commissioned by NHS England.

Rochdale itself has plans for the establishment of a Local Care Organisation holding a single contract 
for out of hospital care from a single commissioning voice.

8 Produced by Greater Manchester’s Pharmacy Local Professional Network

Page 79



Page 70 of 93

This transformation will lead to greater delivery of care nearer to people’s homes or at home and a 
drive to increase self-care for Rochdale’s residents. How this will impact on the need for 
pharmaceutical services is difficult to quantify and it will be important that the HWB are mindful of 
the requirement for people to have access to pharmaceutical services as part of this transformation.

Both the Primary Care Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Locality Plan recognise the importance 
of pharmacy and articulate a need to use the whole of primary care as services move out of hospital.

These changes may mean that this PNA will need to be replaced earlier than the planned date of 
April 2021 and the HWB will need to be conscious of this as plans progress.

There are no known plans for development of health centres or GP practices that cannot be met by 
the current levels of pharmaceutical provision.

6.5 Other NHS services
The following NHS services are deemed, by the HWB, to affect the need for pharmaceutical services 
within its area:

 Hospital pharmacies – reduce the demand for the dispensing essential service as 
prescriptions written in the hospital are dispensed by the hospital pharmacy service.

 Personal administration of items by GPs – as above this also reduces the demand for the 
dispensing essential service. Items are sourced and personally administered by GPs and/or 
practice nurses thus saving patients having to take a prescription to a pharmacy, for example 
for a vaccination, in order to then return with the vaccine to the practice so that it may be 
administered.

 GP out of hours service.
 Services commissioned by Rochdale Borough Council or CCG

6.5.1 Hospital pharmacies

Patients attending these, on either an inpatient or outpatient basis, may require prescriptions to be 
dispensed. There are two hospital trusts in the HWB’s area, Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust, 
which has two main sites within the borough (Rochdale Infirmary and Birch Hill Hospital) ), and 
Pennine Care NHS Foundation trust, which provides adult mental health services within Birch Hill 
Hospital. Both trusts also provide a range of community based services across Rochdale.

Should services be moved out of the hospitals and into the primary care setting then it is likely that 
this would lead to more prescriptions needing to be dispensed by pharmacies in primary care. 
However, it is likely that pharmacies will be able to absorb additional dispensing arising from this, 
should it happen.

Page 80



Page 71 of 93

6.5.2 Personal administration of items by GPs

Under their medical contract with NHS England there will be occasion where a GP practice 
personally administers an item to a patient.

Generally when a patient requires a medicine or appliance their GP will give them a prescription 
which they take to their preferred pharmacy. In some instances however the GP will supply the item 
against a prescription and this is referred to as personal administration as the item that is supplied 
will then be administered to the patient by the GP or a nurse. This is different to the dispensing of 
prescriptions and only applies to certain specified items for example vaccines, anaesthetics, 
injections, intra-uterine contraceptive devices and sutures.

For these items the practice will produce a prescription however the patient is not required to take it 
to a pharmacy, have it dispensed and then return to the practice for it to be administered.

6.5.3 GP out of hours service

Beyond the normal working hours practices open, there is an out of hours service operated as an 
initial telephone consultation where the doctor may attend the patients home or request the patient 
to access one of the clinics. The clinics and travelling doctors have a stock of medicines and 
depending on the patient and their requirement they may be given medicines from stock or a 
prescription issued for dispensing at a pharmacy.

Prescriptions from out of hours services can be dispensed by pharmacies with longer opening hours. 
These are Pharmacies opened seven days a week or for longer hours six days per week are listed in 
section 6.1.3 (Tables 11, 12 and 13). These pharmacies are geographically spread across the borough 
and four localities.

6.5.4 Locally commissioned services – Rochdale Borough Council and 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG

Since 1st April 2013 Rochdale Borough Council has been responsible for the commissioning of some 
public health services. In addition the CCG commissions a number of services that have an impact. 
Appendix Five sets out the services currently commissioned and the number of pharmacies 
providing these services.

The patient survey indicated that more can be done to increase awareness of these services 
commissioned, as many respondents indicated that they would use these services if they were 
available, in particular sexual health services, weight management services, help with alcohol 
interventions and health checks.

Page 81



Page 72 of 93

7. Localities for the purpose of the PNA

7.1 Overview
This assessment has taken a ward level approach in order to support the integration of public health 
data with other sources of information. The 20 wards were then aggregated into four Townships, as 
described in section 3.3. As each Township has slightly differing health needs they are considered 
separately for the purposes of the PNA.

Individual health profiles have been developed for each township using data provided by Rochdale 
Council’s Policy, Performance and Development department.

7.2 Heywood Township

7.2.1 Heywood Township profile

Heywood Township consists of three wards:

 Hopwood Hall (Also in the Middleton Township)
 North Heywood
 West Heywood

The population living in the Township is characterised by:

 Those aged 16 to 64 (working age) in Heywood Township account for 63.7% of the resident 
population (Census 2011), in Rochdale it is 62.9% of the resident population and in North 
West it is 63.0%.

 The predominant age group is Age 45 to 59 at 20.56% of the population. This is followed by 
Age 30 to 44 (19.71%) and Age 65 to 74 (8.11%). In comparison the largest group in 
Rochdale is Age 30 to 44 (20.30%) and in the North West Region it is Age 45 to 59 (19.80%).

 The largest ethnic group in Heywood Township is White: English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British (86.4%), this is followed by White: Other White (1.8%) and White: Irish (1.1%). 

 Only 4.5% of Heywood Township’s population are BME. Compared to 18.3% the Rochdale 
average and 9.8% for the North West region.

Compared with England as a whole, the Township has a significantly worse:

 Child development at age 5
 GCSE achievement (5A*-C including English and Maths)
 Proportion in unemployment (JSA claimants)
 Proportion in long-term unemployment (JSA claimants)
 Proportion of population with general health rated as very bad and bad or very bad (2001 

Census)
 Proportion of population with limiting ling term illness or disability (2011 Census)
 Proportion of population providing 50 hour or more unpaid care per week
 Proportion of pensioners living alone

Page 82



Page 73 of 93

 Obese children in year 6
 Children with excess weight in year 6
 Rate of emergency hospital admissions in under 5s
 Rae of A&E attendances in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 15s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in 15-24 year olds
 Rates of emergency hospital admissions for all causes, in particular CHD and COPD
 Incidence of lung cancer
 Rates of hospital stays for self-harm and alcohol related harm
 Mortality rate (all ages) for all causes including cancer, circulatory disease, CHD, stroke and 

respiratory disease
 Premature mortality all causes in those aged under 65 years
 Premature mortality all causes (including cancer, circulatory disease and CHD) in those aged 

under 75

Compared with England as a whole, the Township performs better with respect to the:

 Overcrowded households

7.2.2 Access to a pharmacy in Heywood Township

Map 10 shows that during Monday to Friday there is satisfactory provision of pharmaceutical 
services across this Township. Although there is no pharmacy in the Hopwood Hall area this is made 
up largely of industrial and rural developments with low population density and the population has 
to travel to access other healthcare provision and shopping. There have been no reported 
complaints about accessing pharmaceutical services in this area during the week and access is 
considered satisfactory.

At weekends, one pharmacy is open all day Saturday and none open on Sunday. The population of 
this Township may have to travel further to access pharmaceutical services especially on a Sunday. 
There have been no reported complaints about accessing pharmaceutical services in this area during 
the weekend however, and access is therefore considered satisfactory.

Page 83



Page 74 of 93

Map 10 - Weekend provision in Heywood Township

7.3 Middleton Township

7.3.1 Middleton Township profile

Township Two consists of five wards:

 Hopwood Hall (Also in the Heywood Township)
 East Middleton
 North Middleton
 South Middleton
 West Middleton

The population living in the Township is characterised by:

 Those aged 16 to 64 (working age) in Middleton Township account for 63.9% of the resident 
population (Census 2011), in Rochdale it is 62.9% of the resident population and in North 
West it is 63.0%.

 The predominant age group is Age 45 to 59 at 20.82% of the population. This is followed by 
Age 30 to 44 (20.04%) and Age 65 to 74 (7.85%). In comparison the largest group in 
Rochdale is Age 30 to 44 (20.30%) and in the North West Region it is Age 45 to 59 (19.80%).

 The largest ethnic group in Middleton Township is White: English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British (91.0%), this is followed by White: Other White (2.1%) and 
Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: African (1.3%). 

 9.8% of Middleton Township’s population are BME. Compared to 18.3% the Rochdale 
average and 9.8% for the North West region.

Page 84



Page 75 of 93

Compared with England as a whole, the Township has a significantly worse:

 Child development at age 5
 Proportion in unemployment (JSA claimants)
 Proportion in long-term unemployment (JSA claimants)
 Proportion of population with general health rated as very bad and bad or very bad (2001 

Census)
 Proportion of population with limiting ling term illness or disability (2011 Census)
 Proportion of population providing 1 hour or more unpaid care per week
 Proportion of population providing 50 hour or more unpaid care per week
 Proportion of pensioners living alone
 Children with excess weight in reception year
 Rate of emergency hospital admissions in under 5s
 Rae of A&E attendances in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 15s
 Binge drinking in adults
 Rates of emergency hospital admissions for all causes, in particular CHD, stroke, MI and 

COPD
 Incidence of lung and prostate cancer
 Rates of hospital stays for self-harm and alcohol related harm
 Mortality rate (all ages) for all causes including cancer, circulatory disease, CHD and 

respiratory disease
 Premature mortality all causes in those aged under 65 years
 Premature mortality all causes (including cancer, circulatory disease and CHD) in those aged 

under 75

Compared with England as a whole, the Township performs better with respect to the:

 Proportion of children born with a low birth weight
 Proportion of households with central heating
 Overcrowded households

7.3.2 Access to a pharmacy in Middleton Township

During Monday to Friday and at weekend there is satisfactory provision of pharmaceutical services 
across this Township. There is at least one pharmacy in each ward, apart from the small portion of 
Hopwood Hall ward that is included in its boundary. Seven pharmacies open Saturday morning with 
three of those pharmacies remaining open Saturday afternoon. On Sunday there is one pharmacy 
open in the Township.

There have been no reported complaints about accessing pharmaceutical services in this area during 
the week or at weekend and access is considered satisfactory.

 See Map 11 to see the distribution of pharmacies across the Township.

Page 85



Page 76 of 93

Map 11 - Weekend provision in Middleton Township

7.4 Pennines Township

7.4.1 Pennines Township profile

Township Three consists of four wards:

 Littleborough Lakeside
 Milnrow and Newhey 
 Smallbridge and Firgrove
 Wardle and West Littleborough

The population living in the Township is characterised by:

 Those aged 16 to 64 (working age) in Middleton Township account for 61.8% of the resident 
population (Census 2011), in Rochdale it is 62.9% of the resident population and in North 
West it is 63.0%.

 The predominant age group is Age 30 to 44 at 20.85% of the population. This is followed by 
Age 45 to 59 (19.17%) and Age 65 to 74 (8.57%).In comparison the largest group in Rochdale 
is Age 30 to 44 (20.30%) and in the North West Region it is Age 45 to 59 (19.80%).

 The largest ethnic group in Pennines Township is White: English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British (86.4%), this is followed by Asian/Asian British: Pakistani (6.0%) and Asian/Asian 
British: Bangladeshi (1.7%).

 11.5% of Pennines Township’s population are BME. Compared to 18.3% the Rochdale 
average and 9.8% for the North West region.

Compared with England as a whole, the Township has a significantly worse:

 Proportion of population with general health rated as very bad and bad or very bad (2001 
Census)

 Proportion of population with limiting ling term illness or disability (2011 Census)
 Proportion of population providing 1 hour or more unpaid care per week
 Proportion of population providing 50 hour or more unpaid care per week

Page 86



Page 77 of 93

 Proportion of pensioners living alone
 Rate of emergency hospital admissions in under 5s
 Rae of A&E attendances in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 15s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injury in 15-24 year olds
 Rates of emergency hospital admissions for all causes, in particular COPD
 Incidence of lung cancer
 Rates of hospital stays for self-harm and alcohol related harm
 Mortality rate (all ages) for all causes including cancer, stroke and respiratory disease
 Premature mortality all causes in those aged under 65 years
 Premature mortality all causes (including circulatory disease and CHD) in those aged under 

75

Compared with England as a whole, the Township performs better with respect to the:

 Proportion of children born with a low birth weight
 GCSE achievement (5A*-C including English and Maths)
 Long-term unemployment (JSA)
 Proportion of households with central heating
 Overcrowded households

7.4.2 Access to a pharmacy in Pennines Township

During Monday to Friday and at weekend there is satisfactory provision of pharmaceutical services 
across this Township. There is at least one pharmacy in each ward. Four pharmacies open Saturday 
morning with two of those pharmacies remaining open Saturday afternoon. On Sunday there is one 
pharmacy open in the Township. Large portions of his Township are rural with very low population 
density.

There have been no reported complaints about accessing pharmaceutical services in this area during 
the week or at weekend and access is considered satisfactory.

 See Map 12 to see the distribution of pharmacies across the Township.

Page 87



Page 78 of 93

Map 12 - Weekend provision in Pennines Township

7.5 Rochdale Township

7.5.1 Rochdale Township profile

Township Four consists of nine wards:

 Balderstone Kirkholt
 Bamford
 Castleton
 Central Rochdale 
 Healey 
 Kingsway
 Milkstone and Deeplish
 Norden
 Spotland and Falinge

The population living in the Township is characterised by:

 Those aged 16 to 64 (working age) in Rochdale Township account for 62.6% of the resident 
population (Census 2011), in Rochdale it is 62.9% of the resident population and in North 
West it is 63.0%.

 The predominant age group is Age 30 to 44 at 20.28% of the population. This is followed by 
Age 45 to 59 (18.59%) and Age 65 to 74 (7.49%). In comparison the largest group in 
Rochdale is Age 30 to 44 (20.30%) and in the North West Region it is Age 45 to 59 (19.80%).

 The largest ethnic group in Rochdale Township is White: English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British (65.7%), this is followed by Asian/Asian British: Pakistani (19.7%) and 
Asian/Asian British: Bangladeshi (3.7%).

Page 88



Page 79 of 93

 31.0% of Rochdale Township’s population are BME. Compared to 18.3% the Rochdale 
average and 9.8% for the North West region.

Compared with England as a whole, the Township has a significantly worse:

 Proportion of children born with a low birth weight
 Child development at age 5
 GCSE achievement (5A*-C including English and Maths)
 Proportion in unemployment (JSA claimants)
 Proportion in long-term unemployment (JSA claimants)
 Proportion of population with general health rated as very bad and bad or very bad
 Proportion of population with limiting ling term illness or disability
 Proportion of population providing 1 hour or more unpaid care per week
 Proportion of population providing 50 hour or more unpaid care per week
 Proportion of overcrowded houses
 Proportion of pensioners living alone
 Obese children in year 6
 Children with excess weight in year 6
 Rate of emergency hospital admissions in under 5s
 Rae of A&E attendances in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 5s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 15s
 Rate of hospital admissions for injuries in 15-24 year olds
 Rates of emergency hospital admissions for all causes, in particular CHD, stroke, MI and 

COPD
 Incidence of lung cancer
 Rates of hospital stays for self-harm and alcohol related harm
 Elective hospital admissions for knee replacement
 Mortality rate (all ages) for all causes including circulatory disease, CHD, stroke and 

respiratory disease
 Premature mortality all causes in those aged under 65 years
 Premature mortality all causes (including cancer, circulatory disease and CHD) in those aged 

under 75

Compared with England as a whole, the Township performs better with respect to the:

 Elective hospital admissions for hip replacement.

7.5.2 Access to a pharmacy in Rochdale Township

Map 13 shows that during Monday to Friday and at weekends there is satisfactory provision of 
pharmaceutical services across this Township.

There is at least one pharmacy in each ward of Rochdale Township, although not all are open at 
weekends. 15 pharmacies open Saturday morning with 11 of those pharmacies remaining open 
Saturday afternoon. On Sunday there are seven pharmacies open in the Township. Large portions of 
his Township are rural with very low population density.

Page 89



Page 80 of 93

Map 13 - Weekend provision in Rochdale Township

8. How pharmaceutical services can help support 
a healthier population

8.1 Essential Services (ES)
There are seven essential services listed below. These services must be offered by all pharmacy 
contractors during all opening hours of the pharmacy as part of the NHS Community Pharmacy 
Contractual Framework.

 ES1 Dispensing Medicines & Dispensing Appliances
 ES2 Repeat Dispensing
 ES3 Disposal of Unwanted Medicines
 ES4 Public Health (Promotion of a healthy lifestyle)
 ES5 Signposting
 ES6 Support for Self-care
 ES7 Clinical Governance

Medicines management is vital in the successful control of many LTCs (e.g. circulatory diseases, 
mental health, diabetes) thus having a positive impact on morbidity and mortality. Disease specific 
guidance (such as that) provided by the National Institute for Clinical & Healthcare Excellence (NICE) 
regularly emphasises the importance of medicines optimisation and adherence in control of 
conditions such as hypertension, asthma and stroke.

Page 90



Page 81 of 93

ES1 and ES2 support patients living with LTCs by providing timely supply of medicines and advice to 
patients. ES2 may be of particular benefit to patients on lifelong medicines as part of their treatment 
such as those requiring statins or insulin.

Using ES3, pharmacies can direct patients in the safe disposal of medicines and reduce the risk of 
hoarding medicines at home which may increase the risk of errors in taking medicines or in taking 
out of date medicines.

ES4 can support local and national campaigns informing people of managing risk factors associated 
with many long term conditions such as smoking, healthy diet, physical activity and alcohol 
consumption.

ES4 provides the ability to:

 Improve awareness of the signs and symptoms of conditions such as stroke e.g. FAST 
campaign.

 Promote validated information resources for patients and carers.
 Collect data from the local population on their awareness and understanding of different 

types of disease and their associated risk factors.
 Target “at risk” groups within the local population to promote understanding and access to 

screening programmes e.g. men in their 40s for NHS health checks.

Community pharmacy also plays a vital role in the management of minor ailments and self-care. 
Evidence shows that community pharmacists are potentially the most accessed healthcare 
professionals in any health economy (Pharmacy White Paper, 2008) and are an important resource 
in supporting people in managing their own self-care and in directing people to the most 
appropriate points of care for their symptoms (Pharmacy White Paper, 2008).

Although the evidence base for measuring the effectiveness and cost effectiveness of community 
pharmacies contribution to urgent care, emergency care and un-planned care is currently very small 
there is a growing recognition of the importance of this role and for further research.

Using ES5, pharmacies can signpost patients and carers to local and national sources of information 
and reinforce those sources already promoted. They can also direct patients to the appropriate care 
pathways for their condition.

Through ES6 pharmacy staff can advise patients and carers on the most appropriate choices for self-
care and also direct queries to the pharmacist for further advice when purchasing over the counter 
medicines or general sales lists products. Some over-the-counter medicines are contraindicated (e.g. 
decongestant use in circulatory disease), and inappropriate use could increase the risk of an 
unplanned hospital admission. Equally some symptoms can be much more significant in certain long 
term conditions (e.g. foot conditions in diabetes) and the attempted purchase of over-the-counter 
medicines by a patient or carer could alert the pharmacist leading to an appropriate referral.

Page 91



Page 82 of 93

ES7 provides the governance structure for the delivery of pharmacy services. This structure is set out 
within the 2013 regulations and includes:

 A patient and public involvement programme
 A clinical audit programme
 A risk management programme
 A clinical effectiveness programme
 A staffing and staff programme
 An information governance programme.

It provides an opportunity to audit pharmacy services and influence to the evidence base for the 
best practice and contribution of pharmacy services.

8.2 Advanced Services
There are six advanced services (Appendix Seven) within the NHS community pharmacy contractual 
framework. Community pharmacies can choose to provide any of these services as long as they meet 
the requirements set out in the Secretary of State Directions:

 Medicines Use Reviews (MUR)
 New Medicines Service (NMS)
 Appliance Use Review (AUR)
 Stoma Appliance Customisation (SAC)
 Flu vaccination
 NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS) (Due to run until 30th September 

2018.)

Evidence shows that up to half of medicines may not be taken as prescribed or simply not be taken 
at all. Advanced services have a role in highlighting issues with medicines or appliance adherence 
issues and in reducing waste through inappropriate or unnecessary use of medicines or appliances. 
Polypharmacy is highly prevalent in LTC management. Advanced services provide an opportunity to 
identify issues with side effects, changes in dosage, confirmation that the patient understands the 
role of the medicine or appliance in their care and opportunities for medicine optimisation.

Appropriate referrals can be made to GPs or other care settings resulting in patients receiving a 
better outcome from their medicines and in some cases cost saving for the CCG. Advanced services 
may also identify other issues such as general mental health and well-being providing an opportunity 
to signpost to other local services or service within the pharmacy such as seasonal flu immunisation 
or repeat dispensing.

Promotion of self-care is an important aspect to the management of many LTCs and advanced 
services provide an important opportunity for the pharmacist to do so for example, the importance 
of dry weight monitoring in heart failure management.

Page 92



Page 83 of 93

8.3 Enhanced services
Pharmacies may choose to provide enhanced services and these services are commissioned to meet 
an identified need in the local population. Depending on the service agreement used these service 
may or may not be accessible for all of the pharmacies opening hours.

Only those services that are listed within the Directions may be referred to as enhanced services. If 
NHS England wishes to commission a service not listed within the Directions then it cannot be called 
an enhanced service and it also falls outside the definition of pharmaceutical services.

8.3.1 Inhaler Technique Service

This enhanced service has been reviewed and was relaunched in August 2017. This review has taken 
place in order to improve delivery of the service.

8.4 Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG locally 
commissioned services

8.4.1 Minor ailment scheme

NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG has commissioned a minor ailment scheme, which is 
managed on their behalf by the NHS England area team. 

The minor ailment scheme is designed to allow registered residents of Rochdale to access treatment 
for minor ailments as part of NHS provision without having to visit their GP. The scheme is intended 
to reduce demand for GP consultations to deal with conditions that can be dealt with safely in the 
pharmacy setting, and to encourage patients to self-care. The scheme is also intended to reduce the 
demand for urgent care, especially out of hours.

As the service is commissioned by Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG, it is not envisaged that 
within the lifetime of this PNA there is, or will be, a need for it to be commissioned as part of 
pharmaceutical services.

8.4.2 Minor eye conditions scheme

The minor Eye Condition Scheme (MECS) is designed to provide assessment and treatment for 
people with recently occurring minor eye conditions and is provided by MECS accredited 
optometrists (Opticians) across Rochdale.   The service is for people (all age groups) who are 
registered with a GP in Rochdale. 

The aim is to improve access and choice for people with minor eye conditions who are seeking 
advice and treatment via the community optometry MECS, by prescribing appropriate medicines.   
Another aim is to improve health-inequalities for low income families’, allowing equal access to 
medicines for self-care of minor eye conditions.

Page 93



Page 84 of 93

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG has commissioned a 'Community Pharmacy Dispensing 
Service for the Community Optometry Minor Eye Conditions Service', which is managed on their 
behalf by the NHS England local team. 

The pharmacy dispensing for MECS is a good example of collaborative working between primary 
care professionals.  The service enables an optometrist to provide a patient with a written order for 
medication where necessary, following a MECS assessment and the patient can attend a pharmacist 
to have the medication dispensed with NHS funding where eligible. This avoids the patient either 
having to purchase privately or having to attend the GP practice to have the medication prescribed 
via the FP10 available to a GP. 

8.5 Rochdale Borough Council locally commissioned 
services (LCS)

8.5.1 Stop smoking

This service is commissioned by Rochdale Borough Council as a LCS, however pharmacies are just 
one of several providers of this service. As stop smoking is commissioned by the council, it is not 
envisaged that within the lifetime of this PNA there is or will be a need for it to be commissioned as 
part of pharmaceutical services.

There are plans to commission pharmacies to provide varenicline, a drug treatment used to aid 
smoking cessation attempts, using a Patient Group Direction authorised by Rochdale Borough 
Council after referral of suitable patients from the Stop Smoking Service.

8.5.2 Alcohol and substance misuse

As needle exchange and the supervised consumption of methadone/buprenorphine and alcohol 
screening are commissioned by the council and sub-contracted by the commissioned provider, it is 
not envisaged that with-in the lifetime of this PNA there is or will be a need for either service to be 
commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services. 

Needle and syringe exchange services (NEX) are an integral part of the harm reduction strategy for 
drug users.

It aims to:

 Reduce the spread of blood borne pathogens e.g. Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C, HIV
 Be a referral point for service users to other health and social care services

There is evidence to support the effectiveness of needle exchange services with long term health 
benefits to drug users and the whole population.

Page 94



Page 85 of 93

Supervised administration involves the client consuming methadone or buprenorphine under the 
direct supervision of a pharmacist in a community pharmacy.

It is a medicines adherence service which aims to:

 Reduce the risk of harm to the client by over or under usage of drug treatment.
 Reduce the risk of harm to the local community by the inappropriate use of prescribed 

medicines via the illicit drug market.
 Reduce the risk of harm to the community by accidental exposure to pre-scribed medicines.

There is compelling evidence to support the effectiveness of supervised administration with long 
term health benefits to drug users and the whole population.

Pharmacies screen patients for alcohol dependence using a screening tool called AUDIT-C which 
consists of three questions. Screening will apply to all patients who are aged 16 or over who live in 
Rochdale or who are registered with a Rochdale. If a patient is identified as positive score 5 and 
above, the remaining questions of the ten question AUDIT questionnaire are used to determine low, 
increasing, high or dependent patterns of drinking.

If a patient is identified as increasing risk following a full AUDIT score of 8-15, then the Pharmacist 
will offer a brief intervention and offer a referral into a local care pathway. A brief intervention is a 
five minute discussion offering advice and information around the patient’s levels of drinking 
alcohol. If a patient’s drinking pattern is identified as harmful (score of 16+) then the patient shall be 
referred to specialist substance misuse services.

8.5.3 Sexual health - Teenage pregnancy

There is a very strong evidence base for the use of EHC in reducing unplanned or unwanted 
pregnancies, especially within teenage years. Its use forms part of an overall national strategy to 
reduce the rate of teenage pregnancy with England. The drug levonorgestrel is used for EHC.

Through this service it is supplied under a PGD to women who meet the criteria for inclusion of the 
PGD and service specification. The drug can also be prescribed using an FP10 prescription. It may 
also be bought as an over the counter medication from pharmacies, however the user must be 16 
years or over, hence the need for a PGD service within pharmacies which provides access from 13 to 
25 years of age.

As EHC provision is commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of this 
PNA there is, or will be, a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services.

8.5.4 Other sexual health services

Some key issues for both current and future sexual health services are:

 Reducing the transmission of and rate of undiagnosed (HIV) and sexually transmitted 
infections (STI). The growing incidence of HIV and STIs can only be arrested through the 
systematic introduction of health promotion, screening, STI testing, and prompt follow-up 
for both patients and their partners throughout the borough.

Page 95



Page 86 of 93

 Improving Access to Sexual and Reproductive Health Services. Attaining prompt diagnosis 
and treatment and therefore reducing the spread of infection whilst improving the patient 
experience of sexual health services is critical.

 Establishing service standards, definitive care pathways and targeted and appropriate 
services. Introduction into non-traditional settings responding to local need bringing sexual 
health services closer to the community

Pharmacy based screening and treatment services for STI can help achieve all of the above three 
points.

Pharmacies are currently providing access to chlamydia screening and treatment, although there is 
potential for increasing the range of diseases screened for.

Currently chlamydia screening and treatment using PGDs are commissioned by the council, it is not 
envisaged that within the lifetime of this PNA there is or will be a need for it to be commissioned as 
part of pharmaceutical services.

8.5.5 NHS Health Checks

The programme is provided in all GP practices targeting hard-to-reach population groups. From 
2013/14 Q1 – 2016/17 Q4, the percentage of people that received an NHS Health Check of those 
offered one in Rochdale was 64.3%9; 70.6% of eligible people had been invited in the same time 
period.

As NHS health checks are commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of 
this PNA there is, or will be, a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services.

In addition to dispensing prescriptions, pharmacies through the provision of essential services can 
help to address many of the public health concerns contained within Rochdale JSNA, for example:

 Where a person presents a prescription, and they appear to have diabetes, be at risk of 
coronary heart disease (especially those with high blood pressure), smoke or are 
overweight, the pharmacy is required to give appropriate advice with the aim of increasing 
their knowledge and understanding of the health is-sues which are relevant to that person’s 
circumstances.

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 
year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 
selected by NHS England and have previously included topics on healthy eating and physical 
activity.

 Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of services or support.

Provision of advanced services will also assist people to manage their long term conditions in order 
to maximise the quality of life by improving medicine and appliance adherence.

9 http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/interactive_map/compare_local_authorities_or_centres/ 

Page 96

http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/interactive_map/compare_local_authorities_or_centres/


Page 87 of 93

8.5.6 Mental health and well being

In addition to ensuring that people with mental health problems have access to drugs and 
medicines, pharmacies can support in other ways by

 Providing accessible and comprehensive information and advice to carers about what help 
and support is available to them.

 Provision of essential services, e.g. signposting. Ensuring that pharmacies have information 
on the help and support that is available will enable them to signpost carers accordingly.

All locally commissioned services are also supported through Essential services provided by 
pharmacies, whether commissioned or not e.g.:

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 
year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 
selected by NHS England.

 Where the pharmacy does not provide a locally commissioned service they should signpost 
them to other pharmacies that are commissioned or to other services that may meet that 
need.

9. Necessary services - gaps in provision of 
pharmaceutical services

Necessary services, for the purposes of this PNA, are defined as:

 Essential services provided by pharmacies during standard 40 core hours in line with their 
terms of service as set out in the 2013 regulations, and

 Advanced services

The HWB consider it is those services provided within the standard pharmacy providing 40 core 
hours that should be regarded as necessary. There are 51 such pharmacies. The spread of opening 
times including the core hours are provided in Appendices Six and Eight; this is supported by Maps 8 
to 13.

The HWB are mindful of the national picture as expressed in the 2008 White Paper Pharmacy in 
England, Building on strengths – delivering the future, which states that it is strength of the current 
system that community pharmacies are easily accessible. The HWB consider that the population of 
Rochdale across all four PNA localities currently enjoy a similar position.

In particular, the HWB had regard to the following, drawn from the mapped provision of and access 
to pharmacies:

 Map 6 showing the location of pharmacies across the whole HWB area.
 Map 4 showing the population density per square km by Census 2011 Output Area and the 

relative location of pharmacy premises.

Page 97



Page 88 of 93

 Map 5 showing the Index of Multiple Deprivation and deprivation ranges compared to the 
relative location of pharmacy premises.

 Maps 7 illustrate that the majority of the residents of the HWB are within a walking distance 
of 1 mile.

 The number, distribution of pharmacies within each of the four PNA localities and across the 
whole HWB area (Map 10-13).

 The choice of pharmacies covering each of the four PNA localities and the whole HWB area 
(Appendix Six).

 Over 43% of respondents to the public survey used a regular pharmacy because it was near 
to their doctor and 33% because it was near to their home. (Appendix Three).

 Over 96 % of respondents to the public survey had not had any difficulty in accessing a 
pharmacy of their choice and approximately 93% were satisfied or very satisfied with the 
opening hours of the pharmacy they used (Appendix Three).

 Overall results of the patient survey (Appendix Three).

Taking into account the totality of information available, the HWB consider the location, number, 
distribution and choice of pharmacies covering the each of the four townships and the whole 
Rochdale HWB area providing essential and advanced services during the standard core hours to 
meet the needs of the population.

The HWB has not received any significant information to conclude otherwise currently or of any 
future specified circumstance that would alter that conclusion.

10. Improvements and better access: gaps in 
provision of pharmaceutical services

The HWB consider it is those services and times provided in addition to those considered necessary 
for the purpose of this PNA that should reasonably be regarded as providing either an improvement 
or better access to pharmaceutical provision.

The HWB recognises that any addition of pharmaceutical services by location, provider, hours or 
services may be regarded by some as pertinent to this consideration. However, the HWB consider 
the duty to be one of proportionate consideration overall.

The location of premises and choice of provider is not as extensive beyond the standard 40 core 
hours as described under the previous consideration of what is necessary. However in each 
township, there are pharmacies open beyond what may be regarded as normal hours, in that they 
provide pharmaceutical services during supplementary hours in the evening, on Saturday and 
Sunday.

Taking into account the totality of information available, the HWB consider the location, number, 
distribution and choice of pharmacies covering the each of the four townships and the Rochdale 
HWB area providing essential and advanced services during the evening, on Saturday and Sunday, to 
provide an improvement and better access that meet the requirements of the population.

Page 98



Page 89 of 93

The public survey did not record any specific themes relating to pharmacy opening times, apart from 
a small number that noted their local pharmacy didn’t open beyond 7.00 p.m. during the week 
and/or on Saturday and/or Sunday; however, these respondents were aware of pharmacies that 
provided access at these times. The HWB therefore concludes there no significant information to 
indicate there is a gap in the current provision of pharmacy opening times.

At present, the same conclusion was reached in considering whether there is any future specified 
circumstance that would give rise to the conclusion that there is a gap in pharmaceutical provision at 
certain times. Nonetheless, the HWB will be considering the response by pharmacy contractors to 
the changing expectations of the public to reflect the times at which pharmaceutical services are 
provided more closely with such changes during the life of this PNA.

With regard to enhanced services, in this case immunisations services, the HWB is mindful that only 
those commissioned by NHS England are regarded as pharmaceutical services. However, since 1st 
April 2013, there has been a shift in commissioning arrangements for some services that would 
otherwise be defined as enhanced services (Appendix NN). Therefore, the absence of a particular 
service being commissioned by NHS England is mitigated by commissioning through the Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale CCG and Rochdale Borough Council. This PNA identifies those locally 
commissioned services.

Whether commissioned as enhanced or LCS, the HWB consider these to provide both an 
improvement and better access to such services for the residents of Rochdale HWB area where such 
a requirement has been identified and verified at a local level. At the time of writing this PNA, the 
HWB has not identified either itself or through consultation any requirement to provide either 
further those services already commissioned or to commence the provision of enhanced 
pharmaceutical services not currently commissioned.

Taking into account the totality of information available, the HWB consider the location, number, 
distribution and choice of pharmacies covering each of the four townships and the Rochdale HWB 
area providing enhanced services, including the mitigation by the provision of LCSs, to provide an 
improvement and better access for population. The HWB has not received any significant 
information to conclude otherwise currently or of any local future specified circumstance that would 
alter that conclusion.

11.Conclusions (for the purpose of Schedule 1 to 
the 2013 Regulations)

11.1 Current provision – necessary and other relevant 
services

As described in particular in sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 and required by paragraphs one and three of 
schedule 1 to the Regulations, Rochdale HWB has had regard to the pharmaceutical services 
referred to in this PNA in seeking to identify those that are necessary, have secured improvements 

Page 99



Page 90 of 93

or better access, or have contributed towards meeting the need for pharmaceutical services in the 
area of the HWB.

Rochdale HWB has determined that while not all provision was necessary to meet the need for 
pharmaceutical services, the majority of the current provision was likely to be necessary as 
described in section 9 with that identified in section 10 as providing improvement or better access 
without the need to differentiate in any further detail.

11.2 Necessary services – gaps in provision
As described in particular in section 9 and required by paragraph two of schedule 1 to the 
Regulations, Rochdale HWB has had regard to the following in seeking to identify whether there are 
any gaps in necessary services in the area of the HWB.

11.2.1 Access to essential services

In order to assess the provision of essential services against the needs of our population we consider 
access (travelling times and opening hours) as the most important factor in determining the extent 
to which the current provision of essential services meets the needs of the population.

11.2.2 Access to essential services during normal working hours

Rochdale HWB has determined that the travel times as identified in section 6.1.1 to access essential 
services are reasonable in all the circumstances.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no current gaps in the 
need for provision of essential services during normal working hours have been identified.

11.2.3 Access to essential services outside normal working hours

In Rochdale there is good access to essential services outside normal working hours in all four 
townships and across the HWB area. This is due to the supplementary opening hours offered by 
most pharmacies. It is not expected that any of the current pharmacies will reduce the number of 
core opening hours and NHS England foresees no reason to agree a reduction of core opening hours 
for any service provider except on an ad hoc basis to cover extenuating circumstances.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no current gaps in the 
provision of essential services outside normal working hours have been identified.

11.2.4 Access to advanced and enhanced services

Insofar as only NHS England may commission these services, sections 6.1 and 6.2 of this PNA identify 
access to enhanced and advanced services.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no current gaps in the 
provision of advanced and enhanced services have been identified.

Page 100



Page 91 of 93

11.3 Future provision of necessary services
Rochdale HWB has not identified any pharmaceutical services that are not currently provided but 
that will, in specified future circumstances, need to be provided in order to meet a need for 
pharmaceutical services.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps in the need for 
pharmaceutical services in specified future circumstances have been identified.

11.4 Improvements and better access – gaps in 
provision

As described in particular in section 10 and required by paragraph 4 of schedule 1 to the 2013 
Regulations, Rochdale HWB has had regard to the following in seeking to identify whether there are 
any gaps in other relevant services within the “NUMBER” localities and the area of the HWB.

11.4.1 Access to essential services – present and future 
circumstances

Rochdale HWB considered the conclusion in respect of current provision as set out at 11.1 above 
and the information in respect of essential services as it had done at 11.2. While it was not possible 
to determine which current provision of essential service by location or standard hours provided 
improvement or better access, the HWB was satisfied that some current provision did so.

Rochdale HWB has not identified services that would, if provided either now or in future specified 
circumstances, secure improvements to or better access to essential services.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps have been 
identified in essential services that if provided either now or in the future would secure 
improvements, or better access, to essential services.

11.4.2 Current and future access to advanced services

Not all pharmacies are currently offering MURs or NMS. However, these services are not 
commissioned by NHS England but provided by the pharmacy should it choose to do so.

In 2015-16 four pharmacies did not provide MURs. NHS England will encourage these pharmacies 
and pharmacists to become eligible to deliver MURs and to encourage all pharmacies to complete 
the maximum number of MURs allowed to ensure more eligible patients are able to access and 
benefit from this service.

In 2015-16 five pharmacies did not provide the NMS. NHS England will encourage pharmacies and 
pharmacists to become eligible to deliver the service so that more eligible patients are able to access 
and benefit from this service.

Page 101



Page 92 of 93

Demand for the appliance advanced services (SAC and AUR) is lower than for the other two 
advanced services due to the much smaller proportion of the population that may require the 
services. Pharmacies and DACs may choose which appliances they provide and may also choose 
whether or not to provide the two related advanced services.

NHS England will encourage those contractors in the area that do provide appliances to become 
eligible to deliver these advanced services where appropriate.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps have been 
identified in the need for advanced services that if provided either now or in the future would 
secure improvements, or better access, to advanced services.

11.4.3 Current and future access to enhanced services

NHS England commissioned just one enhanced service (Inhaler technique service) from pharmacies. 
It also commissions this service from other non-pharmacy providers, principally GP practices.

Many of the enhanced services listed in the 2013 directions (Appendix 13) enhanced service 
descriptions) are now commissioned by Rochdale Borough Council (public health services) or 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG (e.g. minor ailments) and so fall outside of the definition of 
both enhanced services and pharmaceutical services.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps in respect of 
securing improvements, or better access, to enhanced services either now or in specified future 
circumstances have been identified.

11.5 Other NHS Services
As required by paragraph five of schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations, Rochdale HWB has had regard 
in particular to section nine considering any other NHS services that may affect the determination in 
respect of pharmaceutical services in the area of the HWB. This includes locally commissioned 
services, see section 3.6.6.

As evaluation of services across Greater Manchester continues as part of devolution, new ways of 
delivering services may be identified and some of these may meet the needs of pharmaceutical 
services not currently identified in this PNA.

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps in respect of 
securing improvements, or better access, to other NHS services either now or in specified future 
circumstances have been identified.

11.6 How the assessment was carried out
As required by paragraph 6 of schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations:

In respect of how the HWB considered whether to determine localities in its area for the purpose of 
this PNA, see section 3 and section 6 and maps 10-13.

Page 102



Page 93 of 93

In respect of how the HWB took into account the different needs in its area, including those who 
share a protected characteristic, see sections 6 and Appendix Three

In respect of the consultation undertaken by the HWB, see Appendix Thirteen.

11.7 Map of provision
As required by paragraph seven of schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations, the HWB has published a 
map of premises providing pharmaceutical in Map 6 (Section 6.1 and Appendix Ten). Additional 
maps are also provided throughout and as listed in Appendix Ten.

Page 103



Appendix One – Glossary  
 
A&E Accident and Emergency  LPC Local Pharmaceutical Committee  
AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome LPS Local Pharmaceutical Service 
AUR Appliance Use Review  LSOA Lower Super Output Areas 
BME Black and Minority Ethnic  LTC Long Term Condition  
CCG Clinical Commissioning Group MI Myocardial Infarction 
CHD Coronary Heart Disease MMR Measles, Mumps and Rubella 
COPD Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease MUR Medicines Use Review 
COVER Cover of Vaccination Evaluated Rapidly NEX Needle and Syringe Exchange Services 
CVD Coronary Vascular Disease NHS National Health Service 
DAC Dispensing Appliance Contractor  NHS CB NHS Commissioning Board 
EHC Emergency Hormonal Contraception  NICE National Institute for Clinical & Healthcare Excellence 
EPS Electronic Prescription Service NMS New Medicine Service 
ES Essential Services NW North West 
GCSE General Certificate of Secondary Education  ONS Office for National Statistic  
GFR General Fertility Rate  OOH Out of Hours 
GM Greater Manchester PCT Primary Care Trust 
GP General Practitioner  PGD Patient Group Direction  
HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus  PHE Public Health England 
HWB Health and Wellbeing Board PNA Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
IMD Index of Multiple Deprivation  SAC Stoma Appliance Customisation 
JHWS Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy SAR Standardised Admission Ratio  
JSA Jobseeker Allowance  SMR Standardised Mortality Rate  
JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment STDs Sexually Transmitted Diseases 
LA Local Authority  STIs Sexually Transmitted Infections 
LCS Locally Commissioned Services TB Tuberculosis 
LGBT Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender  
LMC Local Medical Committee   
  
  
  

 

P
age 104



 

   

 
  

 Terms of Reference 
 

Name of Committee Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) Steering Group 

  
Connectivity   

Reports to Updates to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) via the 
HWB Lead/HWB PNA Champion 

  

Bodies reporting to this Group None 

  

Chair Senior Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist 

  

Membership Representatives from the Greater Manchester Shared 
Services (GMSS) including: 

 Senior Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist 

 Project Support Officer 
 
Representatives from Rochdale Council 
 
Representatives from Heywood Middleton and Rochdale 
CCG 
 
NHS Area Team Representative  
 
LPC Representative  
 
Healthwatch Representative 

  

Function of Committee   To develop a PNA for Rochdale HWB that fulfills the 
statutory requirements specified in ‘The National 
Health Service (Pharmaceutical Services and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013. 
 

 To identify and report any risk to the HWB that might 
jeopardise the successful completion of the above.  

  

Responsibilities/Actions  GMSS will lead the development of the PNA and may ask 
for support from all stakeholders during the process with 
regards to reviewing specific areas. 

  

Outputs of the Group  To produce a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for 
Rochdale HWB.  

  

Frequency of Meetings It is envisaged that the group will ‘meet’ both electronically 
and in person as often as required to ensure successful 
completion of the PNA.  

 

Page 105



Powered by 

Rochdale Borough 
Pharmacy Services Public 
Survey 
Tuesday, July 18, 2017 

Appendix Three 

P
age 106



179 
Total Responses 

Complete Responses: 162 

Q1 has been removed as this contained partial 

post codes, which have been plotted on Map NN. 

P
age 107



Q2: Do you use a pharmacy? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 179    Skipped: 0 

P
age 108



Q3: Why do you use a pharmacy? Please tick one box only 

Answered: 171    Skipped: 8 

P
age 109



Q4: If you do use a pharmacy, how often would you say you used one? 
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 171    Skipped: 8 

P
age 110



Q5: Do you have problems accessing a pharmacy due to their location? 
Please tick one box only 

Answered: 171    Skipped: 8 

P
age 111



Q6: Do you have problems accessing a pharmacy due to opening hours? 
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 170    Skipped: 9 

P
age 112



Q7: Did you know that there are pharmacies in the Rochdale borough that are 

open extended hours (e.g. early morning, late night, weekends and bank 

holidays)? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 170    Skipped: 9 

P
age 113



Q8: Do you know where these pharmacies are located? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 133    Skipped: 46 

P
age 114



Q9: Have you used these pharmacies early in the morning (before 9am), 

later at night (after 7pm), at weekends or on bank holidays? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 133    Skipped: 46 

P
age 115



Q10: At what time would you, or do you, find pharmacies with extended 

hours most useful? Please tick all that apply. 

Answered: 167    Skipped: 12 

P
age 116



Q11: How far from your home or place of work would you be willing to 

travel to a pharmacy?  Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 168    Skipped: 11 

P
age 117



Q12: Do you have any difficulties accessing a pharmacy of your choice? 
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 169    Skipped: 10 

P
age 118



Q13: Do you have a pharmacy that you use regularly? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 168    Skipped: 11 

P
age 119



Q14: In terms of location, why do you use this pharmacy regularly?   Please tick 

one box only. 

Answered: 146    Skipped: 33 

P
age 120



Q15: If you use a particular pharmacy on a regular basis, is this because: 
Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 137    Skipped: 42 

P
age 121



Q15: If you use a particular pharmacy on a regular basis, is this because: 
Comment box. 

Answered: 137    Skipped: 42 

P
age 122



Q15: If you use a particular pharmacy on a regular basis, is this because: 
Comment box continued. 

Answered: 137    Skipped: 42 

P
age 123



Q16: How do you usually travel to a pharmacy? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 158    Skipped: 21 

P
age 124



Q17: Do you feel that pharmacy staff provide you with sufficient information 

about your prescribed medication or medicines purchased over the counter e.g. 

dose, possible side effects, any warnings? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 158    Skipped: 21 

P
age 125



Q17: Do you feel that pharmacy staff provide you with sufficient information 

about your prescribed medication or medicines purchased over the counter 

e.g. dose, possible side effects, any warnings?  
No, please explain why? - Continued 

Answered: 158    Skipped: 21 

P
age 126



Q18: How important are the following aspects of pharmacy services? Please 

tick one box per row only. 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 127



Q19: Have you ever used (paid for or accessed for free) any of the 

following services from your pharmacy? (Please tick one box per row only) 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 128



Q19: Have you ever used (paid for or accessed for free) any of the 

following services from your pharmacy? (Please tick one box per row only) 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 129



Q20: Are there any other services you would like your pharmacy to offer? 
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 154    Skipped: 25 

P
age 130



Q20: Are there any other services you would like your pharmacy to offer? 
If yes, please explain. 

Answered: 154    Skipped: 25 

P
age 131



Q21: If you don’t go to a pharmacist for any of the services listed in Q19. who or 

which organisation, if any, would you contact if you wished to get information: 
Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 151    Skipped: 28 

P
age 132



Q22: How satisfied were you with the following aspects of service at your 

pharmacy? Please tick one box per row only. 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 133



Q22: How satisfied were you with the following aspects of service at your 

pharmacy? Please tick one box per row only. 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 134



Q23: Did you know pharmacy staff could provide advice of treating minor 

ailments such as viral infections, mild skin conditions, minor cuts, aches 

and pains, and allergies etc. Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 161    Skipped: 18 

P
age 135



Q24: Do you use a dispensing appliance contractor (which isn't a pharmacy) for 

items such as continence products or wound dressings?  
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 162    Skipped: 17 

P
age 136



Q25: Do you use a distance selling pharmacy where you have ordered 

medicines/appliances over the internet, by mail order or by telephone?  
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 162    Skipped: 17 

P
age 137



Q26: My gender is: Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 161    Skipped: 18 

P
age 138



Q27: Do you identify with the gender you were assigned at birth? (e.g. 

Male or Female) Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 161    Skipped: 18 

P
age 139



Q28: My age is: Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 162    Skipped: 17 

P
age 140



Q29: I would describe my ethnic origin as: Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 141



Q29: I would describe my ethnic origin as: Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 159    Skipped: 20 

P
age 142



Q30: Do you consider yourself to be disabled? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 161    Skipped: 18 

P
age 143



Q31: I would describe my sexuality as: Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 156    Skipped: 23 

P
age 144



Q32: Please tell us your faith or religion. Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 154    Skipped: 25 

P
age 145



Q33: What is your marital status? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 152    Skipped: 27 

P
age 146



Q34: Which of the following best describes your working situation?  
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 162    Skipped: 17 

P
age 147



Powered by 

Rochdale Pharmaceutical 

Services Pharmacy Survey 2017 
Wednesday, July 19, 2017 

Appendix Four 

P
age 148



32 
Total Responses 

Complete Responses: 19 

Q1 has been removed as this asked which 

council area they were in and Q2 has been 

removed as this asked for their unique identifier 

code. 

P
age 149



Q3: Which of these advanced services do you CURRENTLY provide? 

Answered: 25    Skipped: 7 

P
age 150



Q4: Does the pharmacy dispense appliances?  
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 24    Skipped: 8 

P
age 151



Q5: Which of these locally commissioned services do you CURRENTLY 

provide? 

Answered: 25    Skipped: 7 

P
age 152



Q6: Which services have you identified a need for in your local 

community through customer feedback? 

Answered: 24    Skipped: 8 

P
age 153



Q6: Which services have you identified a need for in your local 

community through customer feedback? 

Answered: 24    Skipped: 8 

P
age 154



Q7: What is your Healthy Living Pharmacies (HLP) status? 

Answered: 25    Skipped: 7 

P
age 155



Q8: Can customers legally park within 50 metres of the Pharmacy? 
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 23    Skipped: 9 

P
age 156



Q9: Can customers with a disability park within 10 metres of your 

Pharmacy? (with a ‘blue badge’) Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 23    Skipped: 9 

P
age 157



Q10: Is there a bus stop within walking distance of the Pharmacy?Please 

tick one box only. 

Answered: 23    Skipped: 9 

P
age 158



Q11: If yes, how long does the walk take?  
(Please tick one box only) 

Answered: 23    Skipped: 9 

P
age 159



Q12: Is the entrance to the pharmacy suitable for wheelchair access 

unaided? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 23    Skipped: 9 

P
age 160



Q13: Are all areas of the pharmacy floor accessible by wheelchair?  
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 22    Skipped: 10 

P
age 161



Q14: Do you have other facilities in the pharmacy aimed at helping people 

with disabilities access your services? Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 21    Skipped: 11 

P
age 162



Q15: Consultation Areas 

Answered: 20    Skipped: 12 

P
age 163



Q15: Consultation Areas 

Answered: 20    Skipped: 12 

P
age 164



Q16: Information Technology 

Answered: 21    Skipped: 11 

P
age 165



Q16: Information Technology 

Answered: 21    Skipped: 11 

P
age 166



Q17: Does the pharmacy normally have two pharmacists on duty at any 

time during the week? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 21    Skipped: 11 

P
age 167



Q18: If yes, then for how many hours per week are two pharmacists 

working at the same time? Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 11    Skipped: 21 

P
age 168



Q19: If you have a second pharmacist, is the pharmacist there for a 

specific reason? Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 7    Skipped: 25 

P
age 169



Q21: Do any of your regular pharmacists speak a foreign language?  
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 21    Skipped: 11 

P
age 170



Q22: If yes, which languages are spoken?  
Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 15    Skipped: 17 

P
age 171



Q22: If yes, which languages are spoken?  
Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 15    Skipped: 17 

P
age 172



Q23: Do any of your regular pharmacy staff speak a foreign language?      
Please tick one box only. 

Answered: 21    Skipped: 11 

P
age 173



Q24: If yes, which languages are spoken?  
Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 12    Skipped: 20 

P
age 174



Q24: If yes, which languages are spoken?  
Please tick as many answers as appropriate. 

Answered: 12    Skipped: 20 

P
age 175



Q25: All pharmacies are required to conduct an annual community pharmacy patient questionnaire (CPPQ, formerly 

referred to as the Patient Satisfaction Questionnaire). Using the results from your most recent CPPQ please identify the 

most frequent requests from patients as either improvements or additions to services. 

Answered: 15    Skipped: 17 

P
age 176



Appendix Five – Locally Commissioned Services & Enhanced Services 

Council SS Stop Smoking 

EHC Emergency Hormonal Contraception 

CS&T Chlamydia Screening & Treatment  

CCG MAS Minor Ailment Scheme 

MECS Minor Eye Condition Service 

NHS Engalnd IT Inhaler Technique – enhanced service 

 

Township Ward ID Trading Name Postcode Council CCG NHS England 

SS EHC CS&T MAS MECS IT 

Heywood North Heywood 8 Boots the Chemist OL10 1HX Y Y Y Y Y  

12 Cohens Chemist OL10 4NL    Y Y  

16 Cohens Chemist OL10 4NH    Y Y  

23 Internet Pharmacy OL10 2AH Y Y  Y Y  

West Heywood 22 Internet Pharmacy OL10 4RG Y   Y Y  

30 Lloydspharmacy OL10 3RY Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Middleton East Middleton 51 Your Local Boots Pharmacy M24  2AU    Y   

North Middleton 5 Boarshaw Pharmacy M24 2WQ Y Y     

10 Carlow's Chemist M24 6DN Y Y Y Y Y  

34 Lloydspharmacy M24 2PU Y Y Y Y Y Y 

South Middleton 7 Boots the Chemist M24 4EL Y Y Y  Y  

26 Lloydspharmacy M24 1LW Y Y Y Y Y Y 

46 Tesco Instore Pharmacy M24 1HB Y Y     

50 Your Local Boots Pharmacy M24  4DZ    Y Y  

West Middleton 9 Bowness Pharmacy M24 4WT Y Y Y Y   

39 Rowlands Pharmacy M24 5RA Y  Y Y Y  

42 Rowlands Pharmacy M24 5QJ   Y Y Y  

 

  

P
age 177



 

Township Ward ID Trading Name Postcode Council CCG NHS England 

SS EHC CS&T MAS MECS IT 

Rochdale  Balderstone and 
Kirkholt 

36 Wellfield Pharmacy OL11 1AD Y Y Y Y   

44 Strand Pharmacy OL11 2JG Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Bamford 33 Lloydspharmacy OL11 4DQ Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Castleton 18 Well OL11 3HY  Y Y Y Y  

19 Well OL11 2SP  Y Y Y Y  

Central Rochdale 2 Ace Chemist Direct OL16 2LJ       

3 Asda Pharmacy OL12 6XT Y Y Y Y   

13 Cohens Chemist OL16 2DN Y   Y Y  

28 Lloydspharmacy OL12 9BD Y Y Y Y   

49 Yorkshire Street Pharmacy OL16 2DW Y Y Y Y Y  

Healey 29 Lloydspharmacy OL12 0SN Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Kingsway 4 Belfield Pharmacy OL16 2XN    Y   

21 Internet Pharmacy OL16 2UY Y Y  Y Y  

24 Morrisons Pharmacy OL16 4AT Y Y  Y  Y 

32 Lloydspharmacy OL16 5JG Y Y Y Y Y  

37 Oldham Road Pharmacy OL16 4TF Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Milkstone and 
Deeplish 

6 Boots the Chemist OL16 1EA Y Y Y Y Y  

11 Cohens Chemist OL11 1HR Y Y Y Y Y  

15 Cohens Chemist OL11 1NT Y Y Y Y Y  

25 Rochdale Pharmacy OL16 1DB Y Y Y Y Y  

38 Pearl Pharmacy OL11 1HH Y Y Y Y Y  

45 Superdrug OL16 1EA Y Y Y Y   

Norden 35 Manor Pharmacy OL12 7RB Y Y Y Y Y  

Spotland and 
Falinge 

17 Well OL11 5AQ  Y Y Y Y  

20 Drugmart Pharmacy OL12 6PQ Y Y Y Y   

41 Rowlands Pharmacy OL12 6PQ Y   Y Y  

DAC 

 
Ainsworth Surgical Supplies OL11 2NU       

 

  

P
age 178



Township Ward ID Trading Name Postcode Council CCG NHS England 

SS EHC CS&T MAS MECS IT 

Pennines 
 

Littleborough 
Lakeside 

27 Lloydspharmacy OL15 9AB Y Y Y Y Y Y 

47 Unicare Pharmacy OL15 0DY Y Y Y Y Y  

48 Unicare Pharmacy OL15 0DY       

Milnrow and 
Newhey 

40 Rowlands Pharmacy OL16 4JD Y Y  Y Y  

43 Rowlands Pharmacy OL16 4HZ Y   Y   

Smallbridge and 
Firgrove 

1 4Court Pharmacy OL16 2NT Y Y  Y Y  

14 Cohens Chemist OL12 9SA Y Y Y Y Y  

Wardle and West 
Littleborough  

31 Lloydspharmacy OL15 8DH 
Y Y Y Y Y Y 

 

P
age 179



Appendix Six – Rochdale Pharmacies 

Township Ward ID Trading Name Address  Postcode Contractor Type 

Heywood North Heywood 8 Boots the Chemist 17-21 Market Street OL10 1HX Community - 40 hr 

12 Cohens Chemist 36 / 38 Market Place OL10 4NL Community - 40 hr 

16 Cohens Chemist Longford Street Surgery OL10 4NH Community - 40 hr 

23 Internet Pharmacy 50 Manchester Road OL10 2AH Community - 40 hr 

West Heywood 22 Internet Pharmacy 120 Bury New Road OL10 4RG Community - 40 hr 

30 Lloydspharmacy 7 Argyle Parade OL10 3RY Community - 40 hr 

Middleton East Middleton 51 Your Local Boots Pharmacy 350 Grimshaw Lane M24  2AU Community - 40 hr 

North Middleton 5 Boarshaw Pharmacy 221 Boarshaw Road M24 2WQ Community - 40 hr 

10 Carlow's Chemist 74 Long Street M24 6DN Community - 40 hr 

34 Lloydspharmacy 50 Rochdale Road M24 2PU Community - 40 hr 

South Middleton 7 Boots the Chemist Unit G8, Middleton Shopping Centre M24 4EL Community - 40 hr 

26 Lloydspharmacy 199 Kirkway M24 1LW Community - 40 hr 

46 Tesco Instore Pharmacy Barton Road M24 1HB Community - 40 hr 

50 Your Local Boots Pharmacy 133 Manchester Old Road M24  4DZ Community - 40 hr 

West Middleton 9 Bowness Pharmacy 26 Bowness Road M24 4WT Community - 40 hr 

39 Rowlands Pharmacy 223 Wood Street M24 5RA Community - 40 hr 

42 Rowlands Pharmacy 3a Lakeland Court, Wood Street M24 5QJ Community - 40 hr 

Pennines 
 

Littleborough Lakeside 27 Lloydspharmacy 8 Harehill Road OL15 9AB Community - 40 hr 

47 Unicare Pharmacy 69 Smithybridge Road OL15 0DY Community - 40 hr 

48 Unicare Pharmacy First Floor OL15 0DY Distance selling 

Milnrow and Newhey 40 Rowlands Pharmacy Unit 5, Pennine Precinct OL16 4JD Community - 40 hr 

43 Rowlands Pharmacy Milnrow Health Centre OL16 4HZ Community - 40 hr 

Smallbridge and 
Firgrove 

1 4Court Pharmacy Texaco Heybrook Service Station OL16 2NT Community - 100 hr 

14 Cohens Chemist 11 Stevenson Square OL12 9SA Community - 40 hr 

Wardle and West 
Littleborough  

31 Lloydspharmacy Littleborough Health Centre OL15 8DH Community - 40 hr 

  

P
age 180



Township Ward ID Trading Name Address  Postcode Contractor Type 

Rochdale  Balderstone and 
Kirkholt 

36 Wellfield Pharmacy Wellfield Surgery OL11 1AD Community - 100 hr 

44 Strand Pharmacy 15 The Strand,  OL11 2JG Community - 40 hr 

Bamford 33 Lloydspharmacy 561 Bury Road OL11 4DQ Community - 40 hr 

Castleton 18 Well 4 Elizabeth Street OL11 3HY Community - 40 hr 

19 Well 870 Manchester Road OL11 2SP Community - 40 hr 

Central Rochdale 2 Ace Chemist Direct 245 Entwistle Road OL16 2LJ Distance selling 

3 Asda Pharmacy Asda Superstore OL12 6XT Community - 100 hr 

13 Cohens Chemist 188 Yorkshire Street OL16 2DN Community - 40 hr 

28 Lloydspharmacy 5 - 7 Halifax Road OL12 9BD Community - 40 hr 

49 Yorkshire Street Pharmacy 200 Yorkshire Street OL16 2DW Community - 100 hr 

Healey 29 Lloydspharmacy 462 Whitworth Road OL12 0SN Community - 40 hr 

Kingsway 4 Belfield Pharmacy 134 Belfield Road OL16 2XN Community - 40 hr 

21 Internet Pharmacy The Croft Shifa Health Centre OL16 2UY Community - 40 hr 

24 Morrisons Pharmacy Morrisons Superstore OL16 4AT Community - 40 hr 

32 Lloydspharmacy 293 Oldham Road OL16 5JG Community - 40 hr 

37 Oldham Road Pharmacy 497 Oldham Road OL16 4TF Community - 40 hr 

Milkstone and Deeplish 6 Boots the Chemist 50 Market Way OL16 1EA Community - 40 hr 

11 Cohens Chemist Nye Bevan House OL11 1HR Community - 40 hr 

15 Cohens Chemist 69 Milkstone Road OL11 1NT Community - 40 hr 

25 Rochdale Pharmacy 79 Yorkshire Street OL16 1DB Community - 40 hr 

38 Pearl Pharmacy 41 Tweedale Street OL11 1HH Community - 100 hr 

45 Superdrug 20 - 21 Market Way OL16 1EA Community - 40 hr 

Norden 35 Manor Pharmacy 800 Edenfield Road OL12 7RB Community - 40 hr 

Spotland and Falinge 17 Well 309 - 311 Edenfield Road OL11 5AQ Community - 40 hr 

20 Drugmart Pharmacy 72 Spotland Road OL12 6PQ Community - 100 hr 

41 Rowlands Pharmacy 78 Spotland Road OL12 6PQ Community - 40 hr 

  

 
Ainsworth Surgical Supplies Unit 5 Sherwood Business Park OL11 2NU DAC 

 

P
age 181



Appendix Seven – MURs, NMS, AURs, Stoma and Flu Vaccine providers 2016/17 

Township Ward ID Trading Name MURs NMS AURs Stoma Flu NUMSAS 
December 

2017* 

Heywood North Heywood 8 Boots the Chemist Y Y     

12 Cohens Chemist Y Y   Y  

16 Cohens Chemist Y Y     

23 Internet Pharmacy Y Y     

West Heywood 22 Internet Pharmacy Y Y     

30 Lloydspharmacy Y Y  Y Y  

Middleton East Middleton 51 Your Local Boots Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

North Middleton 5 Boarshaw Pharmacy       

10 Carlow's Chemist Y Y     

34 Lloydspharmacy Y Y   Y  

South Middleton 7 Boots the Chemist Y Y   Y  

26 Lloydspharmacy Y Y Y Y Y  

46 Tesco Instore Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

50 Your Local Boots Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

West Middleton 9 Bowness Pharmacy Y     Y 

39 Rowlands Pharmacy Y Y     

42 Rowlands Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

Pennines 
 

Littleborough Lakeside 27 Lloydspharmacy Y Y  Y Y  

47 Unicare Pharmacy Y Y     

48 Unicare Pharmacy       

Milnrow and Newhey 40 Rowlands Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

43 Rowlands Pharmacy Y Y  Y Y  

Smallbridge and Firgrove 1 4Court Pharmacy Y      

14 Cohens Chemist Y Y     

Wardle and West 
Littleborough  

31 Lloydspharmacy Y Y   Y  

 

P
age 182



Township Ward ID Trading Name MURs NMS AURs Stoma Flu NUMSAS 
December 

2017* 

Rochdale  Balderstone and 
Kirkholt 

36 Wellfield Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

44 Strand Pharmacy Y Y   Y Y 

Bamford 33 Lloydspharmacy Y Y  Y Y  

Castleton 18 Well Y Y   Y  

19 Well Y Y   Y  

Central Rochdale 2 Ace Chemist Direct Y      

3 Asda Pharmacy Y    Y  

13 Cohens Chemist Y Y     

28 Lloydspharmacy Y Y  Y Y  

49 Yorkshire Street Pharmacy Y Y     

Healey 29 Lloydspharmacy Y Y  Y   

Kingsway 4 Belfield Pharmacy       

21 Internet Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

24 Morrisons Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

32 Lloydspharmacy Y Y  Y Y  

37 Oldham Road Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

Milkstone and Deeplish 6 Boots the Chemist Y Y   Y  

11 Cohens Chemist Y Y     

15 Cohens Chemist Y Y     

25 Rochdale Pharmacy Y Y     

38 Pearl Pharmacy Y      

45 Superdrug Y Y   Y  

Norden 35 Manor Pharmacy Y Y     

Spotland and Falinge 17 Well Y Y   Y  

20 Drugmart Pharmacy       

41 Rowlands Pharmacy Y Y   Y  

  

 
Ainsworth Surgical Supplies    Y   

*NUMSAS data added December 2017. Service started August 2017. 

P
age 183



Appendix Eight – Community Pharmacy Opening Hours 
 
 

Township Ward 

No of 
pharmacies 

in ward 

Weekdays Saturdays 

Sundays 

8am 
or 

earlier AM PM 

7pm 
or 

later  

Closed 
for 

lunch 

8am 
or 

earlier AM PM 

7pm 
or 

later  

Closed 
for 

lunch 

Heywood North Heywood 4 0 4 4 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 

West Heywood 2 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Hopwood Hall There are no pharmacies in the Hopwood Hall Ward 

Middleton East Middleton 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

North Middleton  3 0 3 3 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 

South Middleton 4 1 4 4 1 0 1 3 3 1 0 1 

West Middleton 3 0 3 3 0 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 

Hopwood Hall There are no pharmacies in the Hopwood Hall Ward 

Pennines Littleborough Lakeside 3 0 3 3 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 

Milnrow and Newhey 2 0 2 2 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Smallbridge and Firgrove 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 1 

Wardle and West 
Littleborough 

1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rochdale Balderstone and Kirkholt 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 0 1 

Bamford 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Castleton 2 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Central Rochdale 5 2 5 5 2 0 2 2 2 2 0 2 

Healey 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Kingsway 5 0 5 5 1 0 1 3 3 1 0 1 

Milkstone and Deeplish 6 0 6 6 1 1 0 4 4 1 0 2 

Norden 1 0 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Spotland and Falinge 3 1 3 3 1 1 1 3 1 1 0 1 

*There may be some variation in opening and closing times on certain days.  

This table includes distance selling pharmacies but excludes dispensing appliance contractors.  

For full details of pharmacy opening hours please see NHS Choices. 

P
age 184

http://www.nhs.uk/pages/home.aspx


 

   1 

 

 
Appendix Nine 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PNA 60 Day Consultation Plan 
 
Version: 0.1 
 
1st April 2017 
 

Page 185



 

   1 

 
 

Contents 
1. Background and current context ........................................................................................................................................................................ 2 

2. Communications context and scope .................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

3. Key outcomes .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

4.  Key Audiences ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

5.  Consultation engagement .................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

6.  Budget ............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

7.  Evaluation .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

 
  

P
age 186



 

 

 

 1. Background and current context 
 
The Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is a legal document which details services which would be desirable and necessary in a locality based 
on the local health needs and population demographics. 
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred the responsibility for developing and updating the PNAs to the LA Health and Wellbeing Boards 
(HWBs). 
 
The NHS (Pharmaceutical Services and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 set out the legislative basis for developing and updating 
PNAs and can be found at: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made. 
 

2. Communications context and scope 
 
This document details the scope of formal consultation and the proposed methods that will be used to engage different stakeholders and ensure 
patient and public involvement within this PNA.  
 
There is a need for the local authority to understand; 
 

 Local people and their representatives affected by the new service; 

 Existing Pharmacy Services/Community based providers; 

 Patients affected by possible new services in the area; 

 Patient Services and Formal Complaints; and 

 Other key stakeholders 
 

Details of these issues can be gathered by public and pharmacy service provider surveys. The information from these can then be used to inform the 
final PNA document. 
 
Prior to publication of the final document a draft version should be available for interested stakeholders to be able to comment on its content. This is 
called the formal consultation. 

 
The formal consultation programme will commence in October/November 2017 and will run for a period of 60 days. Therefore, the consultation will 
formally close on December 2017. 

 
3. Key outcomes 
 

 To encourage constructive feedback from a variety of stakeholders. 

P
age 187

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


 

 

 

 To ensure a wide range of primary care health professionals provide opinions and views on what is contained within the PNA 
 

4.  Key audiences 
 
The regulations state that: 
 
When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a pharmaceutical needs assessment, each HWB must consult the following about the 
contents of the assessment it is making— 
 

a) any Local Pharmaceutical Committee for its area (including any Local Pharmaceutical Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of 
all or part of the area of one or more other HWBs); . 

b) any Local Medical Committee for its area (including any Local Medical Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of all or part of the 
area of one or more other HWBs); . 

c) any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors list for its area; . 
d) any LPS chemist in its area with whom the NHSCB has made arrangements for the provision of any local pharmaceutical services; . 
e) any Local Healthwatch organisation for its area, and any other patient, consumer or community group in its area which in the opinion of HWB1 

has an interest in the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area; and . 
f) any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in its area; . 
g) the NHSCB (now known as NHS England); and . 
h) any neighbouring HWB. 

 
The consultation must be for a minimum of 60 days. 
 
The following groups of people could be formally consulted on the draft PNA asked to comment on the assessment and the assumptions that it 
makes. A local decision needs to be made whether these groups are going to be contacted. 
 

 General public 

 Patient Participation Groups in primary care 

 Community Pharmacy Contractor Superintendent Offices 

 Local Authority area CCGs 

 Local Authorities employees 

 Neighbouring CCGs 

 Local Voluntary Groups 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 Social services  

 

P
age 188



 

 

 

 
 
5.  Consultation engagement 

 
Although the timescale for the consultation to begin (October/November 2017) and end (December 2017) is a standard date, the period of 
consultation between can be locally agreed based on work load. However you do need to ensure that everyone who participates in the consultation 
has enough time to complete the response forms. 
 
Any paper copies of the response forms can be sent back to Greater Manchester Shared Services (GMSS) who will electronically input the responses 
into the survey. 
 
The advert on homepage of council’s website and the link on other relevant pages need to be done to ensure the consultation begins on time. 
Everything that follows this should be done within the first month to allow time for responses and targeted work where returns have been low.  
 
All the stakeholders listed below who are preceded by a C are in the compulsory list of people who must be consulted on the draft PNA. 
 
You may feel that you do not need to undertake engagement with all the other stakeholders listed below, or that you will do more, which is a decision 
for your local teams to decide on. 
 
When each section has/has not been attempted we need the two last columns completing to say how many people you engaged with for each 
element before this is sent back at the end of the consultation period. 

 

 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 

 General population Advert on homepage of 
council’s website 

Large advert on the carousel with a 
link to the consultation document and 
survey monkey for responses. 

No cost  Comms team at 
LA 

e.g. yes or 
no 

e.g. 2,100 
people  

 General population Links to survey on relevant 
webpages on council’s 
website 

Identify relevant webpages and add a 
couple of sentences about the 
consultation document/survey along 
with a link 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C H&WB Board Health and Wellbeing 
Board secretary 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost LA   

C Neighbouring 
H&WB boards 

Health and Wellbeing 
Board  

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 

No cost LA   

P
age 189



 

 

 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

C NHS 
Commissioning 
Board 
(NHS England) 

Email consultation 
document to GM local area 
team 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost LA   

 General population Face to face surveys at 
local events – could be 
where the LA is already in 
attendance  

Attendance at local events in 
targeted communities and complete 
paper surveys face to face with 
members of the public. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 General population Advert in local newspapers Quarter page, black and white advert 
in local newspaper to direct people to 
the online survey would be advised  

Various 
cost  

Comms team at 
LA 

  

 General population Press release  Short news piece with link to the 
survey. 

No cost council’s press 
office 

  

 General population Electronic Flyers Produce and distribute A5 flyers to 
pharmacies to promote the survey 
and give the online address. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local HOSC Email consultation 
document 

Send out an electronic link to the 
consultation document with a link to 
the online response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local PH 
Committees 

Email consultation 
document  

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C Pharmacy 
contractors 
(including appliance 
and distance selling 
pharmacies) 

Email consultation 
document to pharmacy 
superintendent 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

Printing 
and 
postage 
costs 

Comms team at 
LA 

  

C LPS pharmacy 
contractors 

Email consultation 
document  

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

Printing 
and 
postage 
costs 

Comms team at 
LA 

  

C Local Email consultation Send out an electronic link to the No cost Comms team at   

P
age 190



 

 

 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 
Pharmaceutical 
Committee 

document to LPC secretary electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

LA 

C  Local Medical 
Committee 

Email consultation 
document to LMC secretary 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA  

  

 Local Authority 
Staff 

Council internal 
communications campaign  

Desktop wallpaper and Intranet 
homepage story to encourage staff to 
complete the online survey. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 General population Council social media 
Twitter  
Facebook  

Post regular tweets with a link to the 
survey and submit content for 
Facebook   

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C Healthwatch Email Healthwatch Contact Health Watch to ask for 
support to encourage Link users to 
complete the survey 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C NHS Acute Trusts Send link to head of 
pharmacy 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C NHS Mental Health 
Trusts 

Send link to head of 
pharmacy 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local 
Commissioners 

Patient groups at the local 
CCG 

M&C to contact to ask for support for 
PPI group to complete the survey  

No cost Comms team at 
CCG/LA 

  

 MPs and Local 
councillor’s 

Email MP and Councillor’s Email sent to all MPs and councillors 
to make them aware of the survey 
and give more information about it.  

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local Voluntary, 
Health and 
community Faith 
Groups 

Email to other relevant 
groups and organisations to 
give information about the 
survey and ask for 
participation 

Below is an example of some groups 
this could be sent to:  

 Prison Pharmacy’s 

 Care UK 

 Asylum seekers 

 Schools  

 Colleges  

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

P
age 191



 

 

 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 

 Older People’s Forum 

 Adult Safeguarding 
Board 

 Men’s Action Group 

 Women’s Centre 

 BME Forum 

 Interfaith Network 

 Community Committees 

 Carers Centre 

 MIND 

 Breathe Easy 
 

 

6.  Budget 
 
It is advised that a budget is agreed with Public Health at a local level to be used to promote the consultation and to cover costs for printing out 
response forms, consultation documents and postage of forms back to GMSS if needed. 
 

7.  Evaluation 

 
A consultation report and an evaluation report will be provided by GMSS. The Consultation report will analyse the feedback received and will also be 
used to update the final PNA. The evaluation report will be used to analyse the level of participants and the number of people engaged with. 

 

P
age 192



Appendix Ten 

Map 1 – Rochdale Townships 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 193



Appendix Ten 

 

Map 2 – Public survey responses by Post Code District 

 

  

Page 194



Appendix Ten 

Map 3 – Rochdale Pharmacies by type 

 

  

Page 195



Appendix Ten 

Map 4 – Population density 

 

  

Page 196



Appendix Ten 

Map 5 – IMD 2015 by LSOA 

 

  

Page 197



Appendix Ten 

Map 6 – Location of Pharmacies & GP practices in Rochdale 

 

  

Page 198



Appendix Ten 

Map 7 - Rochdale Pharmacies showing 1 mile travel distance 

 

  

Page 199



Appendix Ten 

Map 8 - Rochdale weekday opening hours 

(Showing core and extended hours) 

 

  

Page 200



Appendix Ten 

Map 9 - Rochdale weekend opening hours 

(Showing Sat a.m. only, all day Saturday and both Saturday and Sunday) 

 

  

Page 201



Appendix Ten 

Map 10 - Weekend provision in Heywood Township 

 

  

Page 202



Appendix Ten 

Map 11 - Weekend provision in Middleton Township 

 

  

Page 203



Appendix Ten 

Map 12 - Weekend provision in Pennines Township 

 

  

Page 204



Appendix Ten 

Map 13 - Weekend provision in Rochdale Township 

 

 

Page 205



Appendix Eleven – Rochdale Borough GP Practices 

 

Neighbourhood Ward ID Practice Name Address  Postcode 

Heywood Hopwood Hall G22 Dr Osborne & Partner Hopwood Medical Centre, 1 - 3 Walton Street OL10 2BS 

North Heywood G11 Longford Street Group Practice Longford Street OL10 4NH 

G33 Birtle View Medical Practice George Street OL10 4PW 

West Heywood G16 Dr Bunting & Partners Argyle Street Medical Centre, 141 Argyle Street OL10 3SD 

G24 Heady Hill Surgery 114 Bury New Road OL10 4RG 

Middleton East Middleton G10 Dr Thomason & Partner Junction Surgery, 346 Grimshaw Lane M24 2AU 

North Middleton G15 Dr Khan & Partners The Rochdale Road Medical Practice, 48a Rochdale Rd M24 2PU 

G32 The Surgery Clough Street M24 2YJ 

South Middleton G4 Dr Tonge & Partners Peterloo Medical Centre, 133 Manchester Old Road M24 4DZ 

G36 Middleton Surgery Unit 1, Arndale Centre M24 4EL 

West Middleton 
 

G12 Dr Maynard & Partners Woodside Medical Centre, Wood Street M24 5QL 

G19 Dr Griffiths & Partners Durnford Medical Centre, 113 Long Street M24 6DL 

G30 The Surgery 109 - 111 Windermere Road M24 5WF 

Pennines Littleborough 
Lakeside 

G26 Dr Datta & Partner The Village Medical Centre, Peel Street OL15 8AQ 

G31 Trinity Medical Centre 22 Winton Street OL15 8AR 

Milnrow and Newhey G1 Dr Gunn & Partner Milnrow Village Practice, 44 - 48 Newhey Road OL16 4JD 

G21 Dr Rothery & Partners Stonefield Street Surgery, Stonefield Street OL16 4JQ 

Wardle and West 
Littleborough 

G18 Dr Howson & Partners Littleborough Health Centre, Featherstall Road OL15 8HF 

G20 Pennine Surgery Featherstall Road OL15 8HF 

 

  

P
age 206



Neighbourhood Ward ID Practice Name Address  Postcode 

Rochdale 
 

Balderstone and 
Kirkholt 
 

G7 Dr Caldwell & Partners Wellfield Surgery, 291 Oldham Road OL11 1AD 

G25 Dr Swamy & Partner The Surgery, The Strand OL11 2JG 

G35 Kirkholt Medical Practice Queens Drive OL11 2NP 

Castleton G9 Dr Bodner & Partners Castleton Health Centre, 2 Elizabeth Street OL11 3HY 

Central Rochdale 
 

G5 Dr Meagher & Partner The Surgery, 190 Yorkshire Street OL16 2DN 

G8 Dr Forman & Partners Mark Street Surgery, Mark Street OL12 9BE 

G14 Dr Babar & Partners Croft Shifa Health Centre, Belfield Lane OL16 2UP 

Healey G13 Dr Hussain & Partners Healey Surgery, Whitworth Road OL12 0SN 

Kingsway G17 Inspire Medical Centre 2nd Floor, The Croft Shifa Health Centre, Belfield Road OL16 2UY 

G34 The Kingsway Practice Morrisons Supermarket, 285a Kingsway OL16 4AT 

Milkstone and 
Deeplish 
 

G2 Vicar's Drive Surgery (Dr Bhima) Nye Bevan House OL11 1DN 

G27 The Dale Medical Practice Nye Bevan House OL11 1DN 

G28 Dr Hamid Nye Bevan House, 2nd Floor OL11 1DN 

G29 Dr Ghafoor & Partner Nye Bevan House OL11 1DN 

Spotland and Falinge 
 

G3 Dr Verity & Partners Edenfield Road Surgery, Cutgate Shopping Precinct OL11 5AQ 

G6 Ashworth Street Surgery 85 Spotland Road OL12 6RT 

G23 Dawes Family Practice 83 Spotland Road OL12 6RX 

 

P
age 207



Appendix Twelve – One mile boundary pharmacies  
Map index Pharmacy Name Address Town Postcode 

Bur1 Asda Pharmacy Pilsworth Road Bury BL9 8RS 

Bur10 Cohens Chemist 135 Croft Lane Bury BL9 8QA 

Bur13 Fishpool Pharmacy 14 Parkhills Road Bury BL9 9AX 

Bur16 Huntley Mount Pharmacy Huntley Mount Road Bury BL9 6JA 

Bur17 IQ Pharmacy 14 Princess Parade Bury BL9 0QL 

Bur20 Lloydspharmacy Townside PCC, 2 Knowsley Place Bury BL9 0SN 

Bur21 Lloydspharmacy Moorgate PCC, 22 Derby Way Bury BL9 0NJ 

Bur26 Medical Specialists Pharmacy Westminster House, 49 Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0ST 

Bur28 Netchem Pharmacy 14 Heywood Street Bury BL9 7EA 

Bur3 Asda Pharmacy Spring Street Bury BL9 0RN 

Bur30 Pimhole Pharmacy 185 Rochdale Road Bury BL9 7BB 

Bur37 Strachan's Chemist Chesham Precinct, 166a Walmersley Road Bury BL9 6LL 

Bur38 Tesco In-Store Pharmacy Peel Way Bury BL9 5BY 

Bur6 Boots the Chemist 32-36 The Mall Bury BL9 0QQ 

Bur7 Boots the Chemist Unit 1 Woodfields Retail Park, Peel Way Bury BL9 5BY 

Bur8 Bury Healthcare Pharmacy 46 Walmersley Road Bury BL9 6DP 

Lanc1 Nuttall AJ Ltd 603 Market Street Whitworth OL12 8QS 

Man109 Tesco In-Store Pharmacy Victoria Avenue East Manchester M9 6HP 

Man120 Well 183 - 187 Victoria Avenue Manchester M9 0RB 

Man125 Whitemoss Pharmacy 247 Charlestown Road Manchester M9 7BD 

Man127 Wilkinson Pharmacy 384 Hollinwood Avenue Manchester M40 0JD 

Man20 Boots the Chemist 65 Victoria Avenue Manchester M9 0RD 

Man36 Cohens Chemist 55 Victoria Avenue Manchester M9 6RA 

Man55 Higher Crumpsall Pharmacy 248 Middleton Road Manchester M8 4WA 

Man84 Mediward Ltd 227 Hill Lane Manchester M9 6RG 

Man9 Blackley Village Pharmacy Unit 5, 73 Old Market Street Manchester M9 8DX 

Man99 Lloydspharmacy Sainsbury’s Supermarket,170 Heaton Park Road West Manchester M9 0QS 

Old11 Cathedral Pharmacy 98 Cathedral Road Oldham OL9 0RG 

Old20 Lifestyle Pharmacy 160 Trent Road High Crompton Oldham OL2 7QR 

Old59 yourdoctorschemist Independent House, Unit 8, Gateway Crescent Oldham OL9 9XB 

Old6 Boots Central Retail , Elk Mill Centre Retail Park, Oldham OL2 5HX 

These pharmacies can be found in Maps NN,NN etc 

P
age 208



APPENDIX 13 - ANALYSIS OF PNA CONSULTATION 

The formal consultation period of this Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) ran from 3rd October 2017 until 1st December 2017. 
The draft PNA and consultation response form were issued to all of the stakeholders listed in Appendix 12. The documents were 
posted on the intranet and internet. 

 The number of responses received totalled eight. 

 Of these all eight thought that the explanation of the PNA was sufficient. 

 All eight thought that the PNA provided an adequate assessment of pharmaceutical services in the Rochdale area. 

 All eight thought that the PNA provided a satisfactory overview of the current and future pharmaceutical needs of the 
Rochdale population. 

 All eight thought that current pharmacy provision and services in Rochdale is adequate. 

 All eight agreed with the conclusion of the PNA. 

Two responders made comments that needed addressing and these are detailed in the table below. 

Responder 
Number 

Category of 
response 

Section of 
PNA 

Actual response Comment from PNA 
stakeholder group 

Decision 
of group 
of amend 

Date 
amendment 
made 

1 No comment   Question 1 to 5 – Yes response.    

1 Correction Page 4, 
1.1, 
paragraph 
4 

remove "if there is a need for a new 
pharmacy in the proposed location" 
and replace with "if the application 
meets the regulatory criteria for 
approval".  

Corrected Yes  07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 8, 
2.1, 
paragraph 
beginning 

"Such decisions are appealable ..." 
remove reference to "NHS 
Litigation Authority" and replace 
with "NHS Resolution" as the 
organisation was renamed on 1st 
April 2017. 

Updated Yes 07/12/2017 

  

P
age 209



1 Correction Page 12, 
3.1, under 
the 
heading 
"Stage 4" 

remove repetition of "Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee" and 
"Local Medical Committee" in bullet 
points. 

Corrected Yes  07/12/2017 

1 Clarification Page 16, 
3.4.2, final 
paragraph 
on this 
page 
starting 
with 

"21.2% of respondents ...". Include 
final line stating "Pharmacies are 
required to keep their NHS Choices 
web profiles updated, and this is a 
good source of information." 

It is not a requirement for 
pharmacies to update their 
profile on NHS Choices, but 
they are incentivised to do so 
through the Quality Payments 
scheme mentioned in 3.6.1. 

No 07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 18, 
3.5.2, 
Inhaler 
Technique 
Service - 

number of pharmacies 
commissioned is 51. 

Updated Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 19, 
3.5.4, the 
first bullet 
point 
states 

"the public can park legally within 
50 metres of all pharmacies of 23 
pharmacies". Please amend to 
show which is correct - all, or 23.   

Corrected to ‘The public can 
park legally within 50 meters 
of all pharmacies that 
responded to the survey (23). 

Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 21, 
first bullet 
point at 
top of 
page - 

NHS Urgent Medicine Supply 
Advanced Service (NUMSAS) has 
been extended until 30 September 
2018. 

Updated Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 21, 
third 
paragraph 
from top of 
page, 

update to say "The inhaler 
technique service has undergone a 
review and was relaunched in 
August 2017". 

Updated Yes 07/12/2017 

P
age 210



1 Correction Page 24, 
3.6.6, 

remove reference to "Oldham" and 
replace with "Rochdale". 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 32, 
4.6, 

bullet point "Religion", change 
wording from "including a lack of 
religion" to "including no religion". 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 40, 
4.6.8, First 
line, 

the word "on" is missing between 
"based" and "Rochdale's". 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction  Page 46, 
first bullet 
point, 

typo "bothe" should read "both". Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 54, 
6.1, First 
paragraph 
is incorrect 

- there is one DAC in the Rochdale 
area (currently states "no DACs"). 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 58, 
6.1.3, First 
paragraph 

typo "ac-cess" amend to "access".  

 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 63, 
6.1.7, final 
paragraph 

typo "his" amend to "this". Already corrected N/A 07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 65, 
6.1.10, 

same as comment for Page 21 
(inhaler technique service has been 
reviewed and was relaunched in 
August 2017). 

 

Updated Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 65, 
6.2, First 
paragraph, 

replace "Richmond" with 
"Rochdale". 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

P
age 211



1 Amendment Page 71, 
7.2.2, 
Second 
paragraph, 

suggested reword to "At weekends, 
one pharmacy is open all day 
Saturday and none open on 
Sunday. The population of this 
Township may have to travel 
further to access pharmaceutical 
services especially on a Sunday. 
There have been no reported 
complaints about accessing 
pharmaceutical services in this 
area during the weekend however, 
and access is therefore considered 
satisfactory". 

Amended Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 78, 
8.1, 

"ES8" amend to "ES7".  Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 80, 
8.2, final 
bullet 
point, 

replace "31st March 2018" with 
"30th September 2018" as service 
has been extended. 

Updated  07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 81, 
8.3, first 
line 

insert "and" between "services" and 
"these".  

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Update Page 81, 
8.3.1, 

Replace first line with" This 
enhanced service has been 
reviewed and was relaunched in 
August 2017". 

Updated Yes 07/12/2017 

1 Correction Page 85, 
9, 

replace "Richmond" with 
"Rochdale". 

Corrected Yes 07/12/2017 

2 No comment  Yes response for Q1 to Q5   07/12/2017 

3 No comment  Yes response for Q1 to Q5   07/12/2017 

P
age 212



4 No comment  Yes response for Q1 to Q5   07/12/2017 

5 No comment  Yes response for Q1 to Q5   07/12/2017 

6 No comment  Yes response for Q1 to Q5   07/12/2017 

7 No comment  Yes response for Q1 to Q5   07/12/2017 

8 Email submission   Agreed with the conclusion of PNA   15/12/2017 

8 Correction  Corrected Advanced and locally 
commissioned service information 
with regard to their pharmacies. 

Corrected Yes 15/12/2017 

 

P
age 213



Report to Health and Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting 27th March 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Health & Wellbeing
Report Author  Linda Newsham, Matron 

Infection Prevention and 
Control/Health Protection 
Wendy Meston, 
Consultant In Public 
Health 

Public/Private Document Public

Health Protection 

Executive Summary

1
.

1.1 To receive a report from the Rochdale Borough Health Protection Working 
Group on working arrangements, performance and local action.

1.2 Health protection seeks to prevent or reduce harm caused by communicable 
and infectious diseases, to ensure effective infection prevention and control, 
minimise the health impact from environmental, chemical, radiation hazards and 
extreme weather events. The Board will also wish to ensure excellent screening 
and immunisation programmes to prevent or detect disease and ensure that the 
public’s health is protected in the event of an emergency situation.

1.3 The Board can be assured that major programmes such as the national 
immunisation and screening programmes, the provision of health services to 
diagnose and treat infectious diseases are in place alongside a robust 
partnership approach to planning, surveillance and response to incidents and 
outbreaks.

1.4 Local authorities (and their Statutory Director of Public Health acting on their 
behalf) have a critical role in protecting the health of their population, both in 
terms of helping to prevent threats arising and in ensuring appropriate responses 
when things go wrong. Across the partnership appropriate specialist health 
protection skills are available to carry out these functions. HMR CCG and local 
NHS organisations have responsibilities for health protection and emergency 
planning. All are supported by Public Health England at a local, regional and 
national level. The link below links to the public health outcomes for health 
protection. This report focuses on updating the board on current working 
arrangements across the system and highlights some examples of work from 
2017. 

Page 214

Agenda Item 5



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E0800000
5

Recommendation
2.1 To note the Health Protection update for 2017
2.2 To delegate authority to the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing to 
amend the Health Protection Group’s working arrangements and performance 
targets and to authorise local action

Reason for Recommendation

3. To outline action taken to protect the health of residents in 2017 and to update 
and assure the Health and Wellbeing Board of local health protection 
arrangements and activity for 2017

Key Points for Consideration
4.1 Current Rochdale Borough  arrangements for Health Protection 

There is an active Greater Manchester (GM) Health protection work programme 
that deals with a wide range of issues that supports GM and local responses on 
health protection. At a local level Rochdale Borough has an established Health 
Protection Working group which provides a mechanism for warning and informing 
on local health protection issues within the Borough. The group is chaired by the 
Consultant in Public Health and has membership from Public Health England, 
Infection Prevention and Control Matron and TB nurse, Pennine Acute Trust, NHS 
England, RBC Public Protection lead, AGMA Resilience service, Heywood 
Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG). Local 
arrangements work well and incidents and outbreaks during 2017 have 
demonstrated the strength of the working arrangements across agencies and 
services.

4.2 North East Sector Health Economy Resilience Group (HERG) 

This is a planning group for the NE Sector and covers Primary, Community and 
Mental Health Services across four geographical boundaries of HMR, Bury, and 
Oldham. The HERG provides a forum for all health and social care partners in the 
maintenance of Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response (EPRR), and 
also supports the Council response function. The NE Sector HERG also has the 
function to provide support to the response capability in the event of an on-going 
emergency or major incident (including outbreak response) within or affecting the 
NE sector health economy. The NE Sector HERG is a standing working sub-group 
to the Greater Manchester Local Health Resilience Partnership.

4.3 Health Protection Service Updates 2017

Infection Prevention and Control (IPC)

Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) commissions a community health protection and 
infection prevention and control (IPC) function as part of their overall duty to protect 

Page 215

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E08000005
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E08000005
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E08000005


population health under the Health and Social Care Act 2012. This service has been 
commissioned from Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust since November 2016. The 
service consists of a full time Matron, a Clinical Nurse Specialist 2 days per week and 
admin support. The service is based at Rochdale Infirmary and covers the whole of the 
Borough. A robust system operates locally which continues to promote the highest 
standards of IPC across a range of community settings with a focus on the nursing and 
residential care home sector. Quality and safety are scrutinised and action plans 
developed following detailed audits. This has a direct impact on antimicrobial resistance 
and also resilience in terms of care homes being able to deal with outbreaks of a 
communicable disease, for example, gastroenteritis or flu like illness. 
The team have been involved in working proactively to plan and implement the local flu 
action plan with the CCG and NHSE so that flu vaccination programmes have good 
uptake and support is provided across agencies to manage flu like illness in the 
community and support outbreak management.
The team also supports independent primary care providers across the borough, 
specifically GP services and some services commissioned by Public Health. A small 
number of practices have engaged with the Infection Prevention Team and audits have 
been carried out on request to assist with CQC requirements. A link practitioner network 
is in place to bring services together and address issues such as training and audit. The 
aim of this network is to promote integrated working across all healthcare providers and 
provide a platform to share best practice and promote quality. Support to the CCG on 
Healthcare Associated Infections (HCAIs) is in place and is reported through the HMR 
CCG Quality and Safety Committee.

The team has also recently worked closely with PHE and local Authority colleagues in a 
local response to the national outbreak of measles by promoting Measles awareness and 
MMR immunisation to at risk groups and across the population.
            Care Home – Infection Control and Prevention Audit 

A process of auditing 45 Care Homes in HMR commenced in 2016 using the Health & 
Social Care Act (2015) 10 points in the Code of Practice. The process has identified a 
number of common issues. These audits are shared with the CCG Quality team, Adult 
Social care commissioners and the CQC. The audit was used as a teaching session to 
empower staff to undertake their own audits. The care home was given written guidance 
about returning the action plan following receipt of the completed audit within one week 
of the audit date. These plans are reviewed.
Main support provided has included advice and support with a wide range of issues 
including; advice on appropriate sluicing facilities in both residential and nursing homes. 
Good provision of hand washing facilities for staff.  Formal risk assessments for staff for 
potential exposure to body fluids and blood borne virus and Hepatitis vaccinations. 
Advice that in the event of a known infection it is required to use specific agents such as 
a chlorine releasing agent or sporicidal. Advice on mops and cleaning trolleys and 
training for cleaning staff with a focus on Infection Control. Cleaning standards including 
commodes, underneath bath chairs, communal wheelchairs and other shared equipment. 
Advice on flooring, cushions for seating in communal areas, tables and chairs in the 
dining areas, mattresses, fall mats, medicine pots and pressure cushions The 
management of sharps, medication fridges and advice on outbreak management and 
resilience planning
In the year January to December 2017 the team has dealt with 18 outbreaks of   
gastrointestinal infections. This is a significant reduction compared with 17 outbreaks in 3 
months the previous year. Through timely reporting and action the duration of these 

Page 216



outbreaks has also significantly reduced. The care homes are now much more aware of 
their role and responsibilities in controlling infection, through the audits and regular 
contact with the infection control team through the CCG led Caring Together Forum.
The team have worked closely with Social care commissioners, CCG Colleagues and 
CQC on several occasions when specific issues have occurred within care home 
settings. 

The team have received in excess of 250 enquiries via telephone, email and other media 
during the last year. These cover a variety of issues including vaccination queries, Health 
care associated infections, communicable diseases and other health protection related 
issues.

Public Health England – Health Protection
Public Health England provide a 24 hour response for specialist health protection advice 
and action via an in hours duty desk and an out of hours response. Dr Matt Pegorie 
(Consultant in Health Protection, PHE NW) is the named link for Rochdale Borough but 
Staff are deployed within the Borough depending on the issue and operational 
arrangements in the Unit. 

 During the year of 2017 the service has dealt with a number of local sporadic cases of 
notifiable Infectious diseases and a range of incidents, clusters and outbreaks. Incidents, 
clusters and outbreaks reported to PHE included; mixed outbreak of gastrointestinal 
infection and respiratory illness, outbreaks of norovirus, a case of Legionnaires’ Disease, 
Flu A outbreaks in care homes and 18 outbreaks of gastrointestinal infection in care 
homes. 

When required incident or outbreak meetings are called and relevant agencies join what 
are usually teleconferences where we agree actions which are then monitored until all 
agree to stand down. The working arrangements across PHE, the council and the CCG 
continue to work very well.

 Public Protection
The Council Environmental Health and Trading Standards functions are delivered by the 
Public Protection Service managed by the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing. 
Headline health protection issues during the calendar year of 2017 include:

Food Safety;
The Borough currently has 1610 food premises. Last year (2016/17) the Service
Conducted 1735 interventions, cleared the backlog of inspections and 100% of 
inspections due were completed. 1016 enforcement actions were completed and 
compliance was increased to 91% of food business being broadly complaint. The Service 
continues to receive an increasing number of complaints about food and food 
businesses. (This is in line with a national increase) Last year the Service dealt with 563 
complaints (up 64% from the previous year). This year the Service plans to continue to 
deliver a range of interventions including programmed inspections, reactive responses 
dealing with complaints / intelligence, a sampling programme, enforcement actions. 

 Contaminated Land;
The Service continued in 2017 to respond to residents’ concerns about the Former 
Turner Brothers Asbestos site. The council commissioned air monitoring around the 

   

Page 217



perimeter of the site and the final report was received and made public in September 
2017.  
Monthly monitoring took place from August 2015 to March 2017 (inclusive) and was done 
in two phases. The first phase established the suitability of the monitoring locations and 
collected data to inform the monitoring strategy for the main survey.
The full report is available on the Council’s website 
 
Air Quality;
The 10 Greater Manchester Authorities and the Combined Authority are responsible for 
air quality within the conurbation and continue to work in collaboration to improve air 
quality.

The revised Air Quality Management Area declared in June 2016 remains valid and this 
is published via the Great Air Manchester website. A multi-agency local air quality 
meeting was held in 2017 to review local action. The Service submitted data regarding 
pollution sources within the Borough to the Enigma database.

Following residents’ concerns about the potential health impact of fumes and smells from 
a factory, the Council commissioned specialist contractors to undertake some air 
sampling. The final report was received by the Council and shared with residents in June 
2017.In 2017 the Service responded to 216 complaints of burning waste materials. two 
abatement notices and 1 notice under the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 
were served.

           Health and Safety at Work;
The Service received a significant number of workplace accident reports last year 
including 122 RIDDOR reportable major injuries, including 5 work related deaths in the 
last 12 months. Proactive work has been undertaken to raise awareness of the risk of 
falls on stairs and escalators.  Proactive work has been also been undertaken to raise 
awareness of the risk of carbon monoxide with visits and advice being targeted at 
premises with vulnerable client groups. 

The Service continues to operate the hygiene rating scheme for tattooists within the 
Borough. The rating provides consumers with information to enable them to make 
informed decisions when 
having tattoos to reduce the risk of infection.

           Product Safety and illegal and illicit goods
The Service continues to deal with complaints about products that fail to meet safety 
standards. The Services continue to work collaboratively with UK Border Force and 
premises within the Borough who import products from outside the EU are being targeted 
and visited to ensure compliance with EU / UK safety standards.The Service continues to 
try to disrupt the sale of counterfeit and illicit products by seizing products that we come 
across.

Noise Prevention 
The Service tries to manage the noise climate within the Borough and acts proactively to 
protect existing properties and new developments. The Service responded in relation to 
noise to 186 planning applications and 159 premises licence applications. The service 
investigates complaints of statutory nuisance and tries to resolve matters informally. As a 
last resort enforcement action is taken. In 2017 the Service responded to 792 complaints 

Page 218



of domestic noise and successfully resolved 638 cases (81%). In 2017 the Service 
responded to 138 complaints of commercial or industrial noise and successfully resolved 
113 cases (82%).  

 Screening 

HMR achieves good uptake in the 0-5 years routine immunisation programme. 
Immunisation and Screening is commissioned by NHS England supported by Public 
Health England. Locally the Council, CCG and partners promote and support the uptake 
of programmes. The GM screening and immunisation team have a programme of 
targeted practice visits with the aim of addressing practice level performance issues and 
reducing variation.

Breast screening 50-70 years

           The coverage of the screening programme is the proportion of resident 
eligible
           women who have had a mammogram with a recorded result at least once in 
the
           previous 3 years. The target is 70% or over. In 2016/17 we dipped below 
this again
           after good progress in 2015/16

 Breast screening in HMR is delivered by the Bolton Breast Screening 
Programme. 
 The programme is keen to address barriers to screening in groups where 
access and uptake is low. The programme works in partnership with the local 
organisations in delivering initiatives to improve uptake in areas of deprivation. 
 The team has a health promotion radiographer who is willing to support 
education events. 
 Screening and Immunisation Coordinators are undertaking GP practice 
visits in HMR and it is hoped that these will help improve uptake. 
 As part of the Cancer Vanguard work, the GM Health and Social Care 
Partnership (GM HSCP) commissioned work by the Behavioural Insights Team. 
The pilot consists of a change in the wording in the programme invitation letters. 
This trial commenced across GM in November 2016. The letters will be in the field 
until August 2018, when a formal impact evaluation will be undertaken.

Bowel Cancer Screening Programme 60-74 years:

Minimum standard of 52%, aspirational standard of 55%.
Bowel Cancer Screening Programme (BCSP) uptake in HMR in 2015/16 was
52.1% which increased to 57.1 % in 2016/17.

 This programme is run by the Pennine Bowel Cancer Screening 
Programme 
 A dedicated Health Improvement Team has been commissioned by GM 

                      
 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
HMR 70.8 67.6 71.8 68.7

Page 219



HSCP to raise awareness of BCSP and increase uptake across GM   
 The lowest uptake surgeries in HMR have been identified and work is in 
progress with CCG /GP practices to improve uptake 
 The team will address health inequalities around the BCSP and support GP 
practices to look at improving uptake by accessing data, using evidence based 
letters and training for GP Teams. For more information see 
www.gmmovement.co.uk

 Cervical Screening Programme

Coverage is the percentage of eligible women (25 – 64 years old) who have a 
recorded adequate test result within the last 5 years.  The performance target is 
80% and over. 
 HMR achieved 75.8% in 2015/16 which dropped to 72.9 in 2016/17
 This reflects national and local trend which has been occurring for several 
years. This was a decrease in coverage from the previous reporting period
 All CCG’s in Greater Manchester (GM) saw a decrease in coverage up to 
March 2017

 

Bolto
n PCT

Bury 
PCT

HEYWOOD, 

MIDDLE
TON AND 

ROCHDALE
 PCT

Man
ch

este
r P

CT

Oldham
 PCT

Sa
lfo

rd PCT

Sto
ckp

ort 
PCT

Tam
esid

e &
 Glosso

p 

PCTTraf
ford PCT

Ash
ton, L

eigh
 an

d 

Wiga
n PCT

GM Ave
rag

e 

North
 W

est 
Ave

rag
e 

60.0%
65.0%
70.0%
75.0%
80.0%
85.0%

Coverage 25 - 64 (2013 - 14)
Coverage 25 - 64 (2014 - 15)
Coverage 25 - 64 (2015 - 16)
Coverage 25 - 64 (2016 - 17)

 Diabetic Eye Screening (DESP)

Uptake within the HMR CCG area for 15/16 was 80.2% in 2015/16 and 79.8% in 
2016/17
 The uptake for the NE DESP programme is 78.8% which is above the 
acceptable level and is a slight increase from 14/15
 The programme is delivered to the registered population of HMR by the NE 
Diabetic Eye Screening programmes hosted by Pennine Acute Trust.
 The NE DESP has seen continual improvement in uptake throughout 15/16 
following the move to 12 screening sites across the programme, service 
improvement plans are addressing health inequalities within the programme and to 
target non-attenders and DNA’s to improve uptake and access.
From April 2017 the acceptable standard is now 75% and the achievable standard 
is now 85%

Abdominal Aorta Screening         

Page 220

http://www.gmmovement.co.uk/


GM ranking: 7th (out of 12 GM CCG’s):
 In HMR for screening year 2015/16 coverage was 77.2%
 This is above the GM average of 75% 
 A total of 37 venues are in use across GM & East Cheshire 5 of which are in 
HMR   

Immunisation

This year has seen the introduction of two new Meningitis immunisation 
programmes. The School based flu vaccine programme for year 1 and 2 pupils has 
also been implemented across Greater Manchester. 

Neonatal Hep B programme
Babies born to mothers infected with hepatitis B are eligible for the Neonatal 
Hepatitis B programme with blood test at 12 months to check for infectivity. 
Data is not reportable due to the small numbers of babies eligible for this 
programme throughout Greater Manchester localities.
0-5 Years vaccinations
Targets are 95% except for MMRx2 and DTaP boosters reported at 5 years which 
are 90%

Heywood, Middleton &Rochdale LA 0-5 year Immunisation uptake 
The published data is in the Public Health Outcomes link above and is for 2015/16. 
For 2016/2017 the quarterly uptake for some of the programmes was as follows;
Dtap/IPV/Hib 12 months ranged 93.5 % to 99%
Hib/MenC 24 months ranged from 93.9% to 95.3%
Men C 12 months ranged from 84.6 to 96.1
MMR 2 years ranged from 94.3 to 96.6%
MMR 5 years ranged from 97.5 to 98.4%

 The locality met or exceeded 6 out of the 12 uptake measurements for the 
routine programme measured at 1, 2 and 5 years for Q4 2016/17.
 Data reconciliation between Child Health and GP records is ongoing 

 School age vaccinations
This is a universal programme. It comprises the HPV immunisation for 12-13 year 
old girls, the Meningitis ACWY and the 3in1 Teenage booster offered to pupils in 
school year 9 or 10.  In HMR this is delivered by the School Nursing Service in 
Pennine Care Foundation Trust.

Page 221



 HPV: 12-13 year old girls
The target for uptake is 90 % for 2 doses
GM ranking year 9 completion of two doses- 7th (out of 10 Local Authority area)
 Rochdale achieved 75.6% for the two dose schedule (year 8) in 2016/2017. 
The national average is 80.8% with the current GM average 87%.
 Rochdale achieved 85% for the two dose schedule (year 9) in 2016/2017. 
The GM average is 82.9% and national average 83.1%.
The programme is delivered as a two dose schedule, with first dose routinely 
administered to girls in school years 8. There can be flexibility in 2nd dose 
administration from between 6-24 months. Rochdale is in line with most Greater 
Manchester (GM) providers and administers the two doses in the same academic 
year. Due to this flexibility, the programme in year 8 cannot be viewed as 
completed and there will be additional catch up sessions offered.
 The Screening and Immunisation team have completed the process of 
meeting with each school immunisation provider to fully ascertain any current 
issues and support providers with action plans to improve coverage. 
 There can be difficulty identifying the true eligible cohort, especially in areas 
where there is an increased transient population.

 Men ACWY: 13-15 year olds
The data is up to 31st August 2016. Academic years 2016/2017 data has not been 
released nationally at this point.
GM ranking : 10th out of 10 Local Authority areas (year 9/10 delivery)
 HMR delivers the vaccine in year 10 and achieved coverage at 64.1% which 
is lower than the GM average of 77.4% and national average of 77.2%. Nationally, 
and within GM coverage is higher when the vaccine is delivered in school year 9
 Year 11 is a temporary catch up which has now ceased.
 GM are in the main utilising a school based programme, with GP also 
commissioned to provide this to the eligible cohorts who were not able to access 
this at school.
As with other adolescent vaccination programmes delivered through schools, we 
are seeing the highest coverage in younger individuals. Achieving high coverage in 
older teenagers is a challenge across vaccine programmes. We are awaiting 
2016/17 data to see if there has been an improvement.

Seasonal Flu programme

This is a targeted programme each winter running from early October to end of 
March with a newly configured vaccine each winter. It is delivered via the patients 
GP (apart from healthcare workers and school children) and via pharmacies (at 
risk and pregnant women only).

2016/17 data
Eligible group HMR GM 

Rank 
GM

Those aged over 65 years 65.4% 11 72.2%
Those aged 6 months – 
under 65 years 

57.3% 2 53.3%

Pregnant women 51% 4 48.1%

Page 222



Aged 2 years 38.5% 5 39.7%
Aged 3 years 45.2% 4 42.3%
Aged 4 years 32.3% 5 32.3%
School year 1 57.7% 5 51.9%
School year 2 54.2% 5 50.2%
School year 3 51.4% 5 47.5%

NB. CCG ranking is out of 12 
• There were approximately 81,454 registered eligible patients: across all 
target groups (this excludes carers and the school programme).  
• 47,951 (58.86%) seasonal influenza vaccinations were recorded and 
administered to GP registered patients across target populations 2016/17.  This 
was an increase of 147 from 2015/16. 
• Approximately 33,503 (41.13%) eligible people registered at a GP practice 
in HMR CCG were not vaccinated in 2016/17 
• There is variation in uptake of the seasonal influenza vaccination in 
practices within HMR CCG across all target populations. 

A local flu group was established between PHE, Council and CCG to improve 
uptake in all groups but with a key focus on over 65 years, children and care staff. 
Once the 2017/18 season has finished there will be a full report detailing the total 
uptake figures and lessons learned. This information will provide the intelligence to 
develop the campaign for the next season. A verbal update on this year’s flu 
programme will be provided at the meeting. Pneumococcal programme for 65 and 
over

There is no national target for pneumococcal vaccine. 
HMR uptake 2016/2017 was 68.1% which is below the GM average uptake of 70% 
and .4% lower than the previous year.

NB: data is based on the number of practices responding to the survey.
Shingles programme

             There are two cohorts’ routine (70 yrs.) and catch up (rolling programme starting at 78 
yrs.).  
             There are No national uptake targets for either cohort.
Data as of August  2017; GM ranking is out of 12 GM CCG’s

Routine GM 
Rank

Catch up GM Rank

HMR 44.7% 2nd 45.8% 2nd 
GM 
Average

39.2% 39.4%

 

Pertussis (whooping cough) vaccination for pregnant women
There is no national target for this programme but an aspirational figure of 60% is 
used as a general guide to benchmark.
 Vaccine coverage in HMR has increased during the reporting period from 
64.1% in April 2016 to 73.8% in March 2017.
 Uptake for this programme is collected automatically on a monthly basis.
 In HMR, the prenatal pertussis programme is delivered by GP practices. 
Across GM, a number of maternity units also offer pertussis immunisation 

Page 223



 Increasing coverage at the end of 2016 may relate to pregnant women 
receiving pertussis vaccination alongside seasonal influenza vaccine 
 In addition, the extended eligibility criteria for the vaccine, available to 
women from 16 weeks of pregnancy since April 2016 (previously available from 28 
weeks), may have also contributed to the increase
The GM screening and immunisation team have provided training for all GM 
maternity providers in an effort to increase uptake in 2017.

HIV Late Diagnosis

In the last report we noted the issue of late diagnosis for HIV as detailed in the 
PHE outcomes framework. Action taken to address this in 2017 has included; a 
workshop and training for for Primary care and sexual health colleagues, action 
and communication work to promote HIV testing, partnership work with George 
House Trust and Black Health Agency,  communication work using the ‘It Starts 
with me’ and HIV testing week

Chlamydia Screening

Work to improve chlamydia screening in 2017 has included establishing a young 
people’s sexual health group for providers, running a providers event, working 
closely with R U Clear to make sure providers have regular updates, Pharmacy 
card pilot to give prompt cards out to 15-24yr olds to prompt them to go online and 
order a R U Clear kit and return it, On site  prompts and updates to targeted 
primary care teams, School Health action plan and a Sexual Health Service

Costs and Budget Summary

5. This work is undertaken within each organisation’s core budgets. A major 
incident, outbreak or emergency can have a significant financial implication 
across organisations

Risk and Policy Implications

There are risks to health from incidents, outbreak and emergencies and 
robust plans are required to mitigate and minimise harm to health and protect 
the population, individual and families. 

6.

Consultation

7. Not required for this overall report. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pests-
pollution-and-food/contaminated-
land/Pages/former-turner-
brothers-asbestos-site.aspx

N/A

Page 224

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pests-pollution-and-food/contaminated-land/Pages/former-turner-brothers-asbestos-site.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pests-pollution-and-food/contaminated-land/Pages/former-turner-brothers-asbestos-site.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pests-pollution-and-food/contaminated-land/Pages/former-turner-brothers-asbestos-site.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pests-pollution-and-food/contaminated-land/Pages/former-turner-brothers-asbestos-site.aspx


For Further Information Contact: linda.newsham@pat.nhs.uk
                            
wendy.meston@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 225

mailto:linda.newsham@pat.nhs.uk
mailto:wendy.meston@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Health and Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting 27th March 2018
Portfolio Sara Rowbotham
Report Author Karen Kenton
Public/Private Document Public

CAMHS Local Transformation Plan

Executive Summary

1. The Rochdale Borough CAMHS Local Transformation Plan (LTP) was 
developed in 2015/16 setting out the borough’s plans to improve and enhance 
the emotional and mental health support for our children and young people.  
Nationally, there is a requirement to refresh the plans on an annual basis.  The 
CAMHS LTP was refreshed and agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in 
March 2017 and it has recently been refreshed for 2018.  Refreshed plans 
must be signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board prior to being published 
by the 31st March 2018.   

Recommendation

2. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to approve the refreshed CAMHS 
LTP for 2018/19.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This is a refreshed version of a plan that has already been approved by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board.  There is also a national requirement for CAMHS 
LTPs to be approved by Health and Wellbeing Boards.  This is monitored by 
the national team.  

Key Points for Consideration

4. The Health and Wellbeing Board is advised that the key priorities within the 
plan have already been approved in previous versions.  Further detail of these 
priorities and progress to date have been included in the refreshed version, 
including priorities that will be undertaken on a Greater Manchester basis.  

Page 226

Agenda Item 8



Costs and Budget Summary

5. The priorities within the CAMHS LTP fall within the CAMHS LTP budget 
allocation, highlighted within the plan. 

Risk and Policy Implications

If the CAMHS LTP is not approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board and 
there is a delay in publishing the refreshed plan, Rochdale may be the only 
borough within the country without a published refreshed plan.  It should be 
noted that across the country other boroughs were required to refresh their 
plans by the 31st October 2017.  Greater Manchester through devolution has 
agreed our boroughs will complete the refresh by the 31st March 2018.  

6.

Consultation

7. The plan and previous versions of it have been developed by the CAMHS 
Transformation Partnership and other key stakeholders within the borough, 
including Young Advisors. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. N/a

For Further Information Contact: Lead Officer, Karen Kenton, Tel:  01706 
925167, karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 227

mailto:karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk


                         

 

The Rochdale Borough
Children and Young People’s Mental Health 
and Emotional Wellbeing Transformation 
Plan

SUPPORTING CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE TO THRIVE IN YEAR 3

Page 228



                         

Rochdale Borough Local Transformation Plan – Document Status

Prepared by:

Owned by:

The Rochdale Borough Emotional Health and Wellbeing Partnership in collaboration 
with NHS England, Health and Justice Team and Specialist Commissioning Team, and 
Rochdale Healthwatch

The Rochdale Borough Emotional Health and Wellbeing Partnership, consisting of:
 NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG
 Rochdale Borough Council, Children’s Social Care, Early Help and Schools, Youth 

Offending and Public Health services
 Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust
 Rochdale and District Mind
 Early Break Drug and Alcohol Services
 Young Advisor

Approved by: Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG
Rochdale Borough Council
Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board
NHS England

Current Version: Version 1.1 as at 16th January 2017.  
Version 2.0 approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 28th March 2017.  
Version 3.0 approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 27th March 2018.

Publication Status: Published 5th January 2016

Refreshed version 2.0 for 2017 - published 30th March 2017
Refreshed version 3.0 for 2018 – published TBC

Available on: HMR CCG Website – https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/your-health/mental-health-
and-wellbeing/camhs-t-plan  
Rochdale Borough Council Website – (link to be inserted)
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Website – (link to be inserted)
Other partnership – TBC

Key Contacts: Karen Kenton, Associate Director of Commissioning (Children), HMR CCG & RBC – 
karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk 

Rachel McDonald, Children’s Commissioning Project Manager – 
rachel.mcdonald2@nhs.net 

Page 229

https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/your-health/mental-health-and-wellbeing/camhs-t-plan
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/your-health/mental-health-and-wellbeing/camhs-t-plan
mailto:karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.mcdonald2@nhs.net


3

The Transformation of Children and Young People’s Emotional and 
Mental Health Services in Rochdale 

In December 2015, we developed and launched our ambitious plan to enhance and improve the mental 
health and emotional wellbeing support for children and young people in Rochdale.  We are happy to 
report that we have already travelled some way to achieving our aims, and our progress is highlighted 
within this refreshed plan.

Our financial commitment to improve children and young people’s mental health and emotional wellbeing 
is evident within this plan.  Our investment in children and young people’s emotional and mental health 
and perinatal infant mental health will rise each year until 2020/21 in accordance with the national 
requirements.  This new investment has made it easier and more convenient for those children and young 
people, and families needing support to access it in a timely manner.  Enabling children and young people, 
as well as parents and carers to self-refer into our new emotional health and wellbeing service, #Thrive, has 
increased the number of children and young people accessing support in the borough, with 654 children 
and young people accessing a first appointment in 2016/17 rising to 1146 in 2017/18 (April to 9th March 
2018).  We are therefore confident that Rochdale will meet the national ambition of increasing the number 
of new children accessing mental health support by 2020/21.

The main focus of the plan during 2018/19 is to continue to:

 Improve access into children and young people’s emotional and mental health services

 Build community resilience and capacity

 Implement the whole system redesign of children’s services in Rochdale to move to the Family 
Services Model 

 Improve Perinatal Infant Mental Health support in the borough.  

Page 230



4

Contents 

1.0 Executive Summary.............................................................................................................................................................6

2.0 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................7

3.0 Purpose of this document ...................................................................................................................................................7

4.0 The mental health needs of children and young people in Rochdale .................................................................................7

5.0 Our vision and plans for mental health services for children and young people in Rochdale ..........................................14

6.0 Greater Manchester Strategic Plans to Improve Children and Young People’s Mental Health  Services .........................21

7.0 Our Progress – Improvements made to Children and Young People’s Mental Health  Services since 2015/16...............24

8.0 Children and young people’s emotional and mental health provision in the Borough ....................................................29

9.0 Current resource and investment in Children and Young People’s mental health services .............................................36

10.0 Performance......................................................................................................................................................................38

11.0 Local Policy and Frameworks ............................................................................................................................................41

12.0 Our co-design approach ....................................................................................................................................................43

13.0 Service Transformation – implementation plan for delivery ............................................................................................46

14.0 Measurable Outcomes ......................................................................................................................................................47

15.0 Supporting Transformation in Rochdale ...........................................................................................................................48

16.0 Timeframe for change.......................................................................................................................................................55

17.0 Appendices........................................................................................................................................................................55

18.0 Glossary of Terms..............................................................................................................................................................55

19.0 Signatures..........................................................................................................................................................................56

Page 231



5

Foreword to the Rochdale Borough Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 
Transformation Plan

We are delighted to be able to present our local Transformation Plan, setting out how we aim to improve 
the emotional and mental health support for our children and young people over the next 5 years.

Our local transformation plan has been developed in response to the government’s policy ‘Future in Mind’ 
and describes how we intend to meet the challenges and opportunities presented to deliver both the 
national and our local vision to achieve true parity of esteem in children and young people’s mental health 
and emotional wellbeing services.

Throughout, we have involved a range of stakeholders in the development and design of our local 
transformation plan, including professionals involved in delivering mental health services for our children 
and young people.  Locally, we are committed to a co-design approach to service delivery and 
improvement and will continue to listen to and involve our children, young people and their families in the 
delivery of this plan. 

We are clear that the local transformation plan is just the starting point in a journey to deliver our vision for 
improved mental health and emotional wellbeing services for our children and young people and our 
priorities may shift over the coming years.  The local transformation plan will therefore evolve over this 
time as more detailed intelligence and insights emerge.

We are excited to begin to deliver the priorities set out in this plan and will be working hard to provide 
timely, high quality services for all children and young people in Rochdale.  This plan demonstrates our 
commitment to addressing the emotional and mental health needs of our children and young people and 
our service enhancements will continue to be developed with their future in mind. 

Sally McIvor, Director of Commissioning & Gail Hopper, Director of Children’s Services
Director of Adult Social Care Rochdale Borough Council
NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG/
Rochdale Borough Council

Page 232



6

1.0 Executive Summary

The emotional health and wellbeing of children is just as important as their physical health. Good mental 
health allows children and young people to develop the resilience to cope with whatever life throws at 
them and grow into well-rounded, healthy adults.  

Timely, high quality and accessible emotional and mental health support is vital to improving outcomes, 
enhancing life chances and enabling our children and young people to reach their true potential, thereby 
reducing the reliance (and cost) on mental health services in later life.

Locally, we believe that Mental Health is ‘everybody’s business’ and the CCG and Rochdale Borough Council 
are committed to working together, with our local services, communities, the third sector, children and 
young people and families/carers to build integrated, safe and accessible services, which meet the needs of 
our children and young people.  This plan highlights how we have worked closely together to review 
services and develop clear priority areas, which are aligned to the national vision to transform child and 
adolescent mental health services outlined in Future in Mind.  NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG 
and Rochdale Borough Council will lead the delivery of this plan in conjunction with our partner 
organisations.

Our Local Transformation Plan for child and adolescent mental health services (CAMHS) outlines how we 
intend to improve the mental health and emotional wellbeing support for our children and young people 
over the course of the coming 5 years.  It is important that we are absolutely transparent in our 
improvement plans and therefore the local transformation plan also describes the services, support and 
resources that are currently available, alongside our pledge to improve them.

The local transformation plan builds on the priority areas outlined in Future in Mind and aligns them to 
local need utilising both existing resources to deliver parity of esteem as well as additional investment to 
deliver our CAMHS transformation.  Ours plans will see an additional CCG recurrent investment in CAMHS 
and Perinatal Infant Mental Health locally of £1,266,000 in 2017/18 rising to £1,995,000 in 2020/21 from 
the 2014/15 baseline.

This local transformation plan is iterative and will continue to be developed over the five-year timeframe in 
accordance with local need and priorities.  Our vision articulated in this plan is to transform emotional and 
mental health services in Rochdale by 2021 by building the resilience of children, young people and their 
families, as well as developing the capacity of trusted adults within the community.  Our aim over the next 
five years is to shift the focus of mental health services to prevention and early intervention, whilst 
maintaining high quality intensive support for those children and young people who need it.  We want our 
services to be centred on delivering the outcomes that are important to our children and young people and 
their families/carers, in order to provide a solid foundation from which they may continuously develop as 
individuals and as a family unit.  

Poor emotional and mental health is directly linked to non-attainment and this local transformation plan is 
an exciting opportunity to truly make a difference to the life chances of our children and young people and 
to stem the need for mental health services in adulthood.

Page 233



7

2.0 Introduction

2.1 The Government published its report ‘Future in mind: Promoting, protecting and improving our 
children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing’ in March 2015.  This report made key 
recommendations to schools, commissioners, and early years’ staff emphasising the need to improve 
services for children and young people.  The key themes emerging from the report which are 
fundamental to creating a system that properly supports the emotional wellbeing and mental health 
of children and young people are:

 Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention
 Improving access to effective support – a system without tiers
 Care for the most vulnerable
 Accountability and transparency
 Developing the workforce

 There are concerns within the report around the coordination of services, particularly as there are 
many different commissioning agencies, with services often fragmented, where there is the risk that 
children and young people may fall through the gaps. It is recommended that services are developed 
with shared ownership, delivering a coordinated seamless provision to achieve the outcomes that 
are important to children and young people and their families. The report also made clear the 
Government’s commitment that mental health services for people of all ages should have parity of 
esteem with physical health services.  

As part of its commitment to achieving parity of esteem, the Government has released additional 
funding allocations to CCGs to develop local child and adolescent mental health service (CAMHS) 
transformation plans to improve the services available locally for our children and young people.  

3.0 Purpose of this document

3.1 This document sets out the local transformation plan for children and young people’s mental health 
and emotional wellbeing services in Rochdale.  It describes the emotional and mental health needs of 
children and young people in the Borough and the resources currently available to meet those needs, 
as well as our future plans to transform mental health services for our children and young people and 
deliver parity of esteem in accordance with national plans.

4.0 The mental health needs of children and young people in Rochdale

4.1 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) - is used to help determine what actions local authorities, 
the local NHS and other partners need to take to meet health and social care needs, and to address 
the wider determinants that impact on health and wellbeing.  Rochdale Borough Health and 
Wellbeing Board made the decision to refresh our JSNA for 2015, to inform a new Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy for 2016-18.  The key findings of our JSNA for 2015 relating to children and young 
people’s mental health within Rochdale are described below.

4.2 The Lifecourse of Children and Young People

Demographics - Rochdale’s population is currently younger than that of Greater Manchester and 
England, however it is expected to see a proportional decrease over the next 20 years. A higher 
proportion of young people are from BME groups and the latest schools’ survey data suggests this is 
increasing. 54.1% of 0-19 year olds live in one of the two most deprived JSNA groups. Levels of child 
poverty in the Borough are also higher than national averages. 

Page 234



8

Mortality - Infant mortality rates have increased in the last two periods and, although childhood 
mortality declined in 2010-12, it remains above the England rate. 

Health Protection - Our performance in health protection is generally good with immunisation rates 
above the England averages in most indicators.
 
Wider Determinants of Health - There are high rates of children in care with rates steadily increasing 
since 2009/10. Our education performance is below that of England and the North West although 
there is a significant correlation within the Borough between deprivation and educational 
attainment. 

Health Improvement - Rates of low birth weight babies increased in 2012 and remained above 
national and regional levels in 2013. The percentage of 3 year olds suffering from tooth decay 
(18.9%) was above the national average of 10.5% (2012/13). 

Health Prevention - Our rates of smoking at the time of delivery are higher than average, whilst our 
rates of breastfeeding initiation are low. Breastfeeding prevalence after 6-8 weeks has however seen 
an increase. 

Health Related Behaviours - Positive trends are seen in the Health Related Behaviour Survey for 
smoking and alcohol, however the challenge of diet and physical activity remains a concern.

4.3 Mental Health and Wellbeing in Children & Young People - Over half of people with a lifetime 
mental health disorder at the age of 26 will have met the diagnostic criteria first by the age of 14. 
The reasons why a child or young person experiences mental health problems are likely to be 
complex. However, certain factors are known to influence the likelihood of someone experiencing 
problems. These include children with learning disabilities, children in care, homelessness, those 
suffering from domestic abuse and deprivation. There are an estimated 12,310 children and young 
people with a mental health problem appropriate to a response from CAMHS in Rochdale. The 
majority of these (7,715) would be appropriate to a Tier 1/Step 2 response.

Prevalence estimates for mental health disorders in children aged 5 to 16 years have been estimated 
in a report by Green et al (2004).  Prevalence varies by age and sex, with boys more likely (11.4%) to 
have experienced or be experiencing a mental health problem than girls (7.8%).  Children aged 11 to 
16 years olds are also more likely (11.5%) than 5 to 10 year olds (7.7%) to experience mental health 
problems.  If we convert the estimated prevalence to our local population we estimate that 885 boys 
aged 5-10 and 1,070 aged 11-16 will have a mental health disorder and 420 girls aged 5-10 and 840 
aged 11-16. 

Estimates of the number of children and young people who may experience mental health problems 
appropriate to a response from CAMHS at Tiers 1, 2, 3 and 4 have been provided by Kurtz (1996) and 
are shown in figure 1 below. As one would expect the number of children at each tier decreases with 
the severity of the mental health problem (7,715 in Tier 1, 40 in Tier 4). 

The map in figure 1 below shows a measure of child poverty by LSOA (lower super output area). The 
highest child poverty is seen in the areas of high deprivation such as Central Rochdale, Kirkholt, 
Langley, West Heywood and Smallbridge & Firgrove. Our deprived areas also have the youngest 
population profile, therefore a substantial proportion of the Borough’s young people are at increased 
risk of developing poor mental health.

Page 235



9

Figure 1

The impact of parental mental ill health, domestic abuse and substance misuse on the mental and 
physical health of children and young people’s own mental and physical health have been recurring 
themes in the serious case reviews which have been carried out within the Rochdale Borough and is 
reflected in national data.

A review of children and young people attending A&E with mental health problems was undertaken 
by the North West Utilisation Management Unit in May 2017.  The review was commissioned jointly 
by Bury CCG, Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG and Oldham CCG.  The primary purpose of the 
review was to establish whether there was any potential for children and young people who had 
attended and/or been admitted to Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust with a mental health related 
condition to have been managed differently, from an attendance or an admission perspective.  Of 
the 150 children and young people in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale who attended and/or were 
consequently admitted to a Pennine Acute Hospital, the key findings were as follows: 

 The majority of children and young people had a known mental health diagnosis or a history of a 
mental health related issue for e.g. self-harm prior to their attendance at hospital (82%, n=123). 

 Half of the young people attending (50%, n=75) were aged between 16 and 17 years of age.
 Looked after children accounted for 22% (n=33) attendances.

Page 236



10

 Monday-Wednesday were the busiest days, attendances exceeded 25 on these days. 69.33%, 
(n=104) children and young people attended Out of Hours (Out of Hours is defined as between 
18:30 and 08:00 hours and all day and night at weekends/bank holidays).

 The majority of presentations were related to an overdose 46% (n=69) or lacerations 26% (n=39). 
 Very few attendances 14% (n=21) had prior documented evidence of substance and/or alcohol 

abuse.

Additional prevalence data relating to the mental health of children and young people in Rochdale is 
detailed in Appendix 1.

4.4 What children and young people say

The 2013 Health Related Behaviour Survey asked school age children about their self-esteem and the 
scores are plotted in the chart in figure 1 above. It can be seen that boys had higher self-esteem 
scores compared to girls in both age groups. At age 8-11 37% of boys had a high score compared to 
only 28% of girls. At age 12-15 scores had increased for both genders with up to 52% of boys and 
39% of girls having high self-esteem.  Children reporting low self-esteem and fear of bullying were as 
follows:

 3% of pupils aged 8-11, and 2% of pupils aged 12-15 had low self-esteem scores. 

 31% of Year 6 pupils reported that they felt afraid of going to school because of bullying. This falls 
to 28% in Year 8 and again to 17% in Year 10. 

The 2016 Health Related Behaviour Survey reached 2648 pupils in 23 primary (years 4 and 6) and 6 
secondary school (years 8 and 10) settings in Rochdale.  It can be seen that:

 39% of boys and 34% of girls aged 8-11, and 47% of boys and 29% of girls had high self-esteem 
scores.

 5% of pupils aged 8-11 had low self-esteem scores, and 4% of pupils aged 12-15 have very low 
self-esteem scores.

 32% of Year 6 pupils reported that they felt afraid of going to school because of bullying.  This 
rises to 36% in Year 8 and then falls to 24% in Year 10.

4.5 Identifying Risk and Inequalities

We know that some children are at a greater risk of experiencing mental health problems.  Risks to 
mental health for children and young people in Rochdale include:

 Lone parent households – within Rochdale 9.1% (7,031) of households with dependent children 
are lone parent households.  This is higher than both the Northwest (8.1%) and England (7.1%).  
We understand that children from lone parent households, or those experiencing the breakdown 
of marriage are more at risk of experiencing mental health than those children living with two 
parents.   

 Children in low income families – 2013 data shows that within Rochdale 24.2% (12,745) of 
children are living in low income families.  This compares to 20.3% in the North West and 18.0% in 
England.  We know that children living in low incomes families are nearly three times as likely to 
suffer mental health problems as their more affluent peers.

 Teenage pregnancy – 2014 data shows that within Rochdale conception rates for under 18s were 
30.8 per 1000 births (130).  This compares to 26.8 per 1000 births in the North West and 22.8 in 

Page 237



11

England.  We know that teenage mothers have 3 times the rate of post-natal depression of older 
mothers and a higher risk of poor mental health for 3 years after the birth.  Children of teenage 
mothers have a 63% increased risk of being born into poverty compared to babies born to 
mothers in their twenties; have higher mortality rates under 8, and are more likely to have 
accidents and behavioural problems1.

 Young Carers – there are 2,101 (3%) unpaid children and young people aged 0-24 years providing 
unpaid care in the borough.  Of these 1,474 children and young people provide between 1 to 19 
hours unpaid care a week, 350   20 to 49 hours unpaid care a week and 273 provide 50 or more 
hour’s unpaid care a week.   

4.6 Identifying Priority needs

Self-harm
The Rochdale Child Health Profile March 2017 compares the health profiles of children and young 
people in Rochdale against the England rate.  Nationally, the rate of young people aged under 18 
years being admitted to hospital as a result of self-harm is increasing. This is not the case in Rochdale 
where the trend is decreasing.  In the period 2015/16, the number of children and young people 
aged 10 to 24 years in Rochdale admitted to hospital due to self-harm was 269.8 per 100,000 
population compared to the England average at 430.5.  

Nationally, the rate of young people aged under 18 years being admitted to hospital because they 
have a condition wholly related to alcohol is decreasing, and this is also the case in Rochdale.  The 
admission rate in the latest period 2012/13 – 2014/15 was 40.8 per 100,000 population compared to 
the England average of 36.6. 

Substance misuse is higher that the England value with admissions of young people aged 15-24 years 
at 121.6 per 100,000 population compared to 95.4 in England in the period 2013/14 – 2015/16.  

In the period 2015/16 the number of children and young people aged 0-14 who were admitted to 
hospital for injuries was 140.5 per 100,000 population; higher than the England average at 104.2.  
 
Teenage Suicide
Suicide is a key issue locally. Mortality rates from suicide and injury undetermined in Rochdale 
currently stands at 15.4 per 100,000 for males and 9.9 overall (PHE/PHOF 2011-13). The rate for 
females is not published for data disclosure reasons as the number of recorded deaths is very low. 
There are on average 20 deaths each year in Rochdale and small differences in this total have a 
significant effect on the rate.  The rate of suicide in Rochdale was particularly low for 2006/2008 and 
since then the rate has increased. This is of concern locally.

Looked after children and children in care
Looked After Children are at greater risk of not realising their full potential and having poorer 
outcomes in terms of physical health, emotional health and educational attainment. There is an 
increased risk of offending, substance abuse and an increased likelihood of young pregnancies in 
these children and young people.  Most children become looked after as a result of abuse and 
neglect. Although they have many of the same health issues as their peers, the extent of these is 
often greater because of their past experiences; for example, almost half of children in care have a 
diagnosable mental health disorder and two-thirds have special educational needs. Delays in 
identifying and meeting their emotional well-being and mental health needs can have far reaching 

1 Department for education and skills (2010), Teenage pregnancy: Accelerating the Strategy to 2010, London:  DFES

Page 238



12

effects on all aspects of their lives, including their chances of reaching their potential and leading 
happy and healthy lives as adults2.

Rochdale has high numbers of looked after children in comparison to the national average. As of 
March 2018, Rochdale Borough Council had 498 children in care.  Of these, as at the end of 
December 2017, there were:

 32 children placed for adoption.
 18 children currently placed with adopters.
 19 children have a placement order and adopted family finding is currently being undertaken.
 18 cases in Public Law Outline (PLO) and 53 children subject to care proceedings.
 228 subject to a Child Protection Plan. 

In addition, there are high numbers of children and young people placed in private residential 
accommodation within the Borough, by other local authority areas. 

Children with learning difficulties, disabilities and developmental disorders
National evidence suggests that children with learning disabilities are up to six times more likely to 
have mental health problems than other children; and more than 40% of families with children with 
learning disabilities feel they do not receive sufficient help from health and care services.

Neurodevelopment disorders Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)/Attention Deficit Hyperactivity 
Disorder (ADHD)
Rochdale Borough Council and partners were subject to a Joint CQC and OFSTED SEND Inspection in 
September 2016. This highlighted some challenges facing the borough with regard to its offer and 
provision for children and young people with, or requiring an ASD diagnosis. The inspection identified 
a number of areas that required improvement and as a result, a multi-agency Autism Strategic 
Partnership was convened to address these concerns. This partnership has enabled cross agency 
input for the delivery of the ASD care pathway.  An Autism and Social Communication Needs Strategy 
has been developed, which whilst identifying a Borough wide view of prevalence in Autism, has also 
identified gaps in local knowledge.  Consequently, a robust deep dive into data, specifically around 
the area of Autism has been undertaken.  A Data Task and Finish Group is currently developing a joint 
electronic dashboard where all SEND Data, including Autism will be stored. Further work is required 
in respect of wider multi-agency provision for the post diagnostic offer from universal services and 
this forms part of the priorities considered as part of the local transformation plan in 2017/18 and 
beyond.

Asylum seeking families and unaccompanied children seeking asylum
Rochdale is a distribution centre for asylum seeking families.  A significant number of asylum seeking 
children and young people coming to Rochdale arrive with significant trauma.  Of the 26 children 
recently admitted into schools, 15 % had previously been denied education.  85% of children and 
young people had been a victim of violence or witnessed violence perpetrated towards an immediate 
family member.  10% of children and young people had witnessed the death or kidnap of someone 
close to them.  30% of children and young people have lived with an articulated threat of kidnap 
towards an immediate family member. 15% of children and young people have had to make all or 
part of the journey to the UK without a care giver.  40% of parents had reported a change in their 
child’s behaviour.  These children also run the risk of impaired parenting, as their parents may be 
traumatised.  Families seeking asylum arrive from differing countries and there is a wide distribution 
of languages spoken.  The support offered in schools for these children and young people is different, 

2 Department of Education, Department of Health, 2015 ‘Promoting the health and wellbeing needs of Looked After Children’

Page 239



13

depending on the school that the child has been placed in.  Locally, there is no specialist therapeutic 
trauma provision within commissioned services.

Unaccompanied children seeking asylum may have experienced war-related trauma and various 
dangers in their journeys to the UK.  Challenges continue upon arrival, as these children must cope 
with the stresses of living in a new country with a new language and all without the support of their 
parents.  Such children are considered at high risk for psychological distress, including sleep 
disturbances, attention and concentration difficulties and flashbacks of previously experienced 
trauma. For example, it is estimated that one-third of asylum-seeking Afghan children who arrive in 
the UK without their parents are likely to experience symptoms associated with post-traumatic stress 
disorder.  

Perinatal and Infant Mental Health
Mental health problems affect more than one in ten women during pregnancy and the first year after 
childbirth and can have a devastating impact on them and their families.  In extreme cases, perinatal 
mental health problems can be life-threatening – suicide is one of the leading causes of maternal 
death in the UK.  We know that the first few months and years of a child’s life are perhaps the most 
sensitive to them developing secure attachments with their carers. These formative years lay the 
cornerstone for a child’s ongoing social, cognitive and emotional development.   There is 
considerable evidence to support that sensitive, attuned care giving, warmth and empathy 
consistently predict secure attachment.  Secure attachment predicts resilience and resilience 
predicts later mental health in both childhood and adulthood.   Early detection and timely 
intervention can therefore significantly reduce or prevent the lasting effects of perinatal mental 
health problems.  

Public Health England data for Rochdale, where 2,702 women gave birth in 2015, shows the 
estimated number of women with:
 postpartum psychosis: 5
 chronic SMI: 5
 severe depressive illness: 80
 mild-moderate depressive illness and anxiety (lower estimate): 270
 mild-moderate depressive illness and anxiety (upper estimate): 405
 post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD): 80
 adjustment disorders and distress (lower estimate): 405
 adjustment disorders and distress (upper estimate): 810

With regards to attachment, research shows that:

 60-80% of parents get it broadly right.  They will raise securely attached children who will go on to 
take their place in a civic society.  

 Up to 30% of parents will struggle to tune into their baby, due to a lack of awareness of infant 
development, preoccupation with their own needs, or trying too hard.  

 10% of parents are of real concern.  Preoccupation with their own problems following the birth of 
their baby means they are likely to develop psychological problems or psychiatric symptoms.  As a 
result, the developing infant/parent relationship is at great risk.  

 Of the 12,052 0-3 year olds in Rochdale (source ONE MYE 2016), 3,615 (30%) will have parents 
who struggle and 1,205 (10%) will have parents where the infant/parent relationship is a real 
concern.

Page 240



14

5.0 Our vision and plans for mental health services for children and young people in Rochdale 

Our vision is for every child in the Rochdale Borough to grow up mentally well.  Early Help is 
‘everybody’s business’ particularly if we are to intervene at the first sign of potential issues. All 
children, young people and families have a right to receive appropriate high quality services to 
achieve the best possible outcomes and to provide a solid foundation from which to continuously 
develop as individuals and as a family unit. We aim to shift the focus from promoting services as 
‘help’ to promoting them as an entitlement.  The emotional wellbeing of children is just as important 
as their physical health. Good mental health allows children and young people to develop their 
resilience to cope with whatever life throws at them and grow into well-rounded, healthy adults.  
Our vision is for our children and young people to be able to identify when they are struggling and to 
know how and where to access help, should they need it.  They will have access to timely, integrated, 
multi-disciplinary mental health and emotional wellbeing services, which will ensure early effective 
assessment, treatment and support for them and their families.  The vision is one, where children 
and young people’s care will be co-ordinated and sign-posted according to need, and where they 
only have to tell their story once.  We will aim to build the capacity of ‘trusted adults’ to spot, make 
sense of, and be available to manage emotional distress, including building the emotional literacy of 
parents.

Children and young people experiencing emotional and mental health distress are able to access a 
range of support that is available locally, ranging from prevention and early help to specialist 
inpatient care.  Although, there is a raft of services available within the Borough, we know, from our 
work with young people and service providers, that children and young people may not always 
access support early and often are not seen by services until they reach a point of crisis requiring 
specialist provision.  Enabling early identification and access to services is a local priority.  

To support us in making our vision a reality, the following programmes of work are planned to take 
place over the coming years until 2020/21:

5.1     Family Services Model – as part of the Rochdale Borough Locality Plan and to support our vision for 
children and young people’s mental health and emotional wellbeing, there is an intention to fully 
integrate children’s services to deliver a whole system approach for children, young people and 
families.  The Family Service Model describes an integrated delivery offer from universal/community 
level support to highly specialised and acute interventions.  The key elements of the Family Services 
Model are:

 Complex Early Help and Safeguarding Hub – providing a single point of access into Children and 
Young People’s Services - as part of our ambition to integrate the children and young people’s 
health and social care system in the Rochdale Borough, a multi-disciplinary targeted support hub 
has been developed.  The Complex Early Help and Safeguarding Hub brings together a seamless 
offer of, targeted and specialist services and support, and will ensure that the right provision is 
offered at the right time according to the needs of the child/young person and their families.  The 
triage provision offered will be multi-professional with expertise from across children’s services 
and a clear sense of what is available in the borough.  Mental Health and emotional wellbeing 
expertise, along with additional expertise from the Children with Disabilities Team is represented 
in the triage team to ensure that children and young people are directed to the right level of 
support to meet their needs. This will ensure that a holistic view of a child/young person and their 
family’s needs is undertaken and so will support a timely and coordinated approach to addressing 
all of their presenting needs. 

Page 241



15

 Early Help Enabling Teams – we have developed four Early Help Enabling Teams which are 
situated in each township across the borough.  These teams provide a locally co-ordinated 
multiagency response to need which fully utilises local knowledge, builds on community assets 
and scales up early help interventions.  The Early Help Enabling Teams support both children and 
young people/families and professionals offering signposting, consultation, advice and guidance, 
and where necessary, offer support for Early Help assessments.  In accordance with the Borough’s 
Locality Plan, the Early Help Enabling Teams also support all agencies that come into contact with 
children and young people, including schools and nurseries to undertake high quality Early Help 
Assessments at the earliest opportunity and provide support and challenge with the subsequent 
process, including Team Around the Family meetings, step up etc.  The intention is to deliver 
training and support through multiagency sessions on the locality footprint. 

Each Early Help Enabling Team currently runs a locality network with a range of organisations 
including, Rochdale Borough Council (libraries, sure start, social care, youth workers etc.), schools 
(such as SENCO, pastoral & inclusion staff), police, voluntary sector, childcare providers, health 
visitors and school nurses etc. We have enhanced our emotional health and wellbeing service, 
#Thrive to offer emotional and mental health expertise in each of the Enabling  teams.  

 Integrated ‘intermediate’ response – will be developed during 2018/19 for more complex issues 
that require enhanced support to that offered through the early help enabling teams, and which 
will prevent escalation through to very specialist services (such as social care, in-patient mental 
health beds).  The Intermediate Tier will bring together existing borough wide teams such as, 
Healthy Young Minds, Acute and Ongoing Needs and SEND etc. to offer a coordinated response to 
the child’s needs.   It is anticipated that the Integrated ‘intermediate’ response will be 
implemented in 2019/20.
 

The Family Services Model specifically responds to the need to:

 Avoid children, young people and families entering crisis due to a failure to recognise and 
respond to need at an early help level.

 Recognise the interdependency of social and environmental based issues and how these can 
impact upon mental health for adults and children.

 Recognise that many children and young people experience adverse outcomes due to the 
adults in their lives being unable to parent effectively.  This may be due to their own 
vulnerabilities or previous experiences, e.g. children removed from care.  

 Effective risk management – addressing the factors that lead to risk adversity, and default 
responses being to specialist services.

 Eliminate duplication of resources as a result of poor co-ordination and fragmentation.
 To respond to contacts and intervene in accordance with need.
 To enhance the co-ordination of an “out of hours” response through the Complex Early Help 

and Safeguarding Hub
 Stop families being passed from ‘pillar to post’ with demand and costs passed around the 

system.
 Build families’ capacity and the confidence of families to self-manage and reduce the 

perceived dependency by residents on ‘professional advice’.
 To support a behaviour change amongst the workforce and local population.
 System wide workforce development - new skill sets and approaches across the whole 

workforce and different disciplines.
 National pressures around recruitment of key staff, e.g. mental health nurses, paediatricians. 
 Strengthening and scaling up responses to key issues that impact on children’s outcomes such 

as attachment, mental health, parenting and parental health.

Page 242



16

 Strengthening the community and voluntary sector to build on our community assets and 
capacity.

           The Family Services Model system diagram can be viewed here.  A significant focus in 2018/19 will be 
on the implementation of the Family Services Model.  

5.2 The Rochdale Children’s Needs and Response Framework - it is important that children and young 
people, however they first present with difficulties, are supported by professionals to receive 
appropriate help and support as soon as possible. Local integrated, multi-agency care pathways that 
enable the delivery of effective, accessible, holistic evidence-based care are a necessity if we are to 
intervene early.

The Rochdale Children’s Needs and Response Framework forms is an integral element of the Family 
Services Model and applies to all children and young people from conception to the age of 18 years, 
and up to 25 years for young people with specialist education needs of disability. It has been 
refreshed during 2017/18 as part of the development of the Complex Early Help and Safeguarding 
Hub/Early Help Enabling Teams.  The aim of the framework is to assist practitioners and managers in 
assessing and identifying a child's level of need and crucially how best to respond and meet those 
needs as early as possible to prevent difficulties escalating into crises. 

Rochdale Needs and Response Framework can be viewed at: 
https://www.rbscb.org/UserFiles/Docs/Procedure/CN%20and%20RF%20Jan%202018.pdf. The Thrive 
model integrates with this framework.

5.3 Healthy Young Minds – following the development of a Greater Manchester Core CAMHS service 
specification, it is intended to review the Healthy Young Minds service to understand the 
implications of delivering in accordance with the requirements of the Greater Manchester 
specification.  Healthy Young Minds has planned to undertake  a capacity and demand analysis in the 
Spring 2018 to determine the service’s ability to offer more accessible access, including evenings and 
weekends.  It will also undertake a review of the skills mix and capabilities within the service to 
ensure that the service delivery model is able to deliver evidence based practice to meet the needs 
of our children and young people.  The Self Assessed Skills Audit Tool (SASAT) will be undertaken and 
any training needs identified as part of this process will be considered and implemented as 
appropriate.  We are keen to ensure that our workforce is trained in CYP IAPT evidence based 
practice and we encourage our staff in the NHS, children’s services and third sector to participate in 
the CYP IAPT programme.

5.4 Improving access – is a requirement of the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health and is a key 
element of our plans locally.  According to the latest published access figures showing Q1 and Q2 
data, we have achieved the national requirements (see section 10.1).  We are however, keen to 
improve access further and will continue to work with our providers locally to support early 
accessible access into services.  

5.5 All Age Raid (Rapid Assessment Interface and Discharge) – working with our colleagues across the 
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust footprint, we will consider the development of an all age RAID 
offer in accordance with Greater Manchester plans.  Included within this, will be a review of the 
Boroughwide Inreach/Outreach and Home Treatment Service. 

5.6 Neurodevelopment disorders Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)/Attention Deficit Hyperactivity 
Disorder (ADHD) – the pathways for both ASD and ADHD have been a focus for improvement over 
2017/18.  Plans have been made to shift both ASD and ADHD from a single agency to multiagency 

Page 243

FSM%2520Diagram%2520Jan%25202018.pdf
https://www.rbscb.org/UserFiles/Docs/Procedure/CN%20and%20RF%20Jan%202018.pdf


17

pathway with the ultimate aim of developing a single multiagency ‘needs led’ pathway for 
neurodevelopmental disorders including pre and post diagnosis.  We have undertaken significant 
work in the borough in 2017/18 to reduce waiting times for an autism assessment and this will 
continue in 2018/19 with the current trajectory for waiting times to be within 18 weeks by the end of 
May 2018.  Our plans in 2018/19 will focus on the implementation of the Autism Strategy (see 
section ) including the: redesign of diagnostic pathways, commissioning of neuro developmental pre 
and post diagnostic support and ultimately commissioning of an integrated autism service in line 
with the Rochdale Family Service’s Model.  We will also continue to implement the 
recommendations from the Greater Manchester, Lancashire and Cumbria Strategic Clinical Network’s 
good practice guidance on ‘Delivering effective services for children and young people with ADHD’ 
and link with the GM Autism Consortium on improving Rochdale as an Autism Friendly Town. Both 
ADHD and ADHD Pathways offer support up to the age of 25 and robust transition pathways and a 
new Transition Strategy are in place.

Plans are also being developed to a specialist in Borough Residential Unit for young adults with 
autism in order to avoid high cost out of borough placements.

5.7 Perinatal and Infant Mental Health (PIMH) – the first 1001 days, conception to the age of 2, are 
known to be the most critical period for child development. This has been recognised within the 
Greater Manchester Early Years Delivery Model; an evidence based pathway from pregnancy to 
school, which has seen developments in a wide range of services, including: maternity, health 
visiting, children's centres and schools.  Parental mental health is a key component of the model and 
much work has been done to increase the knowledge and understanding of all early year’s partners.  

Locally, to support the whole system approach that is required to deliver the Greater Manchester 
ambition for children and their families, a multi-agency PIMH steering group has been convened to 
progress plans to develop a multi-agency perinatal care pathway, which includes the commissioning 
of an early attachment service by 2020/21.  Initial priorities are being progressed, which include 
recruitment of: a child and adolescent psychotherapist/principal clinical psychologist, enhanced 
specialist mental health midwifery support, and a specialist perinatal IAPT practitioner.  The 
commissioning of an early intervention service is also planned.  

5.8 Community Eating Disorders Service (CEDS) – further work is planned in 2018/19 with 
commissioners from across the Pennine Care Footprint to review and develop the pathways for 
young people with eating disorders, to ensure that specialist eating disorder support is available to 
all young people who need it.  We will also work with the service to consider plans to extend the 
service up to the age of 25 years.

5.9 Looked after Children - locally, over a number of years, there has been an increase in the number of 
young people with emotional and mental health needs requiring out of area residential based 
placements offering therapeutic support, which cannot be provided locally.  These placements are 
usually high cost and the quality of the therapeutic support provided is often questionable.  The 
increase of out of area placements has been due to the lack of stability in the local market which has 
often being unable to meet the needs of complex children and young people within Rochdale.  There 
has also been an increased number of care placement breakdowns over the financial year 2017/18, 
resulting in an increased number of residential placements, as well as an increased number of 
children and young people with a learning disability or mental health diagnosis, such as Autism 
requiring residential ‘therapeutic’ based provisions. 

The current situation is not sustainable and therefore work has begun and will continue during 
2018/19 to review the overall support for Looked After Children with the aim of:

Page 244



18

 Eliminating duplication of assessment of children’s needs (specifically relating to Psychological 
Assessment)

 Eliminating duplication of provision (locally commissioned support versus support provided as 
part of purchased package)

 Fewer children entering residential care (stabilise current provisions) 
 Fewer children requiring placement moves in residential care (stabilise placements)
 Reduction in specialist / out of area placements
 Longer term reduction in costs to adult services/wider public services
 This work will be underpinned by a Looked After Children’s Needs Assessment and Summary 

Statement (service review) which will also be used to support commissioning intentions and 
service redesign.

5.10 The Youth Offending Service – we recognise that many young people who are facing the criminal 
justice system may do so due to underlying issues with mental health.  We know that a custodial 
sentence does not always deliver the best outcomes for this group of young people and therefore 
locally, we intend to strengthen the mentally disordered offenders’ (MDO) pathways to support 
diversion and avoid criminalising young people with mental health illness.  The multi-agency MDO 
pathway redesign will be undertaken jointly with the police and other partners.

5.11 Building Community Resilience and Capacity – we firmly believe in building the capacity of our local 
communities to recognise and support children and young people and their families who may be at 
risk of mental health.  Everybody has a role to play and therefore we have commissioned a number 
of schemes for delivery in 2018/19, which: raise awareness of mental health, offer peer support, 
reduce isolation and stigma, engage with hard to reach/vulnerable groups, support participation and 
engagement, and support the wellbeing of asylum seeking children and families.  The schemes will 
be delivered by 3rd sector organisations and a prerequisite of funding was that they must link to and 
enhance the service offer of our children and young people’s emotional health and wellbeing service 
#Thrive.  It is intended to work with our third sector providers during 2018/19 to ensure that they are 
aligned to the development and implementation of the Family Services Model  A brief outline of the 
schemes that will be delivered in 2018/19 can be found here.

5.12 Develop a mental health awareness training package targeted at schools, colleges and community 
groups – we will review the current training offer in the borough with a view to developing a  
coordinated package of support to build local awareness, knowledge and capacity in children’s 
centres, schools and youth organisations, and with school nurses, therapists and other partner 
organisations.  This will enable prevention, early detection, and positive promotion of mental health 
and wellbeing to be considered as “everybody’s business”.  This package of support will also 
specifically strengthen the knowledge and resilience of the ‘trusted adults’, which our young people 
told us are so important to their own wellbeing.  A task and finish subgroup of the Children and 
Young People’s emotional health and wellbeing partnership has been convened to take this work 
forward in 2018/19.  

5.13 Improving the interface with Schools – schools and colleges play an important role in supporting 
children and young people’s emotional health and wellbeing.  Teachers and school staff are 
fundamental in recognising when a child is not their self and can be a great source of support, often 
becoming a ‘trusted adult’.  Although, schools and colleges directly commission services to support 
emotional health, this is dependent on individual school priorities.  Consequently, there may be 
inequity in terms of the emotional health supported offered depending on the school a child/young 
person attends.  

Page 245

file://10.236.160.26/QDrive/Service%20Redesign/Children's%20&%20Maternity/CAMHS/Transformation/CAMHS%20LTP/CAMHS%20LTP%202016/HMR%20CCG%20CAMHS%20LTP%202017%20Refresh/Childrens%20building%20resilience%20and%20capacity%202017.xlsx


19

We know that there are many agencies locally currently delivering emotional health support and 
training to schools.  It is intended to map this support to identify any gaps in provision across all 
schools.  Ultimately, it is intended to design a mental health training, awareness and support 
programme for all schools in 2018/19.

The #Thrive service offer includes an emotional health and wellbeing awareness and resilience rolling 
programme for schools.  The service aims to deliver the programme to 35 schools and colleges 
during 2017/18, in addition to the 15 schools that were supported during 2016/17.  #Thrive are also 
delivering drop-in clinics in some schools and are currently undertaking an analysis of schools 
referrals into the service so that direct access can be developed for those high referring schools.  As 
mentioned in section 5.1 above, #Thrive has been enhanced to provide a CAMHS Practitioner in each 
of our localities within the borough.  It is envisaged that these practitioners will develop relationships 
with the schools within that locality becoming the named link for those schools for advice and 
consultation. 

We intend to work with other local transformation partnerships to identify the best current practice 
in supporting schools and colleges to identify and help students who have challenged emotional well-
being and mental health.  Early evidence from pilot sites across Greater Manchester suggests a shift 
in referrals to CAMHS, with GP referrals reducing and schools direct referrals increasing, and the 
overall number of inappropriate referrals declining.  There is still further work to be undertaken with 
our schools to incorporate self-care for non-service users as part of a whole school approach to 
mental health.

Locally, we have responded to the Government’s Children and Young People’s Mental Health Green 
Paper Consultation.  Whilst we wholly support the recommendations for additional emotional and 
mental health support in schools and colleges, it must be acknowledged that schools are already 
over-burdened and therefore implementation must be adequately resourced nationally.   It is likely 
that the new mental health teams in schools could unearth unmet need and therefore work would 
also need to take place to ensure that our local emotional and mental health services are able to 
meet the additional demand.  

Student mental health is really important, particularly for young adults who are under a lot of 
pressure with exams and careers.  Young people often find themselves at University away from home 
for the first time, coping with new academic pressures and learning to live independently, frequently 
feeling isolated and alone. Organisations and services working together to support young people is 
a must and this is a priority area that we will take forward in 2018/19.  A sub-group of our CAMHS 
Transformation Partnership will be convened.

5.14 Improving School Readiness - the Children and Young People’s Partnership has established a sub 
group to address the low level of school readiness in the Borough as assessed by a Good Level of 
Development at the end of reception (currently 64%). The subgroup will focus on the 1,001 days as 
the data clearly demonstrates that children are below expected levels of development on entry to 
nursery and that this gap remains despite progress being made.  The School Readiness action plan 
will focus on key priorities including the pathways underpinning the Greater Manchester Early Years 
Model, Language and Communication, the role of the voluntary and community sectors and will 
incorporate the work on developing our perinatal infant mental health pathways and implementing 
an early attachment model in the Borough.  The action plan will address children’s social and 
emotional wellbeing as we know this is a key indicator of emotional resilience, good relationship 
building and the capacity to learn.  This will be assessed from birth through utilising the ASQ 
assessment and also specific tools such as the Leuven Scale. 

Page 246



20

5.15 Improving young people’s experience of transition – we know that transition into adult services is 
generally a daunting experience for young people, who may also be experiencing several transitions 
simultaneously.  Putting young people at the centre of well planned, integrated and supported 
transition enables them, and where appropriate, those who care for them, to understand and 
prepare for the changes ahead, and know what to do if they are worried.   Locally, we want to ensure 
that the experience of transition is a good one whether that is a transition into adult services or a 
step up/step down.  Consequently, a two year CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) 
has been developed for delivery across the Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Healthy Young Minds 
footprint to look at transition in its broader sense, in terms of understanding what the young 
person's experience has been and how it could be improved.  The CQUIN commenced in 2017/18 
and will end at the end of March 2019.  Initial work has looked at what young people should expect 
when leaving Healthy Young Minds and what they should expect from the service that they move 
onto.  A detailed plan has been developed to track young people to determine their experience of 
transition.  The service will also look at the views of parents and carers to understand their 
experience of the transition, as this is often quite an anxiety provoking time.  

5.16 Services and pathways for young people aged 18 to 25 years - our Young Advisors were asked to 
extend their co-design activity to undertake research on the range of service needs 18-25 year olds 
have and present a design concept that will align with existing services.  The scope of any new service 
model would take into account the different needs of this age range and explore the whole range of 
needs, including: education, training / skills; employment and housing.   The research identified:
 Recommendations of how current services might be changed / transformed.
 How current provision can be more effectively coordinated and how it is resourced / funded, with 

a view to informing new commissioning arrangements.

The research was presented to the CAMHS Transformation Partnership in January 2018 who will now 
begin to consider how the recommendations within their gift are taken forward across the borough 
and how those requiring wider system transformation, may be highlighted with the relevant 
agencies.

5.17 Participation and engagement - is key to meaningful transformation and high on our agenda in 
Rochdale.     #THRIVE was co-designed by young people and we have worked hard to embed the 
voice of children and young people within key strategic decision making and service redesign. This 
ethos and vision is now to become further embedded with a refreshed Children and Young People’s 
Participation Strategy and associated action plan being agreed and implemented across the 
Borough.  As we move forward we will ensure that all agencies across both the children’s system, not 
limited to mental health, will have structures and systems in place to respond to the ideas, views and 
priorities of children and young people and they will be treated as key stakeholders in re-designing 
and monitoring services aimed at bringing about full system change and improved outcomes in line 
with the new Family Services Model.   A new Participation Steering Group will enable a top down 
bottom up approach to providing children and young people with the opportunities to grow and 
develop. We will also provide opportunities for future and continued involvement within and for the 
community and build upon the assets of young people by developing apprenticeships and 
opportunities for peer mentoring, employment and training.  This exciting work will move forward 
during 2018/19.

Linked to this a CQUIN has been agreed as part of the children and young people’s community 
services contract aimed at improving and enhancing participation across the children’s community 
services.  Although, this CQUIN is aimed predominantly at the Children’s Acute and Ongoing Needs 
Service (CAONS), elements of the CQUIN which will empower children and young people and give 

Page 247



21

them a greater voice in designing service improvements will be delivered in #Thrive.  This CQUIN will 
be completed at the end of March 2019.

Progress on the delivery of our plans can be found here.

6.0 Greater Manchester Strategic Plans to Improve Children and Young People’s Mental Health 
Services

6.1 Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership and the Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan (STP) – Mental health problems in children are associated with educational failure, family 
disruption, disability, offending and antisocial behaviour, placing demands on social services, schools 
and the youth justice system. Untreated mental health problems create distress not only in the 
children and young people, but also for their families and carers, continuing into adult life and 
affecting the next generation.

Devolution has enabled Greater Manchester to collectively respond to the challenges outlined within 
Future in Mind and in doing so, make a step change in transforming mental health services for 
children and young people living in Greater Manchester.

Greater Manchester has developed an all age Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy that provides a 
framework to support the transformation of Children and Young People’s mental health at a Local 
Transformation Partnership level and across the wider Greater Manchester Footprint.  

The Greater Manchester strategy focuses on:

 Prevention - with an understanding that improving child and parental mental health and 
wellbeing is key to the overall future health and wellbeing of our communities. 

 Access – improving our ability to reach all the people who need care and to support them to 
access timely and evidence-based treatment.

 Integration - many people with mental health problems also have physical problems. These can 
lead to significantly poorer health outcomes and reduced quality of life. Through the strategy we 
will aim to achieving parity between mental health and physical illness.

 Sustainability - In order to effect change for the long term the strategy will build on evidence 
from the innovations which have proven to have impact either in Greater Manchester or 
elsewhere, to challenge the way we plan and invest in mental health

The Greater Manchester Mental Health Strategy can be viewed at:  

www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/downloads/file/161/greater_manchester_mental_health_strategy 

6.2 Collaborative Commissioning across Greater Manchester - following the publishing of Future in 
Mind a collaborative approach to the commissioning and delivery of CYP mental health services 
across all 10 of Greater Manchester Local Authorities/CCGs has been established.

This collaborative approach across the 10 Local Authority footprints is enabling the sharing and 
implementation of good/best practice, development of consistent care pathways and quality 
standards, leading to improved quality and equitable services across Greater Manchester.

Working together CCGs/Local Authorities are delivering more efficient use of resources by 
commissioning and delivering some services at scale. The costs of Specialist CAMH Services are 
unlikely to be reduced, but efficiency will improved as a result of an implementation of THRIVE 
informed service delivery which will result in increased throughput.  Additional efficiencies will be 

Page 248

file://10.236.160.26/QDrive/Service%20Redesign/Children's%20&%20Maternity/CAMHS/Transformation/CAMHS%20LTP/CAMHS%20LTP%202016/HMR%20CCG%20CAMHS%20LTP%202017%20Refresh/CAMHS%20transformation%20delivery%20plan%20-%20Master%20-%20January%2017.xlsx
http://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/downloads/file/161/greater_manchester_mental_health_strategy


22

delivered by reducing the numbers of professionals involved in complex families for whom managing 
risk is the primary support/intervention.

6.3 Greater Manchester Programmes - the Greater Manchester Health & Social Care Partnership has 
made £60m available to support Greater Manchester’s Local Transformation Partnerships to 
implement a three year cross sector system transformation programme that is characterised by:

 The development of a single Greater Manchester Children and Young Person’s mental health 
specification and a single outcomes and performance framework that will be adopted by all 
providers of Greater Manchester’s children and young people’s mental health services. This will 
be implemented from 1st April 2018.

 The ongoing implementation of Greater Manchester ADHD and Community Eating Disorder 
standards across all of GM’s 10 localities.

 The development of a GM iTHRIVE Training Academy that will, using an Organisational 
Development model, support all 10 Local Transformation Partnerships to develop models of care 
that are informed by the THRIVE framework, which in turn will enable improved access to services 
for children and young people who require support advice and help.

 The development of a GM wide Crisis Support offer that will support an extended offer from 
community mental health services and includes:
o 24/7 CAMHS Medical On Call rota.
o All Age RAID (Rapid Assessment Interface and Discharge) – all children and young people 

presenting at A&E departments within Greater Manchester will receive timely mental health 
assessments 24/7 and within 2 hours of a child/young person being admitted.

o Four Rapid Response Teams (Crisis Care and Home Treatment Teams) that by 2021 will be 
available 24/7.

o Two Safe Zones (to be commissioned from the voluntary sector) and three 72 hour Crisis Beds 
for children and young people experiencing an emotional or psychiatric crisis to 
stabilise/prevent deterioration.

o A Greater Manchester inpatient  Assessment and Inreach Centre – the centre will support 
decision making relating to admissions and facilitate more informed discharge planning leading 
to improved patient safety and experience of care. 

o As part of an integrated crisis care and inpatient care offer “Care Closer to Home” agreement 
has been reached with NHS England to collaborate with the Greater Manchester 
Commissioning Hub to develop Greater Manchester place based commissioning arrangements 
for inpatient mental health provision within Greater Manchester. This has resulted in 
agreement for three inpatient beds to be reallocated as 72 hours crisis care beds to support 
the crisis care pathway

 A Greater Manchester wide mental health support in schools pilot. Lessons learned will be shared 
across all 10 Local Transformation Partnership and build on a range of education settings mental 
health support work that has already begun in each local authority area.

 A Greater Manchester wide development programme to support Further Education Colleges to be 
better able to understand and respond to the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences and 
Trauma on staff and students.

 The development of Greater Manchester standards (to be implemented locally) to support the 
mental health needs of identified vulnerable groups (not an exclusive list) including:
o Looked After Children, those adopted and Care Leavers.
o Young people involved with the Youth Justice System.
o Children and young people with Neurological conditions (e.g. Autistic Spectrum Disorders 

(ASD) and Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD). We will build on the standards 
developed for ADHD to include ASD, with a view to developing commissioning 
recommendations and guidance for neurodevelopment disorders.

Page 249



23

o Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transsexual, Queer, Intersex, Asexual (LGBTQIA).
o Children and young people with Learning Disabilities.
o Young Carers (someone aged 18 or under who helps look after a relative who has a condition, 

such as a disability, illness, mental health condition, or a drug or alcohol problem).
o Children and young people with chronic physical health problems.
o Children and young people who originate from Greater Manchester’s Black and Minority 

Ethnic Communities.
o Children and young people who have experienced abuse neglect and trauma, including those 

who have experienced CSE (child sexual exploitation).
 Transition services for young people moving from children and young people’s mental health 

services to adult mental health services.  The development of processes and protocols will be 
informed by the learning gained from two pilot projects up lifting ADHD and Community Eating 
Disorders to a young person’s 25th Birthday.  All of Greater Manchester’s 10 Local Transformation 
Partnerships will support the implementation of agreed transition arrangements between CAMHS 
and AMHS and will work with adult mental health commissioners to achieve the above objectives. 

 Perinatal and Infant Mental Health Services – Greater Manchester service components include: 
o Improving access to Perinatal IAPT services:

 Develop Greater Manchester standards 
 Options appraisal of different models of care
 Develop business case detail as required 
 Developing elements for inclusion in IAPT Service Specification (with performance and 

outcomes framework)
o Early Attachment Services across Greater Manchester

 Draft a Business Case for CCGs to use 
 Develop Greater Manchester standards
 Developing a Greater Manchester PIMH Service Specification (with performance & 

outcomes framework)
 Offer support to localities to take interagency PIMH developments forward 

o Developing  a PNIMH training ladder
 Workforce Development - the importance of ensuring that organisations have the right workforce 

with the right skills and knowledge to deliver effective services is recognised by all and is a key 
ingredient in creating system transformation through building an effective workforce.  A whole 
Greater Manchester children and young people’s mental health system skills audit that maps onto 
the iTHRIVE framework is underway, and the outcomes will be utilised to contribute to the 
planning of the whole Greater Manchester children and young person’s workforce planning.   Local 
Transformation Partnerships have agreed to collaborate to ensure that the workforce will grow to 
meet the planned increase of young people accessing specialist services.

 Youth Justice – discussions are underway to develop a place based commissioning model of 
extended support for Greater Manchester’s Youth Justice Service.  It is proposed that additional 
capacity is made available to recruit staff to coordinate and support joint working between Greater 
Manchester’s Youth Offending Services, Children and Young Person’s mental health services and 
Greater Manchester’s Integrated Health in Custody and Wider Liaison and Diversion Service to 
better:  promote development of early recognition; improve communication between agencies; 
promote continuity of care and review pathways.

 Greater Manchester’s Trauma / Resilience Hub – set up to support those children, young people 
and families who were affected by the terror attack in Greater Manchester, and  options are being 
considered to determine the legacy arrangements for this highly effective model.  A range of 
options have been developed to support the ongoing function of the Hub to enable a Greater 
Manchester trauma service, supporting any child, young person or family who has experienced 
trauma, for example, families coming into Greater Manchester seeking asylum, being established.

Page 250



24

7.0 Our Progress – Improvements made to Children and Young People’s Mental Health 
Services since 2015/16

Significant progress has been made in the borough since the development of our original CAMHS Local 
Transformation Plan in October 2015.  Improvements include:

7.1 Moved from a Tiered Model of Care to the Thrive – stepped care model – we have moved away 
from the traditional tiered model of care for children and young people’s mental health services to a 
stepped care model, which focuses on a community based stepped care approach promoting 
prevention, early intervention and supporting the early help agenda.  In doing this, we aim to remove 
some of the arbitrary cut offs between services and ensure that help and support is provided 
according to need.  It supports the ethos that mental health is everybody’s business. The stepped 
care model gives greater emphasis on thriving, resilience and coping, which reflects our plans to 
increase capacity and capability at this level, both for children and young people’s emotional and 
mental health services and more generally across the health and social system.  During 2018/19, 
along with other Greater Manchester CCGs we will shift to implementing I-Thrive.  Further details of 
these plans can be found in section 6 above – Greater Manchester’s vision for Children and Young 
People’s Mental Health Services.

The Thrive model is heavily focused on helping workers within universal and early help services, GPs 
and other children’s services to develop skills to support the promotion and management of 
children’s emotional health and wellbeing within communities.  Section 8 below describes the 
services and support that is offered locally at each of the stages of the Thrive model.

7.2 Building Community Resilience and Capacity - a number of projects/schemes have been delivered 
over the previous two years, which aimed to build community resilience and capacity, including 
schemes to: enhance and build peer mentoring support with children and young people; engage with 
hard to reach/vulnerable groups; support participation and engagement, reduce isolation and the 
stigma associated with mental health and support the wellbeing of asylum seeking children and 
families.  A brief overview of some of the schemes delivered is detailed below:

‘The Stories We Can Tell’ was particularly successful in reaching young people who may have 
previously found it difficult to engage or who felt socially isolated.  This scheme aimed to encourage 
and enable young people aged 11 to 21 years who had experienced traumatic episodes in their lives 
to tell and share their stories.  A diverse group of young people took part in the workshops, including 
young people from asylum-seeking families and cared for children.  The scheme took the young 
people from a place where they felt that they couldn’t open up or tell their story, to actually 

Page 251



25

producing it in a way that was personal to them and performing it live on stage to a packed audience 
of stakeholders.  As well as providing the young people with new skills in writing and performing, the 
scheme was able to build confidence, empathy and understanding, and help the young people to find 
their voice and to realise that they were not alone – we all have a story to tell.

‘Clueless Monologue’ – delivered by M6 Theatre, is a powerful, authentic and relevant creative 
intervention with the aim of raising awareness about mental health and serious self-harm. The 
delivery model proved highly effective in deeply engaging young participants emotionally.  It reached 
630 participants in secondary schools in the borough, where pupils actively discussed scenarios and 
raised lots of questions.  Overall, the whole experience was very thought provoking for all pupils and 
succeeded in raising awareness of mental health and self-harm.  All students received a CLUELESS 
postcard signposting.

7.3 Young Advisors - we have invested in our Young Advisors team to enable them to extend their work 
over 2017/18.  Young advisors have developed a number of ‘young people’ led campaigns to 
promote services and access to community provision, including health and wellbeing campaigns over 
the period 2017/18.  Using their expertise in new media and our new investment in accredited 
training, we hope to increase the range and diversity of opportunities for children and young people 
to participate meaningfully in activities that enable them to manage their own health, including their 
emotional health.  The Young Advisors have developed a ‘Self-help’ booklet, which is being used 
successfully with young people attending ‘drop-ins’ at #Thrive.  The booklet is intended to support 
young people whilst they are waiting for treatment, or those who may not be ready for a formal 
intervention.  It contains lots of useful tips, including mindfulness techniques, as well as contact 
details of local services that can be accessed as needed.  

The Young Advisors were also commissioned in 2017/18 to extend their co-design activity to 
undertake research on the range of service needs 18-25 year olds have and present a design concept 
that will align with existing services.  The potential new service model should take into account the 
different needs of this age range and explore the whole range of needs, including: education, training 
/ skills; employment and housing.   The research will also identify (where possible):
 Recommendations of how current services might be changed / transformed.
 How current provision can be more effectively coordinated and how it is resourced / funded, with 

a view to informing new commissioning arrangements.

This work has been completed and will now inform both local and where appropriate, Greater 
Manchester commissioning requirements.

7.4 Books on Prescription – we have enhanced our current books on prescription scheme by offering 
books in school libraries, under the five ways to wellbeing section, which aim to support our children 

Before today, I hadn’t thought about...

“The impact of those who are left behind after 
suicide” - female (age 13)

“Being there for somebody can save their 
lives - female” (age 13)

“How easy it is to regret a single decision - 
male” (age 13)

Page 252



26

and young people’s mental health and wellbeing.   An approved list of titles was chosen for their 
quality and include help on issues such as: resolving conflict, reducing anxiety, dealing with bullying 
through being more assertive, low mood, increasing self-esteem, bereavement and loss.   

7.5 Directory of Services (DOS) in the Borough – significant work has taken place during 2017/18 as part 
of the Prevention Theme of our Locality Plan to develop a directory of services and support in the 
borough.  The intention is that the DOS, which is all age, will be used by all agencies in the borough 
and particularly by our Enabling Teams to signpost and direct people to appropriate support.  An 
information platform has been designed and is in the process of being implemented.  The intention is 
that services will have administrative access to the DOS to review and amend their service offer as 
required.  Going forward, we would hope to enhance the DOS to include additional functionality, for 
example to coordinate communication across organisations/services and expand our digital 
audience.  This is something that we will consider during 2018/19.

  
7.6 Kooth – online counselling service – we have commissioned online counselling provision, enabling 

young people aged 11-24 years to facilitate early help and prevent escalation of need for children 
and young people.  The service works collaboratively with other local mental health services to 
ensure an integrated approach to delivering the outcomes that our children and young people feel 
are important and to deliver an online but ‘local’ service.   The service offers support online and out 
of hours, which was previously a gap within the borough and something that young people 
articulated was important.  A local Integration & Participation Worker forms part of the service offer 
to build solid relationships with schools, Healthy Young Minds, and GPs etc., training staff on how the 
service operates and how young people can register with it.  The service also delivers assemblies in 
schools, giving presentations to show young people how to access Kooth as well as offering more in-
depth sessions which can be part of PHSE or ‘drop down’ days.  

7.7 #Thrive – Children and young people’s emotional and mental health service - our new children and 
young people’s emotional and mental health service went live on the 1st July 2016 meaning that 
children and young people in the borough can now get dedicated emotional health and wellbeing 
support when they need it.  The service is run by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust, Youth in Mind 
and Link4Life, and has been co-designed with young people.

The service offers early support to children and young people up to the age of 19 years, including 1:1 
drop in sessions and ‘sort it’ sessions in schools and community venues, solution focused therapy, 
early intervention, group work and counselling.  Social prescribing, including exercise, culture and 
arts is also an important element of the service and something that was clearly articulated by young 
people through the co-design process. 

#Thrive helps those children and young people aged up to 19 years who may be: feeling worried, 
angry or upset; stressed about school or exams; feeling low and not enjoying things in general; or  
are experiencing bullying or relationship worries.  Children and young people can drop in or ring the 
service if they feel they need some support without the need for a referral, which is something that 
our young people have advised is important to them.  

#Thrive can also offer advice and support to parents, carers and anyone who works with a child or 
young person.  A new under 8s pathway has recently been developed.

The hub in the form of a café opened at the end of March 2017 offering a drop-in facility, 
information and signposting, as well as planned clinical sessions. The hub is located at 48 Drake 
Street, Rochdale and has been named ‘Around the Corner’ following a co-design session with young 
people.  Children and young people have also participated in the design of the hub and have clearly 

Page 253



27

articulated how they want it to look and feel.  The hub is an essential and exciting element of the 
#Thrive service delivery as it allows any child, young person or parent access to advice and support, 
or simply just a chat.

A children and young people’s participation group has been convened through #Thrive to support 
the continued co-design of improvements to the service delivery.  This is also a forum for children 
and young people to learn and gain experience of service delivery processes, as well as come 
together as a group, sharing thoughts and ideas and building support networks.  

To continue our process of co-design, we were keen to ensure that this was extended to service 
delivery.  Consequently, supported by the Innovation Unit, #Thrive has worked with young people 
and families to ensure that the service delivery model is truly designed around the needs of young 
people.  Innovative ways of testing the service delivery and clinical pathways, including the use of 
prototyping have been implemented.  This process, to test, challenge and adapt the service delivery 
has continued.

Below is a fantastic example of the role #Thrive can play in identifying emotional wellbeing issues 
early, before crisis, and supporting individuals to build resilience.”

 
“During XX’s first engagement with #Thrive he presented with a Core 10 score of 32/40, which when 
explored by the talking therapy CYP, revealed child protection concerns. The CYP acted to support this 
young person immediately, and in subsequent sessions, this Core 10 score reduced to as little as 2. At 
this point XX was referred to the activity offer to support his anxiety in social situations, and increase 
his physical activity levels. From the start XX was eager to try new activities and quickly engaged in 
multiple sessions running from Rochdale Leisure Centre. As time progressed, he found the ones he 
preferred. XX was initially met and supported by myself to engage in each session, but quickly 
developed enough confidence to attend without support. XX’s Core 10 score continued to remain 
around the 2 mark, and he and his parent reported in their exit from #Thrive that they were delighted 
with the support that #Thrive gave, and particularly to the CYP who first supported him”. 

#Thrive will play a key role in the planned Children’s Enabling teams.  We are enhancing #Thrive so 
that it is able to offer a named link in each of the four children’s enabling teams within the borough, 
offering advice, support, guidance and assessment.  The #Thrive link worker will take a multi-
disciplinary case management approach to care provision, liaising where necessary to other services, 
including Healthy Young Minds, social care, primary care, schools and 3rd Sector.

#Thrive has successfully participated in a national pilot for the creation of a new post, the 
Psychological Wellbeing Practitioner (PWP) programme.  The vision for this pilot is to create a new 
PWP practitioner that complements the work of CAMH services providing assessment and evidence 
based treatment for mild to moderate presentation.  #Thrive have recruited two PWPs, who have  
split their time in year 1 between college and placement.  Funding for year 1 was provided nationally 
through the pilot, with the expectation that in year 2, the PWPs will be employed and funded via the 
recruiting organisation.  This is an exciting opportunity for #Thrive as the PWP posts sit well within 
the service offer and vision to provide early support.

We are also delighted that #Thrive has been recognised as an area of good practice both nationally 
and within Greater Manchester.  In June 2017, against strong competition, the service was the 
winner of the 2017 Healthcare Transformation Award for the Redesign of Care in Mental Health – the 
service was commended for its innovative approach to engaging with young people to develop a co-
produced service which aims to intervene early to deliver better outcomes for children and young 
people.  There has also been significant interest in the service across Greater Manchester and 

Page 254



28

beyond and a number of visits to the service have taken place.  An open day was arranged on the 
22nd January 2018 for other boroughs to come and learn about the service.  

The co-design and commissioning of #Thrive has also been recognised by the national iThrive team as 
a strong example of how service development can be aligned to the THRIVE framework. 
Consequently, commissioners and the service were asked to support the development of a case 
study to support national learning.  The case study has recently been published and can be viewed at 
http://www.implementingthrive.org/the-innovative-thrive-service-rochdale/ 

7.8 Redesign of Healthy Young Minds (specialist CAMHS service) – significant work has taken place in 
2017/18 to redesign the Healthy Young Minds service delivery model.  A new staffing model has 
been developed and recruitment to vacant posts has been implemented.  The service is now 
reviewing its internal policies, procedures and processes to ensure that it continues to deliver 
effective, timely and quality care to all children and young people who need it.  

To support the implementation of the children and young people’s Complex Early Help and 
Safeguarding Hub (single point of access) within the borough, the HYM service has been enhanced 
until September 2019.  This will enable the service to provide 2 practitioners to sit within the Hub 
and contribute to the multi-disciplinary triage of all mental health and safeguarding referrals.  These 
roles are particularly important to ensuring that the emotional and mental health needs of children 
and young people are addressed by the right the service in a timely manner.  It is anticipated that 
once the Hub is fully operational the referrals into HYM will reduce and the ongoing requirement for 
the additional staff HYM will be incorporated within the core service provision.

7.9 Neurodevelopment disorders Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)/Attention Deficit Hyperactivity 
Disorder (ADHD)
 Autism – significant work has taken place during 2017/18 to improve both the diagnostic 

experience and pre and post diagnostic support for children and young people with suspected 
autism.  A Rochdale Borough Autism Strategy has been produced and work has taken place to 
begin the initial stages of implementation, this includes: a robust action plan, a data baseline and 
associated dashboard, and regular working steering group. A series of outcomes based upon a 
number of ‘I’ Statements that have been co-designed with young people with Autism; the 
establishment of an Autism Strategy Group and associated Task and Finish Groups.  A staff 
training offer has also been developed; and a number of schools have begun to gain Autism 
Champion Status.  School Improvement Services have also begun to target children with Autism at 
risk of educational breakdown. 

 ADHD – work has taken place during both 2016/17 and 2017/18 to improve the clinical pathway 
for ADHD.  A CQUIN delivered by Healthy Young Minds in 2016/17 began the process of shifting 
the pathway for ADHD from a single agency (Healthy Young Minds) to a multi-agency pathway, 
with support from Early Help, #Thrive and our Parenting team.  This work has further been 
enhanced and supported by a ADHD multi-agency steering group.  A multi-agency pathway has 
been developed in accordance with the Greater Manchester, South Cumbria and Lancashire 
Strategic Clinical Network recommendations on delivering effective services for ADHD, and a 
number of task and finish groups have been convened to implement the new pathway.  

7.10 Community Eating Disorder Service (CEDS) – the mobilisation of the Community Eating Disorder 
Service, (which we commissioned jointly with Bury CCG and Oldham CCG) has continued during 
2017/18.

The service model focuses on early intervention and prevention, whole system, integrated and multi-
agency working and is outcome focused.  It encompasses the eating disorder provision already 

Page 255

http://www.implementingthrive.org/the-innovative-thrive-service-rochdale/


29

available within local Healthy Young Minds services in each borough and the service delivery will 
support and build on this local provision ensuring coordinated and seamless care. The service has 
planned and delivered training for Healthy Young Minds staff to up-skill on all issues pertaining to 
eating disorders and have begun to develop ‘mini’ eating disorder teams within Healthy Young Minds 
in each borough.   The service has developed strong links with the Horizon Inpatient Unit and 
Independent Hospitals to support the care planning for young people who are nearing discharge 
from inpatient care.  This ensures that the appropriate step down arrangements are in place to 
enable an effective discharge into the community.   

Awareness raising of Eating Disorders is important to ensure that young people who may be at risk 
are able to access help early.  The Eating Disorder Service has worked with B-eat during the last year 
to deliver a training and awareness raising programme. 

A Parents’ Forum has been developed during 2017/18.  The aims and objectives for this have been 
considered and a menu of options has been developed, so parents can choose which sessions to 
attend. Parents had expressed that they would like to have the opportunity to meet other parents, as 
well as have the opportunity to share their experiences, challenges and successes and so these 
feature in each parent forum session. 

The CEDS is signed up to QNED (Quality Network for Eating Disorders) and has recently participated 
in the National children and young people’s Eating Disorders Training Programme.

8.0 Children and young people’s emotional and mental health provision in the Borough

Alongside the new services that have been commissioned since 2015/16 highlighted above (see Section 7), 
there are a plethora of services available in the borough to support children’s and young people’s 
emotional and mental health.  These are set out across the Thrive Model below.  A summary of the services 
and support available in the borough are also contained within our Local Offer, which can be accessed here.

8.1 Step 1 – Thriving (Community Promotion and Prevention)

There are a variety of services/schemes locally offering help, support and guidance to enable children and 
young people and their families to become more resilience and Thrive.  These include:

 Five Ways to Wellbeing – is a programme delivered by Rochdale Mind, which includes promoting 
positive mental health, including:  anti-stigma, suicide prevention, self-harm prevention and a peer led 
support group.  

 Education and awareness for drug and alcohol misuse – is provided by Early Break, who provide 
education and raise awareness around substance misuse issues and the link with wider factors, such as 
offending, emotional health and wellbeing, family/friends and much more. 

 Mentoring and Peer Support – there are a number of services/schemes within the Borough offering 
peer support, including:

 Community Champions - provide access to “peer support” for people in the Borough of Rochdale who 
have a range of short-term, low level needs.  The support is available to anyone who wants it (no 
eligibility criteria) and aims to meet a wide variety of needs including: health, skills, employment, family 
support, poverty, budgeting, mental health, loss and bereavement, literacy and more.  

 Homestart Rochdale – aims to give support to families who may be struggling to cope with a variety of 
challenges, including post-natal illness, disability, isolation, the demands of parenting young children, 
bereavement and multiple births - helping prevent these difficulties from escalating into crisis, and crisis 
from developing into family breakdown.  The service provides a range of support to parents of children 

Page 256



30

under 11 years old, including low level emotional and mental health support offered by parents to 
parents.

 The Proud Trust - provide a range of peer mentoring, peer support and befriending to LGBT young 
people –This includes face-to-face / one to one peer support where young people meet up and provide 
face to face support, peer support by text message, through Facebook and/or email or telephone 
contact.  All support is coordinated and delivered within a safeguarding framework and at a time and 
place agreed with young people.

 Rochdale Connections Trust - provide a mentoring service for young people in the Borough.  Providing a 
drop-in service where young people can meet up with a team of mentors and build a strong relationship 
that enables them to meet up away from the centre.  The adult mentors are drawn from local services 
and the general public to provide a whole range of unique skills to be match with young people’s needs.

 Rochdale and District Mind Open Young Minds – is the emerging gateway into community wellbeing 
provision for children and adolescences in the Borough of Rochdale. The service works in conjunction 
with main emotional health services for children and young people and provides guided/supported 
access for children 11 years upwards into a range of (mainly) social support, community arts and 
education provision; complimenting the sports and physical activity based role within #Thrive.  For 
young adults / adolescents under 25 years old, the service provides none time limited support and 
engagement in a social / community programme made up of Rochdale and District Minds internal 
services and community support from other services related to this age range and based on presenting 
needs

 Non-clinical and Leisure activities – there are a range of voluntary/3rd sector facilities commissioned 
within the Borough, which are aimed at supporting and enhancing emotional wellbeing for children and 
young people.  Further details can be found here.

 Link4Life – is responsible for the management, operation and development of Rochdale Council’s 
leisure facilities.  Link4Life works in partnership with other agencies to improve the physical health and 
emotional wellbeing of children and young people within the Borough.

 Mental Health Training – there is a variety of training offered within the borough to build community 
resilience, support self-care, and promote early identification of mental health problems.  The training is 
currently being mapped and will be published alongside this document and on the Family Services 
Directory.

 MeMotional - is a new website developed by Early Break aimed at raising awareness around emotions.  
The website is specifically aimed at children and young people and helps them to learn about their 
emotions and look at putting strategies in place to help them understand and respond to their emotions 
in healthy ways.  

8.2 Step 2 – Resilience and Coping (primary care, community services and education)

There are a number of services locally offering help, support and guidance children and young people with 
emotional difficulties.  These include:

 General Practice and the wider community primary care team - have an important part to play in 
supporting families, children and young people to develop resilience and in identifying and referring 
problems early. GPs have a number of far reaching priorities but are trained specifically to take an 
holistic approach to the physical and mental health needs of the whole family registered with them.  
Many GP practices are a less stigmatising environment than a mental health clinic and therefore offer 
increased potential for early identification of emotional and wellbeing concerns raised by children and 
young people.

In addition there is a wide variation of confidence and competence in managing children and young 
people’s mental health.  HMR CCG is committed to providing ongoing education to primary care and 

Page 257

file://10.236.160.26/QDrive/Service%20Redesign/Children's%20&%20Maternity/CAMHS/Transformation/CAMHS%20LTP/CAMHS%20LTP%202016/HMR%20CCG%20CAMHS%20LTP%202017%20Refresh/Childrens%20building%20resilience%20and%20capacity%202017.xlsx


31

encourages providers to engage with local surgeries and the clinical leads within the CCG.  With NHS 
mental health services, the voluntary sector and GP Care Ltd (a provider organisation of a group of GPs) 
an education session is being developed specifically about emotional mental health to improve 
confidence amongst primary care clinicians.

It is understood that the dental health of children and young people can have a huge impact on their 
mental health and behaviour, particularly for those children and young people who may have poor 
dental health and associated problems, such as issues with speech and bullying.  Work has taken place 
within the Borough to develop pathways and links into dental care for children and young people who 
are under the care of CAHMS.  CAMHS are now able to directly refer children and young people to a 
salaried dental service. Locally, we are looking to implement the inclusion of Oral Health brief 
intervention training as part of the requirement/contract for staff working with children and young 
people as part of their induction to the role.  Plans are also being made to deliver oral health brief 
intervention training to services, including CAMHS, Safeguarding for looked after children, Health 
Visitors, Midwives, School Health and social care.

 Health Visiting – our health visiting team provide universal support around the ‘6 high impact areas’ 
including transition to parenthood and the early weeks, promoting secure attachment, positive parental 
and infant mental health, and parenting skills using evidence based approaches such as Neonatal 
Behavioural Observation and Neonatal Behavioural Assessment Scale. Our health visitors identify 
women/parents experiencing perinatal mental health issues, including postnatal depression, and 
provide care packages for maternal mental health.

 School Health Service – our school nurses deliver a wide range of Public Health interventions to school-
age children and young people, including emotional health and wellbeing and substance misuse. They 
have a role in promoting emotional wellbeing throughout the school-age years identifying mental or 
emotional health issues and supporting those with emotional and mental health difficulties to access 
the appropriate level of mental health services.  Our school nurses identify vulnerable children, young 
people, and families, and support them through the provision of co-ordinated, tailored packages of 
care. The school health service also provide an online text service – CHAT HEALTH, which enables young 
people to have access to confidential advice and support from a school nurse.  An App has also been 
developed, which will allow parents and young people to access emotional health advice and 
information, with links to all other services and websites available.  

8.3  Step 3 – Getting Help (Primary care, community and education in partnership with CAMHS)

There are a number of targeted services within the Borough, provided by specialists working in the 
community and primary care settings in a multidisciplinary way, such as:  youth offending teams, primary 
mental health workers, psychologists, counselling and advocacy, including voluntary/third sector providers, 
as well as support available in social care and education.  Services include:

 Early Break – is a drug and alcohol service for young people aged under 21 years and their families 
offering one to one support for children and young people who are using drugs and/or alcohol.  The 
service carries out specialist drug and alcohol assessments to identify, plan and coordinate interventions 
to reduce/abstain from substance misuse. 

Early Break have a link worker attached to Tier 3 CAMHS to ensure that consultation takes place for 
those young people experiencing mental health issues and using substances.    The service will also 
provide training to CAMHS staff about new and emerging substances and trends, which can affect the 
emotional and mental wellbeing of young people.  This links into young people presenting at hospital for 

Page 258



32

overdose or self-harm where substance misuse is involved.

 Holding Families – is a multidisciplinary service that aims to help families with problems associated with 
significant parental substance misuse, where children and adults’ needs are dealt with and responded to 
at the same time.  The programme works with families where there is at least one young person under 
the age of 18 living in the family home, or where the substance misusing parent is pregnant.  Holding 
families works with each family member separately and as a family unit.  The aim is to:

 support and encourage the family to talk about substance use and associated problems
 highlight any significant harm caused by parental drug or alcohol use
 empower parents to make necessary changes
 encourage parents to remain in treatment for alcohol or drugs
 allow children’s voices to be heard by parents and workers
 help families move down the safeguarding threshold
 build on the things families are already doing well

 
 Social Investment Fund – For the past four years, HMR CCG has invested in a Social Investment Fund 

(SIF).  Through the SIF the CCG has sought to embed a programme that is transformative in its 
relationship with the voluntary/3rd sector providers: 

 to determine local needs and aspirations
 to promote health and reduce health inequalities
 to improve and broaden the range of voluntary/3rd sector provision
 to strengthen accountability in our communities in managing and delivering voluntary/3rd sector 

provision

This fund focuses on early help and self-care and HMR CCG believes this focus is vital for the services it 
commissions. There are a range of voluntary/3rd sector services within the Borough that support the 
emotional needs of our children and young people.  These services can usually be accessed through self-
referral and include both individual and family support.  

Details of the services/schemes supported through the SIF in 2018/19 can be viewed here.  

 Early Help Assessment Framework - The Early Help Assessment process is well embedded in our work 
with children and young people across the Borough. The assessment is initiated with the family when 
more help and support is required than a single agency can provide. The assessment enables an holistic 
approach to support the child or young person taking an asset based approach and agreeing key actions 
for both the family and practitioners to undertake to improve outcomes.  

8.4  Step 4 – Getting More Help (CAMHS in community led interventions)

The services available for children and young people who need specialist help and support in the 
community include:

 Healthy Young Minds Rochdale (Core CAMHS Service) – Healthy Young Minds offers a skilled children’s 
emotional health assessment and intervention service to children and young people with more 
moderate to severe mental health needs up to the age of 19 years, including those with severe learning 
disability and complex neurodevelopmental disorders (ASD and ADHD).  The service offers specialist 
interventions for a range of conditions, in concordance with NICE guidance, where guidance exists.

Page 259



33

A systemic approach to care planning is in place and specific interventions provided that have regard to 
caring for children/young people who are cared for and have emotional/behavioural/mental health 
difficulties.  Where a cared for child/young person has a mental health need, the service will work with 
residential care providers and foster carers as necessary to support the prevention of a placement 
breakdown, and to avoid children being placed unnecessarily out of Borough.

For children and young people requiring intensive support the service provides a coordinated response, 
drawing down support from children’s services, the inreach / outreach/enhanced outreach service, 
paediatrics, day unit provision where available and schools to ensure that all agencies work effectively 
together to address the needs of the individual and avoid an inpatient or residential admission.

The service has strong pathways to drug and alcohol services for young people with dual diagnosis and 
young people who may have parents that have substance related issues as well as mental health issues. 

Urgent care pathways are in place to provide a 24 hour response to young people presenting in crisis. All 
young people under 16 presenting as an emergency are seen on the same day between 9am to 5pm by 
Healthy Young Minds and by the core CAMHS on call service between 5pm and 9am, and 24 hours a day 
during weekends and holidays. All young people aged 16 to 18 are seen by the adult Rapid Assessment 
Interface and Discharge (RAID) team 24 hours a day if they present in an emergency to A&E or the 136 
suite.  Healthy Young Minds also provide an urgent response to the Rochdale Urgent Care Centre and 
assess Rochdale young people on the Paediatric ward in Oldham between 9am and 5pm.  There are 
robust links and clear pathways with Tier 4 and the Trust wide Young People’s Inreach / Outreach team, 
and so, if admission is appropriate, discharge and supported step down planning can begin immediately. 

 Section 136 Suites – there are currently arrangements in place to record and incident report all episodes 
of young people attending 136 suites and such an episode triggers a follow up from core CAMHS for 
children and young people under 16 and known 16-18 year olds.  Our Healthy Young Minds Service also 
has a protocol in place jointly with adults, such that if a young person presents to the 136 suite multiple 
times, a multi-agency review is required and will be convened. 

 Community Eating Disorder Service – delivered from a vibrant, child/young person oriented hub 
located centrally in Bury supports young people from 8 to 18 years.  The service offers drop in, group 
assessments and treatments and provides both routine and specialist support, including family based 
approaches.  The hub provides somewhere that young people can come to for the day; however, a core 
element of the service is delivered in individual homes, schools and colleges. For those young people 
who present with additional complexity, including high levels of psychiatric risk, acute medical risk and 
significant co-morbidity or social adversity, the service has strong and routine interfaces with other 
professionals so that it can draw upon appropriate additional resource to meet the required need.  This 
includes Tier 4 specialist CAMHS, social care or urgent medical intervention.  The service has also 
maintained links with the Healthy Young Minds service to support joint working and to avoid 
unnecessary transitions and barriers for young people and families.

8.5  Step 5 – Getting intensive help (CAMHS hospital and hospital at home services)

Services to support children and young people who require specialist support are:

 Specialist Commissioning - The Tier 4 specialist services for our children and young people are 
commissioned by NHS England.  The specialist services are intended for those children and young 
people who are suffering from severe and/or complex mental health conditions that cannot be 
adequately treated by community based services.  The specialist commissioned services include:  

Page 260



34

inpatient services, general specialist adolescent services, including day case and intensive outreach care, 
specialist autistic spectrum disorder services and specialist perinatal services.  

 Inpatient services - the Hope and Horizon Units are part of the CAMHS in-patient facilities, situated 
within Fairfield Hospital, Bury and managed by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust.  Treatment and 
support is provided to young people, aged between 13 and 18 years old, who are suffering from a range 
of mental health difficulties.  Both units are led by an expert team of healthcare professionals 
comprising psychiatrists, psychologists, nurses, occupational therapists, dieticians and teachers and 
their co-location enables the seamless assessment and treatment of young people with both acute and 
complex needs.  Whilst these units are open to all young people within the UK, every effort is made to 
reduce the number of young people from Rochdale from being placed out with this service.  For those 
young people who are placed out of area, CAMHS do, however, ensure continuity and consistency of 
care and will continue to be involved in their care planning.  Our local specialist CAMHS inpatient 
provider, Healthy Young Minds received a rating of ‘outstanding’ for its inpatient services following a 
CQC inspection in 2016.  The full report can be found at:
http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RT2/inspection-summary#mhadolescent 

 Specialist General Adolescent Services – these are services provided for young people aged between 13 
and 18 with a range of mental disorders (including:  depression, psychoses, eating disorders, severe 
anxiety disorder, and emerging personality disorders), associated with significant impairment and/or 
significant risk to themselves or others, such that their needs cannot be safely and adequately met by 
Healthy Young Minds.  The service provision includes young people with a mild learning disability and 
autistic spectrum disorders who do not require Tier 4 CAMHS Learning Disability Services.

 The Health and Justice Service:

NHS England’s health and justice team - are responsible for commissioning services for children and 
young people in secure settings, including secure children’s homes and prisons, as well as sexual assault 
referral centres (SARC) supporting victims of sexual violence.  They work with police and the criminal 
justice system to respond to forensic requirements and to meet the needs of the children and young 
people in that process.

Police custody healthcare and liaison and diversion programmes - the Health and Justice team have 
direct commissioning responsibility for Police Custody Healthcare and Liaison & Diversion programmes. 
The Youth Offending Triage provision can be accessed from police custody and liaison and diversion 
services (both within police custody and courts) in order to meet the needs of these children and young 
people and support the flow away from the criminal justice system.  The Youth Offending Triage 
provision will assess young people who have been arrested for the first time and are admitting their 
offence. It is also used for those who are assessed as vulnerable and in need, including concern 
regarding mental health issues.  The assessment may conclude with referrals to prevention services or 
to a specialist service, such as Early Break, to address issues around substance misuse.

Local Support to the specialist health and justice service - we will work with the specialist health and 
justice service to continue to improve local pathways for children and young people leaving the justice 
system, or those children and young people, who are victims of sexual violence or are perpetrators of 
sexual violence.

Local support for children and young people leaving Welfare only homes - All children and young 
people returning from Welfare only homes will have ‘Looked After’ status, therefore close working 
relationships between the child’s social worker and family/carer is imperative.  Furthermore, this group 
of children are often extremely vulnerable, with complex needs, including CSE (child sexual exploitation) 

Page 261

http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RT2/inspection-summary#mhadolescent


35

concerns, history of abuse and mental/emotional health issues.  All children returning from secure 
accommodation are Cared for Children and will receive the support of their allocated social worker and 
a PA if they are over 16 years of age.

Local support for children and young people who are victims of, or perpetrators of sexual violence – 
locally there are clear pathways in place between Healthy Young Minds, the Sunrise team (child sexual 
exploitation) and the Complex Early Help and Safeguarding Hub.  Our Healthy Young Minds Service and 
the partner agencies work collaboratively with young people who have been victims of CSE, sexual 
violence and with perpetrators of sexual violence/abuse offering interventions based on the young 
person’s presentation, for example, post-traumatic stress disorder work, anxiety management, DBT, CBT 
and psychological interventions.

The Sunrise Team - Children and young people at risk of CSE will be supported by the Sunrise team.  
Sunrise comprises personnel from Greater Manchester Police, children’s social workers, health 
professionals and charity workers, and has links to adult social care, the youth offending team, targeted 
youth support, licensing and housing departments.  It works on the front line in Rochdale, Heywood, 
Middleton and the Pennines, reaching out to young people at risk in the community. The specially 
trained staff help children to break free of exploitative relationships, and ensure offenders are brought 
to justice.  

The Youth Offending Service - where young people are assessed as at risk of, or have perpetrated a 
sexual offence, AIM2 (assessment, intervention and moving on) assessments are provided by and 
overseen by the Youth Offending Service. Referrals can be made by Children’s Social Care or the police 
and the young person does not have to be criminalised in the process. 

The service has continued to be delivered as a multi-disciplinary team with a key focus on improving 
outcomes for young offenders.  A key element of this has been the continued successful identification of 
sexually harmful behaviour, and implementation and delivery of AIM2 assessments for young people in 
the Borough. Through this work we have developed a more consistent approach to addressing 
inappropriate sexual behaviour by young people who are either referred through Welfare pathways or 
through the Criminal Justice System. The Youth Offending Service staff are trained in ‘AIM2’ 
assessments and interventions and are able to lead and advise colleagues from Children Services dealing 
with these issues and therefore ensure that an holistic approach to meeting both victim and perpetrator 
needs is adopted. 

The Youth Offending Service includes a Health pathway for young offenders to ensure that there is 
robust holistic health provision for all young offenders. All referrals now go to the dedicated Senior 
School Nurse for the Complex Caseload. The Senior School Nurse and Service Lead will meet regularly 
with Youth Offending Team practitioners and the management team to ensure that all health needs are 
met, as well as linking with other health specialists, for example, sexual health and Early Break.  The 
Senior School Nurse will proactively engage with Youth Offending Service clients to ensure health needs 
are met and healthy lifestyles promoted.

Working with the police, we have enhanced our pathways to avoid criminalising young people with 
emotional and mental health problems by considering implementing out of court disposals, such as: 
prevention, restorative justice, diversion and triage, all of which offer an assessment and package of 
intervention.

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) - in addition to the Sunrise Team, the ACT (Achieving Change Together) 
service for victims of CSE has been launched.  This service has been delivered jointly with Wigan 
Borough Council as part of the Department for Education (DfE) innovation pilots and was co-designed 

Page 262



36

with young people, partners and parents. The service has been inclusive of a trauma therapist and 
through working in a strength based and relationship model of intervention it has provided intensive 
early support to 25 young people affected by sexual exploitation. This work builds on the success of the 
Sunrise Team, Project Phoenix and it is testament to the scale of our ambition to prevent and support 
victims of CSE. 

In relation to the health and protection of young people experiencing/at risk of CSE, the Sunrise Health 
Co-ordinator has had a key role particularly in relation to hard to reach young people, such as young 
people absent from school and young people over the age of 16 who are not in further education etc. 
The Health Co-ordinator undertakes a health assessment on each child open to the team and will either 
liaise directly with the relevant health services involved or work directly with young people in respect of 
their health.

9.0 Current resource and investment in Children and Young People’s mental health services

9.1 Investment - the table below details the Borough wide investment on mental health services and 
support for children and young people.  Although, it is recognised that early help and support is 
provided across universal services, for example, the role of health visitors, school nurses and 
children’s centres, the table below represents only the directly commissioned services relating to 
emotional and mental health.  It is further acknowledged that Health and Wellbeing form a 
fundamental aspect to the school curriculum throughout the age range.  Alongside their statutory 
duties, schools have a wide variety of activities both within the taught curriculum and through extra-
curricular activities that support pupil wellbeing.  

InvestmentLevel of Need Description of Support
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Prevention (Step 
1)

A range of services aimed at 
building resilience, and promoting 
self-help, including:  five ways to 
wellbeing; self-help books on 
prescription; and a self-harm 
prevention campaign.

£10,000 £10,000 £10,000 £10,000

Early Help and 
Support (Steps 1 
and 2)

Through its social investment fund, 
the CCG has commissioned a range 
of community and voluntary sector 
services offering emotional and 
mental health support to children 
and young people, as well as 
building community resilience and 
capacity.

£131,528 £432,582 £272,140 £385,108

Targeted Help 
(Step 3)

Counselling and Bereavement 
Services /#Thrive emotional health 
and wellbeing service.

£185,568 £184,737 £561,010 £607,243

Specialist  Care 
(Step 4)

Core CAMHS provision offering 
specialist services to children and 
young people who are experiencing 
mental health difficulties up to and 
including the age of 18 years.  The 
service provides assessment and 
intervention and support to 
families/carers, as well as training 
and advice to other front line 
services.

Community Eating Disorders

£3,274,000

N/a

£3,017,000

£134,019

£3,231,846
 

£134,019

£3,248,000

£134,019

Page 263



37

Specialist 
Inpatient 
Care/Complex 
Care (Step 5)

Specialist inpatient care including:  
eating disorders; secure learning 
disabilities; low-secure placements; 
psychiatric intensive care unit; 
MSU; mother and baby; acute and 
medium/longer term admissions.

£369,317 £586,198 N/a N/a

Specialist Health 
and Justice 
Service

Specialist secure estate and Sexual 
Assault Referral Centres (SARC) are 
provided on a national footprint.  

Block contract 
– cannot 
disaggregate 
for HMR 
residents.

Block contract 
– cannot 
disaggregate 
for HMR 
residents.

Block contract 
– cannot 
disaggregate 
for HMR 
residents.

Block contract 
– cannot 
disaggregate 
for HMR 
residents

Rochdale Youth 
Offending Service

Multi-disciplinary team working 
with young offenders in Rochdale 
from 10 years up to the age of 18. 
The team provides a fair and 
consistent service for all young 
people in the criminal justice 
process and aims to work 
effectively with young people to 
reduce the level and impact of 
youth crime in Rochdale.

Dedicated 
Youth Justice 
Grant for 
whole service 
provision.

Dedicated 
Youth Justice 
Grant for 
whole service 
provision.

Dedicated 
Youth Justice 
Grant for 
whole service 
provision.

Dedicated 
Youth Justice 
Grant for 
whole service 
provision

Early Break Young People’s Drug and Alcohol 
Service - offering information, 
advice and support (including 
emotional support) for young 
people and families with substance 
misuse related issues.

£399,619 £399,619 £379,619 £350,600

9.2 Staffing and workforce development – we aim to deliver the national ambition to increase staffing 
levels for therapists and supervisors.  The table below indicates the anticipated additional therapists 
and supervisors required to meet the national agenda.

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Workforce: Therapists WTE 0.9 1.9 1.9 1 0.2

Workforce: Supervisors WTE 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.3 0.1

 The table below details the staffing resource in our commissioned emotional and mental health 
services.  The table does not include staffing numbers for 3rd sector services, or for services which 
indirectly provide emotional and mental health support, but where this is not the main 
commissioned function, for example, the role of health visitors, school nurses and children’s centres 
etc.

Staffing Numbers (WTE)*
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Healthy Young Minds 49.20 46.10 46.60 43.00
#Thrive** n/a n/a 10.00 17.00
Hype 2.95 2.95 n/a n/a
Bereavement Service 1.07 1.07 n/a n/a
Community Eating Disorder Services (6.7 wte North 
East Sector)

n/a n/a 2.2 2.2

Total 53.22 50.12 58.8 62.2
*includes both clinical and non-clinical staff
**plus a number of volunteers

Page 264



38

9.3 Children and Young People’s Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) – Pennine 
Care was in the first wave to implement CYP IAPT and the programme is now fully embedded within 
the Healthy Young Minds service.  CYP IAPT has been the driver for significant transformation which 
has made a visible difference to the experience of children, young people and families.  This includes 
the development of the Young Advisor role, reduced waiting times and the collaborative 
development of outcome focused and evidence based care pathways delivered by skilled staff with 
enhanced training.  We will continue to participate in the CYP IAPT programme and will work to 
improve the workforce through the training of existing and new CAMHS staff, including statutory, 
voluntary and independent sector services in an agreed, standardised curriculum of NICE approved 
evidence based therapies. 

The table below shows the number of staff who have completed training in children and young 
people’s improving access to psychological therapies (CYP IAPT) since 2015/16.  

 

Nos. of Staff Trained
Academic Year (January to 

December)
Course 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
SFP, CBT, IPT-A, LD/ASD 1  4
Clinical Supervisor  1  
EEBP  2 1
Total 1 3 5

10.0 Performance 

10.1 The number of children and young people accessing treatment – nationally there is a requirement 
to increase the number of children and young people with a diagnosable mental health condition 
treated in NHS-funded community mental health services by at least 35% by 2020/21.  The table 
below shows the required increase in children and young people accessing services each year in 
Rochdale. 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
At least 35% of CYP with diagnosable MH 
condition treated in NHS-funded community 
MH service

28% 30% 32% 34% 35%

Additional CYP treated over 2014/15 baseline 94 157 220 282 314

The data below shows Quarter 2 CCG performance against indicators set as part of the 
implementation of the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health.  These indicators are designed to 
monitor and demonstrate progress in increasing access to NHS funded community mental health 
services for children and young people.  For CCG’s, the national ambition is they increase activity to 
the level necessary to meet the national trajectory, with expectations that an extra 35,000 children 
and young people are treated in 2017/18 over the 2014/15 position.  The overall number of 
individual children and young people receiving treatment in the period was up 7% on plan, with 415 
CYP receiving treatment versus 389 on plan.  The overall national target is to achieve 30% of children 
and young people with a diagnosable mental health condition who receive treatment from an NHS-
funded community mental health service, with HMR CCG achieving 30.7% YTD across the first two 
quarters of the year.  These figures are based upon published data from NHS Digital’s Supplementary 
Information files and the Mental Health Services Dataset, with data subject to rounding as seen 
within adults IAPT datasets.

Page 265



39

Quarter Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18 YTD2017/18

Plan 368 389 757
Actual 365 415 780

Variance +/- -1% 7% 3%

2a - Total number of 
individual children and 
young people aged 0-18 

receiving treatment by NHS 
funded community services 

in the reporting period.

HMR versus Plan

10.2 #Thrive – the table below shows the number of referrals into the #Thrive service since it commenced 
in July 2016, along with the average waiting time.  
1) Number Of Referrals Into Service and Referrals Accepted

Financial Year Total Referrals Into 
Service Accepted % Accepted

FY 2016/ 17                                  987                                  983 99.6%
FY 2017/ 18 (1st Apr-17 to 14/03/2018)                               1,497                               1,485 99.2%

2) Number Of Initial & Follow-Up Contacts

Financial Year First Follow-Up Total
FY 2016/ 17                                  654                               1,794                               2,448 
FY 2017/ 18 (1st Apr-17 to 09/03/2018)                               1,146                               4,459                               5,605 

3) Waited Times

Assessments FY 2016 / 17 FY 2017 / 18
Assessment Within 12 Weeks 499 1032
Not Assessed Within 12 Weeks 13 54
Total Seen                                  512                               1,086 
Percent Target 12 97.5% 95.0%
Avg. Wait For First Assessment (Weeks) 4.0 2.0

Treatments FY 2016 / 17 FY 2017 / 18
Treatment Within 18 Weeks 481 1023
Not Treated Within 18 Weeks 2 37
Total Seen                                  483                               1,060 
Percent Seen 99.6% 96.5%
Avg. Wait For First Treatment (Weeks) 5.0 3.0

4) Number Of Patients In Treatment (defined here as the total number of patients who have attended a contact)

Financial Year No Of Patients Who Have Attended A 
Contact

FY 2016/ 17                                  602 
FY 2017/ 18 (1st Apr-17 to 09/03/2018)                               1,257 

10.3 Healthy Young Minds – the tables below provide referral and waiting time information for the 
Healthy Young Minds service over previous the 4 financial years up to and including 9th March 2018.

Page 266



40

1) Number Of Referrals Into Service and Referrals Accepted

Financial Year Total Referrals Into Service Accepted % Accepted

FY 2014 / 15 2,375 1,814 76%
FY 2015 / 16 2,087 1,421 68%

FY 2016 / 17
                                             

2,370 
                                             

1,801 76%

FY 2017 / 18 (1st Apr-17 to 9th Mar-18 only)
                                             

2,114 
                                             

1,379 65%

2) Number Of Initial & Follow-Up Contacts

Financial Year First Follow-Up Total
FY 2014 / 15 2,338 11,551 13,889
FY 2015 / 16 1,765 12,559 14,324

FY 2016 / 17
                                             

1,707 
                                          

11,240 
                                          

12,947 

FY 2017/ 18 (1st Apr-17 to 09/03/2018)
                                             

1,054 
                                          

13,429 
                                          

14,483 
3) Waited Times

Assessments FY 2014 / 15 FY 2015 / 16 FY 2016 / 17 FY 2017 / 18
Assessment Within 12 Weeks 830 717 1029 965
Not Assessed Within 12 Weeks 753 543 226 73
Total Seen 1,583 1,260                        

1,255 
                        

1,038 
Percent Target 12 52.40% 56.90% 82.0% 93.0%
Avg. Wait For First Assessment (Weeks) 16 14 8.0 5.0

Treatments FY 2014 / 15* FY 2015 / 16* FY 2016 / 17 FY 2017 / 18
Treatment Within 18 Weeks 1,128 946                        

1,149 957

Not Treated Within 18 Weeks 455 314                                
62 36

Total Seen 1,583 1,260                        
1,211 

                            
993 

Percent Seen 71.30% 75.10% 94.9% 96.4%
Avg. Wait For First Treatment (Weeks) 16 14 8.0 6.0

4) Number Of Patients In Treatment (defined here as the total number of patients who have attended a 
contact)

Financial Year No Of Patients Who Have 
Attended A Contact

FY 2014 / 15 2,138
FY 2015 / 16 2,153
FY 2016 / 17                              2,053 
FY 2017/ 18 (1st Apr-17 to 09/03/2018)                              1,852 

10.4 Community Eating Disorder Service (CEDS) – the tables below shows activity data for the period 
2016/17 and 2017/18 up to 31st December 2017. The activity below relates to the number of 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Children accessing the service; however, the service is 
commissioned on a North East Sector basis and therefore overall activity in the service will also 
include Bury and Oldham CCGs.

Page 267



41

1) Number Of Referrals Into Service

Financial Year
Total 

Referrals 
Into Service

Average 
Wait to 

Treatment 
(weeks)

FY 2016 / 17 - 
(Apr to Jan)

19 (17 
accepted) N/a

Total 19  

Period reported
Access and Waiting 
Times (AWT)

Number of patients 
referred

Number of patients 
seen within 
timeframe % achieved

Urgent 0-1 weeks 1 1 100%Q1 17/18
Routine 1-4 weeks 4 4 100%
Urgent 0-1 weeks 0 0  Q2 17/18
Routine 1-4 weeks 2 2 100%
Urgent 0-1 weeks 0 0  Q3 17/18
Routine 1-4 weeks 4 4 100%
Urgent 0-1 weeks 1 1 100%YTD 17/18
Routine 1-4 weeks 10 10 100%

10.5 Specialist Inpatient Services – the table below represents the number of Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale children and young people admitted to inpatient care in 2014/15 and 2015/16, along with 
the associated number of ordinary bed days.

2014/15 CAMHS Admissions - Greater Manchester – All NW Units

CCG General ED PICU Mother and 
Baby

 No. OBD No. OBD No. OBD No. OBD
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG 5 315 1 222 0 0 3 76

2015/16 CAMHS Admissions - Greater Manchester – All NW Units

CCG General ED PICU Mother and 
Baby

 No. OBD No. OBD No. OBD No. OBD
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG 21 834 0 0 2 200 0 0

11.0 Local Policy and Frameworks

11.1 Rochdale Locality Plan - our approach to CAMHS transformation is firmly embedded within 
Rochdale’s Locality Plan. Indeed we have taken the ethos of the THRIVE model to inform our 
approach to our wider service delivery model in the Locality Plan – recognising that is applicable 
across a wider system that seeks to build self-reliance and community capacity, provide co-ordinated 
help and intervention as soon as it is needed to avoid escalation of need and crisis responses.

We know that we cannot achieve a sustainable health and social care system without investing in our 
children and young people to prevent them becoming the future users of adult services; thus ‘turning 

Page 268



42

off the tap’ of future demand.  Poor emotional and mental health in childhood impacts not only on 
future mental health but also on educational outcomes, future employment and many of the other 
wider determinants of poor health in adult life.  We are therefore ensuring that the interventions 
that we describe in this plan are fundamental elements of our wider Locality Plan, and a key vehicle 
through which we will deliver the mental health prevention aspirations, and reduce demand on 
specialist services.

11.2 Integrated Commissioning - During 2015/16 the CCG Governing Body and Rochdale Borough Council 
Cabinet formally agreed to establish integrated commissioning arrangements between the two 
organisations.  Work has progressed at pace during 2017/18 and plans are now in place to formally 
establish the integrated commissioning arrangements.  Both organisations will now have a single 
leadership team led by Steve Rumblelow, Chief Executive of Rochdale Borough Council.   A single 
pooled fund for all services for children and young people (other than those commissioned by NHS 
England) has been developed and has been operating in shadow form during 2017/18.  A virtual 
integrated commissioning team for children and young people was established in 2014.

11.3 Rochdale Borough Mental Health Crisis Concordat – Rochdale Borough is a member of the Strategic 
Mental Health Board, which has developed a Greater Manchester declaration to the Mental Health 
Crisis Care Concordat. Rochdale Borough is a signatory to this GM declaration through the CCG and 
RBC’s relationship with AGMA. The declaration subscribes to the principles of the concordat and 
provides a Greater Manchester wide commitment to working together to improve the system of care 
and support so that people in crisis because of a mental health condition are kept safe.  

Locally, a Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat operational subgroup has overseen the development 
and implementation of a response action plan. Subgroup membership incorporates representatives 
from HMR CCG, RBC, third sector provider organisations, Greater Manchester Police (Rochdale 
division), acute and mental health provider trusts and North West Ambulance Service. 

The group has undertaken a gap analysis of local provision and implemented a Street Triage service 
to enable integrated working between blue light services and mental health services and improve 
patient outcomes. The action plan focuses on four key areas, which are being taken forward via the 
mental health theme in our Locality Plan:

1) Implementation of Frequent fliers multi-disciplinary offer
2) Development of community crisis and safe space offer
3) Emergency Department pathways development between acute and mental health providers
4) Inpatient discharge pathway and Mental Health Act response review

11.4 Rochdale Borough Health and Wellbeing Strategy - provides an overarching plan for improving the 
health and wellbeing of our Borough. Informed by our JSNA, and in consultation with stakeholders, it 
identifies 5 key priorities and a series of strategic intentions which provide the framework for 
commissioning health and wellbeing services in the Borough.  

11.5 Early Help Strategy – Emotional and mental wellbeing is identified as a top priority in the Early Help 
Strategy because it is seen as key to enabling children and young people to fulfil their potential. The 
inter-connections between poor mental wellbeing, substance misuse and domestic abuse are also 
highlighted.  The Strategy recognises that children and young people with poor social and emotional 
wellbeing are likely to experience a range of poorer outcomes, including lower educational 
attainment, and smaller support networks and that children of parents who experience poor mental 
wellbeing are also at risk of poorer outcomes.

Page 269



43

11.6 Working together to safeguard children – stresses the importance of the relationship between 
services offering an ‘early help’ response to families and those services providing specialist 
interventions in order to deliver their shared responsibility to safeguard children and young people. 
Identifying children, young people and families who are ‘at risk’ of poorer outcomes enables agencies 
to work effectively to reduce this risk.

11.7   The Children and Young People’s Plan – sets out a wide range of indicators, which are monitored by 
the Children and Young People’s Partnership, to assess the impact of a range of interventions to 
improve outcomes for children and young people in the Borough. Specific indicators are attributed to 
vulnerable groups, e.g. Cared4children and young parents, whilst other population level indicators 
are agreed, e.g. educational attainment.

11.8 The Rochdale Borough Suicide Prevention Strategy – has been refreshed during 2015/16 and has an 
annual action plan.  The overarching priorities of the strategy have been taken from the national 
suicide prevention strategy, and the new Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Strategy and plans 
have been developed to implement the key areas for action locally.

12.0 Our co-design approach

The Children’s Integrated Commissioning Team recognised that the creation of integrated 
commissioning arrangements provided us with a unique opportunity to transform how we design 
and deliver services.  We know that we really do need to do things differently and there is a 
commitment to adopting a co-design approach to commissioning and delivery from the outset, so 
that this becomes embedded as part of the team’s culture and approach. Supported by the 
Innovation Unit (www.innovationunit.org) the team has undertaken an extensive programme of co-
design to understand the real lived experiences and needs of the children and young people in 
Rochdale who have experienced, or may be at risk of experiencing, emotional or mental distress. This 
involved undertaking a series of ethnographies with young people with the aim of gathering valuable 
insights into their real experiences, both in terms of their needs and the services that were available 
to meet those needs.  This work also involved participation from a variety of providers/stakeholders 
within the Borough, including health, public health, RBC, social care, education, Rochdale 
Healthwatch and third sector voluntary and community organisations, and has helped us collectively 
to understand the opportunities to improve the local service provision.  Ultimately, with involvement 
from the children and young people throughout the whole programme, including the analysis and 
design process, a clear set of design principles and outcome goals have been developed.  The design 
principles and outcome goals articulated through this process will be used to commission emotional 
and mental health services for children and young people within the Rochdale Borough.

12.1 The design principles – below are the design principles articulated through the co-design process, 
which shall now be used to commission emotional and mental health services for children and young 
people within the Rochdale Borough:

1. Safe to access - Non-threatening, non-discriminatory, confidential and allowing anonymity

2. Demonstrate real commitment - No wrong way, no wrong time, flexible around young people’s 
needs

3. Trusted people first - Work with trusted people in our communities

4. Build on strengths and aspirations - Actively identify individuals’ strengths and build positive 
stories and conversations

5. Always look for the causes beyond the presenting issues - Consider the whole person and the 
family in a wider context

Page 270

http://www.innovationunit.org/


44

6. By and for young people - Designed and delivered with young people to be accessible, engaging 
and friendly

7. Shared decision making - Involve young people, and invite them to involve the people they trust 
in decision making about them

8. Talk openly - Promote open, communicative dialogue about emotional health and wellbeing

9. Easy access to helpful knowledge and insight - Expand networks between trusted adults and 
professional specialists

10. Attentive and observant - Available to listen and open to seeing what is really happening

12.2 The outcome goals - below are the outcome goals articulated through the co-design process; those 
in bold were considered by children and young people to be the most important. 

Domain 1: Quality of Life
Feeling Healthy  I feel safe at home 

 I feel hopeful about the future 
 I am emotionally supported in a way that suits me
 I have strategies to cope with physical and emotional stress
 I feel positive about who I am / I know that I matter
 I live the life I want
 I am able to concentrate and think straight about things
 I am physically active
 I live in secure housing free from health risks
 I am given realistic expectations 
 I have a good diet

Involvement in 
meaningful, 
enjoyable activities

 I have opportunities to have fun and get involved in meaningful activities that I 
enjoy

 I have the confidence to get involved in activities as I would like to 
 I have a productive outlet for my skills
 I can make a contribution to society

Having positive 
relationships

 I have people around me I trust, I can talk to and who look out for me and help 
me to stay well

 I am able to maintain a positive relationship with a parent/carer or other 
member of my family I want to see

 I have opportunities to connect with others
 I have confidence to make connections with friends and talk to new people 
 I am not bullied by anyone

Achieving success 
(e.g. in education, 
work)

 I have confidence in what I can achieve
 I have opportunities to develop and learn things which interest me
 I have opportunities for making work and education fit my preferences and 

needs
 I have the confidence and support I need to build towards my future through 

changes in my life

Being supported  I know what to do and who to turn to when I need help

Page 271



45

 I have access to support that is appropriate to my age, condition and 
background

 My family/carer(s) are involved in my care as much as I would like them to be
 My friends and family know how to support me if I need help
 I have the support I need to achieve the future I want
 I am able to care for and support others as much as I would like to
 Adaptations are made at my workplace/ voluntary/ educational setting so I can 

live a productive life as I would like to

Domain 2:  Quality of Care
Being informed 
and in control

 Professionals and those around me actively involve me in learning about, 
understanding and making decisions about my health

 I know who to turn to when I have a concern or an emergency
 I can get involved in designing services for people like me
 I have a choice in services that I can access and I am aware of the difference 

between them
 I am made aware of changes in my life as I grow up, and I know what to expect 
 I am fully aware of what to expect and can challenge services that do not meet 

those expectations 
 I have the option to change my keyworker

Trust, dignity and 
respect

 I am respected and listened to as a whole person
 I am supported in an environment that is appropriate to my needs
 I can trust the people who support me to be open and honest
 There is consistency of people supporting me
 Professionals demonstrate they are competent, friendly and care about me
 My goals (short term and long term) are taken into account and valued
 My skills, abilities and resources are recognised when I seek help and considered 

in my recovery
Access to 
appropriate help 
and support

 People in my school / community are made aware of how to identify and 
support people who need it

 I have quick access to a trusted person that I can talk to when I need to 
 I am able to access support from home and over the internet
 Support is available in a safe and convenient place (including a physical space, 

over the phone or online)
 I don’t want to have to repeat my story 
 I have access to advice from people my age or with similar experiences
 I am trained and comfortable with technology to be able to access health and 

support on the internet
 There is some place safe and familiar for me to go to chill out

12.3 Young Advisors – a number of young people aged 14-19 years from the Rochdale Borough have been 
formally trained to become community consultants, specialising in health and wellbeing.  Supported 
by Rochdale CAMHS and Rochdale and District Mind, the young people have joined the National 
Young Advisors Network, which provides a range of consultancy training techniques for teams of 
young people who show community leadership.  The training lasts 12 months and equips the young 
people to engage with local decision makers and work collaboratively with local commissioners to 
improve local emotional and mental health services for children and young people, bringing their 
unique expertise and knowledge about being young to influence planning and decision-making.  The 
Rochdale Young Advisors have recently won the ‘Best new young advisor team’ award at the 

Page 272



46

National Young Advisors Annual General Meeting.  The Young Advisors have participated in our co-
design programme and are a member of our CAMHS Partnership, and have been involved in the 
development of our CAMHS Transformation Plan.  They have also successfully delivered a self-harm 
campaign in collaboration with Health Action Champions and Youth MP/Youth Cabinet.  

We will continue to develop the role of the Young Advisors ensuring that they are involved in the co-
design of children and young people’s services and actively support the transformation process as 
part of the Locality Plan and Devolution Manchester implementation.

13.0 Service Transformation – implementation plan for delivery

The Rochdale Borough CAMHS transformation plan seeks to deliver our vision and aims for 
transforming children and young people’s mental health services over the course of the next five 
years.  A detailed plan containing specifics for each improvement area described in section 5.0 is 
currently being developed and will be available and published alongside this document.

13.1 Local Allocations – to deliver the requirements of the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health – 
the table below show the allocations in the CCG baseline both for Eating Disorders and children and 
young people’s mental health.

 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 Recurrent 
Investment

Community Eating Disorder 
Allocation £134,019 £134,019 £134,019 £134,019 £134,019 £134,019 £134,019

CYP Mental Health Indicative 
Allocation £335,462 £533,000 £627,000 £762,000 £851,000 £956,966 £956,966

The table below highlights the CCG allocations in baseline for Perinatal and Infant Mental Health.

Financial Year 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Recurrent 

Investment

Allocation   £32,000 £176,000 £368,000 £504,000 £504,000

13.2 Financial Investment Plan – details of the financial investment over the next 5 years to support our 
local CAMHS transformation is provided in the table below.  In addition to the investment through 
the CAMHS LTP allocations, the CCG has invested an additional £400,000 from Parity of Esteem.  This 
along with the existing funding for emotional health and wellbeing of almost £200,000 has resulted 
in the procurement of our new emotional health and wellbeing service #Thrive.  

Page 273



47

Notes:  Overspend in 2016/17 was found within mental health parity of esteem budget.
Ref 13 – CYP IAPT does not include staff commencing the course during the academic year 2018/19.  The figure for 2018/19 will be 
refreshed once it is clear of the staff training in December 2018.

As detailed in this plan, further work will take place in 2018/19 to understand our priorities in the 
Borough in terms of utilising the funds which are uncommitted in the table above.  There are many 
things that we would like to do, however, with only finite resources available, difficult decisions will 
need to be made.  The Children and Young People’s Mental Health table below will therefore be 
updated once this work has taken place and we are absolutely clear around our priorities in terms of 
the services, pathways and support that we need to develop or enhance.

In addition to the funding set out in the table above, the CCG has also committed a significant 
proportion of its Social Investment Fund (SIF) to schemes at building children and young people’s 
capacity and resilience, particularly those which enhance the pathways of #Thrive.  During 2017/18, 
this amounted to £385,000.

14.0 Measurable Outcomes 

We have taken a co-design approach to measuring outcomes for our children and young people and 
will continue to use the design principles and outcome goals described in section 12.0 in our service 
developments/improvements.  An outcomes framework is used to monitor the performance of our 
commissioned services, which includes timely access to services with specific waiting time targets.  
There are however, a number of overarching key performance indicators that we feel are important 
to measure as an indicator of the success of the whole of our transformation plan.  These are:

Increased opportunities for children and young people to influence service through a 
process of co-design

An additional 314 children and young people with a diagnosable mental health condition 
will have timely access to emotional and mental health services by 2020/21 compared to 

2014/15

Page 274



48

Across Greater Manchester work has taken place to develop and implement a single performance and 
outcomes framework for core CAMHS. 

15.0 Supporting Transformation in Rochdale

15.1 Quality and Safety - Quality is central to all of our commissioning activity and will be a strong focus 
of the transformation of mental health services for children and young people. All of our 
commissioned services are required to deliver a high quality service, which provide safe, clinically 
effective care that is personalised and a positive experience for our children and young people. 

15.2 Evidenced Based Practice - working with practitioners, families/carers, children and young people 
we will ensure that our services and pathways developed are in accordance with NICE and best 
practice guidance and recommendations.  We will also undertake work to benchmark current service 
provision against NICE and best practice guidance and quality standards, including ‘Delivering with 
and Delivering Well’. Any service/pathway improvements identified through this work will be 
included in this transformation plan. 

15.3 Prescribing - The borough has had some interface prescribing issues between primary care, 
secondary care and commissioners.  Through 2014 we have met as partners to establish and agree 
upon a prescribing pathway and encourage improved communication between primary and 
secondary care.  Many medications used in children and young people with mental health or 
neurodevelopmental disorders are unlicensed but endorsed by NICE or other national guidelines.  It 
was agreed that the GMMMG formulary would be followed and those drugs which were amber 
would be initiated and monitored initially in secondary care and then prescribed by primary care.  
Those drugs which are categorised as 'red' such as antipsychotics would remain under the 
responsibility of the secondary care consultant.  It was agreed that a separate drug budget would be 
utilised for those children.  The process has led to improved relationships and networks and has led 
to better and safer patient care.  In addition the borough undertook a project with collaboration 
between commissioners, primary care and secondary care to reduce the costs of melatonin 
prescribing and discontinue inappropriate use.  This project was successful.  Further prescribing 
changes will be made in line with GMMMG advice.

A reduction in children and young people requiring access to 
Step 4 (Tier 3) and Step 5 (Tier 4) services

An increase in the number of children and young people 
accessing self-help and early support services

Fewer visits to A&E for mental health issues

More robust and clearly defined pathways which limit barriers for children and young 
people to access a joined up care system

Easier access to care with shorter waiting times

Page 275



49

Our main objectives for improving patient care are underpinned by an effective primary/secondary 
care interface.  Local clinicians will be working to improve communications in order to improve 
compliance and patient safety to deliver effective care to children and young people with mental 
health problems.

15.4 Equality and Health Inequalities - Everyone has the right to good health. However unfortunately in 
Rochdale there are differences in levels of children and young people’s physical health, mental 
health and wellbeing across the Borough.  Promoting equality and addressing health inequalities are 
key priorities in Rochdale. Throughout the development of the Rochdale Transformation Plan we 
have, and will continue to:

 give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, to advance 
equality of opportunity, and to foster good relations between people who share a relevant 
protected characteristic (as cited under the Equality Act 2010) and those who do not share one or 
more protected characteristics and;

 give regard to the need to reduce inequalities between individuals in access to, and outcomes 
from, healthcare services and ensuring that services are provided in an integrated way where this 
may reduce health inequalities. 

15.5 Delivering Equality and Diversity – not all children and young people are subject to the same level of 
risk in developing emotional and behavioural difficulties.  Having an understanding of the risk factors 
gives an insight in relation to prevention, targeting and directing services.  Those children and young 
people known to be at particular high risk, or more vulnerable than their peers of developing a 
mental health condition, include children and young people:

 Who are being looked after by Rochdale Council or who have recently ended a period of care
 With learning difficulties
 With emotional and behavioural difficulties
 Who have been sexually, physically or emotionally abused and/or suffered neglect
 Who are subject to or at risk of child sexual exploitation (CSE)
 With a chronic physical illness/physical disability/sensory impairment
 Of parents with mental illness/substance abuse issues
 Who have experienced or witnessed sudden or extreme trauma
 Who are refugees/asylum seekers
 Within the restorative justice system (youth offending)
 Who are lesbian, gay, bisexual or trans, including non-binary
 Who are young carers
 Who are homeless
 Who have a specialist education need or disability (SEND)
 Who are subject to or witness to domestic abuse
 Who are teenage mothers

Our children and young people’s mental health provider, Healthy Young Minds has begun capturing 
data on the numbers of children and young people from vulnerable groups who are accessing their 
service.  The table below shows the percentage of children and young people in 2016/17 (April to 
February) accessing the service from each vulnerable group.

Page 276



50

% of children and young people in vulnerable groups - 
1/4/16 to 28/2/17 inclusive

Heywood, Middleton & 
Rochdale (HMR)

Drug And Alcohol Difficulties 2.40%
Looked After Child 4.50%
Young Carer 0.90%
Learning Disability 5.60%
Serious Physical Health Issues 2.90%
Pervasive Developmental Disorders (Autism/Aspergers) 20.20%
Neurological Issues 2.00%
Current Protection Plan 2.10%
Deemed Child In Need Of Social Service Input 6.20%
Refugee Or Asylum Seeker 1.20%
Experience Of War Torture Or Trafficking 0.80%
Experience Of Abuse Or Neglect 13.30%
Parental Health Issues 14.20%
Contact With Youth Justice System 1.80%
Living In Financial Difficulty 2.70%
Care Leaver 0.30%
Adopted Child 0.30%
Involved In Gangs 0.30%
Homeless 0.30%

We will collaborate with Greater Manchester CCGs and Local Authorities to scope where a Greater 
Manchester wide response to the needs of the following vulnerable groups will improve 
outcomes/quality and provide system wide efficiencies.

 Mental health services for Looked after Children, those children who have been adopted and care 
leavers.

 Young people involved with the youth justice system
 Children and young people who have a learning disability, cognitive impairment and/or 

developmental disorders
 Children and young people who have Adverse Childhood Experiences
 Children and young people originating from minority communities
 Transgender children and young people

15.6 Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) – Rochdale and District Mind facilitate a BME forum and are 
currently in the process of revising its terms and conditions.  We will ensure that children and young 
people’s issues relating to BAME and other minority groups, is one of the areas that the forum will 
cover.  There will be links between the BAME Forum and the CAMHS Transformation Partnership to 
ensure that information is fed into and out of both arenas.  This is something that we will be 
discussing with our Young Advisors.  

15.7 Leadership and Governance - Our CAMHS Partnership has agreed that it will now become the 
CAMHS Transformation Group.  It is already established as a sub-group of the Rochdale Children and 
Young People’s Partnership. The accompanying Action Plan to the Local Transformation Plan will be 
implemented and monitored under the direction of the CAMHS Transformation Group.

15.8 Leadership - The leaders who are accountable for the delivery of the plan are:

 Sally McIvor, Director of Commissioning and Director of Adult Social Services, HMR CCG and RBC
 Gail Hopper, Director of Children’s Services, RBC

The manager with responsibility for delivery of the Plan is:

 Karen Kenton, Associate Director of Commissioning (Children), HMR CCG and RBC

15.9 Governance – the flowchart below describes the local governance arrangements for the monitoring 
of the local CAMHS Transformation Plan.  A transformation delivery plan will be used to monitor and 
update on the progress towards achieving the agreed aims and objectives of the transformation.  
This will be held and managed by the CAMHS Transformation Partnership, with regular update 
reports to the Children and Young People’s Partnership.

Page 277



51

Health and Wellbeing Board  
Leads the improvement of the health and wellbeing of the Borough’s population, with 

a specific focus on tackling health inequalities

Children and Young People’s Partnership 
Multiagency partnership to oversee the 

delivery of the children and young 
people’s improvement plan, which seeks 

to improve outcomes for children and 
young people in the borough

Integrated Commissioning Board
Provides strategic overview and 

assurance on behalf of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board on the 

implementation and delivery of agreed 
high level strategies and outcomes set 

jointly by the CCG and RBC.

Children’s Integrated Commissioning 
Team

Brings together children’s 
commissioning from the CCG, Local 

Authority and Public Health

CAMHS Transformation Group (formerly 
CAMHS Partnership Group)

Operationally responsible for the 
improvement of children and young 

people’s emotional and mental health 
services in the Borough

Greater 
Manchester 

Future In Mind 
Implementation 

Group
Family Services Model Partnership

Responsible for the transformation of 
children’s services

15.10 Greater Manchester Transparency and Governance - the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership (GM H&SCP) has developed a Greater Manchester Commissioning Hub to support the 
implementation of a Greater Manchester wide mental health transformation programme.  Additional 
expertise and capacity to support and coordinate the cross agency Greater Manchester Children and 
Young Person’s Mental Health system transformation has been created.

A lead commissioner has been appointed and the post holder chairs the Greater Manchester Future 
in Mind Implementation Group.  This group has representation from all of Greater Manchester’s 10 
Local Transformation Partnerships, NHS Specialised Commissioning Team, Public Health 
Commissioners, Health Education England, and GM’s Strategic Clinical Network.  The group provides 
both peer support and peer challenge for each Local Transformation Partnership, and enables 
commissioners to share challenges and to develop solutions. The Greater Manchester Strategic 
Clinical Network continues to provide expert advice within the context of an “honest broker” role.

During 2017 the GM H&SCP supported the development of a Children & Young Persons’ Mental 
Health Implementation Board to oversee the implementation of the Greater Manchester’s Children 
and Young Persons’ Mental Health programme that has a value of £60m until 2021.  

Membership:

• CCG, Public Health, and Local Authority CYP commissioning or LTP  leads
• Voluntary Faith and Community Groups representation
• Local Authority Children’s Services lead (co-chairs the board)
• Children and young people – via currently establish participation forum
• Early Years, Schools and Colleges 
• Perinatal and Maternal Mental Health lead

Page 278



52

• Youth Justice lead for Greater Manchester
• A LA SEND lead acting on behalf of all 10 LAs/CCGs
• NHSE – specialised commissioning and GM Assurance and Delivery Manager.
• SCN – Clinical leads CAMHS/AMHS, network manager and quality improvement team
• Transformation Projects leads.

The membership, values and operational functions of the board will be reviewed and refreshed 
during Spring of 2018. 

The current Greater Manchester Governance Structure is outlined below:
New GM MH Strategy 

Programme Implementation

Patient, Carers and Public  Networks

Enabling Programmes: MH Task and Finish Groups – BI, Commissioners, Providers, BI, Contracts, Finance, Estates, IM&T, Workforce

MH Programme Delivery 
Board

GM Health & Social Care 
Strategic Partnership  Board

CYP MH Board Adult  MH  Board Population Health 
Board

Diagnosis 
Post-Diagnostic 

Support
Carers

Targeted Groups – BME
Care Homes
End of Life 

Dementia Friendly 
Communities 

Dementia United 
Board

GM Health & Social Care MH Programme  Locality Improvement Collaborative / Networks and Clinical Senates

Communities of Interest 
and Identity 

Work & Health (inc IPS)
Substance Misuse & 

Alcohol - Dual Diagnosis
Homelessness

Other population Public 
Mental Health work 

streams

IAPT 
Early Intervention in 

Psychosis
Liaison MH – Core 24

Mental wellbeing/ 
suicide prevention
Acute Care Pathway 

Redesign & OAPs
Primary Care MH Access

SMI Physical Health
Personality Disorders

GM Resilience Hub 

ADHD 
CYP IAPT – Core CAMHS

Eating Disorders
iTHRIVE & Wkforce

Development
CYP MH 24/7
Transitions

Perinatal/Parent/Infant MH 
Transforming Care ASD/LD

All-Age Education

Provider Federation 
Board

Association of GM CCGs

GMCA

Joint Commissioning Board
(NHS/ LAs)

GMCA Health & 
Justice Board

MH VCSE forums

Supporting Needs of 
Offenders  & Victims
Crisis Care Concordat
Liaison & Diversion  

(Point of Report either
to police  or non CJS 

route/Point of  Charge/ 
Pre Court/At Court/Post 

Court inc MAPPA)

Commissioning Hub

CYP MH Board and Supporting Action Programmes/Work Streams 

Adverse Childhood 

Experiences (ACE)

Communities of 
Identity/ Equalities

Working with VCSE 
and faith sectors

Th
em

es

Growing the voice 
of young people 

and families

CYP MH Board
(Chair: Simon Barber/ 

Charlotte Ramsden – DCS Link)

6 x CAMHS (Future in Mind) 
Non-Transformation Fund 

programmes:
• CYP IAPT

• ADHD
• Eating Disorders

• Service transitions
• MH of Looked after children 

(LAC)
• MH and Youth Justice (in 

conjunction with Health and 
Justice Board)

4 x Transformation Fund 
programmes:

• CYP MH community-based 
access and crisis care 

programme
• Perinatal and parent-infant 

MH programme
• THRIVE and CYP workforce 

development programme
• Mental and emotional 

wellbeing in education 
settings up to age 18 project

Specialised commissioning (adults, children and young people)
MH Workforce (adults, children and young people)

Finance, BI and contracts (adults, children and young people)
Estates, IM&T and Digital innovation (adults, children and young people)

Chief Officer, GMHSCP Locality Assurance meetings 

15.11 Improving the data and IT infrastructure - Data set development has taken place to combine the 
Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Data Set (MHLDDS) v1.1 and CAMHS v2.0, forming the new 

Page 279



53

Mental Health Services Data Set (MHSDS).  The Information Standards Notice (published 16 July 
2015) – mandates providers to begin collecting the relevant data no later than 1 January 2016.  Our 
HYM, #Thrive and Community Eating Disorder services are submitting data through the MHSDS. 
Consideration is being given to develop effective mechanisms for our 3rd sector organisations to also 
submit activity through the MHSDS.

Changes and improvements to the system infrastructure are necessary to support the delivery of the 
Local Transformation Plan and consideration needs to be given to consent, data protection and 
compatibility between systems.

Training programmes have been implemented in HYM and #Thrive to ensure that clinical, 
administrative and managerial staff know how to record the data and, in particular, how to routinely 
collect/use clinical outcome data and other feedback and monitoring in treatment sessions.  This 
work will continue to be rolled out across the services.

Within the Rochdale Borough, as part of its locality plan to support Greater Manchester Devolution, 
the CCG and the Council are working together to develop an Integrated Digital Care Record (IDCR) in 
order to deliver an even richer data set to a wider group of practitioners to meet the requirements of 
the Borough and to deliver safer care.  Integration of care systems across the Borough will also 
provide opportunities for more detailed information sharing, less duplication and the ability to 
underpin workflow on a wider footprint than previously possible. 

The national Information Strategy makes it clear that the risks of not sharing data outweigh those of 
sharing. Our plans for cross-agency sharing and mobile availability of detailed care records for 
clinicians, and access and interaction with online records by patients will need to be underpinned by 
a robust Information Governance (IG) framework and programme. 

The system will provide an electronic version of the patient’s care plan and advance care plan. We 
will ensure that any care providers who treat or manage our patients are provided with the 
education, skills and knowledge to enable them to do so with confidence and competence.  The work 
is aligned to the wider Greater Manchester strategy for devolution.

It is recognised within Greater Manchester that the availability of whole system accurate and timely 
information relating to commissioned and provided services remains a challenge.  Under the 
umbrella of the Greater Manchester Health & Social Care Partnership we will contribute to the 
development of Greater Manchester data systems that will improve both the quality and timeliness 
of available information.

15.12 Data Capture to support outcome based commissioning – data collection is essential to inform 
service delivery and outcomes for our children and young people and this is an area of weakness in 
some of our services. In order to measure the effectiveness of the transformation of our mental 
health services for children and young people, an early priority will be to improve our data collection 
and this is something that is supported by our HYM service.  HYM moved to a new information 
system in January 2016 which enables better quality reporting from ROMs (Routine Outcome 
Measures).  The patient recording system, PARIS has also been updated with full implementation 
planned for April 2018, leading to the removal of paper based systems which will free up more time 
to deliver patient care.  The two systems will talk to each other to deliver high quality reporting.  
Building on our current key performance indicators, the HYM service will be supported to develop 
appropriate tools to capture outcome based performance measures.  These tools will then be rolled 
out to other local emotional and mental health services to enable the spectrum of children and 
young people’s emotional and mental health services to move to outcome based performance 

Page 280



54

indicators.

15.13 Improving Information Technology – we will work with our partners to maximise the benefits of IT 
to improve the referral and assessment process, collect feedback on the quality of our services, 
increase capacity and provide information for children and young people, their families/carers and 
professionals.  

15.14 Communication - children, young people and their families increasingly use technology and social 
media as their main form of communication, and we recognise that there is an expectation that the 
services they are involved with do the same.  We acknowledge that locally, like many public sector 
providers, we need to improve our use of technology to bring us into the 21st century in order to 
effectively engage and communicate with both our children and young people, and the wider 
population.  Over the last year, work has begun to scope the various mechanisms of communication 
and how they are used effectively by other organisations, both in the public and private sector.  This 
will feed into work being delivered as part of the Prevention Theme of our Locality Plan, which will 
consider how we can use IT and in particular, social media to support and communicate with children 
and young people and their families, taking into account any safeguarding and governance concerns.  
Effective communication with our population is extremely important within the borough and as such, 
is a key determinant of the Rochdale Borough’s Locality Plan.

15.15 National Support - Rochdale will support the national cross sector programme being developed with 
key national partners to support implementation of Local Transformation Plans. The programme 
includes work: to tackle stigma, to improve access to information, to build capacity, capability and 
confidence of both the specialist and wider workforce and to improve data and information.

It is noted that NHS England will be working closely with the National Collaborating Centre for 
Mental Health (NCCMH) and with other key partners such as the HSCIC, Public Health England, 
Health Education England, the Local Government Association and Association of Directors of 
Children’s Services, Monitor, the NHS Trust Development Authority and the Care Quality Commission 
to ensure effective system support and alignment.

15.16 Hearing the voice of children and young people, and families – developing an effective voice for 
children and young people is a priority for our partnership and we will use the learning from our 
engagement work to date to improve our local processes. With other Greater Manchester Local 
Transformation Partnerships we will also implement, where appropriate, the recommendations of a 
report prepared by Youth Access that was commissioned by Greater Manchester’s Strategic Clinical 
Network.  Across Greater Manchester a Future in Mind reference group for children and young 
people will be established.  It is also intended to work with parents and carers to develop a Greater 
Manchester parent/carer reference group to ensure that they become effective stakeholders in 
helping shape the development, review and delivery of services for children and young people.

Locally, we understand that it is important to have age appropriate feedback mechanisms, to ask 
children and young people, and their families about their experience and outcomes for any or all 
elements of their care.  We are clear that there should be ‘no decision about me, without me’ and 
therefore we need to be certain that children and young people are involved in decisions about their 
management, treatment and discharge, as well as knowing that they have received good quality care 
throughout to enable them to achieve their planned outcome goals.  We know, through our co-
design work what children and young people feel are important in terms of the emotional and 
mental health care provided and we need to be certain that these are being delivered through the 
transformation of our services.  In accordance with our plans around participation and engagement 
highlighted in section 5.17, we will work with children and young people and our commissioning and 
provider partners to develop innovative ways of obtaining patient feedback, both through face to 

Page 281



55

face engagement and through the use of technology as described in section 15.13. Current feedback 
mechanism within Healthy Young Minds and #Thrive services are:

 ROMs (Routine Outcome Measures) and end of service questionnaires
 Friends and family test
 Survey monkey questionnaires
 Service user involvement
 Participation workers
 Dashboard for complaints and compliments 
 Service users on staff interview panels
 ‘You said, we did’ board in Healthy Young Minds reception

We will actively listen to feedback from children and young people and will ensure that the feedback 
received is used to improve service delivery and development. 

Rochdale and District Mind’s Listen Up Project has developed a pilot individual (1-1) session feedback 
process.  Children & young people’s feedback from sessions is independently collated each quarter 
by the Young Advisors team and feedback is provided to the worker.  This runs alongside other 
established annual feedback arrangements within the organisation.  All education/awareness or 
training sessions are evaluated through learners’ feedback processes to ensure constant 
improvements and refinements can be made to programmes.

16.0 Timeframe for change 

We are clear of the providers’ capacity and capability to deliver this transformation and the intended 
improvements to children and young people’s mental health services will be monitored throughout 
the course of the coming years until 2020/21  This local transformation plan will be revised 
periodically to take account of any changes to our priorities locally. A roadmap indicating the planned 
timeframe for change will be developed and included within the plan. 

17.0 Appendices 

The Appendices listed below form part of the overall transformation plan.

17.1 Assessment of Need

18.0 Glossary of Terms

Term: Meaning:
Vulnerable In need of special care, support or protection because of age, disability or risk of 

abuse or neglect.
Transition Any major change point in a child/young person’s life.  For this specification it 

means transition into adult services or a step up into CAMHS Tier 3/Step 4 
provision or step down into universal services.  Equally children can may go 
through many transition processes as they grow up, such as leaving primary 
school etc.

Trusted Adult Can be any adult, who has built up a trust with a child/young person and is 
committed to keeping that child/young person safe, for example, a teacher or a 
community boxing coach.  A trusted adult:
 Respects a child/young person’s right and need to express thoughts and 

feelings openly.

Page 282



56

 Understands a child/young person’s need for safe healthy boundaries.
 Believes a child when they ‘disclose’ a boundary violation.
 Takes action by engaging other trusted adults to assist and protect the child.

Hard to Reach Those individuals who:
 have failed to attend appointments
 are NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training) 
 require additional support to access services, i.e. those who: have SEND 

(specialist Educational Needs or Disability); those who speak English as a 
second language; those from a BME background; those from transient 
communities; those from asylum seeker communities; those whose sexual 
orientation is classed as lesbian, gay or bisexual; those undergoing or 
completing gender transformation; those who do not fall under the remit of 
local health services; and those placed from other areas.

Five Ways to 
Wellbeing

Are a set of evidence-based actions which promote people’s wellbeing. They 
are: Connect, Be Active, Take Notice, Keep Learning and Give. These activities 
are simple things individuals can do in their everyday lives.

Health Visiting 6 high 
impact areas

articulates the contribution of health visitors to the 0-5 agenda and describe 
areas where health visitors have a significant impact on health and wellbeing 
and improving outcomes for children, families and communities:
 Transition to Parenthood and, 
 the Early Weeks Maternal Mental Health (Perinatal Depression)
 Breastfeeding (Initiation and Duration)
 Healthy Weight, Healthy Nutrition (to include Physical Activity)
 Managing Minor Illness and Reducing accidents (Reducing Hospital 

Attendance/Admissions)
 Health, Wellbeing and Development of the Child Age 2 – Two year old 

review (integrated review) and support to be ‘ready for school’
Post-partum is the period of time immediately after childbirth  and the following year and is 

defined for the mother.
Concordat Is an agreement between all parties
Lower Super Output 
Area (LSOA)

Is a geographic area. LSOAs are a geographic hierarchy designed to improve the 
reporting of small area statistics, and there is an LSOA for each postcode in 
England and Wales.

CQUIN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation – part of the NHS standard 
contracting process, whereby a payment of up to 2.5% of the contract value is 
payable if the provider delivers an agreed scheme(s) to improve local quality 
improvement goals.

19.0 Signatures

Page 283



57

Signatures

Name: Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Signature:

Position: Chair, Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board 
On Behalf of: Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board
Date:

Name: Dr Chris Duffy
Signature:

Position: Deputy Chair, Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board
On Behalf of: Rochdale Health and Wellbeing Board
Date:

Name: Sally McIvor
Signature:

Position: Director of Commissioning and Director of Adult Social Services 
On Behalf of: NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG / Rochdale Borough Council 
Date:

Name: Gail Hopper

Signature:

Position: Director of Children’s Services 
On Behalf of: Rochdale Borough Council
Date:

Name: Steve Hamer
Signature:

Position: Deputy Mental Health, POC and High Secure Lead
On Behalf of: North of England Specialised Care Team (North West Hub)
Date:

Name: Kate Jones
Signature:

Position: Chief Executive Officer
On Behalf of: Healthwatch Rochdale
Date:

Page 284



58

Appendix 1 – Assessment of Need

Pre-school children

There are relatively little data about prevalence rates for mental health disorders in pre-school age 
children.  A literature review of four studies looking at 1,021 children aged 2 to 5 years inclusive, found that 
the average prevalence rate of any mental health disorder was 19.6% (Egger, H et al, 2006).  Applying this 
average prevalence rate to the estimated population within the area, gives a figure of 2,355 children aged 2 
to 5 years inclusive living in Rochdale who have a mental health disorder.  1,001 days (2014) sets out the 
importance of secure attachment within the first 3 years of a child’s life in order to create a foundation for 
long term emotional wellbeing.

School-age children

Prevalence estimates for mental health disorders in children aged 5 to 16 years have been estimated in a 
report by Green et al (2004). Prevalence rates are based on the ICD-10 Classification of Mental and 
Behavioural Disorders with strict impairment criteria – the disorder causing distress to the child or having a 
considerable impact on the child’s day to day life.   Prevalence varies by age and sex, with boys more likely 
(11.4%) to have experienced or be experiencing a mental health problem than girls (7.8%). Children aged 
11 to 16 years olds are also more likely (11.5%) than 5 to 10 year olds (7.7%) to experience mental health 
problems. 
Using these rates, the table below shows the estimated prevalence of mental health disorder by age group 
and sex in Rochdale.  Note that the numbers in the age groups 5-10 years and 11-16 years do not add up to 
those in the 5-16 year age group, as the rates are different within each age group. 

Estimated number of children with mental health disorders by age group and sex

 Age 5-10 Age 11-16 Age 5-16
Girls 455 820 1,275
Boys 935 1,100 2,030
Children 1,390 1,915 3,300
Source: Local authority mid year resident population estimates for 2014 from Office for National Statistics. CCG population estimates aggregated 
from GP registered populations (Oct 2014).  Green, H. et al (2004). 

These prevalence rates of mental health disorders have been further broken down by prevalence of 
conduct, emotional, hyperkinetic and less common disorders (Green, H. et al, 2004). The following tables 
show the estimated number of children with conduct, emotional, hyperkinetic and less common disorders 
in Rochdale, by applying these prevalence rates (the numbers in this table do not add up to the numbers in 
the previous table because some children have more than one disorder).

Estimated number of children with conduct disorders by age group and sex

 Age 5-10 Age 11-16
Girls 260 430
Boys 650 715
Children 905 1,140
Source: Local authority mid year resident population estimates for 2014 from Office for National Statistics. CCG population estimates aggregated 
from GP registered populations (Oct 2014).  Green, H. et al (2004). 

Page 285



59

Estimated number of children with emotional disorders by age group and sex

 Age 5-10 Age 11-16
Girls 225 480
Boys 195 375
Children 420 855
Source: Local authority mid year resident population estimates for 2014 from Office for National Statistics. CCG population estimates aggregated 
from GP registered populations (Oct 2014).  Green, H. et al (2004). 

Estimated number of children with hyperkinetic disorders by age group and sex

 Age 5-10 Age 11-16
Girls 40 35
Boys 275 220
Children 315 255
Source: Local authority mid year resident population estimates for 2014 from Office for National Statistics. CCG population estimates aggregated 
from GP registered populations (Oct 2014).  Green, H. et al (2004). 

Estimated number of children with less common disorders by age group and sex

 Age 5-10 Age 11-16
Girls 45 65
Boys 195 140
Children 235 205
Source: Local authority mid year resident population estimates for 2014 from Office for National Statistics. CCG population estimates aggregated 
from GP registered populations (Oct 2014).  Green, H. et al (2004). 

A study conducted by Singleton et al (2001) has estimated prevalence rates for neurotic disorders in young 
people aged 16 to 19 inclusive living in private households. The tables below show how many 16 to 19 year 
olds would be expected to have a neurotic disorder if these prevalence rates were applied to the 
population of Rochdale.    

Estimated number of young people aged 16 to 19 with neurotic disorders

Source: Local authority mid year resident population estimates for 2014 from Office for National Statistics. CCG population estimates aggregated 
from GP registered populations (Oct 2014).  Green, H. et al (2004). 

Page 286



60

Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD)

Guidance issued in July 2015 by the Greater Manchester, Lancashire and South Cumbria Strategic Clinical 
Network: Delivering Effective Services for Children and Young People with ADHD suggests the use of the 
BACCH (British Association for Community Child Health) website to calculate the prevalence of ADHD in 
children and young people. 

http://www.bacch.org.uk/publications/other_service_improvement.php

BACCH requires figures on the child population served (e.g. 5 years to 18 years) and the birth rate to 
calculate the likely number of new and follow-up assessments required. The guidance recommends that 
commissioners ensure that local services are appropriately commissioned to meet the potential expected 
demand over time (minimum requirement for commissioning: 3% of the local population of children and 
young people requiring ADHD assessment, 1% on medication treatment and 3% requiring community 
support and behavioural interventions).  In Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale, 3% of the population of 
children & young people aged 0 – 18 is predicted to be 58,000 in 2016.  This would suggest that the 
prevalence of ADHD in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale would be 1,740 in 2016.

Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD)

In Rochdale, CAMHS are seeing approximately 300 young people aged under 16, and 80 patients aged 16 - 
19 for ASD per year. These include patients who already have a diagnosis of ASD and those receiving a 
diagnosis of ASD.  The actual number of patients who have ASD in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale 
would of course be much higher as not all patients who have ASD are under CAMHS at any one time but 
may return to CAMHS at any stage until they turn 19.

Page 287

http://www.bacch.org.uk/publications/other_service_improvement.php


1

Report to Health and Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting 27th March 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Health & Wellbeing
Report Author Anthony Threlfall
Public  Document Public

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

To present the process undertaken to develop the 2017 Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment Summary and the main findings. 

To provide the necessary information to enable the Board to discuss and decide their 
priorities for partnership working around health and wellbeing.

To outline the ongoing plan for completing the JSNA process for 2017/18 which 
includes the development of a web based JSNA resource

To note that the JSNA has informed integrated commissioning intentions for 2018/19

Recommendations

2.

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to:

Note previous work and the process undertaken to identify and collate health needs 
information from data and intelligence and stakeholders 

Note the completion and findings of the JSNA summary report attached in Appendix 1

Discuss health needs and priorities and decide which theme or themes will be a 
priority for the Borough within a mental wellbeing and resilience programme and are 
selected by the Board for increased emphasis and partnership working.

Note the development of a web based JSNA.

Agree that the key metric to be used for measuring overall progress is Healthy Life 
Expectancy  

Agree to receive a draft of a Health and Wellbeing  Strategy in June 2018 which 

Page 288

Agenda Item 9



2

includes programmes to impact upon healthy life expectancy and  mental wellbeing 
and resilience 

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

Satisfy the Health and Wellbeing Board’s statutory duty of delivering a JSNA to inform 
local commissioning strategies and plans and to further develop integrated working 
across commissioners and providers.

Provide guidance on priorities to inform a new Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Background

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

One of the core statutory duties of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to complete a 
local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and a Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.

JSNA is a locally developed process to identify the health and wellbeing needs (and 
assets) of a local area, including the current and future health and social care needs 
of the population across the whole life course, from pre-birth to old age.  The JSNA 
informs the priorities for the Locality Plan, Commissioning and delivery of health and 
wellbeing outcomes and services.

The JSNA Summary Report

The JSNA summary report builds on and uses previous intelligence and stakeholder 
work to identify health needs. To collate and organise this information public health 
theory and approaches were used. Much of the JSNA is presented using wellbeing 
across the life course from cradle to grave. Wellbeing is about your practical welfare, 
your relationships and how you feel in body and mind. People use fewer services and 
are healthier if they have good wellbeing. The life-course approach according to the 
World health Organisation aims at increasing the effectiveness of interventions 
throughout a person’s life. It focuses on a healthy start to life and targets the needs of 
people at critical periods throughout their lifetime. It promotes timely investments with 
a high rate of return for health and the economy. For many, the critical periods of their 
life occur during transition phases from one part of their life to another. These include 
first going to school, entering the workplace and retirement.

In addition to wellbeing an approach that considered health in relation to wider 
determinants was also used as was a classical disease model which focuses on the 
biological causes of illness such as high blood pressure. By using these different 
lenses, it was possible to organise the complexity of need in different groups into a 
coherent, albeit, complex picture. This allows the identification of different ways to 
tackle the same health issue. For example, a person can influence their own health 
positively by eating well and staying active, not smoking, getting the recommended 
vaccinations and screening tests which supports person focussed interventions. 
However, health is mainly determined in the wider environment and social world. This 

Page 289



3

is because your family, home, school, work and area you were brought up in 
influence your health. This can happen through physical mechanisms, such as, damp 
housing leading to respiratory problems, or through social mechanisms, such as your 
family or culture influencing what you eat. This suggests the need for place based 
and family based interventions.

Key Findings from Summary JSNA

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

The health needs of the borough are shaped by deprivation. Compared to the rest of 
the North West and England, Rochdale as a whole has poorer health, life expectancy 
and healthy life expectancy but affluent people in Rochdale have similar health 
outcomes to elsewhere.

Tackling premature mortality caused mainly by cardiovascular disease, cancer 
(especially lung cancer), respiratory disease and liver disease would close the 
mortality gap and reduce health inequality within the Borough. The approach would 
mainly focus on physical health conditions such as hypertension, smoking, BMI, 
blood glucose, and bad cholesterol; identifying and targeting people for effective 
interventions; and ensuring treatments follow best practice. This should also have an 
impact on healthy life expectancy. 

Healthy life expectancy is a very important measure of population health. For female 
residents of Rochdale Borough it is 58.7 and for males 57.8. Women live on average 
to 80.6 and men to 77.1. This means the average woman in Rochdale spends around 
22 years living in poor health and the average man 19 years. People from Greater 
Manchester and England live slightly longer and also spend less time in poor health 
than people in Rochdale. 

Many adults have health conditions or challenges such as being a carer or living in 
poverty. Multiple complex conditions are not rare and mild to moderate mental health 
disorders are common. In addition to targeting health conditions a whole population 
wellbeing approach is advocated.

Wellbeing includes being safe and feeling secure and will recognise people’s life 
challenges and encourage achievable positive changes. For many residents health 
and fitness is likely to be a lower priority but all would benefit from feeling better, 
being in a safe caring community and connecting and being active. Important aims 
are tackling mild mental health issues, helping older people connect, encouraging 
modest but achievable behavioural changes to improve health, and fostering a sense 
that Rochdale Borough is friendly and caring place.

For children wellbeing recognises the importance of nurturing, providing good support 
and a safe environment free from abuse and adverse events. It recognises that 
children differ and some have special educational needs or disabilities that require 
additional support to fulfil their potential. The wellbeing approach will look at reducing 
bullying behaviour and adverse childhood events, ensuring children are school ready 
and continue to progress. It will encourage the development of healthy behaviours 
including physical activity and nutrition. For older children and young adults the 
emphasis is on skills, including life and relationship skills, good mental health and 
managing risks. 

Page 290



4

5.7

5.8

5.9

In terms of prevention, smoking in young adults is a priority as only 7% of 15 year 
olds smoke whilst around 20% of all adults do. In adults smoking is falling but 
remains high in manual groups at 30% and contributes greatly to health inequality. 

Meeting health Needs

The JSNA summary identified two programmes that will make a difference to health 
and wellbeing in Rochdale. The first targets healthy life expectancy and premature 
mortality and is about reducing the burden from the diseases such as cardio vascular 
disease and diabetes through tackling health conditions such as hypertension. This is 
grounded in the disease model of health and links public health into primary and 
secondary care services and the impact of health hazards such as smoking. It would 
include efforts to improve equitable access to services.

The second programme is a wellbeing and mental resilience programme. This is 
grounded in an analysis of the root causes of health problems. We know the root 
cause of many health problems is either sociological, psychological or a combination 
of both. Sociological factors are often wider determinants of health such as housing, 
family, culture, jobs and income. We know positive change to these wider 
determinants improves population health. (This is evidenced by the differences in 
health between affluent and less affluent areas.) Unfortunately, available budgets for 
local action, greatly reduces our ability in the short term to significantly change many 
wider determinants of health such as housing and incomes.

To make a difference our focus must be on influencers of health that local action can 
positively change. Health and wellbeing is not only determined by outside factors but 
also by internal factors. Beliefs and thoughts influence how a person perceives the 
world, how they behave, and how well they feel. Negative beliefs and thought 
patterns tend to decrease health and wellbeing whereas positive beliefs and thought 
patterns tend to improve health and wellbeing. As such we can accept that many 
residents health is negatively impacted upon by their challenging social environments 
but acknowledge that good mental wellbeing and resilience can positively impact their 
health.

Poor mental wellbeing and negative thought processes are for some but not all 
people the root cause of their negative health behaviours such as excessive 
gambling, drug taking, being sedentary, comfort eating, and continuing to smoke. 
Several health issues in the Rochdale population are intimately linked to wellbeing 
such as mild mental health issues, loneliness and isolation and coping with poor 
health.

Wellbeing is closely linked to reducing stress both in daily life and in the workplace. 
We also see safety as a wellbeing issue as it is not possible to feel well if you are 
threatened or being abused. In children we see welfare of children, bullying and mild 
mental health issues such as feelings about your body as wellbeing issues. Wellbeing 
also includes improving skills and the impact of learning new things, keeping active 
and mobile, and giving to others. Finally improving wellbeing is a mechanism that can 
help certain population groups for example carers. This might be by feeling more 
connected and through basic support.

Work Programme Content

Page 291



5

5.10

5.11

5.12

There is a great deal of work that is undertaken across the Borough that seeks to 
improve physical and mental wellbeing directly or by improving the determinants of 
health. These include many work programmes on issues that have been raised as 
priorities during the JSNA consultation. Appendix 1 outlines many of priority issues 
identified during the JSNA process. The Locality and Transformation Plan has been 
checked against the priorities identified and the Integrated Commissioning Board has 
used the findings for  commissioning plans and intentions.

Prioritisation

All of the health needs identified via the JSNA process are important in different 
ways. Many are monitored and routinely collected statistics. All or nearly all either 
have some form of ongoing work attached to them, are part of the Locality and 
transformation plans or are embedded in health and social care job functions and day 
to day work. As such prioritising a theme is about which the Board would like to see 
increased emphasis or progress.  

The Board is asked to consider and discuss an area where we should have additional 
emphasis and where local partnership work could have a substantial impact on health 
and wellbeing in the Borough of Rochdale?   There is no algorithm that can be used 
successfully to prioritise different health themes but the decision should align with the 
strategic aims of the Board. The following criteria could be used to select a 
priority/priorities;

a) This area needs further improvement over and above what we are 
already doing

b) Action would reduce a local  health inequality
c) This would be the best use of resources
d) Partnership action is required 
e) There is an evidence base for local action
f) This would contribute to improving healthy life expectancy and 

reducing early deaths

A group discussion will take place at the Board to agree Board priority/priorities

Page 292



6

Key Points for Consideration

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

A local JSNA process was undertaken for the first time in 2011 and was refreshed in 
2014/15. It is an ongoing process backed up by intelligence work and stakeholder 
and public engagement

The JSNA findings are intended to be used to inform integrate commissioning                   
intentions, provider plans and to inform a refresh the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and Locality Plan.

The leadership of the JSNA is with the Director of Health and Wellbeing. A working 
group was established of public health specialists, analysts, business intelligence, 
performance and policy leads from the Council and the CCG (Clinical Commissioning 
Group)

Two phases for the JSNA refresh were agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Phase 1 has been completed which focused on a refresh of the intelligence contained 
in the previous JSNA with some additional analysis to in order to inform 
commissioning intentions for 2018/19 and a refresh of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.

 In order to gather stakeholder views on intelligence and priorities, a Health and 
Wellbeing Assembly was held on the 20th September 2017 and was well attended by 
a wide range of statutory, voluntary and community stakeholders.

Resident, service user and patient views on needs and priorities was collated rom 
patient, service user and public engagement findings from the last two years. A 
resident survey is being undertaken by the Council in early 2018.

A summary document of key findings has been produced and from March 2018 a 
public facing JSNA website linked to the Health and Wellbeing Board will be available 
which will enable the public to view suitable content of the JSNA. It is proposed to 
have a small number of deep dives into agreed areas to fully understand need and 
how best to meet it. Initial priority areas identified for deep dives have been proposed 
to be within the areas of Children and Young People and Health and Social Care 
activity and outcomes

A health and wellbeing strategy will be produced which will aim to impact upon many 
of the health needs identified. 

7. Alternatives Considered
Alternative methods of producing a JSNA were considered and proposals on 
interpretation of priorities were considered by several groups and stakeholders 
including the ICB and are now for consideration by the Board

Page 293



7

Costs and Budget Summary

8. This work has been undertaken within existing budgets

Risk and Policy Implications

That the refreshed Health and Wellbeing Strategy and commissioning intentions are 
not informed by the most recent intelligence and evidence.

9.

Consultation

10. Consultation processes have been outlined in the paper and include a well 
attended Stakeholder event and a summary of public consultation findings 
was included in the process

Background Papers Place of Inspection

11. N/A

For Further Information Contact: Anthony.Threlfall@rochdale.gov.uk

Appendix 1   

 
Section one describes the priorities that were identified by the 2015 JSNA process; section 2 
the priorities and themes gained from engagement work, section 3 the long list of all priority 
areas and section 4 the areas that were prioritised at the Health and Wellbeing Assembly in 
September 2017.

1. Priorities identified in 2015 JSNA Process
 Premature mortality
 Healthy Lifestyles
 Early years – prevention and early intervention
 Asset building – enabling community resilience, engagement, independence 

and action
 Mental health and wellbeing
 Health and Social Care Integration and integrated commissioning 
 Reducing health inequalities and supporting vulnerable groups
 Communication strategy for Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 294

mailto:Anthony.Threlfall@rochdale.gov.uk


8

2. Priorities and themes from Resident, Patient and Public 
Consultations and Feedback in last two years
The themes from public and patients often focus on people’s experience of 
using services and included: 

 Transport to services – including parking
 Access – not just digital access but also physical access ,  waiting times and 

GP access. 
 Communication – between services and also between service and 

patient/service user.
 Appointments – Timing / Location
 Discharge and planning of care
 Rochdale Infirmary – Lack of understanding around which services still exist?
 Need for more education around behaviour change and self-care

Themes identified about Children & Young People 

 Good direct communication with children and young people and clear 
signposting of services

 Continuity of care
 Access to children’s services e.g. CAMHS and Speech and Language 

Therapy.
 Mental Health – including access to services
 Bullying – recognise, report, stop
 Drugs and alcohol awareness – recognising the dangers
 Information and marketing to target the right audience

Themes identified about carers

 Carers need breaks from their caring roles
 Access to support for carers
 Access to services for the cared person
 Carers need help to maintain and improve their health and wellbeing
 Carers want to feel less isolated
 Financial support

Breaks from caring was seen as one of the most important things for carers (37%) when 
asked what was important to them going forward.  Accessing services for the cared people 
was also seen as important (30%)

Page 295



9

3. The Long List - themes and priorities from data, local 
intelligence and additional feedback from stakeholders

Demographics – focus on meeting the needs of an increasingly diverse population, 
increasing population over 45 yrs and small increase in population 0-4 year olds, high levels 
deprivation spread across the Borough

Housing – focus on addressing poor quality houses including  private rented sector, 
overcrowding, cold, damp, homelessness and transient households, housing options for frail 
and vulnerable people/groups, high quality residential and care homes

Unemployment, skills, work and health – focus on growing the economy and local access 
to good jobs, people out of work and in poor health, people with mental health problems and 
disabilities, focus on workplace health to prevent people losing/leaving jobs, focus on skills 
development and literacy

Crime and disorder– reducing and supporting victim based crime, domestic abuse, 
continuing to reduce anti-social behaviour and dealing with terrorism and serious organised 
crime

Best start in life – from pregnancy to 4 years old – focus on first 100 days, parental 
support, smoking in pregnancy, breastfeeding, oral health, school readiness measures 
improved are inequalities, focus on literacy increasing diversity, high numbers living in 
deprivation, parenting strategy and plan

Poverty, fuel poverty and reducing debt –mitigating the impact of family poverty on 
children, support to increase family income, tackle fuel poverty, support to address 
gambling, support on impact welfare reform, advice for older people

Education, skills and School attainment – continued work to improve school readiness 
and school attainment, continue improvements 5 A-C,  focus on reducing inequalities such 
as those on free school meals, cared for children, work to improve literacy, support those 
with SEN, ESOL provision

Children with disabilities and Special Educational Needs - assessment processes and 
times

Page 296



10

Safeguarding children and young people – focus on early help, cared for children, 
children in need, protect children from abuse (physical, sexual, emotional) tackle and 
prevent neglect, continue to improve use of common assessment processes and address 
complex safeguarding issues (CSE, Prevent duty, missing children, organised crime, 
trafficking and modern slavery. FGM

Reducing Impact of domestic abuse, violence, drugs and alcohol and neglect on 
children and adults – family approach to preventing and supporting children and adults 
impacted by domestic abuse and drugs and alcohol. Focus on prevention and support

Reducing children’s hospital attendances, admissions and management of children’s 
long term conditions – high A&E attendances and admissions. Long term conditions 
management, maintain and improve child immunisation, focus on hospital admissions for 
asthma, A&E attendance, unplanned admissions, improve oral health, access and waiting 
times for OT and SLT

Children and young people’s lifestyles factors –  continue improve child obesity, physical 
activity, oral health, nutrition and 5 A Day, drugs and alcohol, oral health, chlamydia 
screening, sexual health education, service offer for teenagers

Children’s mental health and wellbeing – self-esteem, Resilience, bullying, on line safety 
and life skills, coping with life events such as bereavement, early intervention, self -harm, 
access to CAHMS and crisis services for children, young people, parents and carers, 
parenting support all ages of children and young people

Managing adult Long term conditions and Improving Healthy Life expectancy – life 
expectancy and premature mortality overall and in most deprived communities, healthy life 
expectancy challenge, Hypertension, Diabetes, Heart Disease, Stroke, Respiratory Disease, 
Liver disease, HIV testing and early diagnosis, tackling loneliness, uptake preventive 
services, service directory

Making the health and social care system financially sustainable – addressing the 
projected deficit. Locality Plan and Transformation programme implementation, LCO 
development, integrated commissioning, voluntary ad community sector development, 
model to meet social and medical (physical and mental) needs holistically

Using medicines wisely – reducing antibiotics, complying with drug medication instructions

Safeguarding adults – focus on self-neglect, domestic abuse, mental capacity, financial 

Page 297



11

abuse, making safeguarding personal, dementia, transition planning and prevention. 
Increase in DoLs applications 

Reducing early deaths before 75 years – heart disease, stroke, cancers, respiratory 
disease, suicide, liver disease, smoking, alcohol, early diagnosis of HIV, excess winter 
deaths

Excellent uptake of preventive services – immunisation and screening programmes, 
health checks, rehab programmes, Diabetes Prevention programme, flu immunisation, 
screening programmes, primary care registers and services, falls prevention 

Adult mental health and wellbeing - focus on community services, depression and anxiety 
management in primary care, physical health needs people with mental health problems, 
support increasing projections people living with dementia, self-harm, links with drug and 
alcohol

Tackling loneliness and isolation – more people living alone projected, high numbers 
report being lonely, harmful to health at any age but focus on vulnerable groups and over 75 
and over 85 years

Reducing inequalities  – (outcomes, access to services and differences in uptake of 
services) vulnerable groups and people mental health problems, disabilities, homeless, living 
in poverty) areas with greatest deprivation (neighbourhoods)

Reducing hospital attendance and admissions – focus on high A&E/urgent care centre  
attendances , emergency admissions, reduce length of stays in hospital, falls over 65 years,, 
focus across all NE sector hospitals, continue progress with elective care and outpatients, 
focus on CVD, cancers and respiratory, musculoskeletal services, gastrointestinal. Focus on 
right care and local intelligence findings. Focus on multi morbidities, people with two or more 
Long term conditions and address mental health and physical health needs. Social care and 
housing needs addressed for older people and people mental illness, learning disabilities or 
those who are homeless

Primary Care – focus on GP access, GP workforce programmes, addressing social needs, 
mental health primary care services, focus on developing pharmacy and optician services,  
uptake detection and management programmes (‘missing thousands’)

Page 298



12

Improving adult lifestyles and supporting behaviour change – smoking, alcohol obesity, 
physical activity , nutrition and hydration older people, cost of some services a problem for 
some

Reducing accidents and falls – focus on older people and children

End of life – continue to develop support for choice of end of life, develop hospice access 
for those outside of cancers and develop access for some communities of support available

Focus on vulnerable groups – dementia, homeless, disabilities, people mental illness, 
carers – advocacy and support services, equity audit

Carers – breaks, emotional support, financial advice and support, health impact of caring, 
social isolation, system wide approach

Building resilient and thriving communities and neighbourhoods  - focus on places and 
people, access to green space good but % space less in deprived areas, support for 
volunteering across services and communities, grow and support the community and 
voluntary sector

4. Priorities from the long list - Stakeholder Feedback from 
Health and Wellbeing Assembly September 2017

Stakeholders were individually asked for five priorities from the long list above for additional 
attention by all partners. The following were the top ten and are in order of number of 
responses.  

 Lifestyles and behaviour change – adults and children and young people
 Vulnerable groups and inequalities – dementia, homeless, disabilities, people 

mental illness, carers
 Mental health and wellbeing 
 Keeping residents safe – children and adults
 Partnership working particularly with the voluntary and community sector
 Health system transformation – clearer access to ad information about 

services, reduce waiting times, care close to home, GP access, use of new 
technologies/digital plans, Clear info on Rochdale Infirmary and Hospital plans

 Wider determinants – focus on people out of work and in poor health, people 
mental health issues and disabilities, focus on workplace health prevent 
people losing jobs

Uptake of preventive services – screening, immunisation, primary care services, 
rehab programmes.

Appendix 2

JSNA 2017-18 
Summary FINAL.pdf

Page 299



Page 300



 

       Page 2 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

There are currently 216,150 people in the Borough. A 

large proportion of the population live in deprived areas. 

The borough is increasingly diverse.  

The health needs of the borough are predictably shaped 

by deprivation. Compared to the rest of the North West 

and England, Rochdale as a whole has poorer health, life 

expectancy and healthy life expectancy but affluent 

people in Rochdale have similar health outcomes to 

elsewhere.  

Tackling premature mortality caused mainly by 

cardiovascular disease, cancer (especially lung cancer), 

respiratory disease and liver disease would close the 

mortality gap and reduce health inequality within the 

Borough. The approach would mainly focus on physical 

health conditions such as hypertension, BMI, blood 

glucose, and bad cholesterol; identifying and targeting 

people for effective interventions; and ensuring 

treatments follow best practice.  

Crucial to understanding population health in Rochdale is 

to recognise that many adults have health conditions or 

challenges such as being a carer or living in poverty. 

Multiple complex conditions are not rare and mild to 

moderate mental health disorders such as depression are 

common. In addition to our approach for improving 

healthy life expectancy and tackling early deaths, a whole 

population wellness and wellbeing approach is 

advocated.  

This wellbeing approach includes being safe and feeling 

secure and will recognise people’s life challenges and 

encourage achievable positive changes. For many 

residents health and fitness is likely to be a turn off (they 

do not believe themselves suited) but all would benefit 

from feeling better, being in a safe caring community and 

connecting and being active. Important aims are tackling 

mild mental health issues, helping older people connect, 

encouraging modest but achievable behavioural changes 

to improve health, and fostering a sense that Rochdale 

Borough is friendly and caring place.   

 
For children the wellbeing approach recognises that 

nurturing, support and a safe environment free from 

abuse are important to healthy development. It 

recognises that children differ and some have special 

educational needs or disabilities that require additional 

support to fulfil their potential.  The wellbeing approach 

will look at reducing bullying behaviour, ensuring 

children when possible are school ready and continue to 

progress. It will encourage the development of healthy 

behaviours including physical activity and nutrition. For 

older children and young adults the emphasis is on skills, 

including life skills and good mental health. In terms of 

health smoking in young adults and in manual groups is a 

priority as only 7% of 15 year olds smoke whilst around 

20% of all adults do but it is still around 30% in some 

groups. 

Page 301



 

       Page 3 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

Page 302



 

       Page 4 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

This report is a summary of some of the findings from 

our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The 

complete JSNA will be developed as webpages that can 

be updated and browsed.  

 JSNA – The JSNA is a tool that describes and helps 

us understand the needs and resources of our 

population. It can be used in different ways. One 

important use is for planning services to meet the 

needs of our residents and communities.  Another 

is to help develop ways to improve health and 

wellbeing. Another is to help prevent illness, 

accidents or harm. The JSNA is an ongoing story 

about how the population is made up, how healthy 

it is and the resources people have to help them 

stay healthy. To inform the JSNA information is 

gathered from local professionals, services, 

statistics and local people. The aim is to have an 

accurate understanding of previous patterns, 

current need and use this to predict future needs. It 

is therefore an ongoing process of understanding 

the population rather than a fixed state.  

 Wellbeing – A wellbeing approach is central to how 

we can tackle needs identified. Wellbeing is about 

your practical welfare, your relationships and how 

you feel in body and mind. People use fewer 

services and are healthier if they have good 

wellbeing. Here wellbeing covers taking charge of 

your own life and health. Wellbeing is about what 

people can do and be. It goes beyond the material, 

e.g. how deprived they are, to consider their 

personal and social relations and their subjective 

views. The Wellbeing and Development group 

based at Bath University see wellbeing as a 

combination of: a) what a person has, b) what a 

person can do with what they have, and c) how 

they think about what they have and can do. An 

important element of a wellbeing approach is its 

focus not only on ‘objective’ measures of health but 

also people’s own perceptions and experience of 

life.  

 Life course – Much of the JSNA is presented in relation 

to a life course from cradle to grave. According to the 

World health Organisation the life-course approach 

aims at increasing the effectiveness of interventions 

throughout a person’s life. It focuses on a healthy 

start to life and targets the needs of people at critical 

periods throughout their lifetime. It promotes timely 

investments with a high rate of return for health and 

the economy by addressing the causes, as well as the 

consequences, of ill health. For many, the critical 

periods of their life occur during transition phases 

from one part of their life to another. These include 

first going to school, entering the workplace and 

retirement.  

 

 

 

Page 303



 

       Page 5 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

In recent years as a consequence of central government’s 

approach to balancing the economy, the public sector has 

been squeezed. This has had an impact on current and 

future service provision in Rochdale with increased 

emphasis on savings and efficiency. The Greater 

Manchester devolution agenda will also impact services. 

Broadly there is an intention to invest in and improve the 

health, wellbeing, and skills of the population in the 

expectation that this will lead to economic benefits and 

reduced future need for some services.  

 

In Rochdale, levels of deprivation and consequently use of 

public services are higher than more affluent areas. To 

maintain adequate service provision the health economy 

needs behaviour change in the population (lower obesity, 

drinking and smoking, more exercise, wise use of medicines 

and hospital services such as A&E, etc). Approaches to 

behaviour change that are solely about providing 

information and education and trying to get a message or 

knowledge across rarely work. They assume that if you tell 

people what is good for them and what they need to do to 

protect their health, they will do it.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

People simply don’t act that way. What is more effective is 

changing environments to promote better behaviours (so 

called nudge approach) and understanding and 

empowering people within their own social worlds.  

People act meaningfully in the context of their own lives. 

For example, some people go direct to A&E because they 

can’t see their GP. An important aim with the JSNA, is to 

build, over time, a better understanding of local people and 

their behaviour to inform interventions which work locally. 

Progress will be made if we can empower people to 

improve their health within the context of their often 

challenging lives. A wellbeing approach helps us to 

understand the need to empower people and see them as a 

whole rather than a person with an illness or disability. 

Over time we want to work with people understand their 

lives, be supportive, non-judgemental and put in place 

interventions that help empower them to change their own 

behaviour.  The JSNA is part of this process.    

 

 

 

Page 304



 

       Page 6 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 The Borough’s population is growing. There are 

currently 216,150 people in the Borough (ONS mid-

year estimates 2016).  Growth between 2011 and 

2014 had been relatively modest, but the past two 

years have seen larger increases with net migration 

gains from people coming into the Borough from 

outside an increasing factor in population growth. 

The Borough’s population is described in the graph below. 

In younger age bands there are similar numbers of males 

and females. The Borough has a slightly higher proportion 

of younger people (20.1% under the age of 15), compared 

to Greater Manchester (19.2%) and England (18%, ONS mid

-year estimates 2016).  

In the oldest age bands there are more females than males. 

This mirrors life expectancy data. Women in the borough 

live on average to 80.6 and men to 77.1 years.  

Rochdale Boroughs estimated male and female 

populations by 5 year age band in 2016  

 
Source: ONS Mid-year Population Estimates (2016) 

Population projections over the next 10 years for broad 

age groups are shown below. It is predicted there will be a 

fall in those aged 15-29 and a small rise in those aged 30-

44. The biggest expected change is in the number of people 

over 65. It is predicted that the number of older people in 

the borough will rapidly grow. This will lead to a larger 

proportion of elderly residents compared with those of 

working age. The increase in older people is driven by 

people in general living longer and the post-war baby boom 

generation becoming older.  

 

Population projections by broad age group 

Source: ONS Sub-national population projections (2014) 

The number of people over 65 is expected to rise to 38,000 

by 2021 (an 8.9% increase) and by 2026 there will be 19.8% 

more people over 65. If little is done this increase in older 

people is very likely to increase demand for health and 

social care services. It is essential that the population’s 

health and wellbeing is improved over the next few years 

so that the predicted increase in demand for services can 

be met by the available resources.  

 

 
 

Page 305



 

       Page 7 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

In Rochdale, a large proportion of the population live in 

deprived areas. Deprivation is measured throughout the 

whole country using the index of multiple deprivation 

(IMD). To compare deprivation the country is divided into 

32,844 areas and these are then ranked from most 

deprived to least deprived. Once ranked the areas are 

divided into ten equal groups. Group one is the 10% of 

areas that are most deprived. Almost a third of the 

population of Rochdale Borough (66,450 people) live in 

areas amongst the 10% most deprived in the country (IMD 

2015), an increase on the proportion seen in 2010. In 

contrast, only 24,350 people live in areas in the least 

deprived quartile (75%-100%).  

 

In the graphs below the population of Rochdale is 

presented in five different socio-economic groups: 

 Group 1 are the most deprived and vulnerable residents 

 Group 2 are not as deprived as group 1 but are deprived 

and also at risk of becoming vulnerable.  

 Group 3 are getting by and include hard working mature 

singles with modest wages and lower income owners 

with adult children still living at home.   

 

Rochdale Borough population pyramids by 
deprivation 
 

Source: ONS Mid-year Population Estimates (2016) 

 

 Group 4 are the better off and outcomes for this group 

are normally good. This group includes settled families 

owning modest semis, senior singles on reduced 

incomes in affordable homes and couples enjoying 

retirement.  

 Group 5 are the wealthy and includes prosperous 

owners of country houses, second-home owners, 

affluent mature couples in comfortable houses, and well

-off families in upmarket homes who support grown-up 

children.  

 

The graphs show that the majority of the population are 

either deprived or getting by. Only a small proportion of the 

population are in group 5 the wealthy population. Our 

deprived populations, groups 1 and 2, have a younger age 

profile compared to our more affluent residents.  This can 

be seen in Figure 3 as the two most deprived populations 

have a wide pyramid base compared to the less deprived 

Group 4 and 5 populations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 306



 

       Page 8 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Our population is ethnically diverse.  Black and Minority 

Ethnicity (BME) groups accounted for over 21% of the 

borough population in the 2011 Census. The rate of 

increase in the BME population between 2001 and 

2011,and other evidence, such as the schools census, 

suggest that the proportion of the population that are BME 

is now  larger. The socio-economic profile of our BME 

groups is often very different to that of our White British 

residents; with consequent effects on their quality of life 

and health outcomes. 

 

Changes in ethnic group between 2001 and 2011 

 
Source: ONS Census (2001 and 2011) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Language - 91.7% of the borough identified English (or 

Welsh) as their main language in the 2011 Census. South 

Asian was the second most common language with 5.6%. 

4% of households have no occupant with English as their 

main language. 

 

Faith - The two major religions in Rochdale are Christianity 

and Islam. Faith and its communities are a significant 

community asset to the borough. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 307



 

       Page 9 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 A good start in life is crucial to long term health. A 

safe nurturing environment is important. Some 

children have special educational needs or 

disabilities that require additional support to fulfil 

their potential. The outcome wanted for the 

Borough’s children is that they start school healthy 

and ready to learn.  School readiness is measured at 

the end of reception year but the outcome healthy is 

not directly measured. What is routinely measured 

are the child’s weight in reception year, their oral 

health and their vaccinations.  A healthy child at five 

years old would ideally have had all their 

vaccinations, be a healthy weight, have healthy teeth 

with no decay and be ready to learn.  

 School Readiness - A child that is ready for school is 

ready to be separated from their parent or carer, able to 

demonstrate listening skills, and have enough language 

to express themselves. The school ready child is able 

during play to take turns, will take some responsibility 

for their actions and respond to some boundary setting. 

They are also able to focus on their work and can hold a 

book. School readiness is measured at the end of 

reception year. 

School readiness measured at the end of Reception 

Year (2015/16)

 

 Three factors are very important to the likelihood that a 

child is ready to start school, socio-economic status, 

high-quality early education and care, and ‘good 

parenting’. Too many children, especially those that are 

poor, lack key skills of communication, language, literacy 

and mathematics when they start school. Gaps in 

achievement between the poorest and better-off  

  Rochdale North 
West 

England 

School Ready all 
children 

63.3% 66.7% 69.3% 

School ready in receipt 
of free school meals 
 

49.2% 51.5% 55.4% 

children are often established by the age of five. In 

Rochdale only 49.2% of children in receipt of free school 

meals are school ready, which although similar to the 

North West (51.5%) is much lower than the population 

of all children that are school ready.  

 High-quality early education is crucial. The poorest 

children need the very best provision. Good practice 

involves working closely with parents and carers through 

the transition period, increasing parental understanding 

of what was expected in terms of school readiness and 

providing parents with information and guidance on 

how best to get their child ready.  

 Vaccinations - A young child can be protected from a 

large number of infectious diseases through having all 

their vaccinations. Childhood immunisation uptake is 

high in Rochdale, giving the majority of local children 

protection against infectious diseases. At age 2 

(2016/17), Rochdale met and exceeded the 95.0% 

coverage target for DTaP/IPV/Hib (98.4%), MMR1 

(96.1%), Hib/MenC Booster (95.5%) and PCV Booster 

(95.2%). At age 5, coverage targets were met and 

exceeded for DTaP/IPV/Hib (98.5%), MMR1 (98.0%) and 

Hib/MenC Booster (95.2%). Uptake was also high for 

Diphtheria, Tetanus, Polio and Pertussis (93.9%) and 

MMR2 (94.1%). All of these individual immunisation 

rates were higher in Rochdale than in both the North 

West and England, although there are small pockets of 

poor uptake. 

 Obesity - Obesity is for most preventable. We know this 

because the sharp rise in obesity in recent years cannot 

be due to genetic changes and must be largely explained  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 308



 

       Page 10 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

by changes in society and lifestyles. The school 

measurement programme measures weight at 

reception and then again in year 6. In 2016/17 in 

Rochdale 10.8% of children were obese when measured 

in reception year, an increase from 9.8% in the previous 

year. The proportion of children that are obese or 

overweight is similar to other parts of the North West 

and the national rates, but is too high. There is a need to 

help families reduce obesity in young children, which 

can be done if young children eat healthier and do 

sufficient active play.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Caries - Dental caries is preventable through a healthy 

diet and ensuring a child brushes their teeth with a 

fluoride toothpaste. Ideally a child should have no caries 

when it is measured at school when they are five. The 

oral health of children in Rochdale is poor. By age 5 

years 43.5% of Rochdale children have had dental decay 

(2015). A particular issue is young children having 

sweetened drinks in feeding bottles. Severe dental 

problems can be avoided if bottles only contain water, 

very dilute fruit juice or milk. Additional fluoride 

schemes also help prevent decay.  

 Pregnancy - Progress towards improving early health 

begins with a healthy pregnancy. Consuming alcohol or 

smoking during pregnancy can harm the baby.  In 

Rochdale Borough, smoking during pregnancy is a 

concern. The latest full year data (2016/17) shows that 

16.3% of pregnant mothers smoke, compared to 12.5% 

in Greater Manchester and 10.5% in England. We are 

working with Pennine Care Trust to reduce this.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Breast feeding — Breast feeding has important health 

benefits for babies and mothers. It helps mothers to 

lose weight following birth and appears to provide 

some level of protection against childhood overweight 

and obesity. Fewer mothers in the Borough breast fed 

their babies immediately after birth compared to the 

national and regional average with 61.0% of mothers 

initiating breastfeeding compared to 66.0% in Greater 

Manchester and 73.0% in England (2015/16). 

Maintenance of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks in the 

Borough has fallen in recent years and currently stands 

at 35.8% (2016/17), compared to 40.2% in Greater 

Manchester and 44.3% in England as a whole. 

 

 Special Educational Needs and Disability —  A special 

educational needs and disability section will be included 

in the final web based JSNA . It is important that the 

borough ensures these children are assessed and 

appropriate services provided. 

 

The health and development of young children in Rochdale 

is a mixed story. They are well vaccinated but too many 

have dental health issues, are not their healthy weight and 

are not ready for school. It is likely the proportion that are  

caries free, a healthy weight and ready for school is less 

than half. This outcome can be improved.  

Healthy at age 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
School ready 
 

 No smoke pregnancy 
 Fewer low birth weight births 
 Low infant mortality 
 Breastfed 
 Vaccinations 
 Oral health age 5 
 Weight in reception year 
 
 School readiness end of reception year 

43.5% 

Outcome 

 

 

 

 

 

Measurements 

 

16% 

Page 309



 

       Page 11 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Things to Consider 

 Identifying families in need early and delivering practical, non-judgemental support to help them understand and pre-

pare their child for school. Ensuring the quality of pre-school care and provision is good.  

 Ensuring high quality key work in partnership with parents and carers 

 To reduce obesity and tooth decay health professionals can use contacts with families to provide practical advice such as 

not adding sweeteners such as sugar and honey to bottle feeds and weaning foods.  

 All nurseries and childcare facilities can help by making preventing excess weight gain, improving children's diet and ac-

tivity levels priorities.  

 Free water could be widely available in public places as this helps to reduce consumption of sweet drinks.   

 NICE offers guidance on reducing overweight in children. This includes ensuring a variety of healthier choices are offered 

at mealtimes, and snacks offered between meals are low in added sugar and salt (for example, vegetables, fruit, milk, 

bread and sandwiches with savoury fillings) 

Page 310



 

       Page 12 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 The school years are a time of development and 

growth. The outcome wanted for the borough’s 

school children is that when they are sixteen 

they are mentally and physically healthy, have 

gained relevant qualifications, developed healthy 

habits and have life skills.   

The outcome mentally and physically healthy is not 

routinely measured. What is routinely measured is 

mortality, serious road accidents, the child’s weight in 

year six, HPV vaccination, and hospital admissions due 

to unintentional and deliberate injury. In addition data 

is reported on teenage conceptions and pregnancy.  

 Serious Injury - Death or serious injury in young 

people is rare in the UK. In the UK the main causes 

of death for 5 to 19 year olds are land transport 

accidents, suicide, cancer, other accidents and 

homicide. In Rochdale, in 2015, there were under 5 

deaths, from health related conditions, in the 

41,043 children and young adults aged 5 to 19. The 

rate of serious road accidents in children in 

Rochdale was also low. In 2013-15 it was 13.4 per 

100,000. This is lower than for the North West 22.6 

and for England 17.0 per 100,000.  

 There is also good news about the proportion of females 

having HPV vaccination at the ages of 12-14. In 2015/16 

it was 88% and is slightly higher than the rate for 

England. The rate of conceptions per 1,000 females aged 

15-17 has reduced well in recent years. In 2015/16 it was 

22.0 which is higher than the rest of England (20.8) but 

lower than many other boroughs in the North West. 

 

 Obesity  - The increase in obesity in children during 

primary school years is of concern. In 2016/17 when 

measured during reception year 10.8% of children were 

obese and in year 6, when children are about eleven, 

23.0% of those measured were obese. Whilst this is 

comparable to similar areas the rates of overweight and 

obese children is too high. Lowering the prevalence of 

children who are overweight or obese must be a priority.  

 

Percentage of children obese in Year 6  

Source: National child measurement programme (2016/17) 

 The rate of hospital admissions caused by unintentional 

and deliberate injuries in children aged 0-14 years was 

140.5 per 10,000 residents, in 2015/16. Although similar 

to the North West, in England it is considerably lower 

and was 104.2 in 2015/16. 

 
 
 
 
 

140.5 

Page 311



 

       Page 13 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Safeguarding - Safeguarding is broader than ‘child 

protection’ and is about action taken to promote the 

welfare of children and protect them from harm. 

Safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility. Safeguarding 

includes: protecting children from maltreatment; 

preventing impairment of children’s health and 

development; ensuring that children grow up in 

circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and 

effective care and taking action to enable all children to 

have the best outcomes. In Rochdale neglect is a 

significant issue and there is a Multi-Agency Strategy is 

in place to address the issue. Spend on child 

safeguarding in Rochdale is £2,319,000 per 10,000 

children aged 0-17. This is higher than the England 

spend £1,831,000 and the North West spend £1,758,000 

per 10,000 children aged 0-17. 

 

 Children in Need - On 28 June 2017 there were 1195 

children aged 0-18 either in receipt of services as a child 

in need on this date or in the preceding 3 months. The 

majority of children in need (86%) have been identified 

as living with neglect. In the 3 months proceeding  28 

June 2017, 403 children ceased to be in need. Most due 

to services ceasing and children no longer considered to 

be in need (214), followed by children deemed not to be 

in need following an assessment (115) and children 

stepped down to CAF  (55) a small number (16) transfer 

to other local authorities. 

 

Routinely collected statistics monitor some key issues but 

do not give a good picture of how healthy mentally and 

physically the general population of children are. In both 

2014 and 2016 a health and wellbeing survey of children 

and young people’s health was done in Rochdale. The 

surveys contain a wealth of data from year 8 and year 10 

children.  

 Measures of Wellbeing - In the 2014 and 2016 local 

school surveys the results of measures of wellbeing 

remained very similar. The 2016 survey found 14% of 

pupils responded that they are ‘not at all’ or “not much” 

satisfied with their life at the moment. For self-esteem 

22% appeared in the lower half of the self-esteem scale, 

and 73% of pupils responded that they worry about at 

least one of the issues listed ‘quite a lot’ or ‘a lot’. On a 

positive note 72% of the pupils had a net positive score 

for questions relating to control over their health. This 

suggests that most are able to improve their own health 

with support. Wellbeing scores could be improved.  

 

 Bullying - One concern of young residents is bullying and 

in particular cyber bullying. In 2016 the Wellbeing Survey 

found 71% of pupils have lessons in school to help them 

stay safe online. In 2014 it was 64%. Bullying was also an 

issue, 30% of pupils responded that they feel afraid of 

going to school because of bullying at least ‘sometimes’ 

and 7% of pupils responded that they ‘often’ or ‘very 

often’ feel afraid of going to school because of bullying. 

These figures are slightly higher than those reported in 

2014. In 2016 only 40% of pupils responded that they 

think their school takes bullying seriously, while 27% 

think it doesn’t take bullying seriously. This data is from 

a survey in two schools and may not represent other 

schools. However any bullying is not acceptable and 

efforts to decrease bullying and feelings of being bullied 

are likely to be beneficial.  

 

 Alcohol - In 2016, 7% of Year 8 and 29% of Year 10 pupils 

drank alcohol on at least one day in the preceding week.        

                        Previous local surveys in 2013 and 2014 found         

                         similar usage in year 8 and slightly lower  

                         usage in year 10 pupils. The council does use   

                         licensing restriction to try and stop underage  

                         children buying alcohol. However, impact   

                         depends in part on retailers, publicans and  

                         the wider community’s views about             

                          drinking alcohol.  

 

 

 

 

 

Survey Question Year 8 Year 10 

Boys Girls Boys Girls 

% Ate 5 portions of fruit and 
veg on day before survey 
 

15% 12% 18% 8% 

% Not eat any fruit or veg on 
day before survey 
 

21% 15% 25% 24% 

% Didn’t have anything to eat 
or drink before lessons on the 
day of the survey. 
 

17% 16% 19% 23% 

% didn’t have any lunch on the 
day before the survey. 
 

13% 21% 23% 24% 29% 

% 

Page 312



 

       Page 14 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Smoking in children and young adults has fallen in 

recent years. A Health Related Behaviour survey in 2016 

found that 77% of Year 10 pupils have never smoked. 

This was up slightly from 2013 but no change from 2014. 

Currently 7.0% of 15 year olds in Rochdale smoke, 

compared to 8.0% in the North West and 8.2% in 

England (Source: WAY Survey 2015). This estimate of 7% 

smoking in 15 year olds is likely to be accurate and is 

considerably lower than the smoking prevalence in 

adults which is around 22%.   

 

 Nutrition – In the 2016 school survey 48% of children 

wanted to lose weight. In 2014 it was 46%. Of concern is 

the proportion eating sufficient fruit and vegetables and 

the proportion of children who report that they did not 

have food at some mealtimes.  

 

 Educational attainment is now measured in populations 

by the percentage of pupils achieving a grade 4 in 

English and Maths or equivalent. A grade 4 pass in the 

reformed GCSE marking of one to nine is similar to an 

old system grade C.  In Rochdale in 2016/17 the pass 

rate was 55.3%. This is worse than England 58.3% but 

better than some comparable local boroughs and has 

been improving in recent years. 

 

 Domestic Abuse is a cross cutting issue which can have a 

severe impact on adults and children. Feeling safe in the 

home is essential for wellbeing. Nationally 66% of 

domestic abuse victims have children living in or visiting 

the home. Children living with domestic abuse are at 

increased risk of impacts such as poor health, 

withdrawal, behavioural problems, low self esteem and 

increased vulnerability. Domestic abuse is often not 

reported and statistics showing changes in frequency 

can be misleading. In our Borough, we have a multi-

agency approach to effectively tackling domestic  

 

violence and abuse.  Aims include bringing perpetrators to 

account, supporting victims and raising awareness. We aim 

to learn from the recommendations arising from Serious 

Case Reviews and from Domestic Violence Homicide 

Reviews, as well as from our own day-to-day casework 

experience, to ensure that our systems, processes and 

practice continually improve and develop. The web based 

JSNA will have a section on domestic abuse.  

 

To summarise, whole population routine statistics show 

school children doing  slightly worse than the North West 

population, which is as expected given the socio-economic 

challenges and difficulties facing many families. Positives 

are the high levels of vaccination and low level of traffic 

accidents. Of concern is the rate of hospital admissions and 

obesity. Local survey data in this age group is very 

important. It indicates areas for improvement such as 

improving mental wellbeing, diet (including having regular 

meals), exercise, and reducing bullying. It also indicates 

many children want to lose weight and be healthier. 

Smoking is particularly harmful and is falling in children.  

 

Key Stage 4 (GCSE) attainment  - Percentage of pupils 

achieving a 9-4 pass in 2016/17 

Source: Department of Education 2016/17  

Outcome  Measurements 

 

Healthy at school 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Relevant qualifications 
 
 
 
 

 Local survey of bullying 
 Local survey of self esteem 
 Local survey of satisfaction 
 Obesity year 6 
 Survey of smoking 
 
 
 Pupils achieving a 4-9 pass in English and Maths or 

equivalent  
 Page 313



 

       Page 15 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Things to Consider 

 To supplement routinely collected statistics it is recommended that school health surveys continue. These can provide a 

wealth of information and can be used to reassure the population that data on issues such as bullying and cyber activity 

is being collected. 

 Work with schools and communities to ensure bullying is taken seriously and to help children who are being bullied. 

 Work with schools and families to highlight the importance of eating breakfast, not skipping lunches, drinking water 

each day and eating sufficient fruit and veg. 

 Working with retailers to reduce children’s access to cigarettes and alcohol. 

Page 314



 

       Page 16 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 Early adulthood is a key transition period when 

people become more independent. An outcome 

wanted is that all residents are in education, 

employment or training at the end of compulsory 

education. A second outcome wanted is that 

residents have knowledge and skill about wellness so 

that they are able to remain healthy and become 

independent. At 24 years of age good mental 

wellbeing, not being a smoker, doing sufficient 

physical activity, and being a healthy weight are 

important outcomes likely to support long term 

health. For the Borough’s prosperity it is important 

that young residents gain qualifications and the 

overall workforce becomes more skilled. In young 

adults many positive health behaviours are not 

routinely measured. Instead a number of outcomes 

for which a high rate is considered undesirable are 

measured. These include teenage pregnancy and 

hospital admissions for alcohol or drugs.   

Not in employment, education or training - In Rochdale, in 

2016, there were 5,230 people aged 16 and 17 known to 

the council of which 350 (6.7%) were categorised as not in 

employment, education or training.  

Percentage of people aged 16 and 17 who were not 

in employment, education or training in 2016 

 

In Rochdale, in 2016 the council did not know the outcome 

for 2.9% of people aged 16 and 17. This unknown group is 

assumed to be not in employment, education and training. 

The figures for Rochdale are similar to other local towns 

and the North West. 

In Rochdale the unemployment rate in 16-19 year olds is 

higher than in Greater Manchester. In 2016 there were 

3,700 economically active 16-19 year olds of which 1,100 

(29.7%) were unemployed. In Greater Manchester there 

were 53,200 economically active of which 13,300 (25.0%) 

were unemployed.   
 

 Teenage pregnancy – Having a baby early in life can 

have an impact on young adult’s options. In Rochdale 

the rate of conceptions per 1,000 females aged 15-17 

has fallen significantly. In 2015 it was 22.0 per 1,000, 

which is lower but not significantly lower than the North 

West (24.7). In Rochdale, of all births the proportion 

born to a female aged under 18 is low (0.5%). This 

compares favourably to the North West (1.0%).  
 

Conceptions in women under 18 (rate per 1,000 

females aged 15-17) from 1998 to 2015 

Source: ONS (2015) 

 

 A repeat abortion in women aged under 25 is an 

indicator of lack of access to good quality contraception 

services as well as problems with individual use of 

contraceptive method. In Rochdale in 2016 the 

percentage of women having an abortion under 25 for 

which it is a repeat abortion was 27.8%. This is similar to 

the national figure 26.7%.   

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

  Rochdale 
(n=5230) 

North West 
(159,520) 

Total believed not in employment, 
education or training 

6.7% 6.6% 

Known not in employment, 
education or training 

3.8% 3.4% 

Not known what they are doing 2.9% 3.2% 

Page 315



 

       Page 17 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Illegal drugs - Young adults are often exposed to illegal 

drugs.  Initial usage and experimentation during teenage 

years is commonplace and does sometimes lead to 

problems. Between 2013 and 2016 the standardised 

rate for hospital admissions due to substance misuse 

was 121.6 per 100,000 people aged 15-24. This rate is 

significantly higher than the England rate (98.4), and 

lower but not significantly than the North West rate 

(139.6).  

 Smoking - Smoking and alcohol use in younger people is 

declining. In Rochdale about 7% of children smoke at 15 

which is well below the adult rate. A study in new 

Zealand found that smoking initiation was 14.2% for 15-

17 year olds, 7.0% for 18-19 years, 3.1% for 20-24 years 

and 1.4% for 25-34 years, with low levels of initiation 

(<1.0%) among older age groups. Whilst these data may 

not be directly transferable to Rochdale they show 

something that is almost certainly very important. If we 

want to prevent the next generation from being 

smokers it is important to focus not only on stopping 

adolescents from starting smoking but also on older 

teenagers and young adults.  

 

 Local data is not routinely collected on alcohol 

consumption in different age groups. National data 

shows young people aged 16 to 24 years are less likely  

to drink than any other age group; when they do drink,  

consumption on their heaviest drinking day tends to be 

higher than other ages.  

 Sexual health - Sexual health is important especially in 

younger people who may have more sexual partners. 

Chlamydia is the most commonly diagnosed bacterial 

sexually transmitted infection in England, with rates 

substantially higher in young adults than any other age 

group. It often goes undiagnosed and causes avoidable 

sexual and reproductive ill-health. An increased 

detection rate is indicative of increased infection control 

activity. Chlamydia is treatable and the cure rate is high, 

so finding and treating Chlamydia is the aim. In Rochdale 

in 2016 the proportion of people aged 16-24 that are 

screened for Chlamydia was 16.6%. In the North West it 

was 22%. In Rochdale in recent years detection of 

Chlamydia rose between 2012 and 2014 and has now 

fallen. In 2012 in 16-24 year olds 650 cases were 

detected but in 2016 this was 424.  

A comparison of sexual health indicators between 

Rochdale and North West in 2016 
 

 Young offending – In Rochdale, the rate of young 

offending as measured by first time entrants into the 

youth justice system was 317.2 per 100,000 people aged 

10-17 in 2016. This is slightly higher than the North West 

rate (293.7) but lower than the England rate (327.1).  

 

 In Rochdale the rate per 10,000 population of looked 

after young people aged 16-17 at 31st March 2016 was 

115.3. This is lower than the North West (126.7) and 

England (129.3). 

Outcome               Measurements 

Equipped for life 
 
 
 
Maintaining physical and mental health 
 
 
 
 

 Percentage of people aged 16 and 17 who were not 
in employment, education or training 

 Unemployment rate in 16-19 year olds 
 
 Smoking rates 
 Physical activity 
 Teenage pregnancy 
 Mental Wellbeing 

Sexual Health Indicator Rochdale North 
West 

Chlamydia detection rate per 
100,000 aged 15-24 

1586 2247 

Proportion of 15-24 screened for 
chlamydia 

16.6% 22.6% 

New sexually transmitted 
disease other than chlamydia per 
100,000 aged under 25 

592 727 

121.6 

Page 316



 

       Page 18 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Things to Consider 

 Targeting young adults between the ages of 15 and 24 to try and keep them from starting smoking. Rates of smoking in 

15 year olds is low, keeping the rate low at 24 would be a major public health triumph. 

 Contribute to and consider ways of working with Greater Manchester on the shared aims of improving skills and em-

ployment prospects.  

 Sexual health indicators are on the whole good but diagnosis of Chlamydia has dropped and late diagnosis of HIV is an 

issue so effort needs to go into encouraging screening attendance.  

Page 317



 

       Page 19 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 Most people begin their working lives in good health and 

remaining physically and mentally able to work is crucial 

to wellbeing.  Ideally,  in Rochdale Borough, residents of 

working age who are able to work, would find meaningful 

employment enabling them to support themselves and 

their families. This meaningful employment would 

support their mental wellbeing and allow them to build up 

income so that by the end of their working lives they are 

in relatively good health and able to enjoy retirement. The 

outcomes wanted are increased number of Rochdale 

residents in sustained, meaningful employment and an 

increase in the level of skills of our residents. 

 

 Working population - The working age population is 

defined as adults aged 16-64 and is 135,200 people. Of 

which 93,600 (69.2%) are economically active. In the 

Borough employment levels are low, with only 64.4% of 

adults (16-64) employed in the period July 2016 to June 

2017, compared to 72.4% in the North West and 75.5% 

in England. There are approximately 6,000 economically 

active people that are unemployed. Increasing 

opportunities for residents to find high quality work is a 

priority. 

Breakdown of working age population (2017) 

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey (2017)  

 Economically inactive - The proportion of economically 

inactive people aged 16-64 is high and is 40,600. 

This is 30.8% of adults aged 16-64 compared to 24.0% 

in the North West. Of the economically inactive 9,200 

(22.6%) are students, 10,600 (26.1%) are looking after 

the home, and 12,000 (31.5%) are long term sick. For 

comparison the proportion of long term sick is 26.7% 

in the North West.  

Breakdown of economic inactivity by reason (2017) 

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey (2017) 

 Claimants - In Rochdale in November 2016 there were 

21,170 claimants. The majority of claimants were long 

term sick, lone parents, carers and those seeking 

employment. The majority of claimants live in our 

most deprived areas. 

 

Being out of work is generally bad for health. Poor health 

can be a cause of losing employment and also a huge 

barrier to gaining employment. Of concern, but not 

surprising is the large number of people in Rochdale that 

are long term sick. This reflects other indicators across 

the whole population. Improving mental health and 

wellbeing in all people of working age is crucial to a 

prosperous and thriving Borough.   

 

Rochdale Active Inactive 

North West Active Inactive 

Students 

Looking after the 

home 

Long-term sick 

Retired 

Other 

Page 318



 

       Page 20 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Skill levels - Increasing skill levels can be a part of a 

working age wellbeing approach as learning new things 

contributes to wellbeing. Skill levels are currently lower 

in the Borough than in the rest of the North West and 

England. The lower skill levels are then mirrored in gross 

weekly pay of full time workers.  

 

 

Comparison of qualifications and pay for Rochdale 

and the North West in 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The benefits to health and wellbeing of being in work are 

important, but that work should also be of a reasonable 

quality and not in itself lead to poor health. Being in work 

but also in poverty is increasingly prevalent, as is more 

insecure work, zero hours contracts and temporary 

employment. Rochdale needs to attract and develop high 

quality jobs suited to its population.  

Average weekly full-time wage (2016) 

 

 

There are clear signs that the local economy is improving. 

The borough is well connected with nearby cities of 

Manchester, Leeds and Liverpool and should be looking to 

capitalise on the opportunities of the GM Devolution 

agreement. A Place Board has been established to work 

with Rochdale Development Agency to promote the town 

to businesses. The Kingsway Business Park and other sites 

in the borough can now claim to be home to world class 

industry. The forthcoming town centre redevelopment will 

provide the borough with a renewed retail and leisure 

offering as well as creating job opportunities for local 

residents. With the high performing Rochdale Sixth Form 

College also located in the town centre, our next generation 

of workers will be equipped with the skills to succeed. 

 

The workplace can also be a place that encourages wellness 

and wellbeing. Local employers and in particular the public 

sector including the council have an important role in 

supporting their staff wellbeing. This can be through, for 

example, supporting healthier options, taking stress and 

mental health issues seriously and encouraging and 

enabling staff to attend health checks, cancer screens and 

flu vaccinations.  

 

 

Outcome Measurements 

Higher skilled workforce 
 
 
 
 
Residents with meaningful employment 
 

 Decrease in people with no qualification 
 Increase in people with NVQ4 and above 
 Increase in average weekly wage 
 
 
 Decrease in unemployment rate 
 Fall in number of long-term sick 

Indicator  Rochdale North 
West 

Residents with no qualifications  14% 9.5% 

Highly qualified NVQ4 or above  25.4% 34% 

Average weekly full time wage  £464.2 £552.7 

Page 319



 

       Page 21 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Things to Consider 

 Identifying, working with and supporting those who are in work but may soon develop a long term condition so as to 

stay in work. 

 Identifying and supporting those who have recently become unemployed or entered the jobs market to try and keep 

them from becoming long term unemployed.   

 Working closely with Greater Manchester to increase skill levels and decrease unemployment. 

 Working with large employers such as the council to improve workplace wellbeing and spread wellbeing and wellness 

messages and activity across the population.  

Page 320



 

       Page 22 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 Wellness is about what you do to keep yourself 

mentally and physically healthy. Wellbeing is about 

your welfare, relationships and how you feel in body 

and mind. Each of us would ideally have positive 

wellbeing each day. An outcome wanted for adult 

residents of Rochdale Borough is positive wellbeing. 

A second outcome wanted is increased wellness so 

residents increasingly do things that are good for 

their health.  

In Rochdale, too many people do not do enough to remain 

healthy. Health and wellbeing is worse earlier in life than it 

should be. Too many people aged between 40 and 65 have 

poor health. Improving average wellbeing and wellness by 

even a modest amount would almost certainly reduce 

illness levels and service use. Take for example diabetes. In 

Rochdale the prevalence of diabetes in adults (17 years and 

older) is 8.1% this is significantly higher than England 6.5% 

or Greater Manchester 7.0%. It is more common in 

deprived populations, South Asians and most cases are 

diagnosed between 45 and 65. Weight loss and physical 

activity lower the risk of diabetes by improving the body's 

ability to use insulin and process glucose. Getting the whole 

population more physically active would result in fewer 

cases of diabetes and improve wellbeing. 

Each day in Rochdale many residents face multiple 

difficulties which can make feeling good and doing things to 

keep yourself well difficult. Practical action is needed to 

improve the situation. Some of this action is about 

improving basic welfare, housing and jobs. However 

wellbeing can also be improved by individuals and 

community action. 

 Increasing Wellbeing - Individuals can increase 

wellbeing in five ways which are supported by robust 

evidence. People can connect, be active, take notice, 

keep learning, and give.  Individuals can connect more 

often with friends and family, be more active either 

physically or through participating more, observe and 

experience life rather than live on auto-pilot, learn or do 

something new and give to others.  Giving can include 

giving their time as a volunteer or helper.  

 At the population level each way to wellbeing can be 

supported. For example, people are likely to connect 

more if there are safe public spaces to sit down, 

community events, and neighbourhood initiatives. 

People can be supported to be more active through safe 

green spaces, encouraging walking and using the stairs. 

 

 Measuring Wellbeing - Wellbeing can be measured 

using standardised questionnaires. People are asked for 

their view about aspects of wellbeing such as their life 

satisfaction, happiness and how worthwhile they feel. 

Wellbeing questions are asked in the Annual Population 

Survey (APS) reported by Office for National Statistics. A 

scale from one to ten is used where low scores are bad 

and high scores good.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Comparison of low wellbeing scores in Rochdale and 

England from the Annual Population Survey 2015/16  

 

 Wellbeing question  % respondents scoring  
0-4 (a low score)  

Rochdale England 

Overall, how satisfied are you 
with your life nowadays?  

7.1% 4.6% 

Overall, to what extent do you 
feel the things you do in your life 
are worthwhile?  

5.7% 3.6% 

Overall, how happy did you feel 
yesterday?  

11% 8.8% 

Overall, how anxious did you feel 
yesterday?  

21.3% 19.4% 

High scores Low scores 

Indicate positive wellbeing Indicate poor wellbeing 

Page 321



 

       Page 23 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Wellbeing tends to decrease from around thirty to fifty. 

It then increases. This u-shaped curve is seen in lots of 

populations and does not mirror health. People aged  

45-54 report lowest average ratings for life satisfaction, 

people aged 45-59 report the lowest average happiness, 

and anxiety also peaks in this age group. ONS found the 

happiest people were on average those aged 65-74 and 

life satisfaction was highest in people aged 65-79. 

 

 Community safety - Essential to wellbeing is feeling 

secure. Priorities raised by local people include reducing 

and supporting victim based crime, and tackling all 

aspects of domestic abuse. Anti-social behaviour was 

also a concern as was alcohol and drugs including 

serious organised crime. Higher crime levels are 

experienced by our most disadvantaged population 

groups. In 2017 reported crime has increased slightly 

from the previous year. In 2017 there has been a fall in 

Anti-social Behaviour (ASB). For example in July 2016 

there were 895 and in July 2017 there were 562 

incidents recorded. However, there has been a rise in 

public order offences. Recorded incidents of violent 

crime were higher in January – June 2017 (4244) than 

they were in January to June 2016 (2819). Working  

together to reduce crime is important for developing a  

safer, happier place.  

 

 Healthy Relationships - How people treat each other is 

crucial to increasing wellbeing. Some people are victims 

of abuse. The council has a safeguarding system to 

prevent abuse and neglect and stop it quickly when it 

happens. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and is 

embedded into local health and social care practice. The 

main abuse types for enquiries started in 2016/17 were 

for neglect, financial abuse, physical and emotional 

abuse. There were 793 adult care enquiries started 

during 2016/17 which is 481 enquiries started per 

100,000 population and is broadly in line with regional 

levels. There were 318 ended enquiries during 2016/17. 

91% of closed enquiries saw the risk of abuse either 

removed or reduced. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

%

 

 Improving Mental Wellbeing -  Mild to moderate mental 

health conditions, such as depression and anxiety are 

very important because they are so common. According 

to RightCare, the estimated prevalence of common 

mental health disorders in Rochdale in 16-74 year olds is 

21%. This is higher than England 15.6%. Supporting 

population wellbeing especially physical activity and 

connectedness will make a difference. As will increasing 

access to evidence-based psychological therapies. For 

individuals it is important to listen and support them. 

Those seeking help either via a GP or social services 

should be asked about their feelings and symptoms. If 

their answers indicate that they may have depression or 

an anxiety disorder, you should offer an assessment by a 

trained professional.  

 

Estimated prevalence of common mental health disorders 

 Measuring Wellness – There are different ways to 

measure wellness. One is to consider wellness in relation 

to not being ill. For example, a wellness intervention in a 

workplace might be evaluated by a reduction in staff 

sickness absence. Another way to measure wellness is 

through change in levels of activity that are healthy such 

as increased physical activity or eating of healthy food.  

Page 322



 

       Page 24 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Obesity – The proportion of the local and national 

population who are overweight or obese is a problem. It 

is caused by a complex 

interplay of social and 

individual factors. The latest 

data shows that 69.7% of 

adults in Rochdale are obese 

or overweight, compared to 

66.6% in the North West and 

64.8% in England (2013-15).  

When measured in 2014 the 

proportion of adults eating five a day was 49% which is 

below the England average.  

 

 

 

 

 Physical activity – Being physically active is not for 

weight loss alone. It contributes to well-being, but is 

also essential for good health. People who are physically 

active reduce their risk of developing major chronic 

diseases – such as coronary heart disease, stroke and 

type 2 diabetes – by up to 50%, and the risk of 

premature death by about 20-30%. The proportion of 

adults that are physically active is too low. In Rochdale 

in 2015/16 the percentage of adults, aged 19+ that do 

the recommended 150+ moderate intensity equivalent 

minutes per week was 57.2%. For England it was 64.9%. 

In Rochdale 30.6% of adults reported being inactive in 

that they did <30 moderate intensity equivalent minutes 

per week.  

 

 Alcohol - Residents raised concerns about illegal drug 

use and alcohol. They impact wellbeing of individuals 

and intoxication can cause social problems.  

 

Rochdale’s alcohol related outcomes tend to be above 

the national average, but several are now showing a 

downward trend. In 2015/16 alcohol related hospital 

admissions fell and are no longer significantly worse 

than the national average.  

 

Admission episodes for alcohol-related conditions 

(Narrow)  

Source: PHE Local Alcohol Profile (2017) 

 

However,  Rochdale’s alcohol specific mortality rate 

(19.7 per 100,000) is significantly above England’s rate 

of 11.5 per 100,000. To reduce harm from alcohol and 

drugs requires a good understanding of the reasons for 

and culture around their use in different groups. This 

needs to inform interventions that work locally. Harm 

reduction approaches need to be seen by local people as 

achievable. For alcohol, this might include advice to stop 

drinking for a couple of days each week to give your liver 

a rest and drinking water alongside wine. 

 

49% 

19.7 
Per 100k 

Page 323



 

       Page 25 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

There is a clear strategic need to support healthy weight 

loss and increased physical activity across the population 

but especially in adults between 40 and 65. We know that 

just providing information and increasing knowledge about 

healthy behaviour rarely works well. It assumes that if you 

tell people what is good for them and what they need to do 

to protect their health, they will do it, but this is rarely the 

case. What is more effective is a broader approach which 

includes changing policies and environments to promote 

better behaviours (so called nudge approach) and 

understanding and empowering people within their own 

social worlds to make changes themselves.  

 

These approaches have worked well with smoking. In 

Rochdale smoking has fallen. In 2010, 26.0% of adults were 

smokers, in 2015/16 it was 22.0%, and in 2016/17 it was 

19.4%. Smoking rates fell, not solely because people 

suddenly got the health message, but for a range of 

reasons linked to making it more convenient and cheaper 

to be a non-smoker, such as policies and legal changes to 

create smoke-free places, making it easier to quit and 

banning advertising and promotion. Smoking remains the 

major cause of preventable ill health and we must continue 

effort to reduce smoking especially in deprived groups. In  

2016, smoking was 32.1% in people with routine and 

manual jobs.  

 

To improve health and wellbeing, interventions are needed 

that are accepted by different population groups and have 

an impact, even if this is modest.  Many older adults 

already have a health condition. They need support and 

services that help them cope and improve their health and 

wellbeing.  

 

 

Healthy life expectancy is a very important measure of 

population health. For female residents of Rochdale 

Borough it is 58.7 and for males 57.8. Women live on 

average to 80.6 and men to 77.1. This means the average 

woman in Rochdale spends around 22 years living in poor 

health and the average man 19 years. People from Greater 

Manchester and England live slightly longer and also spend 

less time in poor health than people in Rochdale. This 

indicates that people in Rochdale develop long-term 

conditions earlier compared to many other places.  

 

Differences in Healthy Life Expectancy and Years 

living in poor Health (2014-16) 

Source: Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHE) (2014-16) 

 

In summary, a wellbeing and wellness approach that is 

realistic and understands the challenges faced locally is 

needed. A holistic approach could help tackle the key issues 

of poor mental health and wellbeing, improving health 

behaviours and supporting people in challenging situations.  

 

Outcome Measurements 

Improved Adult Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Improved Adult Wellness 
 
 
 
 

 Wellbeing scores 
 Prevalence of common mental health disorders 
 Anti-social behaviour 
 Violent crime 
 Physical activity 
 Increase in volunteering 
 
 Healthy life expectancy 
 Five a day (especially vegetables) 
 Physical activity 
 Reduced smoking 
 

Page 324



 

       Page 26 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Things to Consider 

 The health needs of the population require two prevention approaches tailored to the population’s needs and circum-

stances: the first aims to keep people healthier for longer. The second aims to support people with health issues to re-

duce the impact of their disease or injury. 

 An overall strategy of improving population wellbeing that aims to increase connectedness, the quality of relationships 

and mental wellbeing. This would aim to reduce mild mental health problems and improve wellbeing scores.   

 Increasing physical activity levels would improve both health and wellbeing. Approaches to nudge people into more ac-

tivity and support people to be more active are needed. These can be linked to enjoyment and improving wellbeing.  

 Reducing smoking especially in the poorest groups and those in routine jobs must remain a priority. 

 Practical ways to increase the consumption of fruit and vegetables and reduce obesity in families. 

Page 325



 

       Page 27 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 The population aged over 65 is growing in Rochdale. 

It was estimated to be 34,692 in 2016 (16% of total 

population) and will likely rise to 41,400 by 2025. In 

England, around two thirds of people over 65 have 

multiple health issues. In Rochdale Borough it will be 

even higher because it is more deprived. As the 

majority of older people have existing health 

conditions managing and coping with these is crucial 

to population wellbeing. 

 

It is perhaps surprising, given that older people have more 

health issues, that on average the happiest, most satisfied 

people with the least anxiety in the UK are in their sixties 

and seventies. Nationally it is only after 85 that average 

wellbeing scores dip. The outcomes wanted for older 

residents of Rochdale are high wellbeing, feeling safe and 

not isolated, and able to cope with a long term condition or 

ailment they may have. 

Whilst older people often have more health problems they 

are an asset. They help out in families as carers and 

support, often have more free time and volunteer and 

support the community. Increasing opportunities to 

volunteer and give back to community will support 

wellbeing.  

Loneliness and isolation - Loneliness is an issue in all 

population groups and ages but especially in older people. 

The routinely collected measure of loneliness is the 

proportion of adult social care users who have as much 

social contact as they would like. In Rochdale in 2015/16 it 

was 47.8% in England it was 45.4%. Whilst better than 

average it still indicates that over half the population of 

social care users don’t have enough social contact. Using 

social care users to measure loneliness in people over 65 is 

not ideal, however, it is reasonable to assume that if 

reported loneliness is improving in this group it will also 

likely be improving in older people. 

 

Feeling safe - Not all social care users are older adults but  

the proportion of people who use services who feel safe 

can be used as a proxy measure for older people. In 

2015/16 in Rochdale 71.8% of social care users reported 

feeling safe. In England it was 69.2% 

Dementia - As the population ages, there will be more 

people with dementia. Ensuring people with dementia 

get a diagnosis of dementia is important. It enables 

people living with dementia, their carers, and healthcare 

staff to plan accordingly and work together to improve 

health and care outcomes. Currently in Rochdale 67% of 

people who are believed to have dementia have a formal 

diagnosis recorded, similar to the England proportion 

68%. Recognising demographic change and in line with 

the Greater Manchester strategy  we will respond to the 

needs of older people and aim to build age-friendly 

neighbourhoods and town centres. The idea of aging well 

is about changing the narrative around ageing, building a 

positive discourse and demonstrating the valuable 

contribution that older people can make.   

 

Results annual social care users survey 2016/17 

% 

% 

% 

72% 

92% 

70% 

Page 326



 

       Page 28 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

As people get older their use of health and social care 

services tends to increase. This makes contact with services 

very important. Local people report being concerned about 

access to services, such as getting GP appointments, 

parking and transport to hospitals and waiting for 

treatments. Difficulties impact most on older people and 

simple practical steps to help access are needed. Services 

can also protect people through preventive measures such 

as the winter flu vaccination.  

 

 Flu Vaccination - In 2016/17 vaccination coverage for flu 

in people aged 65 was 65.4%, this is lower than similar 

Boroughs and the North West (72.9%) and is a 

significant drop from 2015/16 (74.6%).  

 

Although services are very important the amount of time 

that a person with a health issue spends with a health 

professional is very small compared to the time they spend 

managing their own care.  

 

 

 Self care - Many people with long term health problems 

have low levels of knowledge, skills and ability to self-

care. This impacts their health and wellbeing and their 

ability to live independently. According to RightCare, in 

Rochdale Borough, the percentage of people who feel 

supported to manage their condition was 59.4% in 

2015/16. This is lower than England 64.3%.  

 

Care services can play a key role in helping people to build 

their knowledge, skills and confidence, and to access 

services and support networks in their local communities 

such as self-management education. Patient activation is a 

term used to describe having skills, knowledge and 

confidence about health issues. Evidence shows that people 

at higher levels of activation tend to have better health 

outcomes and fewer episodes of emergency care, and 

engage in healthier behaviours. People with lower 

activation have low confidence in their ability to have an 

impact on their health and often feel overwhelmed with 

the task of managing their health and wellbeing. These 

people tend to develop more long term conditions, have 

poorer wellbeing, and make more unwarranted use of 

public services.  

 

 STARS - Over the last 12 months more than 1,230 local 

residents have benefitted from Rochdale’s Short Term 

Assessment and Re-ablement Service (STARS) and STARS 

plus initiative with 89% of users being over the age of 

65. This service ensures hundreds of  people retain their 

independence, following a stay in hospital, by providing 

hands on care in an environment of their choice. Up to 

30 people are referred to the service every week, of 

which about 80% are hospital discharges. 

Outcome Measurements 

Improved Wellbeing 
 
 
 
Feeling safe and not isolated 
 
 
 
Coping with existing health condition 
 
 
 

 Wellbeing scores 
 Increase in volunteering 
 
 Service users who have as much social contact as 

they would like 
 Proportion of people who use services who feel 

safe 
 
 The percentage of people who feel supported to 

manage their condition 
 
 

% 

Page 327



 

       Page 29 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Things to Consider 

 How best to make Rochdale’s population engaged with making Rochdale an age friendly place for older people so that 

older people actively contribute. 

 How best to engage with and support older people to improve their wellbeing through connecting with others, staying 

active and mobile, learning new things, noticing and giving. 

 How best to commission local services to support people living with long term conditions and their carers. In which per-

sonalised care and support planning help to identify how to achieve the outcomes that are important to individuals. 

 The need to improve our population’s ability to self-care and how progress can be measured using the Patient Activation 

Measure, in which activation is the term used for having more skills and confidence around care issues. 

 How best to align our local position with the Greater Manchester (GM) Dementia United programme,  which is the de-

mentia strategy for GM and make Rochdale dementia friendly  

Page 328



 

       Page 30 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 The outcome wanted for frail older residents of the 

borough is that each person feels cared for and 

independent. These outcomes are not routinely measured. 

A number of other indicators can show progress towards 

supporting and caring for frail people. These include the 

rate of falls that cause injury, excess winter deaths in the 

elderly, rates of flu vaccination and measures of loneliness 

and isolation.  

During the last year or two of life wellbeing measures tend 

to dip. According to ONS the fall in ratings of personal well-

being amongst the oldest age groups might result from a 

range of personal circumstances such as poor health, living 

alone and feelings of loneliness. The relationship between 

health and self-reported wellbeing works in both directions. 

Health problems generally develop with age, and reduce 

the ability to participate and will tend to reduce wellbeing; 

whereas, improving well-being can lead to improvements in 

health. 

A big gap in understanding wellbeing in older frail people is 

that we do not adequately measure social contact. 

Loneliness is only measured routinely in those that have 

contact with adult social care. There is also a lack of 

qualitative data which can be used to identify of simple 

issues that can be resolved.  Social isolation and loneliness 

can increase risk of mortality by a quarter and loneliness 

has strong associations with, and may be an independent 

risk factor for depression. It is also linked to hypertension, 

impaired sleep, Alzheimers and impaired cognition in older 

people. 

Living alone - It is estimated that by 2020 there will be 

13,500 people over 65 living by themselves. The majority 

over 90% will be living in houses not designed for old age. 

Loneliness and isolation is very harmful to health.  In 

England 12% of people over 65 are persistently or 

chronically lonely. In Rochdale, this would mean that in 

2016 around 4,200 people over 65 were chronically lonely.   

 

 

 Falls - People over 65 can be seriously injured by falls, 

some of which are preventable. In 2015/16 there were 

799 injuries due to falls. The rate of falls per 100,000 

people over 65 was 2,421. This was higher than the 

England rate of 2,169 per 100,000 but comparable to 

other places across the North West. However some 

areas had much lower rates of injury from falls and 

the local trend in falls has not been decreasing which 

suggests an opportunity for preventing some falls. 

 

 

 

 In Rochdale, the rate of hip fracture per 100,000 

people over 65 in 2015/16 was 749 significantly higher 

than the England rate which was 589. 

 

Research indicates where possible people prefer to stay 

in their own home rather than move into residential care. 

Avoiding permanent placements in residential and 

nursing care homes is a good indication of delaying 

dependency, and our local health and social care services 

work together to reduce avoidable admissions. 

Permanent admissions to residential and nursing homes 

in people over 65 was measured in 2013/14, in Rochdale 

it was 757/100,000 similar to the North West (756/ 

100,000) but higher than England (651/100,000).   

2,421 

Page 329



 

       Page 31 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Feeling secure in a good warm home is essential to 

wellbeing.  More suitable housing is needed, one issue 

raised is tenancy issues, for example people being 

evicted from care homes and needing sheltered housing 

and care.   

 Care Homes— High quality elderly care is very 

important.  Rochdale council and health partners 

undertake work in care homes to help reduce falls and 

to control infections and flu outbreaks. Also the quality 

of care is reviewed and challenged if care does not 

quality standards. 

 

 Excess winter deaths -  In most populations there are 

more deaths during winter months than would be 

expected if death rates fell evenly across all 12 months. 

In Rochdale for the three year period 2013/2016 there 

were in total 223 excess winter deaths in people over 

85.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The ratio of excess deaths in people over 85 in winter 

months was 39.9 significantly higher than the England 

ratio of 24.6. This indicates an opportunity to help older 

people, manage winter better.    

 

 Fuel poverty is likely to be rising for those where 

reduced income continues to have an impact. The 

proportion of households estimated to be in fuel poverty 

in 2015 was 12.4%. The highest fuel poverty areas within 

the borough are generally those with a younger 

population, but fuel poverty and poor housing 

undoubtedly contributes to excess winter deaths in the 

elderly. 

 

 Flu can be a cause of excess winter deaths and 

vulnerable and older people can be protected with a 

seasonal flu vaccination. Vaccination coverage for flu in 

people aged 65 and over in 2016/17 was 65.4%. This is a 

large and significant drop from 2015/16 (74.6%). It is 

also lower than the 2016/17 coverage in the North West 

(72.9%) and England (70.5%). 

 

 As people age they tend to use more services. The NHS 

estimates that the average 65-year-old costs the NHS 2.5 

times more, and an average 85-year-old costs it five 

times more than an average 30-year-old.  

 

 

 

 

Outcome  Measurements 

Feeling cared for 
 
 
Independence 
 

 Loneliness and isolation 
 
 
 Fall in excess winter deaths 
 Flu vaccination rate 
 Falls reduction 

Things to Consider 

 The best ways to help frail elderly people stay connected and feel cared for, especially those living alone. 

 Why in recent years has the rate of winter deaths been high in residents over 85. 

 What practical steps can be done to reduce excess winter deaths. 

 Improving falls prevention, finding and implementing practical ways to reduce falls and hip fracture 

Page 330



 

       Page 32 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 The term vulnerable group is used for identifiable 

groupings of people that have some differing needs 

to similar aged people in the whole population. It 

does not mean that every person belonging to that 

group is vulnerable. Indeed some people may belong 

or identify with a vulnerable group but have low 

levels of need. Vulnerable groups can include lesbian, 

bi-sexual, gay, and transsexual people, homeless 

people, refugees, people of different ethnic 

backgrounds, people who have served in the military 

and people with disability. Here the focus is on 

carers. The website JSNA will have sections to cover 

other groups 

 Carers - A carer is someone who cares for another 

person that could not manage without such support, 

because of issues such as mental or physical illness, 

disability, age or substance misuse problems. Caring for 

someone covers lots of different things like helping with 

washing, dressing, eating, taking them to regular 

appointments or offering emotional support. 

 Carers needs - People who care for others include 

people from all backgrounds. Carers have specific 

additional needs. A consultation event with carers in July 

2016 identified that local carers need breaks from their 

caring roles; access to services for the cared for person 

and themselves; help to maintain and improve their 

health and wellbeing; help to feel less isolated and 

additional financial support. 

 

 Number of carers - According to the census in 2011 

there were 23,260 carers resident in Rochdale Borough 

who provide unpaid care, helping family, friends or 

neighbours with long-term physical or mental ill-health 

or disability or problems relating to old age. There were 

6,105 (2.9% of the total population) providing 50 or 

more hours of care per week. This is above regional and 

national comparators. As there are now a greater 

number of older people than there were in 2011 the 

current number of carers is likely to be higher.   

It is also important to recognise that many people with 

caring responsibilities will also have their own health 

Issues.  

 

Carers Consultation — What local carers report as 

not going well? 

 

Source—Local carers consultation (2016), 90 responses were 

categorised into 9 areas 

Page 331



 

       Page 33 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Listening to carers - Quotes from carers collected during 

consultation illustrate their needs and what is 

commonly wanted. For example, a need for breaks and 

respite from care: “I have no time for myself, I cannot 

get my house clean and tidy”; “No breaks from 24 hour 

care”; ‘Tied to the person I care for 24 hours a day’  and 

‘Ability to plan spontaneously’. What is wanted is 

quality support: ‘Being able to get out more’; ‘Ability to 

take a holiday with confidence that caring will continue 

sufficiently’ and ‘To have my carers break’.  

 

 Many believe their caring role is harming their own 

health. For example: “My own mental health has been 

affected by being a carer”; “I don’t have time to cook 

properly”; “Mentally and physically exhausted, affecting 

my health”; “My own health and the fact that I can’t do 

what I used to do” and “Not getting much sleep”. Others 

note their own health problems: ‘No life, depression’‘ 

and “Back and neck problems”. Basic support such as 

someone to talk is wanted: “Knowing there is someone 

should I feel the need to talk to someone”. 

 

 Support - Nearly all carers that have accessed support 

appreciate it and find it very helpful. Carers identified 

the need for more social support, including social events 

for carers, clear information about what is available and 

how to access benefits and recognition of their role as 

important.  

 

 The Carers’ Hub Rochdale provides a single point of 

access for all young and adult carers in the Rochdale 

borough. The hub exists to ensure that all carers have 

access to information, advice and a wide range of 

support services. These support services are designed to 

help carers continue in their caring role for as long as 

they choose and to reduce the impact the caring role 

can have on their own health and wellbeing. However, it 

is important to recognise that not all carers will access 

support in this way and that system wide support across 

all frontline health and social care services is needed. 

Measurements – There are some measures that consider  

carers. Indicator ASCOF, 1D -Carer-reported quality of life, 

is the only current measure related to quality of life for 

carers available, and supports a number of the most 

important outcomes identified by carers themselves to 

which adult social care contributes. This measure gives an 

overarching view of the quality of life of carers based on 

outcomes identified through research by the Personal 

Social Services Research Unit.  It is based on scores from six 

questions. Answers score 0 if No needs met;1 if some needs 

met and 2 if no unmet needs. The lowest score is zero and 

the maximum 12. A low score is bad. In Rochdale, in 

2014/15 the score for carer reported quality of life was 8.2 

which is a little better than the North West score 8.0 and 

England 7.9.  

 

A comparison of answers from carers in Rochdale and 

the North West from the social care survey 2016/17 

In summary carers are a large group around 10% of the 

whole population and many want and need basic practical 

support, such as a few hours to themselves to help them 

cope.  They often struggle in difficult circumstances with 

their own health issues. They are providing a very valuable 

service. The outcome wanted for carers is that they feel 

supported and able to cope.  

 

 

Outcome Measurements 
Feel supported and able to cope and are able to 
maintain their own health & wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
 

 Adult carers  who have as much support as they 
would like 

 The proportion of carers who reported that they 
have been included or consulted in discussions 
about the person they care for 

 Overall satisfaction of carers with social services 
 Carer reported quality of life 

Measure Rochdale North 
West 

Proportion of carers who use 
services who reported that they 
have as much social contact as they 
would like 

45.8% 35.8% 

Proportion of carers who report 
being extremely satisfied, or very 
satisfied with social Services in the 
last 12 months 

42.2% 42.9% 

The proportion of carers who 
reported that they have been 
included or consulted in discussions 
about the person they care for 

71.4 71.6 

Page 332



 

       Page 34 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 In Rochdale, life expectancy had been increasing in 

both men and women and has now levelled off. The 

chart below shows the trend for males (the picture is 

similar for females).  For males life expectancy at 

birth is now 77.1 and for females it is 80.6. This is 

similar to Oldham but lower than the North West, 

Greater Manchester, and England.  

Life expectancy at birth—Males 

Source: ONS  (2002-04 to 2014-16) 

Whilst life expectancy has improved a gap between 

Rochdale and the North West and England has remained. 

Much of this gap is explained by differences in life 

expectancy in affluent and less affluent populations. 

Rochdale has a larger proportion of less affluent people 

than the North West or England and can therefore be 

expected to have lower life expectancy.  

The gap in life expectancy between the most affluent and 

least affluent remains quite stark. When the Rochdale 

population is divided into ten equal groupings (deciles) 

based on material deprivation, males in the most deprived 

decile live around ten years less than the males in the most 

affluent. For females the gap in life expectancy between the 

most and least affluent is about nine years. For females 

much of this difference is confined to the most affluent 

group (class 10) who tend to live around five years longer 

than any other group.     

Life expectancy in males and females in Rochdale in 

2012-2014 in different deciles of material 

deprivation 

In 2016, there were 2,049 deaths in Rochdale of which 

there were 803 deaths in people under 75. Compared to 

England as a whole, in Rochdale Borough, more people 

die before they reach 75. In the borough between 2014 

and 2016 the directly standardised mortality rate for 

deaths under 75 was 451 per 100,000. In England it was 

334. This indicates that when differences in the age 

structure of England and Rochdale are taken into 

consideration there are around 35% more premature 

deaths in Rochdale than in the rest of England.  

 

Average life expectancy in Rochdale is lowest in our 

poorest population groups. Therefore we know that the 

majority of premature deaths must occur in these 

groups. This means that tackling early deaths should 

narrow the gap in health inequality. However, this will 

only happen if services and interventions that reduce 

premature mortality are taken up proportionately by the 

poorest groups. One example where this is not 

happening is smoking. Continuing to smoke makes you 

more likely to die prematurely and smoking remains 

most prevalent in manual workers and poorer population 

groups. As such it is important to get smokers who are 

being treated for life threatening conditions to try and 

quit. We see many examples where access to 

preventative services does not match need and we need 

to reach out to support people to access them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Decile 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

male 73 74 74 78 75 79 78 79 80 83 

female 78 79 79 80 80 79 82 82 82 87 

Page 333



 

       Page 35 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Premature mortality is considered to be deaths before age 

75. Some, but not all of these deaths are preventable. For 

premature mortality Rochdale is ranked 312th out of the 

324 local authorities in England.   

 

A comparison across 324 Local Authorities of rates of 

death from different causes in people under 75 in 

2014-16  

The main causes of the difference in life expectancy 

between Rochdale and England have been identified. In 

terms of broad categories circulatory disease which 

includes heart disease and stroke accounts for around 20% 

of excess deaths. Other large causes of preventable early 

death in Rochdale include lung cancer, especially in 

women, respiratory diseases especially COPD and cirrhosis 

of the liver in men aged 40-60.  There is little doubt that 

smoking is a major cause of many premature deaths in 

females. For example, the age standardised mortality rate 

for preventable respiratory disease in females in England is 

16.5 but in Rochdale it is 31.4.  

 

The contribution of different broad causes of death 

to the gap in life expectancy between Rochdale and 

England (2012-14) 

The outcome wanted is a fall in preventable mortality. 

Clearly it is unrealistic to expect the Rochdale population to 

have outcomes similar to much more affluent populations. 

It is therefore helpful to compare Rochdale with areas with 

similar levels of deprivation. For example when compared 

to 16 similar local authorities Rochdale was ranked 7th for 

premature cancer deaths. A realistic target for reducing 

preventable mortality can be calculated by using the best 

outcome from similar local authorities and applying these 

to the Rochdale population. Some work is needed to 

produce an accurate estimate of the number of deaths that 

should be prevented each year but an approximate 

estimate based on premature deaths in Walsall (an area of 

similar deprivation but fewer premature deaths) is 84 

deaths per year in people under 75.   

  

Preventing excess deaths can largely be achieved in line 

with the Greater Manchester Strategy which is to target 

cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease and cancer. This 

Strategy has set a target of having 160, 350 and 150 fewer 

deaths each year across Greater Manchester from 

cardiovascular disease, cancer and respiratory disease. 

Rochdale’s population is approximately 1/10 of Greater 

Manchester making our contribution about 16, 35, and 15 

fewer deaths each year from cardiovascular disease, cancer 

and respiratory disease. Locally we would also target liver 

disease. 

 

To achieve better outcomes requires a combination of 

improving lifestyle factors (better diet, not smoking, being 

physically active and drinking less), early identification and 

treatment of disease and good access to services. This can 

happen by working together with the population, GPs and 

secondary care. The local council, providers and the CCG all 

have a crucial role.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Lowest Local 
Authority 
rate per 
100,000 

Rochdale 
rate per 
100,000 (rank 
out of 324) 

Highest local 
authority 
rate per 
100,000 

All deaths 215 451  (312) 546 

cancer 99 165  (303) 195 

Lung cancer 31 81    (301) 110 

Heart disease 
and Stroke 

42 101  (316) 108 

Lung disease 14 52    (307) 70 

Liver disease 7 30    (310) 45 

Injury 4 21    (312) 34 

Broad cause of death  Males Females 

Circulatory 20.0% 18.1% 

Cancer 11.7% 20.5% 

Respiratory 16.7% 15.4% 

Digestive 15.1% 10.7% 

Mental and behavioural 4.9% 11.9% 

Other* 15.5% 11.0% 

Deaths under 28 days 2.4% 2.6% 

Page 334



 

       Page 36 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 Reducing Premature Mortality in Rochdale 

 

The main risks that impact on the whole population are 

poor diet, excessive alcohol consumption, smoking and lack 

of physical activity. Unskilled manual labourers tend to be 

three times more likely and people with no qualifications 

five times more likely to have all four of these risk 

behaviours than professionals. In Rochdale, in 2016 it was 

estimated that 14% of the population had no qualifications 

and many more are employed or were employed in 

unskilled jobs. 

At the whole population level a wellbeing and wellness 

approach can be used to encourage healthier behaviours 

(see the adult wellness section). In addition four actions 

could have a major impact on mortality over a short period 

of time, these are: 

 

 Reduce smoking in people with a high risk of chronic 

disease 

 

 Identifying and effectively managing people under 75 

with multiple risk factors ( target deprived areas and 

vulnerable groups) 

 

 Reduce smoking through contact with acute care 

 

 Reducing excessive drinking 

 

The second main way to reduce premature mortality is to 

focus on conditions rather than the behaviours. There are a 

number of conditions that can be used to predict how likely 

a person is to have a disease or for the disease to progress. 

Identification of people with for example a high body mass 

index, high cholesterol, and heart rhythm disorders allows 

for early intervention which when effective reduces disease 

levels. There is a need in Rochdale to improve identification 

of people with conditions and to engage with them to 

improve outcomes.  

 

Four actions are needed that would make a difference 

these are: 
 

 Improve identification of people with undiagnosed 

conditions and disease in particular hypertension, 

coronary heart disease, atrial fibrillation, COPD, chronic 

kidney disorder, and  Type 2 diabetes 
 

 Improve early diagnosis of familial 

hypercholesterolaemia (this is a genetic disorder 

characterized by high cholesterol levels, specifically very 

high levels of low-density lipoprotein (LDL, "bad 

cholesterol"), in the blood and early cardiovascular 

disease) 
 

 Monitor variation in referral and diagnosis rates and 

intervene to encourage and ensure best practice  
 

 Increase uptake of cancer screening programmes and 

immunisations 

 

In Rochdale, there are a number of risk registers which are 

used to help ensure people get the right treatments. 

However it is known that these registers are not recording 

all the people with those conditions. Using the 

characteristics of Rochdale’s population such as their age, 

BMI, and level of deprivation, it is possible to model and 

then predict an expected number of people with different 

health issues.  

 

Expected and Recorded  Conditions in Rochdale 

Borough 2015/16 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

Action is needed to identify people that have conditions but 

are not known to have them by the health service. Many of 

these people will be found in our poorest communities and 

getting high attendance at for example GP run health 

checks is a priority.  

Risky Behaviours Risk conditions 

Dietary risks 
Tobacco smoke 
Alcohol and drug use 
Low physical activity 
Occupational risks 

High body mass index 
High systolic blood pressure 
High fasting plasma glucose 
High total cholesterol 
Low glomerular filtration rate 
Heart rhythm disorders/atrial 
fibrillation 

Condition Actual 
recorded 

Expected Difference 

Stroke (age 16 
plus) 

4,306 4,125 -181 

Hypertension (age 
16 plus) 

31,995 53,221 21,226 

CHD (age 16 plus) 8,531 9,934 1,403 

COPD (age 16 
plus) 

5,489 7,789 2,300 

Atrial Fibrillation 
(all ages) 

3,195 4,845 1,650 

Diabetes (age 16 
plus) 

14,760 17,099 2,339 

Page 335



 

       Page 37 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

The third broad approach to reducing premature mortality 

is to improve disease management. This can be achieved by 

monitoring and benchmarking against best practice. Some 

variation in practice and outcomes can be expected and 

justified because of differing patient mix and individual 

choice. However practice can often be improved when an 

area of variation is found and people work together to 

understand how to improve performance. In Rochdale, 

management of patients with hypertension could be 

improved. There is considerable variation across GP 

practices in the proportion of patients with hypertension 

whose blood pressure is not less than or equal to 150/90. 

The range across practices is 7.4% to 39%. If all practices 

achieved a proportion similar to the average achieved in 

the better performing practices then around 1,500 more 

people would have their hypertension controlled.   

 

There are a number of actions that are needed to improve 

disease management, these are: 

 

 Address variability in primary care 

 

 Review commissioned pathway for diabetes, heart 

disease and stroke, including rehabilitation 

 

 Increase community and provider Cardiopulmonary 

resuscitation (CPR) training 

 

 Address variation in diagnosis and referral rates of 

cancer 

 

 Improve access to cancer diagnostics 

 

 Effectively manage people with co-morbidities 

 

 Review COPD pathways 

 

The web site JSNA will have sections covering different 

disease areas which will include cardiovascular disease, 

cancer, respiratory diseases, diabetes and liver disease. 

Here there is a brief section on cardiovascular disease, 

which is the biggest single cause of premature deaths, and 

a section about multiple conditions which is crucial for 

understanding the population’s health.  

 

 

 

 

 

Cardiovascular disease  

 

In Rochdale the age standardised mortality rate for 

cardiovascular disease that is considered preventable in 

people under 75 between 2014 and 2016 was 71.4 per 

100,000. In England it was 46.7 per 100,000 and in the 

North West it was 57.2. Mortality rates from cardiovascular 

disease are much higher in the most deprived population 

groups compared to the most affluent. Consequently 

targeting heart disease and strokes will help reduce 

premature mortality and health inequality. 

 

There was a dramatic fall in mortality from cardiovascular 

disease in people under 75. In Rochdale in 2002 – 2004 age 

standardised mortality was 196 per 100,000 in 2014 – 2016 

it was 107.9. However in the most recent years this fall in 

mortality has stopped. 

 

Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular 

diseases (persons) 

Source: Public Health England (2001-03 to 2014-16) 

 

The fall in mortality from cardiovascular disease was almost 

certainly mainly due to better identification of people at 

risk and better treatments, with people stopping smoking 

also contributing. To continue to make progress requires a 

reduction of risk in the population (e.g. increase levels of 

exercise and stopping smoking), the identification of people 

at high risk so they can be monitored and offered early 

treatment, and access to high quality treatments for those 

with established disease. Our actions  to reduce mortality 

from cardiovascular disease will come from our programme 

to reduce premature mortality and also working with 

Greater Manchester.   

 
 

Page 336



 

       Page 38 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Multiple Conditions 

 

It is very important to recognise that many residents of 

Rochdale have more than one health condition.  According 

to NHS (SUS) data sets for 2016/17 the number of adults 

with multiple (2 or more) long term conditions was 17,930. 

This includes people with for example cancer and a 

respiratory problem or diabetes and digestive problems. 

Some of these people have very complex health needs. 

 

Use of services by adults with multiple long term 

conditions (2016/17) 

Unsurprisingly people with multiple conditions use a lot of 

health services. The table above shows that in terms of 

patient episodes people with multiple long term conditions 

account for nearly 43% of emergency admissions.  

In the long term it is important to reduce the number of 

people with multiple conditions through prevention 

activity. In the short term it is important that we see them 

holistically as a person. This is central to our wellbeing 

approach which is about practical welfare, relationships 

and how the person feels in body and mind. We know 

people use fewer services if they have good wellbeing. For 

many people in Rochdale who have multiple health issues a 

wellbeing approach can help them to look at the assets 

they have, what they can do with what they have, and be 

positive about what they have and can do. We need to 

have person centred approaches to the treatment and care 

of people with multiple conditions including well 

coordinated work across different care providers and 

specialities. 

 

 

 

Summary – To improve life expectancy in Rochdale there is 

a need to tackle premature mortality. Too many people die 

before they reach 75. A disproportionate amount of these 

early deaths are in the most deprived groups. Therefore if 

we improve premature mortality we will also very likely 

reduce health inequality across the Borough. The main 

causes of premature mortality are known. Joined up action 

is required to reduce risky behaviours, identify and treat 

people with health conditions that lead to disease, and to 

manage disease more consistently. Many people have 

multiple health conditions and some will need substantial 

support to cope and improve their health and wellbeing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Condition Adult with 
Multiple Long 
Term Conditions 

All 
Patients 

Percentage 

Number of 

Patients 

17,930 234,895 7.63% 

A&E Activity 19,170 104,356 18.37% 

Emergency 

Admissions 

10,311 24,229 42.56% 

Elective 

Admissions 

12,787 32,037 39.91% 

Outpatient 

Activity 

73,044 255,718 28.56% 

Page 337



 

       Page 39 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 In recent years there have been large falls in 

mortality from a number of major diseases. These 

falls in mortality have largely occurred because of 

improvements in identification of people at risk and 

timely interventions by health services. In Rochdale, 

coupled with a reduction in smoking this has resulted 

in an increase in life expectancy. From a resident’s 

perspective there are two main types of health 

service. These are primary care, which for most 

means their local GP practice and pharmacy and 

secondary care which for most means the hospital. In 

addition there are prevention services which usually 

aim to identify and treat disease early. These include 

health checks and screening for cancer.  

GP Practices 

In Rochdale there were 38 practices in Heywood, Middleton 

Rochdale CCG, serving a registered population of 224,787.   

GP Survey—Time since residents last saw or spoke to 

The GP practice population is different to the population 

of Rochdale Borough because some residents of 

Rochdale will visit a GP that is outside the borough and 

some people who reside outside the borough will visit a 

practice within the borough.  

A survey undertaken in 2017 with residents had 3,028 

responses. It found the proportion of people who had 

spoken to a GP was similar to previous years. Most 

people (70%) had spoken to a GP in the last six months. 

Around 15% of people had not seen a GP for over 12 

months of which a small number less than 1% reported 

never seeing a GP.  In the 2017 survey there was an 

increase in the proportion of people who had spoken to a 

nurse at the GP practice during the last year. 

GP Survey—Ease of getting through to someone at 

GP Surgery on the phone 

As part of the wider JSNA process there was consultation 

with some patient groups which found that accessing a 

GP and waiting for appointments were issues.  

 

 

 

 

Page 338



 

       Page 40 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

In the national 2017 GP survey 38% of people reported 

finding it not very easy or not at all easy to get through to 

someone at the GP surgery.  This was similar to previous 

years. Most people (87%) reported that the receptionist 

was of help. This was slightly higher than in previous years. 

The population needs good access to GPs. This is crucial if 

we are to make progress in reducing premature mortality 

through having good primary care registers and early 

effective treatments.  

Hospital 

Around 100,000 A&E attendances are made by patients 

covered by Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale (HMR) CCG 

each year. 93% of these are at the hospitals provided by 

Pennine Acute Trust. Not all attendances at A&E are 

appropriate. 19% of patients that attend are discharged 

with follow up by GP, 22% have no investigation and no 

significant treatment and 4% leave A&E before being 

treated. The attendance by age shows a high rate of 

attendance in young children. For adults attendance rates 

are higher in younger adults and then are steady until old 

age. As the number of people over 65, and those with 

complex conditions is increasing we will need new ways of 

offering urgent care.  

2016/17 A&E Attendance by age (rate per 1,000) 

Around 30,000 A&E attendances are made by patients aged 

0-19 each year. 94% of these are at Pennine Acute Trust, 

these figures include activity at the Urgent Care Centre 

which accounts for 51% of attendances. Most patients aged 

0-19 (59%) will be discharged with no follow up treatment 

and 18% are discharged with follow up by GP. 3.5% leave 

before being treated. Nearly 25% of attendances had a 

diagnosis which was not classifiable. This data suggest an 

opportunity to reduce attendance. An analysis by Right 

Care found significantly more attendances at A&E in under 

5s in HMR than in other similar areas.  

 

An elective admission is planned in advance with a patient 

attending hospital on a pre-arranged date for a procedure. 

These admissions can be either overnight admissions or day 

cases (where patients are admitted and discharged from 

hospital on the same day. A planned admission that leads 

to patient benefit is a fundamental part of a functioning 

health system. Non-elective admissions are typically 

emergency admissions into hospital and can be either day 

cases or overnight admissions, but also include transfers 

within hospitals or maternity admissions. Whilst non-

elective admissions are expected the number should not be 

too high as this indicates a health system that is not 

identifying need early enough. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

A&E Hospital Number of Patients 

Rochdale Infirmary 44,631 

Fairfield General Hospital 22,522 

Royal Oldham Hospital 17,025 

North Manchester General hospital 13,140 

Salford Royal Foundation Trust 3,714 

Central Manchester 2,608 

other 716 

Page 339



 

       Page 41 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Trend in non-elective admissions in HMR and Greater 

Manchester (GM) 

 

Compared to a baseline of 2012/13 and the general 

increasing trend in Greater Manchester, HMR has made 

good progress in reducing non elective admissions. 

Between 2015/16 and 2016/17 there was a slight increase 

in these admissions. 

 

Elective admissions per 1,000 population 2016/17 

For elective admissions HMR is slightly above the Greater 

Manchester rate. Three areas have lower rates than the 

rest of GM of which two of the three are considered by  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rightcare to be similar and comparable to HMR. There has 

been an increase in outpatient elective admissions which 

are less expensive. In 2012/13 there were 199,394 

outpatient elective admissions and in 2016/2017 it was 

236,871.  

 

Health Checks and Screening 

 

Since April 2013 of the Borough’s eligible population 80% 

have now been offered a health check and 49% have 

received a health check. This gives a conversion rate of 62% 

(delivered/ offered) which is better than many other areas 

of Greater Manchester. There is however wide variation 

between individual GP practices. For some practices 21% of 

the eligible population have had a health check whereas in 

the best practice it is 75%.  

 

Cumulative health checks offered and delivered from April 

2013 to June 2017  

 

Given that cardiovascular disease is a major cause of 

premature mortality, and kidney disease and diabetes are 

also important health concerns in the Rochdale population 

it is very important for us to promote and encourage health 

checks. It is especially important to get high rates of health 

checks delivered to eligible younger aged people because 

many of these people are on the cusp of developing long 

term conditions which could potentially be prevented. 

 

Page 340



 

       Page 42 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Cancer Screening 

 

Currently there are three cancer screening programmes 

available to residents of Rochdale. These are for bowel, 

breast and cervical cancer. Each of these has been shown in 

randomised trials to save lives.  

 

 

Coverage of bowel cancer screening 

 

 

 

About one in 20 people in the UK will develop bowel cancer 

during their lifetime. It is the third most common cancer in 

the UK, and the second leading cause of cancer deaths. 

Regular bowel cancer screening has been shown to reduce 

the risk of dying from bowel cancer by 16%. Coverage of 

bowel cancer screening is measured by dividing the 

number of people aged 60–74 resident in the area 

(determined by postcode of residence) with a screening 

test result recorded in the previous 2½ years by the 

number of people aged 60–74 resident in the area who are 

eligible for bowel screening.  

 

Coverage of breast cancer screening 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Breast screening supports early detection of cancer and is 

estimated to save 1,400 lives in England each year. 

Improvements in coverage would mean more breast 

cancers are detected at earlier, more treatable stages. 

Coverage of breast screening is measured by dividing the 

number of women aged 53–70 resident in the area with a 

screening test result recorded in the previous three years 

by the number of women aged 53–70 resident in the area 

who are eligible for breast screening. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Coverage of cervical cancer screening 

 

Cervical cancer screening supports detection of symptoms 

that may become cancer and is estimated to save 4,500 

lives in England each year. Improvements in coverage 

would mean more cervical cancer is prevented or detected 

at earlier, more treatable stages. Coverage of cervical 

cancer screening is measured adding the number of women 

aged 25-49 resident in the area with an adequate screening 

test in the previous 3.5 years to the number of women 

aged 50-64 resident in the area with an adequate screening 

test in the previous 5.5 years and then dividing this by the 

number of women aged 25–64 resident in the area who are 

eligible for cervical screening.  

 
 
 

In Rochdale cancer is an important cause of premature 

mortality. Finding cancer earlier is key to reducing 

mortality. It is therefore important for the eligible 

population to attend cancer screening. Lung cancer is a very 

important cause of premature mortality in Rochdale but 

not yet routinely screened for. In the absence of screening 

people need to be able to recognise signs and symptoms of 

cancer. NICE has produced guidelines for health 

professionals for the referral of patients with suspected 

cancer. In general people with suspected cancer are fast 

tracked to ensure they get a timely diagnosis. This will only 

lead to significantly earlier diagnosis if the population, 

especially those at highest risk are vigilant about signs and 

symptoms of cancer and seek help if worried.  

 
 
 

 

 

Year Rochdale North West England 

2015 52.7% 55.9% 57.1% 

2016 54.9% 56.8% 57.9% 

Year Rochdale North West England 

2015 67.6%   72.6% 75.4% 

2016 71.8%  72.2% 75.5% 

Year Rochdale North West England 

2015 73.5% 72.8% 73.5% 

2016 72.7%  72.3% 72.7% 

Page 341



 

       Page 43 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 A population’s health is determined by a complex 

interplay between individual, environmental and 

social factors. This works in both directions. Poor 

environmental and social conditions can cause bad 

health and being in bad health can lead to being in 

poor environmental and social conditions. An 

example is illness leading to loss of employment and 

then not being able to afford to live in high quality 

housing. There is a need to keep residents healthier 

for longer. This will mean people in Rochdale not 

getting a serious long term condition until later in life. 

There is also a need to ensure that those with an 

existing health condition are able to cope and 

improve their health and wellbeing. To resolve these 

needs requires us to consider how individuals can 

behave differently to improve their own health and 

how environmental and social factors can help 

improve health outcomes. 

A person can influence their own health positively by taking 

care of themselves, eating well and staying active, not 

smoking, getting the recommended vaccinations and 

screening tests, and seeing a dentist regularly. However, 

health is mainly determined in the wider environment and 

social world. This is because your family, home, school, 

work and area you were brought up in influence your 

health. This can happen through physical mechanisms, such 

as, damp housing leading to respiratory problems, or       

   through social mechanisms, such as your family 

    or culture influencing what you eat.  

     Health is also determined in part 

     by access to social and economic 

      opportunities, the resources 

      available, neighbourhoods 

      and communities, social  

      interactions and   

      relationships and the  

      cleanliness and quality of 

      water, food, and air.  

                                                                                  

Recognising, what appear to be individual choices leading 

to good health are influenced by the social and physical 

environment, is crucial to changing population health. It 

opens the door to looking at how non-health areas such 

as education, childcare, housing, employment, 

neighbourhood planning, and transport, affect the health 

of individuals, families, and communities. Understanding 

that population health is produced largely in the social 

world provides the underpinning for working together to 

see how programs, practices, and policies in non-health 

areas can help us improve health in Rochdale.  

In Rochdale, we need to distinguish those determinants 

of health that we can influence locally from those which 

require outside action. It is known, for example, that 

inequality of wealth and income leads to inequality of 

health. Put simply being poor is bad for health but being 

poor and surrounded by people who are more affluent is 

even worse for health. Narrowing inequality of wealth 

and income requires national and international action 

and current policy is tending to widen rather than narrow 

inequality. Rochdale is the 16th most deprived district 

out of 326 in England so there will be a gap in health 

outcomes. We can accept that locally we are unable to 

profoundly alter income distribution but what we can do 

is work to narrow our health gap between our most and 

least affluent residents. By tackling broad causes of 

premature mortality and ensuring equitable access to 

services that make a difference.  

Page 342



 

       Page 44 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Rochdale as a place, has both physical and social 

dimensions that determine health. The physical include the 

natural environment - green spaces, weather; buildings and 

public spaces; cycling lanes and roads; workplaces; schools; 

recreational settings; housing and neighbourhood design; 

physical hazards, especially for people with disabilities and 

visual elements such as urban trees and planting, benches 

and lighting. The physical dimension includes all the 

material assets Rochdale has to influence and improve 

health and wellbeing. The social dimension is about the 

patterns of social engagement, sense of security, access to 

services, being able to connect, feeling part of a 

community, making friends, and the general feeling of a 

place. The biggest assets in the social dimension are people 

– those who live and work in Rochdale. 

 

It is the interplay between the physical and social 

dimensions that is crucial to population health and 

wellbeing. Whilst we can recognise that poverty, the wider 

political environment, advertising and marketing, taxation, 

and available budgets have an impact on physical and 

social assets, through their impact on the availability or 

quality of physical assets and the psychological impact of 

inequality. It can be acknowledged that locally we can do 

much to use our assets to improve local health and 

wellbeing.  

 

We can use our health assets to improve health by 

ensuring equitable access to efficient and effective local 

health services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The wider question is how we should use  

our non-health assets to improve wellbeing.  

The answer is in many ways. If we have a  

strategic vision to tackle local need by  

improving population mental and physical  

wellbeing the actions we can take are  

many. Consider the following needs that  

have been identified in this assessment  

– bullying, children missing breakfast, carers not getting a 

break and loneliness. These are needs that locally we can 

make an impact on.   

 

Examples of how we might use physical  assets to improve 

wellbeing include using good lighting, urban trees, and 

benches to encourage people to notice and connect more; 

and using signage and well maintained walking routes to 

increase activity. Over time as the full web based JSNA is 

completed, sections on housing, transport, buildings and 

the environment will include how we can use these 

physical assets to improve health and wellbeing.  

 

We must also consider how we use our social assets to 

improve wellbeing. This again can include many 

opportunities, from simple things, like how to make 

meetings and brief social interactions more likely to 

improve wellbeing, to bigger possibilities of engaging and 

using the workforce to improve their own and others 

wellbeing. We can make it part of the local culture to ask 

the question - How can this improve wellbeing and make 

people happier and healthier.  
Page 343



 

       Page 45 I Rochdale Borough JSNA Summary 2017/18 

JSNA Task Group 

Anthony Threlfall (RBC Public Health) 

Martyn Hall (RBC Public Health) 

Richard Pinkney (RBC Public Health) 

Wendy Meston (RBC Public Health) 

Shakeela Bano (RBC Public Health) 

Janice Holliss (RBC Public Health) 

Joanne Brickell (RBC Corporate Policy and 

Performance) 

Adele Wood (HMR CCG) 

Peter Johnson (HMR CCG) 

Daniel Hurley (HMR CCG) 

Jackie Woodall (RBC Children’s Services) 

Juliette Johnson (RBC Adult Care) 

 

Boards and Partnerships 

Integrated Commissioning Board 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Adult Care OST 

Children’s Partnership 

All attendees of the Health and Wellbeing Assembly 

 

Graphics  

All graphics accessed from www.flaticon.com with 

credit to the following authors: 

Freepik: https://www.flaticon.com/authors/freepik 

Zurb: https://www.flaticon.com/authors/zurb 

 

Dave Gandy: https://www.flaticon.com/authors/dave-

gandy 

 

Smashicons: https://www.flaticon.com/authors/

smashicons 

 

AnhGreen: https://www.flaticon.com/authors/anhgreen 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 344


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Rochdale Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018-2021
	PNA 2
	PNA 3
	PNA 4
	pna 5
	pna 6
	pna 7
	pna 8
	PNA 9
	PNA 10
	PNA 11
	PNA 12
	PNA 13
	Pna 14
	pna 15

	5 Health Protection Update
	8 CAMHS Local Transformation Plan
	HMRCCG - CAMHS Transformation Plan v3.0 2018

	9 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
	JSNA 2017-18 Summary


